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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
�accelerated filer and large accelerated filer� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes o      No x

The aggregate market value of common stock held by non-affiliates was $1,301,495,610 at the close of business on July 29, 2006 (the last
business day of the registrant�s fiscal 2006 second fiscal quarter) based on the closing price of the common stock as reported on the Nasdaq
Global Select Market. For purposes of this disclosure, shares of common stock held by persons who hold more than 10% of the outstanding
shares of common stock and shares held by executive officers and directors of the registrant have been excluded because such persons may be
deemed affiliates. This determination of executive officer or affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusive determination for other purposes.

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant�s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date: Common Stock,
par value $0.10 per share, outstanding at October 6, 2007: 29,083,916 shares.

Documents Incorporated by Reference: None.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007 (�fiscal 2006�), The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc. (the
�Company�) is restating its prior period financial statements to reflect additional stock-based compensation expense relating to stock option grants
made in each year from the fiscal year ended January 31, 1998 (�fiscal 1997�) through the first quarter of fiscal 2006. The Company also is
restating its financial statements for all periods beginning with the fiscal year ended February 2, 2002 (�fiscal 2001�) through the first quarter of
fiscal 2006 to reflect the correction of other errors related to personal property taxes and certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those
related to occupancy costs for the Company�s 52- and 53-week fiscal years. Specifically, the Company is restating its: (1) consolidated balance
sheet as of January 28, 2006, consolidated statements of income, cash flows and changes in stockholders� equity for the fiscal years ended
January 28, 2006 (�fiscal 2005�) and January 29, 2005 (�fiscal 2004�); (2) selected consolidated financial data for fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and the
fiscal years ended January 31, 2004 (�fiscal 2003�) and February 1, 2003 (�fiscal 2002�); and (3) unaudited quarterly financial data for the first
quarter in fiscal 2006 and for all quarters in fiscal 2005. Restated financial information for fiscal years 2005 and 2004 is set forth in Note
2�Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 15.�Exhibits and
Financial Statement Schedules of this report. The data for the Company�s consolidated balance sheet for fiscal 2003 and consolidated statements
of income and cash flows for fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2002 have been restated to reflect the impact of the adjustments. Unaudited consolidated
quarterly financial information for the eight quarterly periods in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, including disclosures regarding the impact of the
restatement in each of the quarters in fiscal 2005 and the first quarter in fiscal 2006, is set forth in Item 7.�Management�s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations � Quarterly Effects of Restatement and Note 16�Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Company has not amended and does not intend to amend its previously filed Annual Reports on Form 10-K for fiscal 2005 or fiscal 2004 or
any other fiscal year or its previously filed Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of fiscal 2006 or the first three quarters of fiscal
2005 or any other fiscal quarter. The financial information that has been previously filed or otherwise reported for these periods is superseded by
the information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and, as previously stated by the Company, the financial statements and related financial
information contained in such previously filed reports should no longer be relied upon.

The aggregate impact of the stock-based compensation adjustments on the Company�s consolidated statements of income, net of forfeitures of
unvested awards and taxes, between the fiscal year ended January 30, 1999 (�fiscal 1998�) and the first quarter of fiscal 2006 was a decrease in net
income of approximately $11.2 million. The aggregate impact of the other adjustments unrelated to stock options on the Company�s consolidated
statements of income, net of taxes, between fiscal 2001 and the first quarter of fiscal 2006 was an increase to net income of approximately $1.7
million. Additionally, variable rate demand note balances as of the quarter ended April 29, 2006 have been reclassified from cash to short-term
investments, and certain other balance sheet amounts have been reclassified. These reclassifications do not result in any additional charges in
any period and do not affect working capital for the affected periods.

On September 8, 2006, December 8, 2006, April 5, 2007 and June 15, 2007, the Company filed notifications of late filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) on Form 12b-25, disclosing that, due to an ongoing investigation of its stock option granting practices, it was
delaying the filing of its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the second and third quarters of fiscal 2006, its Annual Report on Form 10-K for
fiscal 2006, and its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of the fiscal year ending February 2, 2008 (�fiscal 2007�), respectively. In
addition, on September 14, 2007, the Company filed another notification of late filing with the SEC on Form 12b-25, disclosing that the
Company�s Board of Directors (�Board�) was reviewing circumstances surrounding certain violations of the Company�s policies and procedures by
two executives of the Company and was considering the appropriate actions to take regarding these matters and, therefore, the Company would
be delaying the filing of its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of fiscal 2007.

Immediately prior to filing this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company has filed its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the second and
third quarters of fiscal 2006 and the Company intends, in the near future, to file its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the first and second
quarters of fiscal 2007.
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Mr. Ezra Dabah resigned from his position as the Company�s CEO on September 24, 2007. Mr. Dabah remains a member of the Board. The
Board has named Mr. Charles Crovitz, a current Board member, as interim CEO.

STOCK OPTION INVESTIGATION

Overview of the Investigation

In light of various media reports on stock option backdating at public companies and as recommended by the Audit Committee of the Company�s
Board, the Company undertook a preliminary review of its stock option granting practices starting in June 2006. After considering the results of
this preliminary review, on August 24, 2006, the Audit Committee retained the Company�s outside counsel (�Outside Counsel�) to assist it with a
formal review of the Company�s stock option grants. On September 6, 2006, Outside Counsel issued to the Audit Committee a preliminary report
concluding that there had been errors in the grant dates of options. The report also concluded that, aside from one grant as to which the report
was inconclusive, the errors in stock option dating were unintentional. The review of the Company�s stock option grants continued and expanded
into a full investigation. On or about September 14, 2006, the Company suspended all stock-based compensation activity, including granting
stock options and other stock-based compensation and issuing shares pursuant to stock option exercises, pending completion of the review and
the Company becoming current on its delinquent filings with the SEC.

In October 2006, the Audit Committee retained separate independent counsel that had not previously represented the Company (�Independent
Counsel�) to advise the Audit Committee regarding the matters under investigation and a forensic accounting consulting firm was retained to
assist in the investigation. On October 5, 2006, the Company announced that it expected to restate its financial statements and on October 11,
2006, the Company filed with the SEC a Current Report on Form 8-K disclosing that, because of issues with regard to its accounting for stock
option grants, the Company�s previously issued financial statements and other historical financial information and related disclosures for periods
through the first quarter of fiscal 2006 should no longer be relied upon. On November 24, 2006, a two-member special committee of
independent members of the Company�s Board (�Special Committee�) was appointed by the Company�s Board to supervise and complete the
investigation commenced by the Audit Committee.

During the period from September 17, 1997 (the day before the Company first became publicly held) through the most recent grant in February
2006 (�Review Period�), separate option grant authorizing actions were undertaken by the Company on 122 occasions. For convenience of
reference, each of these occasions is referred to herein as a �Recorded Grant� (regardless of the number of people who received an option award
on such occasion or any variations in terms of the awards so granted). At the request of Independent Counsel, the forensic accounting firm
conducted an empirical assessment of all stock option grants during the Review Period to identify grants that might warrant further investigation.
Using various statistical tests, twenty Recorded Grants were selected for detailed investigation, plus one additional Recorded Grant to a family
member of the Company�s former Chief Executive Officer (�CEO�). Overall, the investigation involved interviews of fourteen people, representing
all the individuals involved in any material respect in the option granting process, and the review of tens of thousands of paper and electronic
documents from the files (including office and personal computers) of such individuals and others and from other Company files (including
e-mails and other documents recovered from the Company�s electronic information system). A grant made to the Company�s former CEO, Mr.
Ezra Dabah, in connection with the Company�s initial public offering of its shares (�1997 CEO IPO Grant�) also was subsequently investigated by
Independent Counsel.

Findings of the Stock Option Investigation
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On January 30, 2007, the Special Committee delivered its written report of investigation including recommendations (�Report of Investigation�) to
the Board. The Board accepted the report and resolved to adopt the Special Committee�s recommendations and to take the actions necessary to
implement them. Key findings of the Report of Investigation, as disclosed in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 1,
2007, included:

�  There was no conclusive evidence of intentional backdating of options or other misconduct in connection with
the option granting process. There was no evidence of intent to mislead about option grant dates or exercise prices.

2
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�  No member of management and no director engaged in improper self-dealing in connection with the option
grants made by the Company.

�  All Company personnel cooperated fully with the investigation.

�  The Company did not maintain appropriate governance and other internal controls, which resulted in errors in
the dating of options and other irregularities in option grants. In many instances options were dated before all
grant-making processes were finalized. Consequently, in such instances the option exercise price was lower than it
should have been based on the trading price on the date the grant process was completed and incorrect charges were
taken for the options for financial reporting purposes. Also, in a few instances, the Company may have selected grant
dates with a view toward upcoming disclosures.

The Report of Investigation further concluded that, apart from some immaterial discrepancies in grants to non-executives representing less than
1.5% of the number of shares subject to options issued over the Review Period, there were no unauthorized grants. This conclusion was based on
a comparison by the Company of its grant authorizing documentation to the Company�s records of options issued, which correctly reflected the
documented and authorized grants in terms of who received option grants and the number of options granted. However, subsequent to the Report
of Investigation being issued, it was determined that certain unauthorized actions were taken in May 2004 relating to the 1997 CEO IPO Grant.
These actions were ratified by the Board in 2007.

During the Review Period, the Company used the effective date reflected in its grant approval documentation as the grant date and in its
accounting for option grants used such date as the measurement date under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, �Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees� (�APB 25�). In many instances, that date was an �as of� date on a unanimous written consent (�UWC�) of the Board or the
Compensation Committee. Since the Company believed options were granted with exercise prices that equaled or exceeded their quoted market
price at the date of grant, no compensation expense was recorded in the Company�s financial statements for options granted prior to its adoption
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004), �Accounting for Share-Based Payments� (�SFAS 123(R)�) as of January
29, 2006, other than in connection with the acceleration of the vesting of options in fiscal 2005 and the acceleration of the vesting of options
related to a terminated employee. However, the Report of Investigation concluded that, as a result of the inadequacy of the Company�s
governance, internal financial reporting and other controls over the option grant process, the APB 25 measurement dates (�measurement date�)
used by the Company for a significant portion of the stock options granted during the Review Period were incorrect, as the recipients of the
grants, number of shares subject to the options granted and exercise prices were not approved and established with finality by the date the
Company had recorded as the grant date.

The Company used available documentation and guidance set forth by the Office of the Chief Accountant of the SEC on September 19, 2006
(�September 2006 OCA Guidance�) to determine the revised measurement dates for option grants made during the Review Period. For a
discussion of the Company�s historical stock option granting process and use of available information to determine the revised measurement
dates, refer to Item 7.�Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations�Restatement of Financial
Statements and Note 2�Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

After completion of the Report of Investigation, the Company in reviewing its accounting for options became aware of certain inconsistencies in
its records concerning the terms of the 1997 CEO IPO Grant. Under the direction of the Special Committee, Independent Counsel investigated
the Company�s treatment of these options and reported thereon to the Special Committee. On April 11, 2007, the Special Committee reported to
the Board on the 1997 CEO IPO Grant. Based on the evidence assembled in Independent Counsel�s investigation, the Special Committee found
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that there had been confusion, resulting in inconsistencies in the Company records, in connection with the implementation of the 1997 CEO IPO
Grant and over the years with regard to the terms of this grant. In considering the results of the investigation into the 1997 CEO IPO Grant, the
Special Committee reconsidered the key findings it had reached in the Report of Investigation, as described above, and concluded that the
evidence from the additional investigation did not lead it to different findings. The Board concurred in this conclusion.
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Inadequate Internal Controls

The Company is undertaking to remediate the material weakness in internal control over financial reporting related to stock option grants found
by the Special Committee, as further discussed in Item 9A.�Controls and Procedures of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Company has
continued its suspension of the granting of all stock-based compensation, including the granting of stock options, as well as the exercise of any
options, until these improved procedures have been instituted. Furthermore, the suspension of granting and exercise of stock options will
continue until the Company becomes current with its SEC filings.

Resolution of Tax Consequences and Corrective Action Related to Discounted Options

Revision to the measurement dates of stock options often resulted in options with exercise prices below the fair market value of the related
shares on the revised measurement date (�discounted options�). Individuals currently holding discounted options may incur an excise tax liability
under Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the �Internal Revenue Code�). As recommended by the Special
Committee, in order to avoid any benefit from the errors made in dating of options to any person involved in the option granting process and,
also, as part of the Company�s efforts to address certain tax considerations associated with outstanding options granted with an exercise price
below fair market value, the Company has taken the following actions:

� The Company and its directors (including Mr. Dabah, its former CEO), its President and its former Chief Administrative Officer have
agreed to amend all discounted options held by them (other than those described in the next paragraph) to increase the exercise price to the
average of the high and low trading price on the date determined by the Company to be the revised measurement date applicable to the option
grant to be used for financial reporting purposes. In the few instances where these individuals have exercised options as to which a revised
measurement date has been determined by the Company, the individuals have agreed to return to the Company the difference between the
exercise price and the trading price on the revised measurement date.

� In the three instances where the Report of Investigation found that non-executive directors received options shortly before the public
disclosure of positive information, the Company and these directors further agreed to amend such options to increase the exercise price to the
average of the high and low trading price over the balance of the calendar year following the recorded date of the grant.

� With respect to all other option grants, the Company has decided to honor the options as issued, consistent with the Special
Committee�s finding of no intentional misconduct on the part of management in the option granting process. Nevertheless, the Company and all
members of senior management holding outstanding options have agreed to have their outstanding discounted options that vested after 2004
amended either to increase the exercise price to the average of the high and low trading price on the date determined by the Company to be the
revised measurement date or to limit the exercise period of their options.

In addition, with respect to holders of discounted options that vested after 2004 who are employees at the time, other than members of senior
management who have already agreed to amend their outstanding discounted options, the Company plans to offer as soon as practicable the
opportunity to exchange their discounted options for options with the same terms except that the exercise price will be changed to the average of
the high and low trading price on the revised measurement date. Option holders who agree to such amendment will receive a cash bonus in the
amount of the increase in the exercise price.
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The foregoing actions are expected to bring all outstanding options held by employees and non-employee directors into compliance with
pertinent requirements relating to discounted options so that the 20% excise tax under Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code does not
apply to the options. To the extent such discounted options were exercised during fiscal 2006, the Company expects to bear the liability for, and
has accrued during fiscal 2006, an amount estimated to equal the potential 20% excise tax under Section 409A that would be incurred by the
recipient in connection with such option if such tax is applicable, and any related income tax liability that would be incurred by the recipient in
respect of receiving from the Company such amount, if any.

4

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

12



OTHER ADJUSTMENTS

As previously mentioned in the Explanatory Note in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, in addition to the adjustments related to the stock option
investigation, the restated consolidated financial statements presented herein include other adjustments related to personal property taxes and
certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those related to occupancy costs for the Company�s 52- and 53-week fiscal years. The aggregate
impact of these adjustments on the Company�s consolidated statements of income, net of taxes, between fiscal 2001 and the first quarter of fiscal
2006 was an increase to net income of approximately $1.7 million. Additionally, variable rate demand note balances as of the quarter ended
April 29, 2006 have been reclassified from cash to short-term investments, and certain other balance sheet amounts have been reclassified. These
reclassifications do not result in any additional charges in any period and do not affect working capital for the affected periods. For further
discussion of these adjustments, refer to Note 2�Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 16�Quarterly Financial Data
(Unaudited) in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 15.�Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules and Item
7.�Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

CUMULATIVE ADJUSTMENTS

The following table summarizes the cumulative increase or decrease to net income from fiscal 1998 through the first quarter of fiscal 2006.
These adjustments relate to the Company recognizing stock-based compensation expense as a result of determining revised measurement dates
for past stock option grants as well as the other adjustments noted above (in thousands):

Stock Option Related Adjustments Other Adjustments(1)

Period Ended
Expense
(Increase)

Tax
Benefit

Net Stock
Option Related
Adjustments

Expense
(Increase)
Decrease

Tax
Benefit

(Provision)

Net
Other

Adjustments

Total After
Tax

Adjustment
January 30, 1999 (fiscal
1998) $ (59) $ 19 $ (40) $ � $ � $ � $ (40)
January 29, 2000 (fiscal
1999) (211) 81 (130) � � � (130)
February 3, 2001 (fiscal
2000) (386) 131 (255) � � � (255)
February 2, 2002 (fiscal
2001) (915) 295 (620) 240 (98) 142 (478)
February 1, 2003 (fiscal
2002) (972) 375 (597) 772 (311) 461 (136)
January 31, 2004 (fiscal
2003) (1,632) 486 (1,146) 1,722 (695) 1,027 (119)
January 29, 2005 (fiscal
2004) (3,386) 772 (2,614) 589 (82) 507 (2,107)
January 28, 2006 (fiscal
2005)(2) (8,927) 3,956 (4,971) (853) 218 (635) (5,606)

Cumulative effect at January
28, 2006 $ (16,488) $ 6,115 $ (10,373) $ 2,470 $ (968) $ 1,502 $ (8,871)

April 29, 2006 (Q1 fiscal
2006) $ (1,331) $ 544 $ (787) $ 327 $ (161) $ 166 $ (621)

(1)  Other adjustments relate to personal property taxes and certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those
related to occupancy costs for the Company�s 52- and 53-week fiscal years.
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(2)  The Company has not previously recorded stock-based compensation expense in any fiscal year other than
fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2005, the Company recorded approximately $0.3 million related to the modification of stock
options for a terminated employee, before taxes of approximately $0.1 million. The Company also recorded
approximately $2.1 million, before taxes of approximately $0.1 million, of stock-based compensation expense related
to the acceleration of the vesting of certain options. As part of the restatement process, the stock option acceleration
amounts were adjusted to approximately $1.7 million of stock-based compensation expense, before taxes of
approximately $0.5 million. Therefore, the restated total stock-based compensation expense for fiscal 2005 is
approximately $11.3 million, before taxes of approximately $4.1 million.
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Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

15



Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

16



ITEM 1.�BUSINESS

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

17



Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

18



The Business section and other parts of this Annual Report on Form 10-K may contain certain forward-looking statements regarding future
circumstances. Forward-looking statements provide current expectations of future events based on certain assumptions and include any
statement that does not directly relate to any historical or current fact. Forward-looking statements can also be identified by words such as
�anticipates,� �believes,� �estimates,� �expects,� �intends,� �plans,� �predicts,� and similar terms. These forward-looking statements are
based upon the Company�s current expectations and assumptions and are subject to various risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those contemplated in such forward-looking statements including, but not limited to, those discussed in the
subsection entitled �Risk Factors� under Part I, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Actual results, events, and performance may
differ significantly from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements. Readers of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are cautioned not
to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. The Company undertakes no obligation to
release publicly any revisions to these forward-looking statements that may be made to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. The inclusion of any statement in this Annual Report on Form 10-K does not constitute an
admission by the Company or any other person that the events or circumstances described in such statement are material.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company�s audited financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Recent Developments
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On September 24, 2007 during a meeting of the Board, Mr. Ezra Dabah resigned from his position as CEO of the Company and from all other
officer positions with the Company and all positions as an officer or director of any of the Company�s subsidiaries. Mr. Dabah continues to serve
as a member of the Company�s Board. Mr. Dabah is entitled to severance pursuant to section 5.01 of such agreement; the Company has not
entered into any additional agreement with Mr. Dabah concerning additional severance benefits. Upon the resignation of Mr. Dabah, the Board
named Mr. Charles Crovitz, a current Board member, as interim CEO. The Board has engaged a search firm to conduct an executive search for a
permanent successor to Mr. Dabah. Ms. Sally Frame Kasaks, the Lead Director, will continue as Acting Chairman of the Board. The Company
continues to search for two new independent board members and will designate a permanent Chairman of the Board as soon as possible after
such new directors are appointed to the Board.

Consistent with its fiduciary duties, our Board has engaged an investment banking firm to act as its financial advisor in undertaking a review of
strategic alternatives to improve operations and enhance shareholder value. As part of this review, our Board and management are assessing a
wide variety of options to improve our business and competitive position, including, but not limited to, opportunities for organizational and
operational improvement, a possible recapitalization, or other transactions. The Board has not set any specific timeline for the completion of this
strategic review, and there is no assurance that as a result of this review, the Board will decide to change the Company�s course of action or
engage in any specific transaction.

In August 2007, in connection with the application of enhanced internal controls the Company instituted as part of the changes in its governance
and internal controls resulting from the stock option remediation process, the Company identified certain violations of the Company�s policies
and procedures by two members of senior management. On September 26, 2007, the Board completed its consideration of these violations.

One instance involved irregularities in expense reimbursement practices on the part of the Chief Creative Officer of The Children�s Place
business, who is a related party to the Company�s former CEO and current Board member, Ezra Dabah, and another member of the Board,
Stanley Silverstein. The Board concluded that the irregularities violated the Company�s Code of Business Conduct, involving gross inattention to
the pertinent requirements of the Company�s policies but did not involve an intentional effort to obtain an improper personal benefit. The Board
imposed significant sanctions on the individual involved, including requiring the individual to refund approximately $23,000 erroneously
charged to the Company, changing the individual�s position so that the individual will no longer be an officer of the Company, and requiring the
reimbursement of approximately $160,000 to cover the Company�s

6
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out-of-pocket costs incurred in connection with its investigation of the matter, but concluded that dismissal from employment was not warranted.

The other case involved two instances where the Company�s former CEO, Ezra Dabah, did not comply with the Company�s internal policies
related to internal securities transaction reporting and approval. In one instance, Mr. Dabah did not report to the Company an immaterial increase
in his wife�s ownership of Company shares as a result of a trust distribution. In the second, on two occasions, he pledged shares of Company
stock pursuant to a customary margin account during a �black-out period� when the Company�s policies required prior approval of the Board for
such pledges. The Board concluded that these actions violated the Company�s Code of Business Conduct, but that they were not done with the
intent of knowingly violating the Company�s policies or in order to obtain an improper personal benefit by doing so and did not result in his
obtaining an improper personal benefit or result in any liability exposure to the Company. The Audit Committee also determined that the pledges
at issue would be considered valid and would be permitted. The Board imposed significant sanctions for committing the violations, including
imposing new requirements on transactions involving the Company�s securities by the former CEO and requiring that he reimburse the Company
approximately $36,600 for its out-of-pocket costs in investigating the violations.

The Company is instituting additional expense reimbursement procedures and additional training in the requirements of the Company�s Code of
Business Conduct and related policies and procedures to help ensure against future similar violations.

The Company has completed its investigation of the violations of the Company�s policies and procedures and no other internal investigations are
underway.

Overview
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In this Report, the words the �Company�, �we�, �us�, �our� and similar terms collectively refer to The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and
subsidiaries. The Company was incorporated in June 1988 and is a leading specialty retailer of children�s merchandise. We design, contract to
manufacture and sell high-quality, value-priced merchandise under our proprietary �The Children�s Place� and licensed �Disney Store� brand names.
As of September 1, 2007 we owned and operated 889 The Children�s Place stores and 328 Disney Stores across North America and operated
Internet stores at www.childrensplace.com and www.disneystore.com.

In November 2004, we acquired, through two wholly-owned subsidiaries, the Disney Store retail chain in North America (the �DSNA Business�)
from affiliates of The Walt Disney Company (�Disney�). (For clarification, the �DSNA Business� refers to the business we acquired from Disney as
of November 21, 2004, whereas the �Disney Store business� refers to the Disney Store business we have operated since the acquisition.) As a
result of the acquisition, these subsidiaries acquired a total of 313 Disney Stores, consisting of all then-existing Disney Stores in the United
States and Canada, other than �flagship� stores and stores located at Disney theme parks and other Disney properties, along with certain other
assets used in the Disney Store business. In addition, the lease obligations for all 313 stores and other legal obligations became obligations of our
subsidiaries. Subsequently, our subsidiaries acquired two Disney Store flagship stores, one in Chicago, Illinois and the other in San Francisco,
California, as well as certain Disney Store outlet stores. The Company�s subsidiaries that operate the Disney Store business are referred to herein
interchangeably and collectively as �Hoop.�

We are structured such that our administrative functions (e.g., finance, real estate, human resources, legal, information technology, logistics) are
shared by both The Children�s Place and the Disney Store brands. Functions such as design, merchandising, marketing and store operations are
run independently of each other to maintain clearly defined and differentiated brands. Each brand is overseen by a President who manages
day-to-day operations and who reports directly to our CEO.

The Children�s Place is a specialty retailer of apparel and accessories for children from newborn to ten years of age. The brand�s merchandising
objective is to offer a unique, colorful, coordinated and balanced lifestyle assortment of high quality, basic and fashion merchandise, at prices
that represent substantial value to our customers.

Disney originated the themed specialty retail environment when it opened the first Disney store in Glendale, California in 1987. Disney Store
offers immediate access to unique Disney-branded products, such as apparel, toys, plush, and souvenirs in an emporium like setting.
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Our goal is to be the leading specialty retailer in the children�s space by executing on our �core purpose�: making the very best accessible to all
children.

During fiscal 2006, we opened 69 The Children�s Place stores compared to 55 store openings in fiscal 2005. We also opened 19 Disney Stores in
fiscal 2006 compared to 18 in fiscal 2005. We closed five The Children�s Place stores and eight Disney Stores in fiscal 2006, compared to three
The Children�s Place store closures and seven Disney Store closures in fiscal 2005. Our store growth plan for fiscal 2007 includes opening
approximately 60 The Children�s Place stores and approximately 15 Disney Stores.

License Agreement with Disney
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In connection with the acquisition of the DSNA Business in 2004, Hoop entered into a License and Conduct of Business Agreement with an
affiliate of Disney (as amended to date, the �License Agreement�) under which our subsidiaries use certain Disney intellectual property to operate
the Disney Store retail chain in exchange for ongoing royalty payments. The agreement allows our subsidiaries to operate retail stores in the
United States and Canada using the �Disney Store� name and to contract, manufacture, source, offer and sell merchandise featuring
Disney-branded characters, past, present and future. In accordance with the License Agreement, following a two year royalty abatement, our
subsidiaries began making royalty payments to Disney in November 2006 equal to 5% of net sales from physical Disney Store locations, subject
to an additional royalty holiday period with respect to a limited number of stores (the �Non-Core Stores�). The initial term of the License
Agreement continues through January 2020, unless terminated sooner in accordance with the License Agreement, and if certain financial
performance and other conditions are satisfied, the term of the License Agreement may be extended at our option for up to three additional
ten-year terms.

In connection with our acquisition of the DSNA Business, we also entered into a Guaranty and Commitment (the �Guaranty and Commitment�)
dated as of November 21, 2004, in favor of Hoop and Disney. As required by the Guaranty and Commitment, we invested $50 million in Hoop
concurrently with the consummation of the acquisition, and we agreed to invest up to an additional $50 million from time to time to enable Hoop
to comply with their obligations under the License Agreement and otherwise fund the operations of Hoop. The Guaranty and Commitment
provides that our $50 million additional commitment is subject to increase if certain distributions are made by Hoop to The Children�s Place. To
date, we have not invested any portion of the additional $50 million in Hoop. We also agreed in the Guaranty and Commitment to guarantee the
payment and performance by Hoop of their royalty payment and other obligations to Disney under the License Agreement, subject to a
maximum guaranty liability of $25 million, plus expenses.

The License Agreement obligates us to maintain the quality, appearance and presentation standards of the Disney Store chain in accordance with
the highest standards prevailing in the specialty retail industry. In addition, the License Agreement, as amended in April 2006, required us to:

�  Completely remodel each store within a specified period of time following expiration or termination of the
initial term of the lease for such store, if such lease is renewed or extended on a long-term basis upon or following
such expiration or termination;

�  Completely remodel each store at least once every 12 years; and

�  Completely remodel a minimum of approximately 160 of the 313 acquired stores by January 1, 2009.

During fiscal 2006, we suspended the Disney Store renovation program because of dissatisfaction with our �Mickey� store prototype from a brand,
design and construction standpoint. As of February 3, 2007, we had remodeled a total of 45 Disney Stores since the 2004 acquisition. Pursuant
to the provisions of the License Agreement, as amended in 2006, relating to required remodeling following lease renewals and required
remodeling of stores at least once every 12 years, we were required to remodel a total of approximately 145 stores by February 3, 2007. As of
February 3, 2007, we had remodeled 32 of these required stores, with the result that 113 of the store remodels required by that date under the
terms of the License Agreement had not been completed by that date. The remaining 13 store remodels we had completed were not required
pursuant to the provisions of the License Agreement.
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During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we received a letter and subsequent follow-up communications from Disney identifying various ways in
which we had not complied with the store renovation and certain other requirements of the License Agreement. In response, during the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2006, we commenced discussions with Disney regarding potential modifications to certain terms of the License Agreement to
address our remodeling commitments as well as other concerns that had been raised by Disney in various communications with us. During the
first quarter of fiscal 2007, Disney notified us that Disney viewed our failure to comply with these requirements of the License Agreement as
constituting numerous material breaches of the License Agreement, entitling Disney to exercise its rights and remedies under the License
Agreement.

Following discussions with Disney, in June 2007, we entered into a letter agreement with Disney (the �June Letter Agreement�) which modified
and superseded certain provisions of the License Agreement, including the remodeling requirements, through fiscal 2011 and created additional
obligations for us and Hoop with respect to the remodeling of Disney Stores. The June Letter Agreement was entered into to address Disney�s
assertion that through the date of the June Letter Agreement we had committed 120 material breaches of the License Agreement. The June Letter
Agreement stated that, if we fully comply with its terms, Disney would forbear from exercising any rights or remedies that it would have under
the License Agreement based on the breaches of the License Agreement that were asserted by Disney and were the subject of the June Letter
Agreement. However, if we were to violate any of its provisions, Disney would have the right to terminate its forbearance under the June Letter
Agreement, in which case Disney would be free to exercise any or all of its rights and remedies under the License Agreement, including possibly
terminating our license to operate the Disney Stores based on the occurrence of numerous material breaches and claiming breach fees, as if the
June Letter Agreement had not been executed. The June Letter Agreement also stated that, if we were to breach any of its provisions on three or
more occasions and Disney had not previously exercised its right to terminate the June Letter Agreement, a payment of $18.0 million to Disney
would become immediately due and payable with respect to the breach fees called for by the License Agreement. If we were to violate any of the
provisions of the June Letter Agreement on five or more occasions, Disney would have the right to immediately terminate the License
Agreement, without any right on our part to defend, counterclaim, protest or cure. The June Letter Agreement stated that its terms would take
effect immediately but that the parties anticipated the June Letter Agreement would later be replaced by a formal amendment to the License
Agreement incorporating the terms of the June Letter Agreement.

The June Letter Agreement, among other things, suspended the remodel obligations in the License Agreement for the approximately 4.5 year
term of the June Letter Agreement and, in lieu of those provisions, imposed new obligations on the Company with respect to the renovation and
maintenance of numerous stores in the Disney Store chain between fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2011 and, for stores to be remodeled in fiscal 2007, set
forth a detailed timetable for submission of plans and completion dates.

Subsequent to the execution of the June Letter Agreement, we were unable to meet several deadlines set forth in the June Letter Agreement. In
addition, we determined that there were upcoming deadlines during the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2007 specified in the June Letter
Agreement that we would likely not meet. Accordingly, we and Disney engaged in further discussions during August 2007 and, based on these
discussions, agreed upon changes to the requirements of the June Letter Agreement that would postpone the due dates of certain of our remodel
obligations, including those originally scheduled for fiscal 2007. In connection with these postponements, we agreed to remodel two additional
Disney Stores during fiscal 2009 and agreed upon changes to the original License Agreement to modify restrictions on Disney�s ability to
relocate its flagship retail store in Manhattan and to narrow the restrictions on Disney�s ability to grant direct licenses to other specialty retailers
so that these restrictions would apply only with respect to specialty retail stores focusing primarily on the sale of children�s merchandise.

During August 2007, we and Disney executed a formal amendment to the License Agreement (the �Refurbishment Amendment�) which
incorporated the terms of the June Letter Agreement, as modified by our mutual agreement during August, and the aforementioned changes to
the License Agreement. The Refurbishment Amendment by its terms superseded the June Letter Agreement and took effect retroactively as of
June 6, 2007, the original effective date of the June Letter Agreement. The Refurbishment Amendment provides that our compliance in full with
its terms will constitute a cure of the breaches identified in the Refurbishment Amendment and that, so long as the Refurbishment Amendment is
not terminated, Disney will forbear from exercising any rights or remedies that it would have under the License Agreement based on the
breaches identified in the Refurbishment Amendment.
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The Refurbishment Amendment suspends the remodel obligations in the License Agreement for the approximately 4.5 year term of the
Refurbishment Amendment, and, in lieu of those provisions, commits us to remodel by the end of fiscal 2011 a total of 236 existing Disney
Stores into a new store prototype we have developed,

�  of which the first seven remodels are required to be completed by December 31, 2007 (all of which we expect
to complete on schedule);

�  an additional 49 stores are required to be remodeled by the end of fiscal 2008;

�  an additional 60 stores are required to be remodeled by the end of fiscal 2009;

�  an additional 70 stores are required to be remodeled by the end of fiscal 2010; and

�  an additional 50 stores are required to be remodeled by the end of fiscal 2011.

Under the Refurbishment Amendment, we also have agreed to open at least 18 new Disney Stores using the new store prototype by the end of
fiscal 2008. Our prior obligations under the License Agreement did not require us to open a specified number of new stores.

In addition, the Refurbishment Amendment requires us to complete a �maintenance refresh� program in approximately 165 Disney Stores by June
30, 2008, including the flagship store located on Michigan Avenue in Chicago, which was completed on September 12, 2007. Some of the stores
that are refreshed will subsequently be remodeled into the new store prototype. The Refurbishment Amendment obligates us to complete the
remodel and refresh program described above and, as required by the Refurbishment Amendment, we have committed $175 million, on a
consolidated basis, to remodel and refresh the stores as noted above through fiscal 2011, and have committed approximately $12 million to open
new stores through fiscal 2008.

We expect that the Disney Stores will fund these commitments primarily from cash flow from operations and borrowings under its secured
credit facility. We expect that The Children�s Place business will need to provide additional capital to the Disney Stores to remain in compliance
with the store remodel requirements under the License Agreement as modified by the Refurbishment Amendment.

In the Refurbishment Amendment, we also agreed with Disney to make certain other modifications to the provisions of the License Agreement,
including:

�  Limiting the number of new Disney Stores to be opened per year during the remodeling period (we may open
up to 25 new stores in any given year after fiscal 2007, with a rollover each year of up to five new stores from prior
years);

�  Eliminating the extended royalty abatement for some of the Disney Stores that were identified as Non-Core
Stores in the License Agreement if their leases are extended on a long-term basis and the stores are not remodeled
within the timeframe that was required under the original terms of the License Agreement before giving effect to the
Refurbishment Amendment;
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�  Requiring the potential implementation of a differentiated merchandise plan for the Disney Store outlets; and

�  Modifying the provisions of the License Agreement that would apply to a potential wind-down of the Disney
Store business following any termination of the License Agreement.

Like the June Letter Agreement, the Refurbishment Amendment states that, if we fully comply with the terms of the Refurbishment
Amendment, Disney will forbear from exercising any rights or remedies that it would have under the License Agreement based on the breaches
of the License Agreement that were asserted by Disney and were the subject of the Refurbishment Amendment. However, under the terms of the
Refurbishment Amendment, if we violate any of the provisions of the Refurbishment Amendment, Disney will have the right to terminate its
forbearance under the Refurbishment Amendment, in which case Disney would be free to exercise any or all of its rights and remedies under the
License Agreement, including possibly terminating our license to operate the Disney Stores based on the occurrence  of numerous material
breaches and claiming breach fees, as if the Refurbishment Amendment had not been executed. The Refurbishment Amendment also states that,
if we breach any of its provisions on three or more occasions and Disney has not previously exercised its right to terminate the Refurbishment
Amendment, a payment of $18.0 million would become immediately due and payable to Disney with respect to the breach fees called for by the
License Agreement. If we violate any of the provisions of the Refurbishment Amendment on five or more occasions, Disney will have the right
to immediately terminate the License Agreement, without any right on our part to defend, counterclaim, protest or cure. It should be noted that
the Refurbishment Amendment addresses only those breaches
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specifically enumerated therein. Disney continues to retain all its other rights and remedies under the License Agreement with respect to any
other breaches.

 We believe that we will be able to perform our obligations under the Refurbishment Amendment as and when required. However, because our
ability to meet these obligations will depend on numerous factors, some of which are beyond our control, there can be no assurance that we will
be able to fully comply. Like the June Letter Agreement, the Refurbishment Amendment does not excuse us from compliance with these
requirements should there be events or developments that may be beyond our control, such as contractor delays, delays in landlord or regulatory
approval, natural disasters or acts of war or terrorism. Our diligent efforts may not be adequate to enable us to obtain all required approvals
under the Refurbishment Amendment or to comply with every requirement or meet every deadline imposed on us under the Refurbishment
Amendment. In the event we are unable to comply with any of our obligations when required, we would be in breach of our agreements with
Disney, entitling Disney to exercise its remedies under the Refurbishment Amendment and the License Agreement. In the event such breaches
occur, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain waivers or other relief from Disney, if needed, to avoid the $18.0 million payment
to Disney and prevent a termination of the Refurbishment Amendment or the License Agreement. In addition, any breach by us of agreements
with Disney (even if subsequently waived by Disney) would constitute a cross-default under the secured loan agreement for the Disney Store
chain, entitling the lenders to exercise their contractual remedies. There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain waivers, if needed,
from our lenders in the event of any future breaches of the Refurbishment Amendment or the License Agreement.

Beginning in July 2007, our Hoop subsidiaries commenced Internet commerce operations through an alliance with a Disney affiliate in which
select Disney Store merchandise is sold on the disneyshopping.com website. Customers can find our Disney Store merchandise at
www.disneystore.com or www.disneyshopping.com. We anticipate entering into a formal amendment to the License Agreement relating to this
Internet business. It is anticipated that this amendment to the License Agreement will supersede our obligation to launch our own Disney Store
Internet store, which pursuant to the License Agreement, as modified by certain letter agreements, we are required to launch by January 31,
2008.

Refer to Item7.�� Management�s Discussion and Analysis for further discussion of the Refurbishment Amendment.

Key Capabilities to Our Long-Term Success

We believe that the following capabilities are critical to our long-term success:

Merchandising Strategy.  The Children�s Place merchandising strategy is built on offering an appealing collection of
interchangeable outfits and accessories to create a coordinated look distinctive to the brand. We offer an updated,
focused assortment of styles in a variety of colors and patterns, with the aim of consistently creating a fresh, youthful
look at value prices that we believe distinguishes �The Children�s Place� brand. We divide the year into quarterly
merchandising seasons: spring, summer, back-to-school and holiday. Within each season, we typically deliver two
merchandise lines. Each season is built around a color palette that includes an assortment of coordinated basic and
fashion apparel with matching accessories designed to encourage multiple item purchases and wardrobe building.
Within the assortments we also offer a choice of �good,� �better,� and �best� merchandise.
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Our Disney Store merchandising strategy is to offer unique, exclusive, innovative and elevated assortments for the whole family that are high
quality and showcase Disney characters. To date, the Disney Store business has been heavily concentrated in the Halloween and holiday
seasons. To reduce the level of seasonality, we plan to offer more softlines merchandise during spring, summer and back-to-school. In addition,
in fiscal 2006, we introduced adult apparel, offered more freshness and innovation in our hardlines business, and offered a �good,� �better,� �best�
pricing strategy across most product categories.

High Quality/Value Pricing Strategy.  We believe that our high quality, value price positioning is an important component
of our long-term strategy. We offer high-quality clothing and accessories under �The Children�s Place� brand name at
prices below most of our direct mall-based competitors. We employ this value pricing strategy across our entire
merchandise offering. Our value price points are an important factor in the broad consumer appeal that The Children�s
Place brand has benefited from over the years. At Disney Store, we believe that combining the strong
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appeal of Disney characters with our unique merchandise offering at value prices has contributed to the Disney Store�s progress.

Brand Image.  We continue to build a strong brand image and customer loyalty for �The Children�s Place� by:

�  Offering high-quality products at value prices;

�  Providing a distinctive collection of coordinated and interchangeable outfits and accessories;

�  Maintaining a uniform merchandise presentation;

�  Emphasizing our fashionable, youthful image in our marketing visuals;

�  Utilizing our customer database to target direct mailers to customers;

�  Maintaining a marketing presence in targeted print publications; and

�  Selling our merchandise exclusively in our The Children�s Place stores and on our website.

The Disney Store business benefits from one of the strongest emotional family brand names in North America. The Disney Store experience
emphasizes the �magic� and memories of the Disney character portfolio.

Low-Cost Sourcing.  We control the design, sourcing and presentation of our products sold at both The Children�s Place
and Disney Store. We believe that this control is essential in assuring the consistency and quality of our merchandise
and the image of each of our brands, as well as our ability to deliver value to our customers. We have established
long-standing relationships with our vendors and suppliers. Through these relationships and our extensive knowledge
of low cost sourcing, we are able to offer our customers high-quality products at value prices. Furthermore, we believe
that our integrated merchandise approach, from in-house design to in-store presentation, enables us to identify and
respond to market trends, uphold rigorous product quality standards, manage the cost of our merchandise and
strengthen our brands. Our offices in Hong Kong, Shanghai and New Delhi add to our ability to lower costs, capitalize
on new sourcing opportunities, increase our control over product quality and enable us to respond to changing
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merchandise trends more effectively and efficiently.

Experienced Management Team.   The members of our senior management team have an average of 19 years of retail or
apparel industry experience. Our interim CEO, Mr. Charles Crovitz, an independent member of the Company�s Board,
was appointed interim CEO in September 2007. Mr. Crovitz has over 20 years experience in the retail industry,
including 10 years at Gap, Inc. Mr. Crovitz was appointed interim CEO following the September 24, 2007 resignation
of Ezra Dabah, who resigned as CEO. During his tenure as CEO, Mr. Dabah guided the management of the Company
using his broad apparel merchandising and buying expertise, which included over 20 years in the children�s segment of
the market.

Merchandising Process
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While we have separate design and merchandising teams for each brand, the process and planning schedules are similar. To execute our
merchandising strategies, we rely on the coordinated efforts of our design, merchandising, planning and sourcing teams. These teams, in
conjunction with senior management, �hindsight� prior season results and review fashion trends, colors and design concepts that we will offer in
upcoming seasons. Merchandising selects items for production from the assortment of merchandise designs that are created by the design team.
In addition, the Disney Store merchandising and design teams assess characters, are made aware of upcoming movie, DVD and television
releases by the Walt Disney Company and attend toy shows and fairs to determine which merchandise to include in the assortment. Then, based
upon detail design specifications, including production quantities determined by merchandising and planning, the sourcing team arranges for the
issuance of purchase orders and manufacture of the selected items.

Our design and trend teams analyze and interpret current and emerging fashion trends, translating them into a broad selection of merchandise
appropriate for upcoming seasons. In addition, our Disney Store design and trend teams evaluate the popularity and relevancy of existing
characters, as well as the perceived customer receptivity to new characters, to create a unique and compelling merchandise assortment. Across
both brands, work on each of our seasonal lines begins approximately one year before the season. However, the Company maintains, and at
times
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exercises, the ability to develop and deliver product on an expedited timeline. The merchandising process includes purchasing of samples and
gathering market intelligence on fashion trends, which involves extensive European and domestic market research, media, trade shows, fashion
magazines, the services of fashion and color forecast organizations, and analysis of prior season performance. In addition, at Disney Store, we
consult with Disney as part of the normal course of operations to ensure character art and overall brand standards are properly represented. After
the design teams present their ideas, the designers, with the direction of merchandising, translate those ideas into a merchandise assortment that
reflects the theme of the season. These interpretations include variations in fabric and other materials, product color, decoration, character
selection and age-appropriate silhouettes. Potential items are designed using computer aided design technology, which allows for a wide range
of style and fashion options. Our sourcing teams and Asian offices coordinate the production of prototype samples which enable our
merchandising teams to ensure that our merchandise will properly reflect our design concepts and allow us to get the most accurate
understanding of an item. We have also instituted a process that involves working with prototype samples in a
simulated in-store environment. This enables our design, merchandising, visual and marketing teams to create a
cohesive, well balanced and fresh approach to each season.

The merchandise management teams create a detailed purchasing plan for the season covering each department, category and key item, based on
historical, current and emerging category trends. The production process takes approximately five to six months from order confirmation to
receipt of merchandise at our distribution facilities. Our planning teams monitor current and projected inventory levels on a weekly basis and
analyze sales patterns to predict future demand for various items and categories. We regularly monitor sales and maintain some flexibility to
adjust merchandise on order for future seasons or to accelerate delivery of merchandise. Our merchandise allocation teams are responsible for
planning and allocating merchandise to each store based on sales levels, merchandise turns and other factors.

Sourcing and Procurement
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We combine management�s extensive apparel sourcing experience with a cost-based buying strategy to control merchandise costs, infuse quality
features into our product and deliver value to our customers. We believe we have a thorough understanding of the economics of apparel
manufacturing, including costs of materials and components. This knowledge enables us to determine the most cost-effective country and
manufacturer from which to source each item and obtain high quality at low product cost. With the addition of the Disney Store business, we
now source �hardlines� merchandise, including toys and home products, using the same sourcing strategies.

Four times a year, our U.S. sourcing team makes on-site visits to our independent agents and various manufacturers to negotiate product costs,
finalize technical specifications for each product and confirm delivery of merchandise manufactured to our specifications. During fiscal 2006,
approximately 400 independent manufacturers located primarily in Asia produced merchandise sold at The Children�s Place and Disney Store to
our specifications. To support our growing inventory needs and to control merchandise costs, we continue to pursue global sourcing
opportunities and consider product quality and cost, reliability of the manufacturer, and service and product lead times, among other factors.

We have no exclusive or long-term contracts with our manufacturers and typically transact business on an item-by-item basis under purchase
orders at freight on board cost in U.S. dollars. We are party to agency agreements with commissioned independent agents who oversee
production, assist in sourcing and pre-production approval, provide quality inspection and ensure timely delivery of merchandise. During fiscal
2006, we purchased approximately 15% of our products through the support of a commissioned, independent agent in Taiwan, and
approximately 15% of our products through an independent Hong Kong-based trading company. This trading company is responsible for
procurements from wholly-owned facilities as well as contract manufacturers located throughout Asia. We have developed long-term,
continuous relationships with key individual manufacturers and material suppliers, which have yielded numerous benefits, including quality
control, low costs, and flexible working arrangements. In addition, we believe our offices in Hong Kong, Shanghai and New Delhi enable us to
obtain more favorable material and manufacturing costs and quickly identify and act on new sourcing and supplier opportunities. Our Asian
offices also facilitate our prototype sample production and enable us to foster stronger relationships with our suppliers, manufacturers, agents
and trading companies. During fiscal 2006, we purchased approximately 50% of our merchandise without the aid of commissioned buying
agents or trading companies. Approximately 50% of our goods
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were sourced from China. Together with our agents and key suppliers, we use tracking systems that enable us to anticipate potential delivery
delays in our orders and take action to mitigate the impact of any delays. Using our purchase order, advanced shipping notification and tracking
systems, our independent agents and our sourcing department actively monitor the status of each purchase order from order confirmation to
merchandise receipt.

To ensure quality and promote consumer confidence in our products, we augment our manufacturers� testing requirements with our own in-house
quality assurance laboratory to test and evaluate fabric, trimming materials and pre-production samples against a comprehensive range of
physical performance standards before production begins. The quality control personnel of our Asian offices, independent agents and trading
company visit the various manufacturing facilities to monitor and improve the quality control and production process. Our Asian offices enhance
our quality control by enabling us to monitor component and manufacturing quality at close range and address related problems at an early stage.
With this focus on pre-production quality approval, we are generally able to detect and correct quality-related problems before bulk production
begins. We do not accept finished goods until each purchase order receives formal certification of compliance from our own quality assurance
associates, agents or appointed third party inspectors.

In addition to our quality control procedures, we administer a social compliance program designed to promote compliance with local legal
regulations, as well as ethical and socially responsible business practices. The program involves on-site facility visits by either our social
compliance auditors or third party providers, review of documentation, and interviews of facility management and workers. Additionally, our
program includes education and training of our associates and our suppliers in order to ensure the sustainability of our program.

Company Stores
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Existing Stores.  As of September 1, 2007, we operated a total of 1,217 stores: 889 The Children�s Place stores and 328
Disney Stores in North America. Most of The Children�s Place stores are clustered in and around major metropolitan
areas in regional malls, with the exception of 136 strip center, 110 outlet and 48 street stores. All of our Disney Stores
are in regional malls with the exception of 19 outlet stores, two strip stores and two street locations. The following
table sets forth the number of stores in each state, Puerto Rico and Canadian province as of September 1, 2007:

State
The

Children�s Place
Disney
Store

Total Number
of Stores

Alabama 9 4 13
Arizona 14 6 20
Arkansas 5 1 6
California 79 50 129
Colorado 13 5 18
Connecticut 15 7 22
Delaware 4 3 7
Florida 45 25 70
Georgia 22 6 28
Hawaii 3 1 4
Idaho 1 1 2
Illinois 41 17 58
Indiana 18 7 25
Iowa 6 1 7
Kansas 5 2 7
Kentucky 8 3 11
Louisiana 12 3 15
Maine 4 1 5
Maryland 23 6 29
Massachusetts 25 7 32
Michigan 22 10 32
Minnesota 12 2 14
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State
The

Children�s Place
Disney
Store

Total Number
of Stores

Mississippi 6 0 6
Missouri 16 8 24
Montana 1 0 1
Nebraska 3 1 4
New Hampshire 5 3 8
New Jersey 46 15 61
New Mexico 3 2 5
New York 76 20 96
Nevada 7 3 10
North Carolina 21 6 27
North Dakota 1 0 1
Ohio 30 11 41
Oklahoma 3 2 5
Oregon 9 3 12
Pennsylvania 47 20 67
Rhode Island 3 1 4
South Carolina 13 1 14
South Dakota 1 0 1
Tennessee 17 7 24
Texas 55 25 80
Utah 7 0 7
Vermont 1 0 1
Virginia 19 8 27
Washington 12 3 15
West Virginia 1 2 3
Wisconsin 13 3 16
Puerto Rico 14 0 14
Total United States and Puerto Rico 816 312 1,128

Province
The

Children�s Place
Disney
Store

Total Number
of Stores

Alberta 7 3 10
British Columbia 7 1 8
Manitoba 2 1 3
New Brunswick 3 1 4
Nova Scotia 2 1 3
Ontario 35 9 44
Quebec 15 0 15
Saskatchewan 2 0 2
Total Canada 73 16 89
Total Stores 889 328 1,217

Store Type.

The Children�s Place.  Our average Children�s Place store is approximately 4,700 square feet. The majority of our
Children�s Place stores are in our �Apple-Maple� prototype, which features light wood floors, fixtures and trim. The
store is brightly lit, featuring floor-to-ceiling glass windows that allow our colorful fashions to attract customers from
the outside. A customized grid system throughout the store�s upper perimeter displays featured merchandise, marketing
photographs and promotions.
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During fiscal 2002, we introduced our �Technocolor� store prototype. The unique, fun and bright stores use color to create boutique-like settings
that better differentiate the various departments within the store. The stores also feature wider aisles for customers with strollers and more wall
space allowing for enhanced merchandise presentation
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and ease of shopping. As of September 1, 2007, 302 stores were in this format, or approximately 34% of The Children�s Place store base. In
fiscal 2007, some of our new stores and remodels (except for outlets) will be in our updated Technocolor store format, and will average
approximately 5,500 square feet in size to accommodate our new �store-within-a-store� shoe store which the Company launched during the
Back-to-School season. Our street and strip center locations represent approximately 21% of The Children�s Place store base and provide
opportunities for further penetration in established markets.

Our typical outlet stores are approximately 6,700 square feet and represent approximately 12% of The Children�s Place store base. Our outlet
stores are mostly located in outlet centers and are strategically placed within each market to liquidate clearance merchandise from nearby stores.
Given the brand�s value orientation, we also sell an assortment of full-priced merchandise in our outlet stores. We view our outlet business as an
important component of our future growth.

Disney Store.  The average Disney Store is approximately 4,700 square feet. As of September 1, 2007, we have several
Disney Store formats, as follows:

% of
Store Base

Pink and Green 36%
Piperail 30%
Mickey 17%
Millennium 6%
Castle 5%
Outlet* 6%
Total 100%

* Note: Our outlets are in various formats, 13 of which are in the Mickey store format.

Our outlet stores were introduced in fiscal 2005, are approximately 5,500 square feet and have been very successful. Our Mickey stores were
also introduced in fiscal 2005. They are brightly lit and feature large red Mickey ears at the entranceway. During fiscal 2006, due to
dissatisfaction with the Mickey store prototype from a brand, design, and construction standpoint, we suspended our store renovation program
and determined that we would need to remodel numerous Mickey stores. In fiscal 2006 we recorded a $9.6 million charge related to the
impairment of 29 such stores, or approximately 41% of the Mickey stores then in operation. We introduced a new store prototype in the third
quarter of fiscal 2007 which we believe is a better reflection of the Disney brand. The new Disney Store is modern, durable and features video
monitors at both the store�s entrance and the middle of the store. A glittering red mirror chip stone floor is featured at the front of the store, as if
to suggest a feeling of being �on stage.� The back of the store features brushed chrome and wood fixtures, hard wood flooring and more intimate
lighting, reminiscent of being backstage in a theater.

The Refurbishment Amendment we entered into with Disney in August 2007 commits us to remodel by the end of fiscal 2011 a total of 236
existing Disney Stores into our new store prototype. The first seven remodels must be completed by December 31, 2007, with an additional 49,
60, 70 and 50 stores required to be remodeled during each of fiscal 2008, fiscal 2009, fiscal 2010, and fiscal 2011, respectively. Under the terms
of the Refurbishment Amendment, we agreed to open at least 18 new Disney Stores using the new store prototype by the end of fiscal 2008, and
we have the right to open up to a specified number of additional new stores using the new store prototype during each fiscal year. In addition,
under the terms of the Refurbishment Amendment, we are obligated to complete a �maintenance refresh� program in approximately 165 Disney
Stores by June 30, 2008, including the flagship store located on Michigan Avenue in Chicago, which was completed on September 12, 2007.
Some of the stores that are refreshed will subsequently be remodeled into the new store prototype. Refer to Item 7.�Management�s Discussion and
Analysis for further discussion of the Refurbishment Amendment.
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Store Operations
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Our store operations are organized into ten and six regions for The Children�s Place and Disney Store, respectively. For The Children�s Place
brand, we have two Zone Vice Presidents who oversee our operations and to whom regional managers report. At this time, the Disney Store
business does not have Zone Vice Presidents. For both
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brands, a regional manager oversees each region and has several district managers reporting to him or her. Each district manager is responsible
for approximately eight to ten stores, on average. Our stores are staffed by a store management team and approximately 10 part-time sales
associates, with additional part-time associates hired to support seasonal needs. Across both brands, our store leadership teams spend
a high percentage of their time on the store selling floors providing direction, motivation, and development to store
personnel. To maximize selling productivity, our teams emphasize greeting, replenishment, presentation standards,
procedures and controls. In order to motivate our store leadership, we offer a monthly incentive compensation plan
that awards bonuses for exceeding goals.

Store Expansion Program
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To determine the location of new stores, we conduct onsite visits and analyses of potential store sites, taking into account the performance of our
stores and other retailers in the area, as well as the demographics of the surrounding area. In addition, we consider the store�s location relative to
consumer traffic patterns and proximity to other children�s retailers.

The Children�s Place.  During fiscal 2006, we opened 69 stores and closed five, compared to opening 55 stores and
closing three in fiscal 2005. We plan to open approximately 60 stores and remodel approximately 21 Children�s Place
stores in fiscal 2007. Over time, we believe The Children�s Place brand can grow to approximately 1,200 stores across
the United States, Canada and Puerto Rico.

Our new store return on investment (defined as the return on investment for stores in which the then current fiscal year was their first full year of
operation) for The Children�s Place chain for fiscal 2006, 2005 and fiscal 2004 approximated 87%, 81% and 87%, respectively. We define return
on investment as store level operating cash flow for new stores divided by new store investment. Store level operating cash flow for new stores
is comprised of direct store contribution before the amortization of deferred rent and depreciation and amortization expense. We believe new
store return on investment is a relevant measurement for assessing performance because it shows how quickly our investment in new stores
becomes available for reinvestment. However, it is not a measure determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States (�U.S. GAAP�) and should not be considered by investors as an alternative to operating income or net income as an indicator of our
performance. The new store return on investment disclosed here is not necessarily comparable to new store return on investment disclosed by
other companies because new store return on investment is not uniformly defined.

Fiscal 2006 average store level operating cash flow for new stores approximated $407,000, a 3% decrease compared to fiscal 2005. Average
store investment includes store capital expenditures, initial inventory and pre-opening costs less lease incentives and an estimate for merchandise
payables. Fiscal 2006 average new store investment approximated $466,000, an 11% decrease from fiscal 2005. This decrease in average new
store investment primarily reflects lower construction costs. Fiscal 2006 new stores had average net sales of approximately $1.5 million, a 6%
decrease compared to fiscal 2005, which reflects lower sales at our outlet stores as well as outlets comprising a smaller percentage of our new
store base compared to the prior year.

New �Store-within-a-Store� Children�s Place Shoe Store. In fiscal 2007, we launched a new �store-within-a-store� shoe store
during the back-to-school season. We believe there is a void in the marketplace for fashionable, high quality children�s
shoes at a value price. We have begun a 50 store rollout of the concept in fiscal 2007, and we will also offer our
expanded shoe offering on our childrenplace.com website. Stores that carry the expanded shoe assortment will
measure approximately 1,000 square feet larger than a typical store.

Disney Store.  In fiscal 2006 we opened 19 Disney Stores, closed eight, and remodeled 14, compared to opening 18,
closing seven and remodeling 31 in fiscal 2005. Our store growth plans in fiscal 2007 include opening approximately
15 Disney Stores. Of these 15 new stores, approximately 11 will be outlet stores, a growth opportunity for the Disney
Store business. In addition, we are required to remodel seven Disney Stores to a new store prototype by December 31,
2007, to open at least 18 new Disney Stores using the new store prototype by the end of fiscal 2008, and to complete a
maintenance refresh program in approximately 165 Disney Stores by June 30, 2008. Over time, we believe the Disney
Store chain can grow to approximately 600 stores across North America.

Our new store return on investment (defined as the return on investment for stores in which the then current fiscal year was their first full year of
operation) for the ten Disney Stores for which fiscal 2006 was their first full year
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of operation approximated 62%. This is the first year we are calculating return on investment for our Disney Stores since there were no new
Disney Stores opened by us prior to fiscal 2005. Fiscal 2006 average store level operating cash flow for the 10 new Disney Stores approximated
$371,000. Average store investment approximated $599,000 and included store capital expenditures, initial inventory and pre-opening costs less
lease incentives and an estimate for merchandise payables. Average net sales for these 10 Disney Stores for which fiscal 2006 was their first full
year of operation were approximately $2.5 million.

Seasonality
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Our business is also subject to seasonal influences, with heavier concentrations of sales during the back-to-school and holiday seasons. Our first
quarter results are heavily dependent upon sales during the period leading up to the Easter holiday. Our third quarter results are heavily
dependent upon back-to-school sales at The Children�s Place and upon Halloween sales at Disney Store. Our fourth quarter results are heavily
dependent upon sales during the holiday season. For more information regarding the seasonality of our business, refer to Item 7.�Management�s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations�Quarterly Results and Seasonality.

Internet Sales
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We believe the Internet is an effective sales, merchandising and marketing channel for our brands and is also effective in generating new
customers from the portion of the U.S. population that may not have access to our store locations or who prefer to shop online. Our Internet
business represented approximately 2.6% of The Children�s Place sales in fiscal 2006, compared to 2.3% of sales in fiscal 2005. This profitable
business continues to grow at a rapid rate and we believe it is an integral part of our customer service and brand awareness strategies.

Beginning in July 2007, our Hoop subsidiaries commenced Internet commerce operations through an alliance with a Disney affiliate in which
Disney Store merchandise is sold on the disneyshopping.com website. Customers can find our Disney Store merchandise at
www.disneystore.com or www.disneyshopping.com. We anticipate entering into a formal amendment to the License Agreement relating to this
Internet business. It is anticipated that this amendment to the License Agreement will supersede our obligation to launch our own Disney Store
Internet store, which pursuant to the License Agreement, as modified by certain letter agreements, we are required to launch by January 31,
2008.

Marketing
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We strive to enhance our brands� reputation and image in the marketplace and build recognition and equity by marketing our image, product and
value message primarily through our store front windows, direct mail, in-store marketing, magazine advertising and �The Children�s Place� private
label credit card. Our direct mail marketing programs are designed to increase sales, promote brand loyalty and create customer excitement. In
fiscal 2006, we increased the frequency and depth of our direct mail campaigns which drove sales and traffic. We also increased magazine
advertising as a means to communicate The Children�s Place brand message to new and existing customers. We believe our Disney Store
business benefits from Disney�s substantial advertising efforts.

We view The Children�s Place private label credit card as an important marketing and communication tool. Pursuant to a merchant services
agreement, private label credit cards are issued to our customers for use exclusively at The Children�s Place stores, and credit is extended to such
customers through a third-party financial institution on a non-recourse basis to us. Our private label credit card accounts
for approximately 11% of The Children�s Place net sales. We believe that our private label credit card promotes
affinity and loyalty among those customers who use the card and facilitates communication with such customers
through delivery of coupons and promotional materials.

Logistics
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We currently support both The Children�s Place stores and Disney Stores with a leased 525,000 square foot distribution center in South
Brunswick Township, New Jersey; a leased 250,000 square foot distribution center in Ontario, California; a leased 95,000 square foot
distribution center in Ontario, Canada; and an owned 700,000 square foot distribution center in Ft. Payne, Alabama, which we opened in August
2007 to support projected growth at both brands. Our distribution centers utilize automated warehouse systems, which employ radio frequency
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technology and automated conveyor systems. Our approximately 150,000 square foot leased fulfillment center in Secaucus, New Jersey is used
to support our Internet business. In addition, we operate other leased facilities on a seasonal basis to support warehousing needs.

Competition

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

55



The children�s apparel, toy and media retail markets are highly competitive. We compete in substantially all of our markets with GapKids,
babyGap and Old Navy (each of which is a division of The Gap, Inc.); The Gymboree Corporation; Too, Inc.; Babies �R� Us and Toys �R� Us (each
of which is a division of Toys �R� Us, Inc.); J.C. Penney Company, Inc.; Sears (a division of Sears Holdings Corporation); Kohl�s and other
department stores as well as discount stores such as Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.; Target Corporation; and K-Mart (a division of Sears Holdings
Corporation). In addition, stores like Stride Rite and Payless, as well as smaller shoe retailers, will compete with the Company�s new
store-within-a-store shoe store in 2007. We also compete with a wide variety of specialty stores, other national and regional retail chains, catalog
companies and Internet retailers. Our Disney Store business competes with the Disney theme parks and with third parties selling Disney-branded
merchandise under license. In addition, media items such as compact discs and DVDs can be purchased in virtually every retail channel. One or
more of our competitors are present in substantially all of the areas in which we have stores.

We believe we have the principal factors to compete effectively in our markets: fashionable, high quality merchandise at value prices,
compelling merchandise assortments, brand name recognition, good customer service, and easy-to-shop store environments.

Trademarks and Service Marks
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�The Children�s Place,� �babyPLACE,� �Place,� �The Place,� �TCP,� �PLC� and certain other marks have been registered as trademarks and/or service marks
with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. The registration of the trademarks and the service marks may be renewed to extend the
original registration period indefinitely, provided the marks are still in use. We intend to continue to use and protect our trademarks and service
marks and maintain their registrations. We have also registered our trademarks in Canada and other countries and are continuing to take steps to
register our trademarks in certain other foreign countries. We believe our trademarks and service marks have received broad recognition and are
of significant value to our business.

The trademarks and copyrights used in the Disney Store business are licensed by Hoop from Disney for use by the Disney Store so long as the
License Agreement remains in effect.

Employees
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As of September 1, 2007, we had approximately 25,400 employees, of whom approximately 1,800 are based at our corporate headquarters in
Secaucus, New Jersey; our Disney Store office in Pasadena, California; our distribution centers; and international offices. We have
approximately 4,200 full-time store employees and approximately 19,400 part-time store employees. None of our employees are covered by a
collective bargaining agreement. We believe we have good relations with our employees. In addition, as of September 1, 2007, we employed
approximately 7,400 seasonal part-time employees.

Internet Access to Reports
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We are a public company and are subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
�Exchange Act�). Accordingly, we file periodic reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Such
reports, proxy statements and other information may be obtained by visiting the Public Reference Room of the SEC at
100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549 or by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the
SEC maintains a website (http://www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other
information regarding us and other issuers that file electronically.

Our website address is http://www.childrensplace.com. We make available, without charge, through our website, copies of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are filed with or furnished to the SEC.
References in this document to our
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website are not and should not be considered part of this Report, and the information on our website is not incorporated by reference into this
Report.

We also make available our corporate governance materials, including our code of business conduct, on our website. If we make any substantive
amendments to our code of business conduct or grant any waiver, including any implicit waiver, from a provision of the code to our CEO, Chief
Financial Officer (�CFO�) or Corporate Controller, we will disclose the nature of such amendment or waiver on that website or in a Current Report
on Form 8-K.

ITEM 1A.�RISK FACTORS
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Investors in the Company should consider the following risk factors as well as the other information contained herein:

A material breach of the License Agreement and certain other events could result in termination of the License Agreement.

 Upon the occurrence of certain specified events, Disney has the right to terminate the License Agreement. These events include, but are not
limited to:

�  An uncured breach of a royalty payment due under the License Agreement;

�  Three or more uncured breaches by our subsidiaries of the provisions of the License Agreement relating to
use of Disney�s intellectual property (or five or more breaches of these provisions, whether cured or uncured);

�  Any uncured material breach by our subsidiaries of certain other specific provisions of the License
Agreement;

�  Five or more uncured material breaches of the remaining provisions of the License Agreement (or seven or
more material breaches of such remaining provisions, whether cured or uncured);

�  A prohibited transfer of our rights under the License Agreement or a prohibited change of control (as defined
in the License Agreement);

�  Conduct on our part that is generally viewed by the public as offensive or reprehensible and which results in a
material impairment or diminution of the good name, image or brand of Disney or its properties;

�  A material breach by our parent company of the provisions of its guaranty and funding commitments;

�  Material misrepresentations by us in the License Agreement;

�  Bankruptcy or insolvency of Hoop or The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc. or any affiliate engaged in the
Disney Store business;
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�  Certain defaults by Hoop with respect to any outstanding indebtedness (other than under unsecured
indebtedness in an amount less than $500,000);

�  The entry of a final judgment against Hoop greater than $35 million;

�  Uninsured losses by Hoop exceeding a threshold amount;

�  Breaches of certain other contractual commitments by Hoop; and

�  A breach of the Refurbishment Amendment to the License Agreement.

Some of these events may be beyond our control. As noted above, if the License Agreement is terminated, Disney may, at its option, require us
to sell all or a portion of the Disney Store business to Disney or one of its affiliates or to a third party at a price to be determined by appraisal
and/or to rapidly wind down the remaining Disney Store business in an orderly manner, within six months.
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A breach of the Refurbishment Amendment could adversely affect us and jeopardize our ability to continue operating the Disney Store
business.

In June 2007, we entered into a June Letter Agreement with Disney to address an assertion by Disney that we had committed numerous material
breaches of the License Agreement, entitling Disney to exercise its rights and remedies under the License Agreement, including termination of
the License Agreement. The June Letter Agreement, among other things, set forth a detailed timetable for submission of construction plans and
completion dates for store remodels.

Subsequent to the execution of the June Letter Agreement, we were unable to meet several deadlines set forth in the June Letter Agreement. In
addition, we determined that there were upcoming deadlines during the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2007 specified in the June Letter
Agreement that we would likely not meet. Accordingly, we and Disney engaged in further discussions during August 2007 and, based on these
discussions, agreed upon changes to the requirements of the June Letter Agreement that would postpone the due dates of certain of our remodel
obligations until later in fiscal 2007 or fiscal 2008.

During August 2007, we and Disney executed the Refurbishment Amendment, which incorporated the terms of the June Letter Agreement, as
modified by our mutual agreement during August. The Refurbishment Amendment by its terms superseded the June Letter Agreement and took
effect retroactively as of June 6, 2007, the original effective date of the June Letter Agreement. The Refurbishment Amendment provides that
our compliance in full with its terms will constitute a cure of the breaches identified in the Refurbishment Amendment and that, so long as the
Refurbishment Amendment is not terminated, Disney will forbear from exercising any rights or remedies it would have under the License
Agreement based on the breaches identified in the Refurbishment Amendment. The Refurbishment Amendment suspends the remodel
obligations in the License Agreement for the approximately 4.5 year term of the Refurbishment Amendment. In lieu of those provisions, the
Refurbishment Amendment requires us to:

�  Remodel by specified deadlines through the end of fiscal 2011 a total of 236 existing Disney Stores;

�  Complete a �maintenance refresh� program in approximately 165 Disney Stores by June 30, 2008; and

�  Open at least 18 new Disney Stores using the new store prototype by the end of fiscal 2008.

In accordance with the Refurbishment Amendment we have committed $175 million, on a consolidated basis, to remodel and refresh the stores
as noted above through fiscal 2011, and have committed approximately $12 million to open new stores through fiscal 2008.

Like the June Letter Agreement, the Refurbishment Amendment states that, if we fully comply with the terms of the Refurbishment
Amendment, Disney will forbear from exercising any rights or remedies that it would have under the License Agreement based on the breaches
of the License Agreement that were asserted by Disney and were the subject of the Refurbishment Amendment. However, under the terms of the
Refurbishment Amendment, if we violate any of the provisions of the Refurbishment Amendment, Disney will have the right to terminate its
forbearance under the Refurbishment Amendment, in which case Disney would be free to exercise any or all of its rights and remedies under the
License Agreement, including possibly terminating our license to operate the Disney Stores based on the occurrence of multiple breaches and
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claiming breach fees, as if the Refurbishment Amendment had not been executed. The Refurbishment Amendment also states that, if we breach
any of the provisions of the Refurbishment Amendment on three or more occasions and Disney has not previously exercised its right to
terminate the Refurbishment Amendment, we will be required to make an immediate payment of $18.0 million to Disney with respect to the
breach fees called for by the License Agreement. If we violate any of the provisions of the Refurbishment Amendment on five or more
occasions, Disney will have the right to immediately terminate the License Agreement, without any right on our part to defend, counterclaim,
protest or cure. It should be noted that the Refurbishment Amendment addresses only those breaches specifically enumerated therein. Disney
continues to retain all its other rights and remedies under the License Agreement with respect to any other breaches.

We believe that we will be able to perform our obligations under the Refurbishment Amendment as and when required. However, because our
ability to meet these obligations will depend on numerous factors, some of which are beyond our control, there can be no assurance that we will
be able to fully comply. Like the June Letter Agreement,
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the Refurbishment Amendment does not excuse us from compliance with these requirements should there be events or developments that may
be beyond our control, such as contractor delays, delays in landlord or regulatory approval, natural disasters or acts of war or terrorism. Our
diligent efforts may not be adequate to enable us to obtain all required approvals under the Refurbishment Amendment or to comply with every
requirement or meet every deadline imposed on us under the Refurbishment Amendment. In the event we are unable to comply with any of our
obligations when required, we would be in breach of our agreements with Disney, entitling Disney to exercise its remedies under the
Refurbishment Amendment and the License Agreement. In the event such breaches occur, there can be no assurance that we will be able to
obtain waivers or other relief from Disney, if needed, to avoid our being required to make the $18.0 million payment to Disney and prevent a
termination of the Refurbishment Amendment or the License Agreement. In addition, any breach by us of our agreements with Disney (even if
subsequently waived by Disney) would constitute a cross-default under the secured loan agreement for the Disney Store chain, entitling the
lenders to exercise their contractual remedies. There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain waivers, if needed, from our lenders in
the event of any future breaches of the Refurbishment Amendment or the License Agreement.

A change in control of the Company resulting from an acquisition proposal or attempt may permit Disney to terminate the License
Agreement, compelling the Company to promptly sell or wind down the Disney Store business, and may cause an event of default under one
or more of the Company�s debt instruments.

Under the terms of our License Agreement for The Disney Store, a direct or indirect change in control of The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc.
or our subsidiaries that operate the Disney Store business (as defined in the License Agreement) would permit Disney to terminate the License
Agreement if the new controlling person or entity was not a �Qualified Person� as defined in the License Agreement. Because the definition of 
�Qualified Person� includes both objective and subjective elements, the License Agreement affords Disney considerable discretion to determine, in
its sole judgment, whether an individual or entity acquiring control of the Company, and thereby the Disney Store operator, is a Qualified
Person. The uncertainty surrounding this provision may deter third parties from seeking to acquire the Company or our Disney Store business,
even if such a transaction would be beneficial to our stockholders. Moreover, there can be no assurance that any particular person or entity, or
group of persons and entities, that might desire to acquire a controlling interest in the Company would be considered a Qualified Person by
Disney. In particular, our former Chairman and CEO, Mr. Ezra Dabah, who is also one of our major stockholders and a member of our Board,
has publicly stated that he is considering the possibility of making an offer, in combination with others, to acquire the Company, but there can be
no assurance that Disney would deem Mr. Dabah or any other parties with whom he may be acting to be �Qualified Persons.� In the event that
Disney were to determine that a new controlling person of the Company did not qualify for this purpose, Disney would have the right to
terminate the License Agreement, subject to a right on the part of the Company under certain circumstances to attempt to arrange a prompt sale
of the Disney Store to a party deemed to be a �Qualified Person.� Following a change of control of the Company (and assuming the Company
were not able to arrange a prompt sale of the Disney Store business to a Qualified Person on terms acceptable to the Company under the limited
circumstances when such a sale were permitted), if Disney were to exercise its right to terminate the License Agreement, the Company would be
required, as described above, at Disney�s election, either to sell all or a portion of the Disney Store business at its then-appraised value to Disney
or third party approved by Disney, and/or to wind down the remaining Disney Store business in an orderly manner within a six-month period.

In addition, under our credit facilities, an event of default is deemed to occur upon the occurrence of a change in control (as defined in each of
our credit facilities). An acquisition of the Company by Mr. Dabah, acting alone or in combination, or by any other party could result in such an
event of default. There can be no assurance that any such event of default would be waived by the Company�s lenders. If such a waiver was
needed but could not be obtained, we would be required to repay in full the outstanding indebtedness under these credit facilities, and there can
be no assurance we would have funds available to make such repayment.
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If the License Agreement for the Disney Store were to be terminated, we could be required to sell the Disney Store to Disney or to a buyer
selected by Disney and/or to wind down the remaining Disney Store business in an orderly manner within six months. Under these
circumstances our subsidiaries that operate the Disney Store business would have significant financial and other obligations to Disney,
lenders, landlords, vendors and other third parties and might not be able to avoid bankruptcy proceedings.

We operate the Disney Store business in North America pursuant to the License Agreement between our subsidiaries, Hoop, and a subsidiary of
The Walt Disney Company. If certain material breaches by us under the License Agreement were to occur, or if we were to experience a change
of ownership of a type not permitted by the License Agreement, or if certain other events were to occur, Disney would have the right, among
other things, to terminate the License Agreement. Any such material breach or any termination of the License Agreement would constitute an
event of default under the secured credit facility for the Disney Store business, permitting our lenders to accelerate the amounts due. Upon any
termination of the License Agreement, Disney could require us to sell all or a portion of the Disney Store business to Disney or one of its
affiliates, or to a third party selected by Disney, at a price to be determined by an average of independent appraisals. While any such potential
sale was pending, we would be required to continue operating the Disney Store business in the ordinary course.

In the absence of any such sale (or in the case of a partial sale), we would be obligated to wind down the remaining Disney Store business in an
orderly manner over a six-month period in accordance with the wind-down provisions in the License Agreement, as amended by the
Refurbishment Amendment. As part of any such wind-down, we would cancel any outstanding merchandise purchase orders that may be
cancelled without a monetary penalty. In addition, the License Agreement imposes significant restrictions on the actions that we or our secured
lenders (or any inventory liquidation firm that may be engaged to assist in such wind-down) may take to wind-down the Disney Store business.
Among other things, the License Agreement prohibits us from promoting a �going out of business� or �liquidation sale� or from selling any Disney
merchandise through distribution channels other than the Disney Stores and the Disney Store website. These restrictions may interfere with our
ability to liquidate all Disney merchandise by the end of the six-month wind-down period on favorable terms, if at all. Any remaining Disney
merchandise not sold by the end of the wind-down period must be destroyed and would be of no value.

In addition, if we were required to wind down the Disney Store business, Hoop would remain liable to Disney for royalties on sales of Disney
merchandise through the end of the wind-down period and for any other amounts owed to Disney (such as contractual breach fees). These
subsidiaries would also have substantial liabilities under Disney Store leases and for payments due to vendors, including obligations under
non-cancellable purchase orders for Disney merchandise (the amount of which fluctuates based on seasonality), as well as obligations to repay
outstanding amounts under the credit facility supporting the Disney Store business. By way of example, as of February 3, 2007, the total liability
of Hoop under Disney Store leases through fiscal 2022 was approximately $345.2 million and the total liability of Hoop under outstanding
purchase orders for merchandise was approximately $131.4 million.

In the case of a wind-down, Hoop might be unable to comply with all of their payment obligations to Disney, lenders, landlords, vendors and
other third parties, in which case creditors of these subsidiaries might elect to commence involuntary bankruptcy proceedings or our subsidiaries
might not be able to avoid voluntarily seeking bankruptcy protection. In the event of bankruptcy proceedings with respect to Hoop, creditors of
Hoop may seek to have our parent company, The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc., held liable for certain obligations of Hoop.

 Our parent company has expressly committed to contribute $175 million to Hoop as needed for store remodeling and renovation in accordance
with the Refurbishment Amendment and $50 million (subject to increase in certain circumstances), if needed for the ongoing business of Hoop.
Our parent company has also guaranteed $25 million of Hoop�s payment obligations to Disney.

Our agreements with Disney may require us to make additional investments in the Disney Store business, which could require us to seek
external sources of funds or to reduce the amount of capital expenditures we make in The Children�s Place business.
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The License Agreement requires the Disney Store business to maintain the stores according to the highest standards prevailing in the specialty
retail industry and to otherwise fund its operations, including making royalty payments to Disney. Should the Disney Store business be unable to
meet these obligations on its own, we are contractually obligated under the Guaranty and Commitment to invest up to an additional $50 million
to enable it to comply with the License Agreement. In addition, the Refurbishment Amendment with Disney, entered into in August 2007,
commits us, on a consolidated basis, to a remodel and refresh program for certain Disney Stores through fiscal
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2011 at a total cost which we have estimated at $175 million, which our Board has approved. To the extent that the Disney Store business is
unable to fund this remodel and maintenance refresh program, or otherwise fund its operations, The Children�s Place would be required to invest
additional funds, not to exceed certain annual and aggregate maximum amounts under our credit facility, in the Disney Store business, which
might require us to reduce our capital expenditures in The Children�s Place business or seek external sources of funds. If we are unable to
generate sufficient funds to meet our Disney Store business funding obligations or are unable to obtain funds through external sources, we may
be in violation of the License Agreement and the Refurbishment Amendment, in which event Disney may exercise one or more of its rights and
remedies, including termination of the License Agreement. If the License Agreement is terminated, Disney may, at its option, require us to sell
or wind down the Disney Store business. Upon any exercise of remedies by Disney, our financial position, results of operations and cash flows
would be materially adversely impacted. For a more detailed description of the risks involved in a sale or wind down of the Disney Store
business, please refer to the previous risk factor of this Form 10-K above.

We expect in the next 12 months that The Children�s Place business will need to provide additional capital to the Disney Stores to remain in
compliance with the store remodel requirements under the License Agreement as modified by the Refurbishment Amendment.

If we are unable to reposition Disney Store, our results of operations and cash flows will be adversely impacted.

A significant portion of our future success involves developing and growing the Disney Store business. The realization of any revenue growth,
cost savings or synergies will depend largely upon our ability to:

�  Remodel and update the current store fleet and successfully operate the stores;

�  Execute our strategies for Disney Store without adversely impacting the existing The Children�s Place business;

�  Source hardlines merchandise at favorable prices; and

�  Secure additional merchandise cost reductions from vendors and suppliers.

There can be no assurance that we can successfully operate the Disney Stores in accordance with the terms of the License Agreement, including
taking the steps necessary to obtain all required consents and approvals thereunder. In addition, there can be no assurance that we can
successfully execute any of the actions above or that our strategies for Disney Store will achieve the results necessary to generate profits. If we
cannot successfully execute the Disney Store growth strategy, our results of operations will be adversely impacted.

Our segregation of working capital and credit facilities could lead to a liquidity need in one business despite adequate liquidity on a
consolidated basis.

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

69



The terms of the License Agreement and/or our credit facilities, among other things, restrict the commingling of funds between The Children�s
Place and the Disney Store businesses and restrict borrowings and certain distributions among The Children�s Place and the Disney Store
businesses. Therefore, we segregate all cash receipts and disbursements, investments, credit facility borrowings and letter of credit activity. This
segregation could lead to a liquidity need in one business while there is adequate liquidity in the other business, and there is no guarantee that if
such a liquidity need were to arise we would have the ability to make the appropriate intercompany distributions. In addition, there can be no
guarantee that external funds would be available in a timely manner, at an appropriate cost or in a manner that would meet the requirements of
the parties to the License Agreements or our credit facilities. If either of our businesses is unable to generate sufficient funds to meet its own
needs and is unable to obtain funds from the other business or through external sources, our financial position, results of operations and cash
flows could be materially adversely impacted.

Restrictions on our Disney Store business to issue dividends to The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc. could lead to our inability to
re-allocate capital on a consolidated basis.

Hoop cannot pay dividends to The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc. unless the proposed dividend payment exceeds certain cash flow or net
working capital calculations defined in the License Agreement. In addition to
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meeting these requirements, any dividend payment requires approval from Hoop�s independent directors or a written certification from our CFO
certifying to Disney that these conditions have been satisfied. We also are restricted by our lenders from making any dividends from Hoop to
The Children�s Place, other than to recover the funds we invested in connection with our obligations arising from our acquisition of the DSNA
Business or we will invest in connection with the Refurbishment Amendment. Accordingly, even if we satisfy the requirements to make a
dividend under the License Agreement, prior to making any such dividend, we may still be required to obtain a waiver from our lenders. Based
on these restrictions, we do not foresee Hoop declaring a dividend payment to The Children�s Place within the next 12 months for either the
recovery of our initial purchase price investment of the DSNA Business or any additional future investments we make in Hoop, including any
investments made to support the capital expenditure commitments of Hoop pursuant to the License Agreement, as modified by the
Refurbishment Amendment. Therefore, we cannot rely on any of Hoop�s capital to fund investments in The Children�s Place or in our foreign
subsidiaries.

Because we are not current in our filings with the SEC, our common stock may be delisted from the Nasdaq Global Select Market, in which
event we may suffer adverse business consequences.

As we did not timely file our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended July 29, 2006 and October 28, 2006, our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for fiscal 2006, and our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended May 5, 2007 and August 4, 2007 (collectively, the
�Required Reports�), we have been out of compliance with the reporting requirements of the SEC and the Nasdaq Select Market (�Nasdaq�) for
more than one year. Although we have now filed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal 2006 and our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for
the second and third quarters of fiscal 2006, we have not yet filed our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the first and second quarters of fiscal
2007. Consequently, we continue to be in violation of the reporting requirements under the Exchange Act and the Nasdaq listing rules.

We have received various determination letters from the Staff of Nasdaq stating that, because we have not been in compliance with Nasdaq
listing requirements, our common stock is subject to delisting. Since September 2006 we have been in contact with the Nasdaq Listing
Qualifications Panel, Nasdaq�s Listing and Hearing Review Council, and the Board of Directors of the Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (the �Nasdaq
Board�) regarding our inability to comply with Nasdaq�s listing requirements and when we might be able to again become compliant. The last
communication we received from Nasdaq on this issue was from the Nasdaq Board on November 9, 2007 stating that we had until January 9,
2008 to file all of the Required Reports in order to regain compliance with Nasdaq�s listing requirements. If we have not regained compliance
prior to that time, we will need to explain to the Nasdaq Staff the reasons for our inability to do so, in order for the Nasdaq Board to consider
whether any further extension is warranted. We still need to file our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended May 5, 2007 and
August 4, 2007 before we will have filed all of the Required Reports. There is no assurance that we will be able to meet the January 9, 2008
deadline, and if we do not, there is no assurance that the Nasdaq Board will grant the Company additional time to become compliant. If we fail
to come into compliance by January 9, 2008 or any extended deadline approved by Nasdaq, we anticipate that the Company�s shares will be
delisted from Nasdaq.

If Nasdaq ceases to grant us extensions to file our periodic reports, a delisting of our common stock would have a material adverse effect on us
by, among other things:

�  Reducing the liquidity and market price of our common stock; and

�  Reducing the number of investors willing to hold or acquire our common stock, thereby restricting our ability
to obtain equity financing.
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In addition, Nasdaq listing rules require that all issuers solicit proxies and hold an annual meeting of its shareholders within 12 months of the
end of the issuer�s fiscal year end. In order for us to comply with this rule, we must hold our annual meeting of shareholders for the fiscal year
ended February 3, 2007, no later than February 3, 2008. In addition, we must be current in our SEC filings before we can solicit proxies for such
annual meeting of our shareholders. Accordingly, if we are unable to become current in our SEC filings in sufficient time for us to solicit proxies
for an annual meeting of our shareholders by February 3, 2008, or if we otherwise fail to hold such meeting by February 3, 2008, the Company�s
shares could be delisted from Nasdaq.
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Our failure to be current in our filings with the SEC poses other significant risks to our business, each of which could materially and
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Because of our failure to timely file our periodic reports with the SEC, we are subject to various risks in addition to the possible delisting of our
common stock. These additional risks include the following:

�  A breach of our credit facilities would allow our lenders to declare our outstanding loans due and payable in
whole or in part. So far, our lenders have waived these breaches but there can be no assurance that they will grant any
additional waivers, if requested;

� An inability to make offerings pursuant to existing Form S-8 registration statements covering our employee stock plans. Accordingly,
we are restricted in our ability to issue new stock options or other equity awards to our employees and our employees are unable to exercise their
outstanding options;

� An inability to have a registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the �Securities Act�), covering a public
offering of securities declared effective by the SEC. Therefore, we cannot offer and sell freely tradable securities, which prevents us from
accessing the public capital markets, should we desire to do so; and

�  Our failure to meet our reporting obligations under the Exchange Act is a violation of Section 13(a) of the
Exchange Act and could subject us to SEC investigations and enforcement actions, which could result in injunctions
and monetary penalties.

Accordingly, our inability to timely file our periodic reports with the SEC could have an adverse impact on our ability to (i) access our credit
facilities, (ii) attract and retain key employees, and (iii) raise funds in the public markets, and any of these events could materially and adversely
affect our financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, we have lost for at least the next 12 months our status as a �well known seasoned issuer,� including the registration advantages
associated with such status even if we become current with our delinquent filings with the SEC. As a result, we will not be able to register any
new shares of our securities on certain short-form registration statements under the Securities Act, such as Forms S-3, until we have filed all
reports required under the Exchange Act for a continuous period of 12 months.

Because the trading price of our common stock has significantly declined over the last year, it is possible that one or more parties may
consider seeking to acquire the Company. There is no assurance that any proposal to acquire the Company will be made or that a sale of the
Company will occur, nor has our Board determined that a sale of the Company is advisable. In the event that a sale of the Company were to
occur, it is likely that following such sale our public stockholders would no longer have the benefits of ownership of our common stock.
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In light of the significant decline in our stock price over the last 12 months, it is possible that one or more parties may be interested in making an
offer to acquire the Company. In particular, our former Chairman and CEO, Ezra Dabah, who is also one of our major stockholders and a
member of our Board, publicly stated in a Schedule 13D he filed with the SEC on October 15, 2007 that he is considering the possibility of
making an offer, in combination with others, to acquire the Company and that he intends to discuss a possible acquisition of the Company with
potential private equity sponsors and strategic buyers. While the Company may be approached by other parties in addition to Mr. Dabah, there
can be no assurance that any proposal to acquire the Company will be made by Mr. Dabah or any other party or as to the terms of any such
proposal that may be made. At this time, our Board has not made any determination to seek offers for the sale of the Company. However,
consistent with its fiduciary duties, our Board has engaged an investment banking firm to act as its financial advisor in undertaking a review of
strategic alternatives to improve operations and enhance shareholder value. As part of this review, our Board and management are assessing a
wide variety of options to improve our business, including, but not limited to, opportunities for organizational and operational improvement, a
possible recapitalization, or other transactions. The Board has not set any specific timeline for the completion of this strategic review, and there
is no assurance that, as a result of this review, the Board will decide to change the Company�s course of action or engage in any specific
transaction.
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In the event that Mr. Dabah, either acting alone or in combination with others, or any other party were to make an offer to acquire the Company,
the analysis and any negotiations relating to any such offer will likely require substantial time and attention of the Company�s Board and senior
management that could distract them from focusing on the Company�s business, as well as result in significant expense to the Company. Mr.
Dabah has stated that he may commence a proxy fight to elect one or more directors to our Board. Any actions that may be taken by Mr. Dabah
could require time and attention of our management and may involve significant expense on the part of the Company.

In the event that a sale of the Company were to occur, this could constitute a �going private� transaction, following which we would become a
private company whose common stock would no longer be publicly traded, and we would no longer be subject to the periodic reporting
requirements of the Exchange Act. If this were to occur, our current public stockholders would be selling their shares and would no longer have
an opportunity to benefit from any future appreciation in the value of our stock or any of the other benefits of ownership of our common stock.

We have identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007 that, if not remedied
effectively, could result in a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company�s annual or interim financial statements will
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis in future periods.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting, as defined in Rules
13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Our management evaluated the design and effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007 and identified three material weaknesses. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the Company�s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. As a result of the following three
material weaknesses, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of February 3 2007:

�  In connection with its internal investigation of option granting practices, the Company found that it did not
maintain appropriate governance and other internal controls relating to its option grants. Management has determined
that the lack of adequate controls over the granting of stock options and the related documentation constituted a
material weakness, which resulted in the use of incorrect accounting measurement dates for certain stock option grants
and related errors in recording compensation expense of $11.2 million between fiscal 1998 and the first quarter of
fiscal 2006.

�  Our evaluation concluded that, although policies and procedures appropriate for a strong control
environment were designed and in large part instituted, the Company has not been successful in ensuring overall
adherence to them to the degree necessary for maintenance of a fully effective control environment. Management
specifically considered the deficiencies in the Company�s stock option granting practices discussed above, violations
during fiscal 2006 of the Code of Business Conduct by two members of senior management, and certain other
deficiencies noted in adherence during the year to good control practices by certain members of senior management,
in reaching its conclusion that collectively, the problems found in these areas reflected a material weakness in our
internal control environment.

�  Due to lack of resources and the diversion of resources to the stock option investigation and the resulting
restatement of our financial statements, the Company did not maintain effective controls over the period-end financial
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close and reporting processes. As a result, the Company identified a number of adjustments to its 2006 financial
statements after their normal release date. Due to the potential effect on financial statement balances and disclosures,
and the importance of the financial closing and reporting processes, management has concluded that, in the aggregate,
these deficiencies result in a material weakness in the Company�s financial close and reporting process.

For further information about these material weaknesses, please see Item 9A.�Controls and Procedures� included elsewhere in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. Because of these material weaknesses, management concluded that, as of February 3, 2007, our internal control over financial
reporting was not effective.

We have implemented and continue to implement a number of remedial measures designed to address the material weaknesses identified as of
February 3, 2007. If these remedial initiatives are insufficient to address the identified material weaknesses, or if additional material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies in our internal control are discovered in the future, we may fail to meet our future reporting obligations on a timely
basis, our financial statements may contain material misstatements, our operating results may be harmed, and we may be subject to litigation.
Any failure to address the identified material weaknesses or any additional material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our internal control
could also adversely affect the results of future management evaluations regarding the effectiveness of our �internal control over financial
reporting� that are required under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Internal control deficiencies could also cause investors to lose
confidence in our reported financial information.

27

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

76



We have experienced deterioration in our sales and profitability. If we are unable to anticipate and respond to merchandise trends, we may
continue to suffer adverse business consequences, including loss of revenue.

We have experienced deterioration in our sales and profitability. Our continued success will depend in part on our ability to anticipate and
respond to fashion trends and consumer preferences. Our design, manufacturing and distribution process generally takes up to one year, during
which time fashion trends and consumer preferences may change. Failure to anticipate, identify or respond to future fashion trends may continue
to adversely affect customer acceptance of our products or require substantial markdowns, which could continue to have a material adverse
effect on our business.

Management and the Board are in the process of assessing the business and are re-evaluating its inventory strategy. Steps are being taken to
reduce inventory levels where possible. Given the Company�s merchandise buying lead times, it will likely take several quarters to make
adjustments to the extent they are necessary.

Changes in comparable store sales results from period to period could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common
stock.

Numerous factors affect our comparable store sales results, including, among others, merchandise assortment, retail prices, fashion trends,
weather conditions, macro-economic conditions, the retail sales environment and our success in executing our business strategy. During fiscal
2006, we reported a comparable store sales increase of 11%, on top of a 9% comparable store sales increase achieved during fiscal 2005. Our
monthly comparable store sales results have fluctuated significantly in the past and we anticipate that our monthly comparable store sales will
continue to fluctuate in the future. Moreover, comparable store sales for any particular period may decrease in the future. Further, Disney Stores�
comparable stores sales results may be more volatile than those of The Children�s Place given one time events that occur from year to year such
as major theatrical movie or DVD releases. The investment community often follows comparable store sales results closely and significant
fluctuations in these results may affect the price of our common stock. Any variations in our comparable store sales results could have a material
adverse effect on the market price of our common stock.

The recent resignation of Ezra Dabah as our CEO, or the future loss of one or more of our other key personnel could have a material
adverse effect on our business.

The leadership and expertise of Ezra Dabah, our former CEO, and his unique relationships with the Company�s manufacturers and independent
buying agents have been instrumental in our success. His recent resignation as CEO could have a material adverse effect on our supply chain and
business. Many of the Company�s executives were recruited by Mr. Dabah and of them, two executive officers have employment agreements that
provide that Mr. Dabah�s departure constitutes a �good reason� for such executive officers to terminate their employment agreements with us.
Accordingly, Mr. Dabah�s departure may make it difficult to retain these executives.

Other members of management have substantial experience and expertise in our business and have made significant contributions to its growth
and success. Most of these members of management do not have employment agreements with us. The loss of services of one or more of these
individuals, or the inability to attract additional qualified managers or other personnel, could have a material adverse effect on our business. We
are not protected by any key-man or similar life insurance for any of our executive officers.
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If we are unable to maintain profitable growth, our future operating results and cash flows will be adversely impacted.

Our future operating results will depend largely upon our ability to manage a larger business profitably and open and operate new stores
successfully. We anticipate opening approximately 80 stores during fiscal 2007, which will include approximately 60 The Children�s Place stores
and approximately 15 Disney Stores. Our ability to open and
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operate new stores successfully depends on many factors, including, among others, the availability of suitable store locations, the ability to
negotiate acceptable lease terms, the ability to timely complete necessary construction, the ability to successfully integrate new stores into our
existing operations, the ability to hire and train store personnel and the ability to recognize and respond to regional and climate-related
differences in customer preferences.

We cannot assure you that we will achieve our planned expansion on a timely and profitable basis or that we will be able to achieve results
similar to those achieved in existing locations in prior periods. In fiscal 2006, our total store base grew by 7% compared to 6% during fiscal
2005, and is anticipated to grow at approximately the same rate in fiscal 2007. Operating margins may also be adversely affected during periods
in which we have incurred expenses in anticipation of new store openings. We may not be able to sustain the new store return on investment we
experienced in fiscal 2006 of approximately 87% for The Children�s Place brand and 62% for Disney Store.

We define return on investment as store level operating cash flow for new stores divided by new store investment. Store level operating cash
flow for new stores is comprised of direct store contribution before the amortization of deferred rent and depreciation and amortization expense.
We believe new store return on investment is a relevant measurement for assessing performance, because it shows how quickly our investment
in new stores becomes available for reinvestment. However, it is not a measure determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP and should not be
considered by investors as an alternative to operating income or net income as an indicator of our performance. The new store return on
investment disclosed here is not necessarily comparable to new store return on investment disclosed by other companies because new store
return on investment is not uniformly defined.

Furthermore, we need to continually evaluate the adequacy of our store management and our information and distribution systems to manage our
planned expansion. Any failure to successfully and profitably execute our expansion plans could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We believe that cash on hand, cash generated from operations and funds available under our credit facilities will be sufficient to fund our capital
and other cash flow requirements for our business for at least the next 12 months. However, it is possible that we may be required to seek
additional funds for our capital and other cash flow needs if we are not able to generate sufficient cash flows, and we cannot assure you that we
will be able to obtain such funds on terms favorable to us or at all.

The success of our Disney Store business largely depends on The Walt Disney Company character franchise and brand; and any events that
negatively impact the consumers� perception of Disney could hurt our future operating results and cash flows.

The Disney Store business is driven largely by customers� interests in apparel, toys and other products featuring Disney characters. New
characters featured prominently in movies, television and DVDs and national marketing campaigns heighten consumers� interests and in-store
traffic. While traditional licensed properties such as Mickey & Friends, the Pooh Family and Disney Princess may sustain store sales throughout
the year, new characters enthuse young children and lead to increased customer traffic. Our ability to grow the Disney Store business is thus
dependent on Disney�s ability to continue to create new and likable characters.

The Disney Store business is strongly aligned with the �Disney� brand, the maintenance and cultivation of which is outside of our control. The
Disney Store business is subject to certain risks because it relies heavily on the strong brand identification of the Disney logo, the beloved nature
of the Disney characters and the Disney brand name. All of the products within the Disney Store are intrinsically tied to consumers� image of the
Disney brand. While the Disney brand is among the world�s most recognized and highly regarded brands, it is subject to changes in public
opinion and ever changing consumer preferences. If unfavorable events occur that negatively impact the consumers� perception of Disney or the
Disney brand/logo, our future results of operation and financial condition could be adversely affected.
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Our future operating results and cash flows could be adversely affected by pending litigation commenced by our shareholders.

On January 17, 2007, a stockholder derivative action was filed against certain current members of the Board and certain current and former
senior executives in the United States District Court, District of New Jersey. The Company has been named as a nominal defendant. The
complaint alleges, among other things, that certain of the Company�s
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current and former officers and directors (i) breached their fiduciary duties to the Company and its stockholders and were unjustly enriched by
improperly backdating certain grants of stock options to officers and directors of the Company, (ii) caused the Company to file false and
misleading reports with the SEC, (iii) violated the Exchange Act and common law, (iv) caused the Company to issue false and misleading public
statements, and (v) were negligent and abdicated their responsibilities to the Company and its stockholders. The complaint seeks money
damages from the defendants, an accounting for the proceeds of sales of any allegedly backdated stock options, and the costs and disbursements
of the lawsuit, as well as equitable relief. The defendants have moved to dismiss the action, and on or about June 15, 2007, the plaintiff filed an
amended complaint adding, among other things, a claim for securities fraud under SEC rule 10b-5.

On September 21, 2007 a second stockholder class action was filed against the Company and certain current and former senior executives in the
United States District Court, Southern District of New York. This complaint alleges, among other things, that certain of the Company�s current
and former officers made statements to the investing public which misrepresented material facts about the business and operations of the
Company, or omitted to state material facts required in order for the statements made by them not to be misleading, causing the price of the
Company�s stock to be artificially inflated in violation of provisions of the Exchange Act, as amended. It alleges that more recent disclosures
establish the misleading nature of these earlier disclosures. The complaint seeks money damages plus interest as well as costs and disbursements
of the lawsuit. The Company intends to vigorously contest these allegations and the claims made.

On October 10, 2007, a third stockholder class action was filed in the United States District Court, Southern District of New York, against the
Company and certain of its current and former senior executives. This complaint alleges, among other things, that certain of the Company�s
current and former officers made statements to the investing public which misrepresented material facts about the business and operations of the
Company, or omitted to state material facts required in order for the statements made by them not to be misleading, thereby causing the price of
the Company�s stock to be artificially inflated in violation of provisions of the Exchange Act, as amended. According to this complaint, more
recent disclosures establish the misleading nature of these earlier disclosures. This complaint seeks, among other relief, class certification of the
lawsuit, compensatory damages plus interest, and costs and expenses of the lawsuit, including counsel and expert fees.

The outcome of the above litigations is uncertain; while we believe there are valid defenses to the claims and we will defend ourselves
vigorously, no assurance can be given as to the outcome of these matters. Additionally, the above complaints and resulting litigation and other
litigations could distract our management and directors from the Company�s affairs, the costs and expenses of the litigation could unfavorably
affect our net earnings and an unfavorable outcome could adversely affect the reputation of the Company.

An unfavorable result from the informal investigation of the SEC and the U.S. Attorney for the District of New Jersey into our historic stock
option granting practices could lead to regulatory or criminal fines and penalties, adverse publicity, and other negative consequences.

The Division of Enforcement of the SEC is conducting an informal investigation into the Company�s historic stock option practices, as is the
Office of the U.S. Attorney for the District of New Jersey. We have cooperated with these investigations and have briefed both authorities on the
results of the Special Committee�s investigation. There have been no developments in these matters since that time. We cannot provide assurance
that the Company will not be subject to adverse publicity, regulatory or criminal fines or penalties, as well as other sanctions or other contingent
liabilities or adverse customer reactions in connection with this matter.

Because we use foreign manufacturers, an unaffiliated manufacturer�s failure to comply with acceptable labor practices could have an
adverse effect on our business.
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Our business is subject to the risks generally associated with purchasing from foreign countries, particularly China, from where approximately
50% of our merchandise is imported. Some of these risks are foreign governmental regulations, political instability, currency and exchange risks,
quotas on the amounts and types of merchandise which may be imported into the United States and Canada from other countries, pressures from
non-governmental organizations, disruptions or delays in shipments and changes in economic conditions in countries in which our
manufacturing sources are located. We cannot predict the effect that such factors will have on our business
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arrangements with foreign manufacturing sources. If any of these factors rendered the conduct of business in a particular country undesirable or
impractical, or if our current foreign manufacturing sources ceased doing business with us for any reason, our business could be materially
adversely affected. Our business is also subject to the risks associated with changes in U.S. and Canadian legislation and regulations relating to
imported apparel products, including quotas, duties, taxes and other charges or restrictions on imported apparel. Such changes or other changes
or restrictions with regard to China could have a material adverse impact on our business. We cannot predict whether such changes or other
charges or restrictions will be imposed upon the importation of our products in the future.

We require our independent manufacturers to operate in compliance with applicable laws and our internal requirements, some of which are
mandated by our License Agreement. While our purchasing guidelines promote ethical business practices, we do not control these manufacturers
or their labor practices. Any violation of labor or other laws by one of the independent manufacturers we use or any divergence of an
independent manufacturer�s labor practices from standards mandated by our License Agreement or those generally accepted as ethical in the
United States and Canada could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Since a portion of our available cash is located in foreign jurisdictions, if we need such cash to fund domestic needs we may not be able to do
so on favorable terms.

We manage our cash and liquidity within each business according to the country and currency of operations. Because a portion of our cash
balances and working capital is located in foreign jurisdictions, we could have a liquidity issue in one country while adequate liquidity exists in
other countries. If such a liquidity need were to arise in our domestic operations, there is no guarantee that we would have the ability to make the
appropriate intercompany transfer from our foreign subsidiaries on favorable terms and our financial position, results of operations and cash
flows could be materially adversely impacted.

Because we operate in foreign countries, some of our revenues are subject to foreign economic risks.

We have operations in Canada and Puerto Rico. We cannot assure you that we will be able to address in a timely manner the risks of operating
stores in foreign countries such as governmental requirements over merchandise importation, employment, taxation and multi-lingual
requirements.

Because we operate in foreign countries, some of our product costs and other expenses are subject to foreign currency fluctuations.

While our business is primarily conducted in U.S. dollars, we purchase substantially all of our products overseas, and the cost of these products
may be affected by changes in the values of the relevant currencies. To date, we have not significantly hedged against foreign currency
fluctuations; however, we may pursue hedging alternatives in the future. Foreign currency fluctuations could have a material adverse effect on
our business and results of operations.

Disruptions in receiving and distribution could have a material adverse effect on our business.
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Our merchandise is shipped directly from manufacturers through freight consolidators to our distribution and fulfillment centers. Our operating
results depend in large part on the orderly operation of our receiving and distribution process, which depends on manufacturers� adherence to
shipping schedules and our effective management of our distribution facilities and capacity. Furthermore, it is possible that events beyond our
control, such as a military action, strike, natural disaster or other disruption, could result in delays in delivery of merchandise to our stores. Any
such event could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We face significant competition in the retail industry, which could impact our ability to compete successfully against existing or future
competition.

The children�s apparel, toy and media retail markets are highly competitive. We compete in substantially all of our markets with GapKids,
babyGap and Old Navy (each of which is a division of The Gap, Inc.); The Gymboree Corporation; Too, Inc.; Babies �R� Us and Toys �R� Us (each
of which is a division of Toys �R� Us, Inc.); J.C. Penney Company, Inc.; Sears (a division of Sears Holdings Corporation); Kohl�s and other
department stores, as well as discount stores such as Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.; Target Corporation; and K-Mart (a division of Sears Holdings
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Corporation). In addition, the Company�s new store-within-a-store shoe store will compete with well-known national retailers such as Stride Rite
and Payless as well as smaller shoe retailers. We also compete with a wide variety of specialty stores, other national and regional retail chains,
catalog companies and Internet retailers. In our Disney Store business, we compete with the Disney theme parks and with third parties selling
Disney-branded merchandise under license. In addition, media items such as compact discs and DVDs can be purchased in virtually every retail
channel. One or more of our competitors are present in substantially all of the areas in which we have stores. Many of our competitors are larger
than us and have access to significantly greater financial, marketing and other resources than we have. We cannot assure you that we will be able
to continue to compete successfully against existing or future competition.

We depend on our relationships with unaffiliated manufacturers and independent agents.

We do not own or operate any manufacturing facilities, and therefore, are dependent upon independent third parties for the manufacture of all of
our products. Our products are currently manufactured to our specifications, pursuant to purchase orders, by approximately 400 independent
manufacturers located primarily in Asia. In addition, in fiscal 2006, we sourced approximately 50% of our merchandise from China. We have no
exclusive or long-term contracts with our manufacturers and compete with other companies for manufacturing facilities. In addition, we have no
formal written agreement with a Hong Kong-based trading company through which we purchased approximately 15% of our products in fiscal
2006. We purchase merchandise through a Hong Kong-based trading company using negotiated purchase orders. We also purchased
approximately 15% of our products in fiscal 2006 through the support of a single agent in Taiwan, which has an exclusive arrangement with us,
but is not obligated to sell exclusively to us. Although we believe that we have established close relationships with our trading company,
independent agents and principal manufacturers, the inability to maintain such relationships or to find additional sources to support future
growth could have a material adverse effect on our business.

A material disruption in our information technology systems could adversely affect our business or results of operations and cash flows.

We rely on various information systems to manage our operations and regularly make investments to upgrade, enhance or replace such systems.
Any delays or difficulties in transitioning to these or other new systems, or in integrating these systems with our current systems, or any other
disruptions affecting our information systems, could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our ability to discourage, delay or prevent a takeover attempt could reduce the market value of our common stock.

Certain provisions of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the �Certificate of Incorporation�) and Amended and Restated
By-laws (the �By-laws�) may have anti-takeover effects and discourage, delay or prevent a takeover attempt that a stockholder might consider in
the stockholder�s best interest. These provisions, among other things:

�  Classify our Board into three classes, each of which will serve for different three year periods;

�  Provide that only the Chairman of the Board may call special meetings of the stockholders;
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�  Provide that a director may be removed by stockholders only for cause by a vote of the holders of more than
two-thirds of the shares entitled to vote;

�  Provide that all vacancies on our Board, including any vacancies resulting from an increase in the number of
directors, may be filled by a majority of the remaining directors, even if the number is less than a quorum;

�  Establish certain advance notice procedures for nominations of candidates for election as directors and for
stockholder proposals to be considered at stockholders� meetings; and

�  Require a vote of the holders of more than three quarters of the shares entitled to vote in order to amend the
foregoing provisions and certain other provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws.

In addition, the Board, without further action of the stockholders, is permitted to issue and fix the terms of preferred stock, which may have
rights senior to those of the common stock. Moreover, we are subject to the
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provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, as amended, which would require a two-thirds vote of stockholders for any
business combination (such as a merger or sales of all or substantially all of our assets) between The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and an
�interested stockholder,� unless such transaction is approved by a majority of the disinterested directors or meets certain other requirements. In
certain circumstances, the existence of these provisions, which inhibit or discourage takeover attempts, could reduce the market value of our
common stock.

We are sensitive to economic, regional and other business conditions, which could adversely affect our future operating results and cash
flows.

Our business is sensitive to customers� spending patterns which are subject to prevailing regional and national economic conditions such as
consumer confidence, recession, interest rates, energy prices and taxation. We are, and will continue to be, susceptible to changes in national and
regional economic conditions, weather conditions, demographics, hourly wage legislation, consumer preferences and other regional factors.

Recalls and post-manufacture repairs of our products and/or product liability claims against our products could harm our reputation,
increase costs or reduce sales.

We are subject to regulation by the Consumer Product Safety Commission and similar state and international regulatory authorities, and our
products could be subject to involuntary recalls and other actions by these authorities. Concerns about product safety, including but not limited
to concerns about those manufactured in developing countries, where substantially all of our merchandise is manufactured, may lead us to recall
selected products, either voluntarily, or at the direction of Disney or a governmental authority. Product safety concerns, recalls, defects or errors
could result in the rejection of our products by customers, damage to our reputation, lost sales, product liability litigation and increased costs,
any of which could harm our business.

A privacy breach could adversely affect our business.

 The protection of customer, employee, and company data is critical. The regulatory environment surrounding information security and privacy
is demanding, with the frequent imposition of new and changing requirements. In addition, customers have a high expectation that we will
adequately protect their personal information. A significant breach of customer, employee, or company data could damage our reputation and
result in lost sales, fines, or lawsuits.

Our profitability could be adversely affected if we are unable to successfully negotiate favorable lease terms.

We generally lease our stores for an initial term of ten years. Our operating results and cash flows could be adversely affected if we are unable to
continue to negotiate favorable lease and renewal terms.

Because of conditions impacting our quarterly results of operations, including seasonality and other factors, our quarterly results fluctuate.
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As is the case with many retailers, we experience seasonal fluctuations in our net sales and net income. Our net sales and net income are
generally weakest during the first two fiscal quarters, and are lower during the second fiscal quarter than during the first fiscal quarter. For
example, in fiscal 2006, 21%, 20%, 27% and 32% of our consolidated net sales occurred in the first, second, third and fourth quarters,
respectively. In fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007, we experienced second quarter losses. It is likely that we will continue to experience second quarter
losses in future periods. It is also possible that we could experience losses in other quarters. Our first quarter results are heavily dependent upon
sales during the period leading up to the Easter holiday. Our third quarter results are heavily dependent upon back-to-school sales at The
Children�s Place and upon Halloween sales at Disney Store. Our fourth quarter results are heavily dependent upon sales during the holiday
season. Weak sales during any of these periods could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our quarterly results of operations may also fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter as a result of a variety of other factors, including
overall macro-economic conditions, the timing of new store openings and related pre-opening and other start-up costs, net sales contributed by
new stores, increases or decreases in comparable store sales,
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weather conditions, shifts in the timing of certain holidays, changes in our merchandise mix and pricing strategy. Any failure by us to meet our
business plans for, in particular, the third and fourth quarter of any fiscal year would have a material adverse effect on our earnings, which in all
likelihood would not be offset by satisfactory results achieved in other quarters of the same fiscal year. In addition, because our expense levels
are based in part on expectations of future sales levels, a shortfall in expected sales could result in a disproportionate decrease in our net income.

Certain stockholders have significant influence over determining the outcome of matters submitted to a stockholder vote.

Ezra Dabah, our former CEO and a current member of our Board, and Stanley Silverstein, who is also a member of our Board, and certain
members of their families beneficially own a significant percentage of our outstanding common stock. As a result, Mr. Dabah and Mr.
Silverstein have, and will continue to have, significant influence on the election of our directors and on determining the outcome of any matter
submitted to a vote of our stockholders for approval.

The volatility of our stock price could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Our common stock, which is quoted on the Nasdaq Global Select Market, has experienced and is likely to experience significant price and
volume fluctuations, which could adversely affect the market price of the common stock without regard to our operating performance. In
addition, we believe that factors such as quarterly fluctuations in our financial results, our comparable store sales results, announcements by
other retailers or Disney, the overall economy, the geopolitical environment and the condition of the financial markets could cause the price of
our common stock to fluctuate substantially.

Legislative actions and new accounting pronouncements could result in us having to increase our administrative expenses to remain
compliant.

In order to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and any subsequent guidance that may come from the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (�PCAOB�), future changes in listing standards by Nasdaq, or future accounting guidance or disclosure requirements by the SEC,
we may be required to enhance our internal controls, hire additional personnel and utilize additional outside legal, accounting and advisory
services, all of which could cause our general and administrative expenses to increase. Proposed changes in the accounting rules, including
legislative and other proposals could increase the expenses we report under U.S. GAAP and affect our operating results.

Any terrorist act that impacts consumer shopping could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We are dependent upon the continued popularity of malls as shopping destinations and the ability of mall anchor tenants and other attractions to
generate customer traffic in the malls where our stores are located. Any terrorist act that decreases the level of mall traffic or other shopping
traffic could have a material adverse effect on our business. In addition, military actions could negatively impact mall traffic, which would have
a material adverse effect on our business.

ITEM 1B.�UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
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None.

ITEM 2.�PROPERTIES
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We currently support both The Children�s Place stores and Disney Stores with a leased 525,000 square foot distribution center in South
Brunswick Township, New Jersey; a leased 250,000 square foot distribution center in Ontario, California; a leased 95,000 square foot
distribution center in Ontario, Canada; and an owned 700,000 square foot distribution center in Ft. Payne, Alabama, which we opened in August
2007 to support projected growth at both brands. Our distribution centers utilize automated warehouse systems, which employ radio frequency
technology and automated conveyor systems. In addition, we lease our approximately 150,000 square foot fulfillment center in Secaucus, New
Jersey to support our Internet business. We operate our headquarters in Secaucus, New Jersey and Pasadena, California, as well as other leased
facilities to support warehousing and administrative office needs. We
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also lease offices in Hong Kong, Shanghai and New Delhi to capitalize on new and existing sourcing opportunities and monitor product quality.
In addition, we entered into a lease agreement for approximately 283,000 square feet of office space in Secaucus, New Jersey near our current
corporate headquarters, and we plan to move our corporate headquarters into this space in fiscal 2009 after we complete its design and
construction.

We lease all of our existing store locations, with the store lease terms expiring through 2023. The average unexpired store lease term for The
Children�s Place and Disney Store is 4.9 and 5.0 years, respectively. The leases for most of our existing stores are for initial terms of 10 years and
provide for contingent rent based upon a percentage of sales in excess of specific minimums. Leases for future stores will likely include similar
contingent rent provisions.

ITEM 3.�LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
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On September 29, 2006, the Division of Enforcement of the SEC informed us that it had initiated an informal investigation into our stock option
granting practices. In addition, the Office of the U.S. Attorney for the District of New Jersey advised us that it had commenced an investigation
into the same matter. We have cooperated with these investigations and have briefed both authorities on the results of the Special Committee�s
investigation. There have been no developments in these matters since that time.

On January 17, 2007, a stockholder derivative action was filed in the United States District Court, District of New Jersey against certain current
members of our Board and certain current and former senior executives. The Company has been named as a nominal defendant. The complaint
alleges, among other things, that certain of our current and former officers and directors (i) breached their fiduciary duties to the Company and
its stockholders and were unjustly enriched by improperly backdating certain grants of stock options to officers and directors of the Company,
(ii) caused the Company to file false and misleading reports with the SEC, (iii) violated the Exchange Act and common law, (iv) caused the
Company to issue false and misleading public statements, and (v) were negligent and abdicated their responsibilities to the Company and its
stockholders. The complaint seeks money damages from the defendants, an accounting for the proceeds of sales of any allegedly backdated
stock options, and the costs and disbursements of the lawsuit, as well as equitable relief. The defendants have moved to dismiss the action, and
on or about June 15, 2007, the plaintiff filed an amended complaint adding, among other things, a claim for securities fraud under SEC rule
10b-5.

On September 21, 2007 a second stockholder class action was filed in the United States District Court, Southern District of New York against
the Company and certain current and former senior executives. The complaint alleges, among other things, that certain of the Company�s current
and former officers made statements to the investing public which misrepresented material facts about the business and operations of the
Company, or omitted to state material facts required in order for the statements made by them not to be misleading, causing the price of the
Company�s stock to be artificially inflated in violation of provisions of the Exchange Act, as amended. It alleges that more recent disclosures
establish the misleading nature of these earlier disclosures. The complaint seeks money damages plus interest as well as costs and disbursements
of the lawsuit.

On October 10, 2007, a third stockholder class action was filed in the United States District Court, Southern District of New York, against the
Company and certain of its current and former senior executives. The complaint alleges, among other things, that certain of the Company�s
current and former officers made statements to the investing public which misrepresented material facts about the business and operations of the
Company, or omitted to state material facts required in order for the statements made by them not to be misleading, thereby causing the price of
the Company�s stock to be artificially inflated in violation of provisions of the Exchange Act, as amended. According to the complaint, more
recent disclosures establish the misleading nature of these earlier disclosures. The complaint seeks, among other relief, class certification of the
lawsuit, compensatory damages plus interest, and costs and expenses of the lawsuit, including counsel and expert fees.

The outcome of these three stockholder litigations is uncertain; while we believe there are valid defenses to the claims and we will defend
ourselves vigorously, no assurance can be given as to the outcome of these matters. The litigations could distract our management and directors
from the Company�s affairs, the costs and expenses of the litigations could unfavorably affect our net earnings and an
unfavorable outcome could adversely affect the reputation of the Company.
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On or about February 15, 2005, Michael Scott Smith, a former co-sales manager for The Children�s Place in the San Diego district, filed a lawsuit
against the Company in the Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles. The lawsuit alleges violations of the California Labor Code
and California Business and Professions Code and seeks class action on behalf of Mr. Smith and other individuals similarly situated. On
October 19, 2007, the Company entered into a class action settlement with the plaintiff�s counsel and signed a
memorandum of understanding providing for, among other things, a maximum total payment of $2.1 million,
inclusive of attorneys� fees, costs and expenses, service payments to the class representative and administration costs,
in exchange for a full release of all claims and dismissal of the lawsuit. The court granted preliminary approval of the
settlement on November 29, 2007. The settlement was recorded in the thirteen weeks ended July 29, 2006.

On or about July 12, 2006, Joy Fong, a former Disney Store manager in the San Francisco district, filed a lawsuit against the Company in the
Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles. The lawsuit alleges violations of the California Labor Code and California Business and
Professions Code and seeks class action status on behalf of Ms. Fong and other individuals similarly situated. We filed our answer on August 11,
2006 denying any and all liability, and on January 14, 2007, Ms. Fong filed an amended complaint, adding a subsidiary of Disney as a
defendant. We believe we have meritorious defenses to the claims. The outcome of this litigation is uncertain; while we believe there are valid
defenses to the claims and will defend ourselves vigorously, we cannot reasonably estimate the amount of loss or range of loss that might be
incurred as a result of this matter.

On or about September 28, 2007, Meghan Ruggiero filed a complaint against the Company and its subsidiary, Hoop Retail Stores, LLC, in the
United States District Court, Northern District of Ohio on behalf of herself and other similarly situated individuals. The lawsuit alleges
violations of the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act (�FACTA�) and seeks class certification, an award of statutory and punitive damages,
attorneys� fees and costs, and injunctive relief. The outcome of this litigation is uncertain; while we believe there are valid defenses to the claims
and will defend ourselves vigorously, we cannot reasonably estimate the amount of loss or range of loss that might be incurred as a result of this
matter.

In addition, we are involved in various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of our business. In the opinion of management, based on
the claims asserted at this time, it is unlikely that any ultimate liability arising out of such proceedings will have a material adverse effect on our
business.

ITEM 4.�SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
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None.
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PART II
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ITEM 5.�MARKET FOR REGISTRANT�S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

100



Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

101



Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq under the symbol �PLCE.� The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices on the
Nasdaq of our common stock for the fiscal periods indicated.

High Low
2006
First Quarter $ 62.98 $ 42.33
Second Quarter 67.70 51.67
Third Quarter 71.37 53.45
Fourth Quarter 71.81 52.16

2005
First Quarter $ 49.15 $ 36.60
Second Quarter 52.94 37.14
Third Quarter 49.46 33.22
Fourth Quarter 54.64 41.16

On February 3, 2007, the last reported sale price of our common stock was $58.31 per share, the number of holders of record of our common
stock was approximately 105 and the number of beneficial holders of our common stock was approximately 14,000.

On November 3, 2007, the last reported sale price of common stock was $23.87 per share.

We have never paid dividends on our common stock or purchased any of our common stock. Our Board presently intends to retain any future
earnings to finance our operations and the expansion of the Company. Our credit facilities and/or License Agreement prohibit or limit
significantly any payment of dividends and limit the amount of purchases of our common stock. Any determination in the future to pay
dividends or purchase any of our common stock will depend upon our earnings, financial condition, cash requirements, future prospects,
covenants in our credit facilities and any future debt instruments and such other factors as the Board deems appropriate at the time.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative stockholder return on our common stock with the return on the Total Return Index for the Nasdaq
Stock Market (U.S.) and the Nasdaq Retail Trade Stocks. The graph assumes that $100 was invested on February 1, 2002.

DATE THE CHILDREN�S PLACE - �PLCE� NASDAQ RETAIL
2/1/2002 100.000 100.000 100.000
1/31/2003 33.417 69.754 81.321
1/30/2004 84.295 108.563 119.229
1/28/2005 115.987 107.392 142.791
1/27/2006 141.348 122.314 154.850
2/2/2007 182.790 131.843 170.138
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ITEM 6.�SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth certain historical financial and operating data for The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries. The
selected historical financial data is qualified by reference to, and should be read in conjunction with, Item 7.�Management�s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and the financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this report. The
information presented reflects the restatement of our financial results which is more fully described in the Explanatory Note immediately
preceding Part I, Item 1 and Note 2�Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Fiscal Year Ended (1)

Statement of Operations Data
(in thousands, except per share data):

February 3,
2007

January 28,
2006(2)

(As restated)

January 29,
2005(2)(3)
(As restated)

January 31,
2004(2)

(As restated)

February 1,
2003(2)

(As restated)
Net sales $ 2,017,713 $ 1,668,736 $ 1,157,548 $ 797,938 $ 671,409
Cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation
shown separately below) 1,189,300 1,008,722 705,422 476,884 415,657
Gross profit 828,413 660,014 452,126 321,054 255,752
Selling, general and administrative expenses 626,251 513,994 336,610 238,177 201,224
Asset impairment charges(4) 17,066 244 164 448 4,539
Depreciation and amortization 65,701 52,886 49,049 46,251 41,012
Operating income 119,395 92,890 66,303 36,178 8,977
Interest income (expense), net 3,933 563 (22) 255 547
Income before income taxes and
extraordinary gain 123,328 93,453 66,281 36,433 9,524
Provision for income taxes 35,938 35,149 25,905 13,851 4,025
Income before extraordinary gain 87,390 58,304 40,376 22,582 5,499
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes(5) � 1,665 273 � �
Net income $ 87,390 $ 59,969 $ 40,649 $ 22,582 $ 5,499
Diluted net income per common share
before extraordinary gain $ 2.92 $ 2.03 $ 1.47 $ 0.84 $ 0.20
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes(5) � 0.06 0.01 � �
Diluted net income per common share $ 2.92 $ 2.09 $ 1.48 $ 0.84 $ 0.20
Diluted weighted average common shares
and common share equivalents outstanding
as restated 29,907 28,687 27,545 27,042 26,889

Selected Operating Data:
Number of stores open at end of period 1,194 1,119 1,056 691 643
Comparable store sales increase
(decrease)(3)(6) 11% 9% 16% 4% (16)%
Average net sales per store (3)(7) $ 1,707 $ 1,501 $ 1,344 $ 1,159 $ 1,137
Average square footage per store(8) 4,590 4,562 4,591 4,472 4,398
Average net sales per gross square
foot(3)(9) $ 372 $ 329 $ 300 $ 262 $ 263

Balance Sheet Data (in thousands) (as
restated):
Working capital(10) $ 283,749 $ 230,038 $ 178,956 $ 116,589 $ 81,064
Total assets 939,486 764,048 617,844 415,548 361,508
Long-term debt � � � � �
Stockholders� equity 521,787 395,650 303,124 248,182 219,428
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(1)  All references to our fiscal years refer to the 52- or 53-week year ended on the Saturday nearest to January 31
of the following year. For example, references to fiscal 2006 mean the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007. Fiscal 2006
was a 53-week year.

(2)  See Note 2�Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a discussion of the Company�s restatement.

(3)  The statement of operations data for fiscal 2004 includes ten weeks of operations for the Disney Stores from
their acquisition date of November 21, 2004.

(4)  Asset impairment charges represent the write down of fixed assets to fair value. In fiscal 2006, the Company
recorded $17.1 million in asset impairment charges, including $9.6 million in impairments at 29 of our Mickey
prototype stores, $7.1 million in disposals of property and equipment resulting from our decisions not to proceed with
a New York City Disney Store location and infrastructure investments that were written off in conjunction with our
decision to form an e-commerce alliance with a Disney affiliate in which select Disney Store merchandise is sold on
the disneyshopping.com website, and $0.4 million of impairment at five underperforming stores. We impaired fixed
assets in underperforming stores in one store each year in fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 and in 19 stores in
fiscal 2002.

(5)  The extraordinary gain represents the fair value of net assets acquired in excess of the purchase price paid for
the DSNA Business, after all long-lived assets were written off.

(6)  We define comparable store sales as net sales from stores that have been open for at least 14 full months and
that have not been substantially remodeled during that time. The Disney Stores entered our comparable store base in
fiscal 2006.

(7)  Average net sales per store represents net sales from stores open throughout the full period divided by the
number of such stores. The Disney Stores were not included in average net sales per store during fiscal 2004 since we
did not own them for the full fiscal period.

(8)  Average square footage per store represents the square footage of stores open on the last day of the period
divided by the number of such stores.
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(9)  Average net sales per gross square foot represents net sales from stores open throughout the full period
divided by the gross square footage of such stores. The Disney Stores were not included in average net sales per gross
square foot during fiscal 2004 since we did not own them for the full fiscal period.

(10)  Working capital is calculated by subtracting the Company�s current liabilities from its current assets.

Restatement Adjustments for Periods Not Presented in Consolidated Financial Statements

The following tables reflect restatement adjustments for periods not presented in the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements.
For periods presented in the accompanying audited financial statements, refer to Note 2�Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

January 29, 2005

Balance Sheet Data (in thousands): As Reported

Stock Option
Related

Adjustments
Other

Adjustments(1) As Restated
Working capital(2) $ 177,210 $ (807) $ 2,553 $ 178,956
Total assets 616,162 1,454 228 617,844
Stockholders� equity 300,907 647 1,570 303,124

(1)  Other adjustments relate to personal property taxes and certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those
related to occupancy costs for our 52- and 53-week fiscal years.

(2)  Working capital is calculated by subtracting the Company�s current liabilities from its current assets.
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Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2004

Statement of Operations Data
(in thousands, except per share data): As Reported

Stock Option
Related

Adjustments
Other

Adjustments(1) As Restated
Net sales $ 797,938 $ � $ �� $ 797,938
Cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation shown separately
below) 476,961 316 (393) 476,884
Gross profit 320,977 (316) 393 321,054
Selling, general and administrative expenses 238,190 1,316 (1,329) 238,177
Asset impairment charges 448 � � 448
Depreciation and amortization 46,251 � � 46,251
Operating income 36,088 (1,632) 1,722 36,178
Interest income (expense), net 255 � � 255
Income before income taxes 36,343 (1,632) 1,722 36,433
Provision for income taxes 13,642 (486) 695 13,851
Net income $ 22,701 $ (1,146) $ 1,027 $ 22,582
Diluted net income per common share $ 0.84 $ (0.04) $ 0.04 $ 0.84
Diluted weighted average common shares and common share
equivalents outstanding 27,099 (57) � 27,042

Balance Sheet Data (in thousands):
Working capital(2) $ 114,274 $ (153) $ 2,468 $ 116,589
Total assets 415,506 1,098 (1,056) 415,548
Stockholders� equity 245,854 945 1,383 248,182

(1)  Other adjustments relate to personal property taxes and certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those
related to occupancy costs for our 52- and 53-week fiscal years.

(2)  Working capital is calculated by subtracting the Company�s current liabilities from its current assets.
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Fiscal Year Ended February 1, 2003

Statement of Operations Data
(in thousands, except per share data): As Reported

Stock Option
Related

Adjustments
Other

Adjustments(1) As Restated
Net sales $ 671,409 $ � $ � $ 671,409
Cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation shown separately
below) 415,623 276 (242) 415,657
Gross profit 255,786 (276) 242 255,752
Selling, general and administrative expenses 201,058 696 (530) 201,224
Asset impairment charges 4,539 � � 4,539
Depreciation and amortization 41,012 � � 41,012
Operating income 9,177 (972) 772 8,977
Interest income (expense), net 547 � � 547
Income before income taxes 9,724 (972) 772 9,524
Provision for income taxes 4,089 (375) 311 4,025
Net income $ 5,635 $ (597) $ 461 $ 5,499
Diluted net income per common share(2) $ 0.21 $ (0.02) $ 0.02 $ 0.20
Diluted weighted average common shares and common share
equivalents outstanding 26,978 (89) � 26,889

Balance Sheet Data (in thousands):
Working capital(3) $ 79,913 $ � $ 1,151 $ 81,064
Total assets 361,550 712 (754) 361,508
Stockholders� equity 218,113 712 603 219,428

(1)  Other adjustments relate to personal property taxes and certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those
related to occupancy costs for our 52- and 53-week fiscal years.

(2)  Diluted earnings per share may not add due to rounding

(3)  Working capital is calculated by subtracting the Company�s current liabilities from its current assets.
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ITEM 7.�MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our audited financial statements and notes thereto included in Item 15.�Exhibits
and Financial Statement Schedules. The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs.
Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such
differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed below and elsewhere in this report, particularly in Item 1A�Risk Factors.

All of the financial information presented in this Item 7 has been adjusted to reflect the restatement of the Company�s financial results,
which is more fully described in the Explanatory Note immediately preceding Part I, Item 1 and in Note 2�Restatement of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Note 16�Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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The Company is a leading specialty retailer of children�s merchandise. We design, contract to manufacture and sell high-quality, value-priced
merchandise under our proprietary �The Children�s Place� and licensed �Disney Store� brand names. As of September 1, 2007 we owned and
operated 889 The Children�s Place stores and 328 Disney Stores across North America and Internet stores at www.childrensplace.com and
www.disneystore.com.

During fiscal 2006, as a result of the execution of our strategic initiatives, we achieved strong financial results. Net
sales in fiscal 2006 increased $349 million, or 21%, to $2.018 billion, compared to net sales of $1.669 billion reported
in fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2006, net sales from our The Children�s Place business increased $234.4 million, a 20%
increase over fiscal 2005. In addition, net sales from our Disney Store business increased $114.6 million, a 23%
increase over fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2006, comparable store sales of The Children�s Place brand increased 10%
compared to a 9% increase in fiscal 2005. In February 2006, 260 Disney Stores entered the Disney Store comparable
store base and reported a comparable store sales increase of 14%. We define comparable store sales as net sales from
stores that have been open at least 14 full months and that have not been substantially remodeled during that time.

Based on information from NPD Group, a consumer and retail market research firm, we believe our market share of children�s apparel for The
Children�s Place brand increased to 4.1% in fiscal 2006 from 3.8% in fiscal 2005. (In 2005, NPD reported The Children�s Place brand�s 2005
market share as 4.2%. In 2006, NPD recalibrated the size and composition of this market, adjusting The Children�s Place brand�s 2005 market
share to 3.8% to make it comparable to 2006.)

Net income in fiscal 2006 was $87.4 million, or $2.92 per diluted share, compared to $60.0 million, or $2.09 per diluted share, in fiscal 2005.

Fiscal 2006 net income reflected:

�  Approximately $16.9 million in charges associated with the stock option investigation, before income tax
effects, including approximately:

�  $8.1 million in legal and professional fees;

�  $6.5 million related to payroll withholding taxes and related penalties and resolution of tax consequences of
discounted options (approximately $0.2 million recorded in cost of goods sold and approximately $6.3 million
recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses); and

�  $2.3 million in stock-based compensation charges for recipients who have not been able to exercise options
due to the suspension of option exercise activity (approximately $0.6 million recorded in cost of goods sold and
approximately $1.7 million recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses).
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�  Approximately $9.6 million, before income tax effects, in asset impairment charges related to the Mickey
store prototype renovation (refer to Note 6�Property and Equipment in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for more information).

�  Approximately $7.9 million, before income tax effects, in asset impairments and certain other costs resulting
from our decision not to proceed with a New York City Disney Store location and infrastructure investments that were
written off in conjunction with our decision to form an e-commerce alliance with a Disney affiliate in which select
Disney Store merchandise is sold on the disneyshopping.com website. Approximately $7.1 million of these charges
were recorded as asset impairments with the remaining $0.8 million in costs incurred to exit these activities recorded
in selling, general and administrative expenses.

�  Approximately $2.0 million, before income tax effects, in charges related to: (i) the implementation of SFAS
123(R) with respect to stock options previously issued and unvested stock options, and (ii) promises to grant stock
options and restricted stock. This charge was recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses.

�  We received a one time cash dividend from some of our Canadian subsidiaries, which brought foreign tax
credits that can be utilized to reduce U.S. income taxes. Our fiscal 2006 tax provision was reduced by approximately
$9.5 million after the effect of this transaction.

Fiscal 2005 earnings included approximately $12.0 million, before income tax effects, in stock-based compensation expense, which was
comprised of:

�  Approximately $8.4 million related to revised measurement dates ($1.7 million recorded in cost of goods sold
and $6.7 million recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses),

�  Approximately $1.7 million related to the accelerated vesting of 2.1 million stock options ($0.4 million
recorded in cost of goods sold and $1.3 million recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses),

�  Approximately $1.6 million primarily related to the resolution of tax consequences of discounted options
($0.2 million recorded in cost of goods sold and $1.4 million recorded in selling, general and administrative
expenses), and

�  Approximately $0.3 million related to the modification of options for a terminated associate.
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During fiscal 2006, we built on our progress at The Children�s Place stores by continuing to focus on increasing store productivity and elevating
our brand awareness through increased marketing efforts. We opened 69 The Children�s Place stores in fiscal 2006, and closed five stores.
During the year, we rolled out merchandise strategies based on the climate and weather conditions of the store location and store sales volume.
We also offered a greater selection of �better� and �best� merchandise (reflecting higher fashion and higher price point items) which was successful
in the third quarter. However, in the fourth quarter, our �better� and �best� merchandise was not received by the customer as we had envisioned and
our earnings in fiscal 2006 suffered as a result. By offering more �better� and �best� merchandise in the fourth quarter, we reduced our investment in
key items which are typically offered at a value price and therefore we did not have enough of the value priced and basic merchandise our
customers desired. In fiscal 2007 we are offering more key item and value priced merchandise, particularly in the fourth quarter. Other initiatives
in fiscal 2007 include the launch of our �store-within-a-store� shoe store, and the roll out of our new store prototype.

The Disney Store business� focus in fiscal 2006 was on improving gross margin through reduced product costs and better markdown control,
while providing our guests with improved merchandise quality. During fiscal 2006, we opened 19 Disney Stores, remodeled 14 Disney Stores,
and closed eight stores. Strategies that contributed to Disney Stores� growth included: offering more innovative and elevated merchandise,
particularly in our toy category; introducing adult apparel; and offering a �good,� �better,� �best� merchandise offering across most product categories.
In fiscal 2007, Disney Store will continue to focus on innovating and elevating its merchandise. Other strategic initiatives include increasing the
number of store visitors who purchase our merchandise (i.e. customer conversion); launching e-commerce; and maximizing synergy events. In
addition, in the second half of fiscal 2007 we have begun to unveil our new Disney Store prototype to our guests.
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In June 2007, we amended our credit facilities with Wells Fargo and our other senior lenders for the purpose of better supporting the capital
needs of our business and reducing the fees associated with our borrowings. Refer to Note 7�Credit Facilities for additional information regarding
amendments to our credit facilities.

During August 2007, we entered into the Refurbishment Amendment to our License Agreement with Disney, which supersedes (through fiscal
2011) the provisions of the original License Agreement relating to required remodeling of Disney Stores with new provisions regarding store
renovation and maintenance. Among other things, these new provisions obligate us, by various dates commencing in fiscal 2007 and continuing
through fiscal 2011, to remodel a total of 236 existing Disney Stores into a new store prototype we have developed. We have committed $175
million to this Disney Store renovation program.

Consistent with its fiduciary duties, our Board has engaged an investment banking firm to act as its financial advisor in undertaking a review of
strategic alternatives to improve operations and enhance shareholder value. As part of this review, our Board and management are assessing a
wide variety of options to improve our business and competitive position, including, but not limited to, opportunities for organizational and
operational improvement, a possible recapitalization, or other transactions. The Board has not set any specific timeline for the completion of this
strategic review, and there is no assurance that as a result of this review, the Board will decide to change the Company�s course of action or
engage in any specific transaction.

RECENT OPERATING RESULTS

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

117



Due to the seasonality of our business, our annual profitability is highly dependent on sales and gross margin during the third and fourth
quarters, which is when the majority of our back-to-school and holiday sales occur. Because our sales and margins did not meet our expectations
during the third quarter ended November 3, 2007, and because we anticipate that those trends will continue into the fourth quarter, we anticipate
that sales will be below our previous projections during those periods, which would result in a disproportionate decrease in our net income
versus last year.

RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Based on the conclusions of an independent investigation into our stock option granting practices by a Special Committee of our Board, we have
concluded that incorrect measurement dates for option grants were previously used for financial accounting and reporting purposes on a number
of occasions. In addition, we have concluded that an action taken by management in May 2004 relating to the Company�s records concerning the
1997 CEO IPO Grant, without review or approval by the Compensation Committee should be treated as a new, below market grant in 2004. As a
result, we are restating our fiscal 2005 consolidated balance sheet and our consolidated statements of income, cash flows and changes in
stockholders� equity for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 to reflect additional stock-based compensation expense relating to stock option grants, as well
as to correct other errors unrelated to stock option grants.

The aggregate impact of the stock compensation adjustments on our consolidated statements of income, net of forfeitures of unvested awards
and taxes, between fiscal 1998 and the first quarter of fiscal 2006 was a decrease of $11.2 million. The aggregate impact of the other adjustments
unrelated to stock options on our consolidated statements of income, net of taxes, between fiscal 2001 and the first quarter of fiscal 2006 was an
increase to net income of $1.7 million. Additionally, variable rate demand note balances as of the quarter ended April 29, 2006 have been
reclassified from cash to short-term investments, and certain other balance sheet amounts have been reclassified. These reclassifications do not
result in any additional charges in any period and do not affect working capital for the affected periods.

Determination of Revised Measurement Dates

During the Review Period, we used the effective date reflected in our grant approval documentation as the grant date and in accounting for
option grants we also used this date as the measurement date under APB 25. In many instances that date was an �as of� date on a UWC of the
Board or the Compensation Committee. Since we believed options were granted with exercise prices that equaled or exceeded their quoted
market price at the date of grant, no compensation expense was recorded in our financial statements for options granted prior to our adoption of
SFAS 123(R) as of January 29, 2006, other than in connection with the acceleration of the vesting of options in fiscal 2005
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and the acceleration of the vesting of options related to a terminated employee. The investigation revealed that the measurement dates we used
often occurred prior to the time when the recipients of the grant, the number of shares subject to the options granted and the exercise price were
approved and established with finality. However, in many instances, we were unable to determine with certainty when the terms were
established with finality. We collected all available documentation and established a documentation hierarchy to determine the best evidence of
the date when the terms of the award were final and approved, and thus, the revised measurement dates for the awards. In the following sections,
we will explain our process for granting, recording and administering options and the basis for determining revised measurement dates.

Option Granting Process

Under our stock option plans, our Compensation Committee was given the authority to issue options. During the Review Period, we granted
stock options to our executives, employees, non-employee directors of a wholly-owned subsidiary and, as part of our director compensation
program, to non-management members of our Board. Options were granted to executives and other employees upon being hired (including in
one instance to a broad group of employees in connection with the acquisition of the Disney Store), and in connection with promotions, annual
performance reviews, extraordinary performance and as service awards.

Option grants to executives, as recommended by our former CEO, were reviewed by the Compensation Committee on an executive-by-executive
basis and were approved at a committee meeting. Usually, the committee approved the final number of shares underlying the option grant to an
individual executive. However, for grants made in connection with annual performance reviews, a final determination as to the number of shares
underlying the option sometimes was left to be made by our former CEO after the meeting, within an agreed upon range discussed at the
meeting. The terms of executive new hire grants were generally documented either in an offer letter or formal employment agreement. It was our
practice that the approval of executive option grants was formalized by means of a UWC signed by all members of our Board or Compensation
Committee, even where an option grant had been approved and finalized at a meeting. As a result, for awards made in connection with annual
performance reviews, the grants reflected in the UWC may have differed from the grants discussed at the committee meeting where the final
determination of the amount of the grant had been left to our former CEO. In contrast, grants made in connection with new hires of executives or
extraordinary performance by executives were usually finalized at a Compensation Committee meeting. Thus, all executive grants were
considered and approved by the Compensation Committee, but in some instances the timing of finalization of the number of options subject to a
grant occurred subsequent to the committee�s meeting as a result of action by our former CEO as permitted by our Compensation Committee.

Our practice was for option grants to non-executive employees (and to non-management subsidiary board members) to be determined by our
management and approved by our former CEO and subsequently formally approved by a UWC signed by all members of our Board or
Compensation Committee. In the case of annual performance review awards, our Compensation Committee generally discussed in advance the
aggregate number of options that would be awarded. Various individuals in our line management and our human resources function were
involved in identifying employees to receive options and the number of underlying shares; however, approval by our former CEO was required
with respect to all such grants. The following practices were followed with respect to new hire, promotion and service awards:

�  New Hire and Promotion Grants: Throughout the Review Period, we followed a policy, as reflected in
numerous offer letters, albeit never formalized, to grant options for non-executive new hires and promotions on a
monthly basis, as of the date of hire or, later in the Review Period, as of the end of the month. Each month, a list of
option recipients was compiled from employee hire and promotion letters or other information establishing a new hire
or promotion.

�  Service Awards: While we did not have a written policy or an established schedule for the granting of service
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awards, the number of options for which service awards were granted was consistently based upon length of service
and did not change during the Review Period.

In general, these grants also were subsequently formally approved by a UWC signed by all members of our Board or Compensation Committee.
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The minutes of Compensation Committee meetings usually did not specifically state the grant date and rarely reflected the exercise price for an
option grant and our practice was to use the meeting date as the grant date. However, in many instances there were no minutes, and the UWC,
which ordinarily reflected an �as of� date and the exercise price (usually determined as the average of the high and low trading price on the �as of�
date), was the only record of Board approval of a grant. Despite diligent searching, we were unable to determine the dates on which UWCs were
actually signed or returned to the Company.

The investigation established that throughout the Review Period our accepted practice, understood by both our former CEO and all of our
Compensation Committee members, was that our former CEO was authorized to determine the non-executive employees who would receive
option grants, the number of shares subject to each such grant, and to cause the Company to make such grants, within such broad limits for the
making of grants as may have been discussed with the Compensation Committee. Although formal delegation by the Compensation Committee
to our former CEO of authority to make grants was never adopted, it was also understood that our former CEO was authorized to make a final
determination of the number of options that would be granted to executives, where the committee, having reviewed the overall grants, did not
formally make the final determination with regard to such grants. The understanding of the Compensation Committee members was that the
grant date with respect to grants to executives was the date the committee approved the executive receiving a grant (either specifically or out of
the pool of awards approved by the committee) and with respect to non-executive employees was the date our former CEO finalized the grants
and that in these situations, the exercise price would be the trading price on the date of grant.

Our Compensation Committee members and our former CEO understood that our option granting process, including informing recipients of
their grants, would be completed before all Compensation Committee or Board members signed a UWC approving the grant. They also
understood that option recipients were entitled to the grants at some time prior to the UWC being signed by all Board members. The signing of
the UWCs was considered an administrative formality. It was believed by all involved, including our General Counsel�s office, (i) that the
signing by all members of a UWC with an �as of� date constituted sufficient corporate action to authorize an option grant effective on the �as of�
date, even in those instances where there had been no prior Compensation Committee action on the grant at a meeting (e.g., most grants to
non-executives), and (ii) that the UWC merely confirmed an already finalized grant process. Accordingly, consistent with the findings of the
Special Committee, we have concluded that, with incidental exceptions involving non-executive grants, all option grants made during the
Review Period were ultimately specifically authorized by a Compensation Committee or Board UWC, although an unauthorized action
(subsequently ratified in 2007) was taken regarding the 1997 CEO IPO Grant.

With respect to option grants to non-management members of our Board, the number of options was specifically determined and approved by
our Compensation Committee or the full Board at a meeting or was stated in and approved by a UWC. Where the minutes did not specify the
grant date and/or the exercise price, the meeting date was used as the grant date and the exercise price was the trading price (determined as the
average of the high and low trading price) on that date. Where approved by a UWC, grants to non-management Board members were usually
made along with grants to employees and, consequently, were usually part of a Recorded Grant also involving an employee grant.

Stock Option Administration

Throughout the Review Period, we contracted with an independent outside service provider to maintain records of our options issued and of the
vested status, forfeiture or expiration of such options and any amendments to such options and to administer the exercise of options including the
issuance of shares upon exercise. Our General Counsel�s office and our Human Resources Department administered the grant process once
decisions were made as to the options to be granted. This process included:

�  Creating a final list of option recipients and their respective option grants,
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�  Preparing UWCs, often accompanied by a memorandum to our Compensation Committee or Board
transmitting the UWC for signature (a �Legal Department Memo�),

�  Communicating stock option grants to our outside stock option plan administrator (�Stock Option
Administrator�), and

�  Preparing and submitting Forms 3 and 4 (�Forms 4�) to the SEC for certain executive grants.
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We typically communicated stock option grants to our employees in the following manner:

�  New hire and employee promotion awards were typically communicated to the employee by letter or verbally
by the employee�s supervisor detailing terms of the grant.

�  Annual performance review awards were most often communicated verbally by the employee�s supervisor.

�  Service awards were verbally communicated either at a Company �town hall� meeting or by the employee�s
supervisor.

For all types of stock option awards, we usually communicated the grants to executives and other employees prior to the time UWCs were
signed by all Compensation Committee or Board members.

Basis for Use of the Documentation Hierarchy

In determining the revised measurement dates to be used in the restatement of our financial statements, we applied the guidance in APB 25,
which provides that the accounting measurement date is the first date on which both of the following are known: (1) the number of shares that an
individual employee is entitled to receive and (2) the option or purchase price, if any. In light of our option granting practices, we have
concluded that the terms of an award were approved by the authorized body or person and final prior to completion of all formal granting actions
(i.e., the signing by all Compensation Committee or Board members of a UWC). Accordingly, we have used the date when, most likely, the
terms of the awards included in a Recorded Grant can be identified as approved and final, as established by the best available evidence, as the
revised measurement date for accounting under APB 25, even if such date preceded the completion of all formal granting actions.

Since UWCs ordinarily were distributed for signature after the option awards were established and recorded by the Company and information as
to when UWCs were signed by Board members is largely unavailable, we have looked to other documentation to establish revised measurement
dates. Specifically, where our records do not include signed minutes of a Board or Compensation Committee meeting that specified the
recipients of an option, the number of shares subject to the award and the exercise price, we have relied on other documentation and evidence to
determine the revised measurement date for option grants. If award recipients were identified by a list attached to the Compensation Committee
minutes rather than in the text of the minutes, we also sought corroborating evidence, usually metadata, indicating that such list was final on the
meeting date. Metadata, obtained as part of the electronic data collection process, provides information about electronic data, such as how, when
and by whom a set of data was collected, recorded or changed. If such corroborating evidence was not available, we relied on other
documentation and evidence to determine the revised measurement date, using the documentation hierarchy described below.

We accumulated all relevant documentation and other information pertaining to each Recorded Grant. We evaluated the documentation and
information to determine the date on which the option recipients and the number of shares underlying the options granted to a recipient, as well
as other material terms, were approved and established with finality. Based on the Special Committee�s findings and our review of documentation
and other evidence, with the assistance of the forensic accounting firm retained by Independent Counsel, we identified revised measurement
dates for certain option grants made during the Review Period.

The Documentation Hierarchy
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We have developed a hierarchy of documentation as our basis for determining the revised measurement date, if applicable, for each option
granted during the Review Period. In each case, the document used to establish the revised measurement date is dated and evidences the point in
time when we can substantiate with finality: (i) approval of the award, (ii) the recipients of the option award, and (iii) the number of shares and
the exercise price pursuant to the option awarded to that recipient. This award-by-award review occasionally resulted in different measurement
dates for grants made within the same Recorded Grant. Metadata was accumulated where available to corroborate the revised measurement date
for an option award. When the metadata did not corroborate the revised measurement date (i.e., indicated that a document was created or revised
later than it was dated), the metadata date was used as the date of the supporting document. If another source of support was available with an
earlier date, that support was used to define the revised measurement date.

We have granted a total of approximately 8.1 million options. Approximately 1.4 million were granted in a private placement prior to our IPO,
and approximately 6.7 million were granted in connection with and since our IPO and were reviewed during the investigation. Grant dates based
on Board minutes were deemed appropriate in
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determining the revised measurement dates if the minutes specified: (i) a list of stock option recipients, (ii) the number of options granted to each
recipient, and (iii) the grant date and price. If the minutes were not determinative, we applied the following document hierarchy to determine the
revised measurement dates:

1.     Offer Letters to New Employees/Promotion Letters�We have concluded that information set forth in accepted offer letters
and promotion letters, which specified the number of options to be granted at a stated date, constituted a mutual
understanding between the employee and the Company. Once the employee began to render service under the terms of
the employment or promotion letter, the Company had a legal liability with respect to the option grant as promised in
the letter. As such, we have concluded that these letters established with finality the number of options granted to a
recipient and the date to be used as a grant date, as long as the employee had commenced employment.

2.     Documentation Sent to Third Parties and the Compensation Committee Members� If acceptable evidence was not identified in the Board
minutes or offer and promotion letters, we determined that the earliest date on which a list of option recipients and number of options to each
recipient was disseminated outside the Company established the finality of the grant. We have identified the following sources of documentation
sent outside the Company as establishing the date on which the terms of an option became final: (i) Forms 3 and 4 filed with the SEC, (ii)
archive data obtained from our Stock Option Administrator with the list of option recipients and number of options evidencing the terms of
option grants that was provided by the Company and the date when our Stock Option Administrator was so advised of the grant, and (iii) Legal
Department Memoranda requesting UWC approval with an attached UWC documenting with finality (either in the body of the UWC or as a
referenced attachment) the option recipients, number of shares subject to each grant and the exercise price (as well as the �as of� grant date) which,
in accordance with our option granting process, would not have been prepared if the related list of option recipients was not final and approved
by our former CEO.

3.     Internal Documentation� The next level of documentation used included the �last modified� date included in the metadata of a Microsoft Excel
file specifying the recipient and the number of shares subject to an option grant, or email dates on comparable data prepared by the Legal or
Human Resources Departments, where in each case the grant information was sent to and recorded in the Stock Option Administrator�s records.

4.     Unanimous Written Consents�Where we did not have any of the above documentation, we used the �last modified date� metadata associated
with the UWC reflecting formal approval of a grant as the revised measurement date.

We have revised the measurement dates used to account for certain stock option grants since fiscal 1997 based on the hierarchy above. These
changes resulted in additional stock-based compensation expense, net of forfeitures of unvested awards and before taxes, of $11.9 million
affecting our consolidated financial statements for each year from fiscal 1998 through the first quarter of fiscal 2006.

Variable Accounting

During the course of the investigation and the review of the documentation for each grant, we identified instances where changes were made in
our records with respect to certain Recorded Grants. In these instances, we reviewed all documents related to the grant to determine if the change
was an isolated change to an individual award or if the change indicated that the granting process was not complete for the entire Recorded
Grant. If the change was an isolated change, we determined whether the change represented an administrative error or a modification of a term
of the award. The investigation did not reveal a practice by the Company of retracting awards or modifying the terms of awards across a group
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of recipients after the date determined to be the revised measurement date. Instead, changes were rare and occurred only at the individual level.
We found no evidence regarding any of the changes that indicated that at the time of the change the granting process remained open for an entire
Recorded Grant.

Since none of the changes indicated an incomplete granting process, we used available documentation to determine whether the changes
represented administrative errors or a modification to an individual award. For changes deemed to be administrative errors (e.g., adding an
individual to a list of recipients for service awards where the number of options involved in the award and the criteria required to earn the award
were set prior to the issuance
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of the award), we did not change the revised measurement date applicable to the individual award from that determined from the Recorded Grant
as determined based on the documentation hierarchy.

If we determined based on a review of supporting documentation that the change was a modification to the original award (e.g., a change in the
number of shares for which the option was granted or the exercise price of the option), we considered the appropriate accounting for the
individual award in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 44, �Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock Compensation� (�FIN 44�).
For any changes involving either the number of shares for which the option was granted or the exercise price of the option, we determined that
variable accounting should be applied in accordance with FIN 44. With respect to options for 328,775 shares, we have applied variable
accounting because of a modification to the terms of the award, resulting in additional stock-based compensation expense, before taxes, of
approximately $2.3 million from fiscal 1998 through fiscal 2005.

The 1997 CEO IPO Grant

We granted options under our 1996 Plan on September 18, 1997 pursuant to a UWC of the Board in connection with our IPO, including a grant
of options for 99,660 shares to our former CEO. Under the plan, options could be granted either as incentive stock options qualified under
Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code (�ISOs�) or as options not so qualified (�NQOs�). If not otherwise specified when granted, option grants
were to be classified as ISOs to the extent allowed by the tax code. Under the plan, also in accordance with tax code requirements, grants to
more than 10% shareholders treated as ISOs were to have an exercise price of 110% of the fair value of the related shares at the date of the grant
and a five year duration. Under the plan, NQOs were to have a ten year duration and an exercise price equal to the fair value of the related shares
at the date of the grant. Our former CEO was at the relevant time, and remains, a greater than 10% shareholder of the Company.

Our actions in implementing the grant of the options to our former CEO and our records regarding the grant were at the time, and subsequently,
inconsistent. The Board�s 1997 action approving the grant was silent as to the options� treatment as ISOs or NQOs. Among the confusing and
inconsistent records regarding this grant were the following:

�      Option certificates were prepared contemporaneously with the Board�s UWC. One certificate, evidencing options
for 32,000 shares designated that portion of the grant as ISOs. The other certificate designated 67,660 options as
NQOs. Both certificates provided for an exercise price of $15.40 per share and a duration of five years. The terms for
the options classified as NQOs are inconsistent with the plan.

�      Public reports, including periodic reports, proxy statements and a Form 4, included information as to the terms of
the grant contradictory to the option certificates and other records.

�      As early as 1998, our Stock Option Administrator�s records showed a 32,465/67,195 ISO/NQO allocation and, for
both portions, an exercise price of $15.40 per share and a duration of ten years.
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Our management recognized the inconsistencies in the Stock Option Administrator�s records by April 2004. Our former General Counsel
interpreted the 1997 CEO IPO Grant to have a ten year duration in its entirety and on May 6, 2004 instructed the administrator to change its
records to reflect the entire grant as NQOs with a duration of ten years. The exercise price was left in the records at $15.40. This action was
taken without Board or Compensation Committee consultation, review or approval. In April 2006, our former CEO exercised a portion of the
1997 CEO IPO Grant for 84,660 shares at $15.40 per share.

In connection with our investigation into our option grants, the Special Committee in April 2007 considered the circumstances surrounding the
grant and how it had been treated by the Company over the years. Upon recommendation of the Special Committee, the Compensation
Committee determined that, considering the conflicting records and actions by the Company, the options should be interpreted to have a $15.40
exercise price and a ten year duration, as had been publicly reported by the Company. During fiscal 2007, the Board ratified the change in the
Stock Option Administrator�s records made in May 2004, the issuance of shares to the former CEO upon his exercise in part of the options and
the validity of the remaining part of the option (covering 15,000 shares).

In determining the accounting for the 1997 CEO IPO Grant, we considered all the available evidence and records and concluded that the option
certificates were the most reliable evidence of the terms of the grant from the time of the grant, consistent with our accounting for other option
grants, with the result that the options granted in 1997 should be considered to have expired after five years as stated in the certificates.
Accordingly, for accounting
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purposes we are treating the 2004 actions by management as a new option grant on the terms, including a below-fair-market-value exercise price
of $15.40, then recorded in the Stock Option Administrator�s records. We have considered the measurement date of this grant to be May 6, 2004,
requiring the recognition at such time of approximately $0.9 million in compensation expense.

We also considered the possibility that the 1997 CEO IPO Grant at the outset provided for an ISO portion with a five-year duration, consistent
with the 1996 Plan�s provisions pertaining to ISO grants. In that case, the ISO portion would have expired in September 2002. The remaining
portion would be considered an NQO and the Company records (notably the option certificates) to the contrary would be considered
administrative errors, including as to the duration of such option. In this alternative, the action taken by the former General Counsel on May 6,
2004 in changing the Stock Option Administrator�s records to reflect the entire 1997 CEO IPO Grant as an NQO would be considered to have
had the effect of the issuance at that time of a fully vested and exercisable option having a $15.40 exercise price to the extent of the ISO portion.
The accounting consequence of this alternative would be the recognition of compensation expense in fiscal 2004 for the ISO portion of the grant,
as though a new grant, in an amount between approximately $300,000 and $330,000, the variation being due to discrepancies among our records
as to the ISO/NQO allocation.

Inadequate Internal Controls

We are undertaking to remediate the material weakness in internal control over financial reporting related to stock option grants found by the
Special Committee, as further discussed in Item 9A.�Controls and Procedures of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We have continued our
suspension of the granting of stock options and other equity awards and the exercise of any outstanding options until these improved procedures
have been instituted.

Resolution of Tax Consequences and Corrective Action Related to Discounted Options

Revisions to the measurement dates of stock options often resulted in discounted options. Individuals currently holding discounted options may
incur an excise tax liability under Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. As recommended by the Special Committee, in order to avoid any
benefit from the errors made in dating of options to any person involved in the stock option granting process and, also, as part of our efforts to
address certain tax considerations associated with outstanding discounted options granted with an exercise price below fair market value, we
have taken the following actions:

�      Our directors (including Mr. Dabah, our former CEO), our President and our former Chief Administrative Officer agreed to amend all
discounted options held by them (other than those described in the next paragraph) to increase the exercise price to the average of the high and
low trading price on the date determined by the Company to be the revised measurement date applicable to the option grant to be used for
financial reporting purposes. In the few instances where these individuals have exercised options as to which a revised measurement date has
been determined by the Company, the individual has returned to the Company the difference between the exercise price and the trading price on
the revised measurement date.

�      In the three instances where the Report of Investigation found that non-executive directors received options shortly before the public
disclosure of positive information, our directors further agreed to amend such options to increase the exercise price to the average of the high
and low trading price over the balance of the calendar year following the recorded date of the grant.
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�      With respect to all other option grants, we have decided to honor the options as issued, consistent with the Special Committee�s finding of no
intentional misconduct on the part of management in the option grant process. Nevertheless, all members of senior management holding
outstanding options have agreed to have their outstanding discounted options that vested after 2004 amended either to increase the exercise price
to the average of the high and low trading price on the date determined to be the revised measurement date or to limit the exercise period of their
options.

In addition, with respect to holders of discounted options that vested after 2004 who are employees at the time, other than members of senior
management who have already agreed to amend their outstanding discounted options, we plan to offer as soon as practicable the opportunity to
exchange their discounted options for options with the same terms except that the exercise price will be changed to the average of the high and
low trading price on the revised
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measurement date. Option holders who agree to such amendment will receive a cash bonus in the amount of the increase in the exercise price.

The foregoing actions are expected to bring all outstanding options held by our employees and non-employee directors into compliance with
pertinent requirements relating to discounted options so that the excise tax under Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code does not apply to
the options. To the extent such discounted options were exercised by employees during fiscal 2006, we expect to bear the liability for, and we
have accrued during fiscal 2006, an amount estimated to equal the potential excise tax under Section 409A that would be incurred by the
recipient in connection with such option if such tax is applicable, and any related income tax liability that would be incurred by the recipient in
respect of receiving from the Company such amount, if any.

Legal and Regulatory Matters Related to Stock Option Practices and Internal Controls

As we did not timely file our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended July 29, 2006 and October 28, 2006, our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for fiscal 2006, and our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended May 5, 2007 and August 4, 2007, we have been out
of compliance with the reporting requirements of the SEC and Nasdaq for more than one year. Although we have now filed this Annual Report
on Form 10-K for fiscal 2006 and our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the second and third quarters of fiscal 2006, we have not yet filed our
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the first and second quarters of fiscal 2007. Consequently, we continue to be in violation of the reporting
requirements under the Exchange Act and the Nasdaq listing rules.

We have received various determination letters from the Nasdaq stating that because we have not been in compliance with Nasdaq listing
requirements, our common stock is subject to delisting. Since September 2006 we have been in contact with the Nasdaq Listing Qualifications
Panel, Nasdaq�s Listing and Hearing Review Council, and the Board of Directors of the Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (the �Nasdaq Board�) regarding
our inability to comply with Nasdaq�s listing requirements and when we might be able to again become compliant. The last communication we
received from Nasdaq on this issue was from the Nasdaq Board on November 9, 2007 stating that we had until January 9, 2008 to file all of the
Required Reports in order to regain compliance with Nasdaq�s listing requirements. If we have not regained compliance prior to that time, we
will need to explain to the Nasdaq staff the reasons for our inability to do so, in order for the Nasdaq Board to consider whether any further
extension is warranted. We still need to file our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended May 5, 2007 and August 4, 2007 before
we will have filed all of the Required Reports. There is no assurance that we will be able to meet the January 9, 2008 deadline, and if we do not,
there is no assurance that the Nasdaq Board will grant us additional time to become compliant. If we fail to come into compliance by January 9,
2008 or any extended deadline approved by Nasdaq, we anticipate that the Company�s shares will be delisted from Nasdaq.

In addition, Nasdaq listing rules require that all issuers solicit proxies and hold an annual meeting of shareholders within 12 months of the end of
the issuer�s fiscal year end. To comply with this rule, we must hold our annual meeting of shareholders for the fiscal year ended February 3,
2007, no later than February 3, 2008. In addition, we must be current in our SEC filings before we can solicit proxies for such annual meeting of
our shareholders. Accordingly, if we are unable to become current in our SEC filings in sufficient time for us to solicit proxies for an annual
meeting of our shareholders by February 3, 2008, or if we otherwise fail to hold such meeting by February 3, 2008, our shares could be delisted
from Nasdaq.

On September 29, 2006, the Division of Enforcement of the SEC informed us that it had initiated an informal investigation into our stock option
granting practices. In addition, the Office of the U.S. Attorney for the District of New Jersey advised us that it had commenced an investigation
into the same matter. We have cooperated with these investigations and have briefed both authorities on the results of the Special Committee�s
investigation. There have been no developments in these matters since that time.
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On January 17, 2007, a stockholder derivative action was filed in the United States District Court, District of New Jersey against certain current
members of the Board and certain current and former senior executives. The Company has been named as a nominal defendant. The complaint
alleges, among other things, that certain of our current and former officers and directors (i) breached their fiduciary duties to the Company and
its stockholders and were unjustly enriched by improperly backdating certain grants of stock options to officers and directors of the Company,
(ii) caused the Company to file false and misleading reports with the SEC, (iii) violated the Exchange Act and common law, (iv) caused the
Company to issue false and misleading public statements, and (v) were negligent
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and abdicated their responsibilities to the Company and its stockholders. The complaint seeks money damages from the defendants, an
accounting for the proceeds of sales of any allegedly backdated stock options, and the costs and disbursements of the lawsuit, as well as
equitable relief. The defendants have moved to dismiss the action, and on or about June 15, 2007, the plaintiff filed an amended complaint
adding, among other things, a claim for securities fraud under SEC rule 10b-5.

On September 21, 2007 a second stockholder class action was filed in the United States District Court, Southern District of New York against
the Company and certain current and former senior executives. The complaint alleges, among other things, that certain of the Company�s current
and former officers made statements to the investing public which misrepresented material facts about the business and operations of the
Company, or omitted to state material facts required in order for the statements made by them not to be misleading, causing the price of the
Company�s stock to be artificially inflated in violation of provisions of the Exchange Act, as amended. It alleges that more recent disclosures
establish the misleading nature of these earlier disclosures. The complaint seeks money damages plus interest as well as costs and disbursements
of the lawsuit.

On October 10, 2007, a third stockholder class action was filed in the United States District Court, Southern District of New York against the
Company and certain of its current and former senior executives. The complaint alleges, among other things, that certain of the Company�s
current and former officers made statements to the investing public which misrepresented material facts about the business and operations of the
Company, or omitted to state material facts required in order for the statements made by them not to be misleading, thereby causing the price of
the Company�s stock to be artificially inflated in violation of provisions of the Exchange Act, as amended. According to the complaint, more
recent disclosures establish the misleading nature of these earlier disclosures. The complaint seeks, among other relief, class certification of the
lawsuit, compensatory damages plus interest, and costs and expenses of the lawsuit, including counsel and expert fees.

The outcome of these litigations is uncertain. While we believe there are valid defenses to the claims and we will defend ourselves vigorously,
no assurance can be given as to the outcome of these matters. The litigations could distract our management and directors from the Company�s
affairs, the costs and expenses of the litigations could unfavorably affect our net earnings and an unfavorable outcome could adversely affect the
reputation of the Company.

Other Adjustments
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In addition to the adjustments related to the stock option investigation, our restated consolidated financial statements presented herein
include other adjustments related to personal property taxes and certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those related to
occupancy costs for our 52- and 53-week fiscal years. The aggregate impact of these adjustments on our consolidated statements of
income, net of taxes, between fiscal 2001 and first quarter of fiscal 2006 was an increase to net income of approximately $1.7 million.
Additionally, variable rate demand note balances as of the quarter ended April 29, 2006 have been reclassified from
cash to short-term investments, and certain other balance sheet amounts have been reclassified. These reclassifications
do not result in any additional charges in any period and do not affect working capital for the affected periods. For
additional discussion of these adjustments, refer to Note 2�Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements and Note
16�Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Cumulative Adjustments

The following table summarizes the cumulative increase or decrease to net income from fiscal 1998 through the first quarter of fiscal 2006.
These adjustments relate to the Company recognizing stock-based compensation expense resulting from the determination of revised
measurement dates for past stock option grants as well as the other adjustments noted above (in thousands):
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Stock Option Related Adjustments Other Adjustments(1)

Period Ended
Expense
(Increase)

Tax
Benefit

Net Stock
Option Related
Adjustments

Expense
(Increase)
Decrease

Tax
Benefit

(Provision)

Net
Other

Adjustments
Total After Tax
Adjustment

January 30, 1999 (fiscal 1998) $ (59) $ 19 $ (40) $ � $ � $ � $ (40)
January 29, 2000 (fiscal 1999) (211) 81 (130) � � � (130)
February 3, 2001 (fiscal 2000) (386) 131 (255) � � � (255)
February 2, 2002 (fiscal 2001) (915) 295 (620) 240 (98) 142 (478)
February 1, 2003 (fiscal 2002) (972) 375 (597) 772 (311) 461 (136)
January 31, 2004 (fiscal 2003) (1,632) 486 (1,146) 1,722 (695) 1,027 (119)
January 29, 2005 (fiscal 2004) (3,386) 772 (2,614) 589 (82) 507 (2,107)
January 28, 2006 (fiscal 2005)(2) (8,927) 3,956 (4,971) (853) 218 (635) (5,606)

Cumulative effect at January 28,
2006 $ (16,488) $ 6,115 $ (10,373) $ 2,470 $ (968) $ 1,502 $ (8,871)

April 29, 2006 (Q1 fiscal 2006) $ (1,331) $ 544 $ (787) $ 327 $ (161) $ 166 $ (621)

(1)   Other adjustments relate to personal property taxes and certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those
related to occupancy costs for our 52- and 53-week fiscal years.

(2)   We have not previously recorded stock-based compensation expense in any fiscal year other than fiscal 2005.
During fiscal 2005, we recorded approximately $0.3 million related to the modification of stock options for a
terminated employee, before taxes of approximately $0.1 million. We also recorded approximately $2.1 million,
before taxes of approximately $0.1 million, of stock-based compensation expense related to the acceleration of the
vesting of certain options. As part of the restatement process, the stock option acceleration amounts were adjusted to
approximately $1.7 million of stock-based compensation expense, before taxes of approximately $0.5 million.
Therefore, the restated total stock-based compensation expense for fiscal 2005 is $11.3 million, before taxes of $4.1
million.

License Agreement with Disney
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In connection with the acquisition of the DSNA Business in 2004, Hoop entered into a License Agreement with an affiliate of Disney under
which our subsidiaries have the right to use certain Disney intellectual property to operate the Disney Store retail chain in exchange for ongoing
royalty payments. The agreement allows our subsidiaries to operate retail stores in the United States and Canada using the �Disney Store� name
and to contract, manufacture, source, offer and sell merchandise featuring Disney-branded characters, past, present and future. In accordance
with the License Agreement, following a two year royalty abatement, our subsidiaries began making royalty payments to Disney in
November 2006 equal to 5% of net sales from physical Disney Store locations, subject to an additional royalty holiday period with respect to the
Non-Core Stores. The initial term of the License Agreement continues through January 2020, unless terminated sooner in accordance with the
License Agreement, and if certain financial performance and other conditions are satisfied, the term of the License Agreement may be extended
at our option for up to three additional ten-year terms.

In connection with our acquisition of the DSNA Business, we also entered into a Guaranty and Commitment dated as of November 21, 2004, in
favor of Hoop and Disney. As required by the Guaranty and Commitment, we invested $50 million in Hoop concurrently with the
consummation of the acquisition, and we agreed to invest up to an additional $50 million to enable Hoop to comply with their obligations under
the License Agreement and otherwise fund the operations of Hoop. The Guaranty and Commitment provides that our $50 million additional
commitment is subject to increase if certain distributions are made by Hoop to The Children�s Place. To date, we have not invested any portion of
the additional $50 million in Hoop. We also agreed in the Guaranty and Commitment to guarantee the payment and performance by Hoop of
their royalty payment and other obligations to Disney under the License Agreement, subject to a maximum guaranty liability of $25 million, plus
expenses.

The License Agreement obligates us to maintain the quality, appearance and presentation standards of the Disney Store chain in accordance with
the highest standards prevailing in the specialty retail industry. In addition, the License Agreement, as amended in April 2006, required us to:
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�      Completely remodel each store within a specified period of time following expiration or termination of the initial
term of the lease for such store, if such lease is renewed or extended on a long-term basis upon or following such
expiration or termination;

�      Completely remodel each store at least once every 12 years; and

�      Completely remodel a minimum of approximately 160 of the 313 acquired stores by January 1, 2009.

During fiscal 2006, we suspended the store renovation program because of dissatisfaction with our �Mickey� store prototype from a brand, design
and construction standpoint. As of February 3, 2007, we had remodeled a total of 45 Disney Stores since the 2004 acquisition. Pursuant to the
provisions of the License Agreement, as amended in 2006, relating to required remodeling following lease renewals and required remodeling of
stores at least once every 12 years, we were required to remodel a total of 145 stores as of February 3, 2007. As of February 3, 2007, we had
remodeled 32 of these required stores, with the result that 113 of the store remodels required by that date under the terms of the License
Agreement had not been completed by that date. The remaining 13 store remodels we had completed were not required pursuant to the
provisions of the License Agreement.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we received a letter and subsequent follow-up communications from Disney identifying various ways in
which we had not complied with the store renovation and certain other requirements of the License Agreement. In response, during the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2006, we commenced discussions with Disney regarding potential modifications to certain terms of the License Agreement to
address our remodeling commitments as well as other concerns that had been raised by Disney in various communications with us. During the
first quarter of fiscal 2007, Disney notified us that Disney viewed our failure to comply with these requirements of the License Agreement as
constituting numerous material breaches of the License Agreement, entitling Disney to exercise its rights and remedies under the License
Agreement.

Following discussions with Disney, in June 2007, we entered into a June Letter Agreement with Disney which modified and superseded certain
provisions of the License Agreement, including the remodeling requirements, through fiscal 2011 and created additional obligations for us and
Hoop with respect to the remodeling of Disney Stores. The June Letter Agreement was entered into to address Disney�s assertion that through the
date of the June Letter Agreement we had committed 120 material breaches of the License Agreement. The June Letter Agreement stated that if
we fully comply with its terms, Disney would forbear from exercising any rights or remedies that it would have under the License Agreement
based on the breaches of the License Agreement that were asserted by Disney and were the subject of the June Letter Agreement. However, if
we were to violate any of the provisions of the June Letter Agreement, Disney would have the right to terminate its forbearance under the June
Letter Agreement, in which case Disney would be free to exercise any or all of its rights and remedies under the License Agreement, including
possibly terminating our license to operate the Disney Stores based on the occurrence of numerous material breaches and claiming breach fees,
as if the June Letter Agreement had not been executed. The June Letter Agreement also stated that, if we were to breach any of its provisions on
three or more occasions and Disney had not previously exercised its right to terminate the June Letter Agreement, a payment of $18.0 million to
Disney would become immediately due and payable with respect to the breach fees called for by the License Agreement. If we were to violate
any of the provisions of the June Letter Agreement on five or more occasions, Disney would have the right to immediately terminate the License
Agreement, without any right on our part to defend, counterclaim, protest or cure. The June Letter Agreement stated that its terms would take
effect immediately but that the parties anticipated the June Letter Agreement would later be replaced by a formal amendment to the License
Agreement incorporating the terms of the June Letter Agreement.

The June Letter Agreement, among other things, suspended the remodel obligations in the License Agreement for the approximately 4.5 year
term of the June Letter Agreement and, in lieu of those provisions, imposed new obligations on the Company with respect to the renovation and
maintenance of numerous stores in the Disney Store chain between fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2011 and, for the stores to be remodeled in fiscal 2007,
set forth a detailed timetable for submission of plans and completion dates.
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Subsequent to the execution of the June Letter Agreement, we were unable to meet several deadlines set forth in the June Letter Agreement. In
addition, we determined that there were upcoming deadlines during the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2007 specified in the June Letter
Agreement that we would likely not meet. Accordingly, we and Disney engaged in further discussions during August 2007 and, based on these
discussions, agreed upon changes to the requirements of the June Letter Agreement that would postpone the due dates of certain of our remodel
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obligations until later in fiscal 2007 or fiscal 2008. In connection with these postponements, we agreed to remodel two additional Disney Stores
during fiscal 2009 and agreed upon changes to the original license agreement to modify restrictions on Disney�s ability to relocate its flagship
retail store in Manhattan and to narrow the restrictions on Disney�s ability to grant direct  licenses to other specialty retailers so that these
restrictions would apply only with respect to specialty retail stores focusing primarily on the sale of children�s merchandise.

During August 2007, we and Disney executed the Refurbishment Amendment, which incorporated the terms of the June Letter Agreement, as
modified by our mutual agreement during August, and the aforementioned changes to the License Agreement. The Refurbishment Amendment
by its terms superseded the June Letter Agreement and took effect retroactively as of June 6, 2007, the original effective date of the June Letter
Agreement. The Refurbishment Amendment provides that our compliance in full with its terms will constitute a cure of the breaches identified
in the Refurbishment Amendment and that, so long as the Refurbishment Amendment is not terminated, Disney will forbear from exercising any
rights or remedies it would have under the License Agreement based on the breaches identified in the Refurbishment Amendment.

The Refurbishment Amendment suspends the remodel obligations in the License Agreement for the approximately 4.5 year term of the
Refurbishment Amendment, and, in lieu of those provisions, commits us to remodel by the end of fiscal 2011 a total of 236 existing Disney
Stores into a new store prototype we have developed,

�      of which the first seven remodels are required to be completed by specifically agreed upon dates in fiscal 2007;

�      an additional 49 stores are required to be remodeled by the end of fiscal 2008;

�      an additional 60 stores are required to be remodeled by the end of fiscal 2009;

�      an additional 70 stores are required to be remodeled by the end of fiscal 2010; and

�      an additional 50 stores are required to be remodeled by the end of fiscal 2011.

Under the Refurbishment Amendment, we also have agreed to open at least 18 new Disney Stores using the new store prototype by the end of
fiscal 2008. Our prior obligations under the License Agreement did not require us to open a specified number of new stores.

In addition, the Refurbishment Amendment requires us to complete a �maintenance refresh� program in approximately 165 Disney Stores by June
30, 2008, including the flagship store located on Michigan Avenue in Chicago, which was completed on September 12, 2007. Some of the stores
that are refreshed will subsequently be remodeled into the new store prototype. The Refurbishment Amendment obligates us to complete the
remodel and refresh program described above and, in accordance with the Refurbishment Amendment, we have committed $175 million, on a
consolidated basis, to remodel and refresh the stores as noted above through fiscal 2011, and have committed approximately $12 million to open
the new stores through fiscal 2008.

We expect that the Disney Stores will fund these commitments primarily from cash flow from operations and borrowings under its secured
credit facility. Over the next 12 months, we expect that The Children�s Place business will need to provide additional capital to the Disney Stores
to remain in compliance with the store remodel requirements under the License Agreement as modified by the Refurbishment Amendment.
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In the Refurbishment Amendment, we also agreed with Disney to make certain other modifications to the provisions of the License Agreement,
including:

�      Limiting the number of new Disney Stores to be opened per year during the remodeling period (we may open up
to 25 new stores in any given year after fiscal 2007, with a rollover each year of up to five new stores from prior
years);

�      Eliminating the extended royalty abatement for some of the Disney Stores that were identified as Non-Core Stores
in the License Agreement if their leases are extended on a long-term basis and the stores are not remodeled within the
timeframe that was required under the original terms of the License Agreement before giving effect to the
Refurbishment Amendment;

�      Requiring the potential implementation of a differentiated merchandise plan for the Disney Store outlets; and

�      Modifying the provisions of the License Agreement that would apply to a potential wind-down of the Disney Store
business following any termination of the License Agreement.
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Like the June Letter Agreement, the Refurbishment Amendment states that, if we fully comply with the terms of the Refurbishment
Amendment, Disney will forbear from exercising any rights or remedies that it would have under the License Agreement based on the breaches
of the License Agreement that were asserted by Disney and were the subject of the Refurbishment Amendment. However, under the terms of the
Refurbishment Amendment, if we violate any of its provisions, Disney will have the right to terminate its forbearance under the Refurbishment
Amendment, in which case Disney would be free to exercise any or all of its rights and remedies under the License Agreement, including
possibly terminating our license to operate the Disney Stores based on the occurrence of multiple material breaches and claiming breach fees, as
if the Refurbishment Amendment had not been executed. The Refurbishment Amendment also states that, if we breach any of its provisions on
three or more occasions and Disney has not previously exercised its right to terminate the Refurbishment Amendment, a payment of $18.0
million to Disney becomes immediately due and payable with respect to the breach fees called for by the License Agreement. If we violate any
of the provisions of the Refurbishment Amendment on five or more occasions, Disney will have the right to immediately terminate the License
Agreement, without any right on our part to defend, counterclaim, protest or cure. It should be noted that the Refurbishment Amendment
addresses only those breaches specifically enumerated therein. Disney continues to retain all its other rights and remedies under the License
Agreement with respect to any other breaches.

 We believe that we will be able to perform our obligations under the Refurbishment Amendment as and when required. However, because our
ability to meet these obligations will depend on numerous factors, some of which are beyond our control, there can be no assurance that we will
be able to fully comply. Like the June Letter Agreement, the Refurbishment Amendment does not excuse us from compliance with these
requirements should there be events or developments that may be beyond our control, such as contractor delays, delays in landlord or regulatory
approval, natural disasters or acts of war or terrorism. Our diligent efforts may not be adequate to enable us to obtain all required approvals
under the Refurbishment Amendment or to comply with every requirement or meet every deadline imposed on us under the Refurbishment
Amendment. In the event we are unable to comply with any of our obligations when required, we would be in breach of our agreements with
Disney, entitling Disney to exercise its remedies under the Refurbishment Amendment and the License Agreement. In the event such breaches
occur, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain waivers or other relief from Disney, if needed, to avoid the $18.0 million payment
to Disney and prevent a termination of the Refurbishment Amendment or the License Agreement. In addition, any breach by us of our
agreements with Disney (even if subsequently waived by Disney) would constitute a cross-default under the secured loan agreement for the
Disney Store chain, entitling the lenders to exercise their contractual remedies. There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain waivers,
if needed, from our lenders in the event of any future breaches of the Refurbishment Amendment or the License Agreement.

Where Disney would have the right to terminate the License Agreement and compel us to rapidly wind down the Disney Store business in
accordance with the wind-down provisions of the License Agreement as a result of our breach or breaches thereof, our subsidiaries that operate
the Disney Store business may be unable to comply with all of their obligations to landlords and other third parties, in which case these
subsidiaries might not be able to avoid seeking bankruptcy protection.

Beginning in July 2007, our Hoop subsidiaries commenced Internet commerce operations through an alliance with a Disney affiliate in which
select Disney Store merchandise is sold on the disneyshopping.com website. Customers can find our Disney Store merchandise at
www.disneystore.com or www.disneyshopping.com. We anticipate entering into a formal amendment to the License Agreement relating to this
Internet business. It is anticipated that this amendment to the License Agreement will supersede our obligation to launch our own Disney Store
Internet store, which pursuant to the License Agreement, as modified by certain letter agreements, we are required to launch by January 31,
2008.

Refer to Note 5�License Agreement with Disney in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding the
June Letter Agreement and the Refurbishment Amendment.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well
as the reported revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from our estimates. The accounting policies that we
believe are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating reported financial results include the following:
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Revenue Recognition�Sales are recognized upon purchase by customers at our retail stores or when received by the
customer if the product was purchased via the Internet, net of coupon redemptions and anticipated sales returns.
Actual sales return rates have historically been within our expectations and the allowance established. However, in the
event that the actual rate of sales returns by customers increased significantly, our operational results could be
adversely affected.

For the Disney Store, we act as an agent on behalf of a subsidiary of The Walt Disney Company for the sale of Walt Disney World Resort
and Disneyland Resort tickets, and our net sales include only the 7% commission we receive from a subsidiary of
The Walt Disney Company on such ticket sales.

Our policy with respect to gift cards is to record revenue as gift cards are redeemed for merchandise. Prior to their redemption, unredeemed gift
cards for The Children�s Place business are recorded as a liability, included within accrued expenses and other current liabilities. We recognize
income from gift cards that are not expected to be redeemed based upon an extended period of dormancy where statutorily permitted. For the
Disney Store, we act as an agent on behalf of a subsidiary of The Walt Disney Company for gift cards sold to customers. Therefore, we do not
record a customer gift card liability for the Disney Store. However, we recognize a trade payable to Disney for the net purchase of Disney gift
cards.

We offer a private label credit card to our The Children�s Place customers that provides a discount on future purchases once a minimum annual
purchase threshold has been exceeded. We estimate the future discounts to be provided based on history, the number of customers who have
earned or are likely to earn the discount and current year sales trends on the private label credit card. We defer a proportionate amount of
revenue from customers based on an estimated value of future discounts. We recognize such deferred revenue as future discounts are taken on
sales above the minimum. We accomplish this by utilizing estimates based upon sales trends and the number of customers who have earned the
discount privilege. Our private label customers must earn the discount privilege on an annual basis and this privilege expires at our fiscal year
end. Accordingly, all deferred revenue is recognized by the end of the fiscal year.

Inventory Valuation�Merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market, using the retail inventory
method. Under the retail inventory method, the valuation of inventories at cost and the resulting gross margins are
calculated by applying a cost-to-retail ratio by merchandise department to the retail value of inventories. At any one
time, inventories include items that have been marked down to our best estimate of their fair market value and an
estimate of our inventory shrinkage.

We base our decision to mark down merchandise upon its current rate of sale, the season, and the age and sell-through of the item. To the extent
that our markdown estimates are not adequate, additional markdowns may have to be recorded, which could reduce our gross margins and
operating results. Our success is largely dependent upon our ability to gauge the fashion taste of our customers, including the popularity and
relevancy of the Disney characters, and to provide a well-balanced merchandise assortment that satisfies customer demand. Any inability to
provide the proper quantity of appropriate merchandise in a timely manner could increase future markdown rates.

We adjust our inventory based upon an annual physical inventory and shrinkage is estimated in interim periods based upon the historical results
of physical inventories in the context of current year facts and circumstances. To the extent our shrinkage estimate is not adequate,
we would be required to reduce our gross profits and operating results.
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Equity Compensation�Effective January 29, 2006, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified
prospective transition method. In applying SFAS 123(R), we use the Black-Scholes option pricing model based on a
Monte Carlo simulation, which requires extensive use of accounting judgment and financial estimates, including
estimates of how long employees will hold their vested stock options before exercise, the estimated volatility of the
Company�s common stock over the expected term, and the number of options that will be forfeited prior to the
completion of vesting requirements. Application of other assumptions could result in significantly different estimates
of fair value of stock-based compensation and consequently, the related expense recognized in our financial
statements. The provisions of SFAS 123(R) apply to new stock options and stock options outstanding, but not yet
vested, as of the effective date. Prior to January 29, 2006, we accounted for stock option grants under the recognition
and measurement provisions of APB 25 and related interpretations.

Prior to fiscal 2006, equity compensation for key management consisted only of stock option awards. Upon consideration of several factors in
fiscal 2006, including the anticipated impact of SFAS 123(R), we also began
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awarding key management performance share awards (�Performance Awards�) which, if earned, would be satisfied by the issuance of shares of
common stock (�Performance Shares�).

Historic Stock Option Measurement Dates�As discussed in �Restatement of Financial Statements� of this section and in Note
2�Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements, we applied our documentation hierarchy to determine revised
measurement dates under APB 25 for past stock option grants. This application involved judgment and careful
consideration of all documentation and facts related to each grant. We believe the hierarchy provides the best evidence
of approval and finality for determining revised measurement dates under APB 25. However, we also performed a
sensitivity analysis to estimate potential non-cash stock based compensation expense based on minimum and
maximum stock prices during the period between the Recorded Grant date and the revised measurement date.

Using the maximum stock price between Recorded Grant date and the revised measurement date would increase the cumulative non-cash stock
based compensation expense relating to option issuances by $3.1 million, before taxes, over the eight year restatement period. The most
significant impact in any year would have been $0.8 million, before taxes, in fiscal 2005, primarily due to the Company�s acceleration of the
vesting of approximately 2.1 million options and because more than 40% of the Company�s total stock option compensation charges related to a
single grant made during fiscal 2005 on April 29, 2005. Using the minimum stock price between the originally recorded grant date and the
revised measurement date results in no compensation charge, as the trading price on the Recorded Grant date was the lowest price during the
period.

In addition, we evaluated our documentation hierarchy to determine if different judgments in the determination of measurement dates would
materially affect our restatement charge relating to option issuances. Specifically, we considered the following:

1.     The application of the documentation hierarchy resulted in multiple measurement dates for awards recorded as part of a single Recorded
Grant. If the measurement date for all recipients of awards made as part of a single Recorded Grant was the last date determined under our
documentation hierarchy as a measurement date, the restatement charge would increase by approximately $0.5 million, before taxes.

2.     The Legal Department Memo was used to support the measurement date for approximately 13% of the options issued during the Review
Period. If the Legal Department Memo were viewed as less authoritative support that an award was final than the transmission of award
information to our Stock Option Administrator or the signing of a Form 4, the restatement charge would increase by approximately 4% or $0.5
million, before taxes.

3.     Of the options for 328,775 shares to which we have applied variable accounting in accordance with FIN 44, options for 75,075 shares are
options as to which the number of shares were modified. Given that there is a diversity in practice with regard to the interpretation of FIN 44 as
it relates to the application of variable accounting when modifications are subsequently made only to the number of shares, we determined the
impact on the restatement if these options were treated as fixed option awards and we had applied our documentation hierarchy to determine
revised measurement dates. We have determined that this treatment would have decreased the restatement charge by approximately $0.2 million,
before taxes.

Accounting for Royalties�In exchange for the right to use certain Disney intellectual property, we are required to pay a
Disney subsidiary royalty payments pursuant to the License Agreement. Minimum royalty commitments are recorded
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on a straight-line basis over the life of the initial 15 year term of the License Agreement. During each period, amounts
due in excess of the minimum royalty commitment are recorded as an expense if we expect to surpass the minimum
royalty commitment on an annual basis, even if the contingency threshold has not been surpassed in that particular
period. The amortization of the estimated value of the two-year royalty holiday under the License Agreement is
recognized on a straight-line basis as a reduction of royalty expense over the term of the License Agreement. Royalty
expense, and the associated amortization of the royalty holiday, is recorded in selling, general and administrative
expenses. The royalty percentage does not increase over the term of the License Agreement.

In accordance with the License Agreement, following a two year royalty abatement, our subsidiaries began making royalty payments to Disney
in November 2006 equal to 5% of net sales from physical Disney Store locations, subject to an additional royalty holiday period with respect to
a limited number of stores. The initial term of the License Agreement is through January 2020, and if certain financial performance and other
conditions are satisfied, it
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may be extended at our option for up to three additional ten-year terms. In fiscal 2006, net royalty expense was approximately 4.1% of Disney
Store net sales.

Insurance and Self-Insurance Liabilities�Based on our assessment of risk and cost efficiency, we self-insure and purchase
insurance policies to provide for workers� compensation, general liability, and property losses, as well as director�s and
officer�s liability, vehicle liability and employee medical benefits. We estimate risks and record a liability based upon
historical claim experience, insurance deductibles, severity factors and other actuarial assumptions. While we believe
that our risk assessments are appropriate, to the extent that future occurrences and claims differ from our historical
experience, additional charges for insurance may be recorded in future periods.

Accounting for Acquisitions�The acquisition of the DSNA Business was accounted for under the purchase method of
accounting in accordance with SFAS No. 141, �Business Combinations� (�SFAS 141�). As such, we analyzed the fair
value of identified tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and determined the excess of fair
value of net assets acquired over cost. This excess was recorded as an extraordinary gain in fiscal 2005 and fiscal
2004.

Impairment of Assets�We periodically evaluate each store�s performance and compare the carrying value of each location�s
fixed assets, principally leasehold improvements and fixtures, to its projected cash flows. An impairment loss is
recorded if the projected future cash flows related to the assets are insufficient to recapture the net book value of the
assets. To the extent our estimates of future cash flows are incorrect, additional impairment charges may be recorded
in future periods.

Income Taxes�We compute income taxes using the liability method. This method requires recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities, measured by enacted rates, attributable to temporary differences between financial statement and
income tax basis of assets and liabilities. Temporary differences result primarily from depreciation and amortization
differences between book and tax and the non-deductibility of certain reserves and accruals in the current tax period
for tax purposes.
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During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. As a
result, we recognize tax liabilities based on estimates of whether additional taxes and interest will be due. These tax liabilities are recognized
when, despite our belief that its tax return positions are supportable, we believe that certain positions are likely to be challenged and may not be
fully sustained upon review by tax authorities. We believe that our accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open audit years based on our
assessment of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax law. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and
may involve a series of complex judgments about future events. To the extent that the final tax outcome of these matters is different than the
amounts recorded, such differences will impact income tax expense in the period in which such determination is made.

Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements
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In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�An Interpretation of FASB Statement
109� (�FIN 48�) which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48, effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, requires that the
tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be recognized only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will
be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The amount of tax
benefits recognized from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate resolution. We have substantially completed the process of evaluating the
effect of FIN 48 on our consolidated financial statements as of the beginning of the period of adoption, February 4,
2007. We estimate that the cumulative effects of applying this interpretation will be recorded as a decrease of
approximately $6.6 million to beginning retained earnings. In addition, in accordance with the provisions of FIN 48,
we will reclassify an estimated $6.2 million of unrecognized tax benefits from current to non-current liabilities
because payment of cash is not anticipated within one year of the balance sheet date.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements� (�SFAS 157�) which provides guidance for using fair value to
measure assets and liabilities, defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in U.S. GAAP, and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective
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for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 for interim periods within those years. We are currently evaluating the potential impact of
adopting SFAS 157 on our consolidated balance sheets and results of operations.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, �Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements� (�SAB 108�). SAB 108 provides interpretive guidance on how the effects of prior year
uncorrected misstatements should be considered when quantifying misstatements in current year financial statements. SAB 108 requires
registrants to quantify misstatements using a balance sheet and income statement approach and to evaluate whether either approach results in
quantifying an error that is material in light of relative quantitative and qualitative factors. SAB 108 is effective for annual financial statements
covering the first fiscal year ending after November 15, 2006. We have applied SAB 108 and restated our consolidated financial statements
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In June 2006, the FASB ratified the consensuses reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force in Issue No. 06-3, �How Taxes Collected from
Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should be Presented in the Income Statement (That is, Gross Versus Net Presentation)�
(�EITF 06-3�). EITF 06-3 requires disclosure of an entity�s accounting policy regarding the presentation of taxes assessed by a governmental
authority that are directly imposed on a revenue-producing transaction between a seller and a customer including sales, use, value added and
some excise taxes. Since we present such taxes on a net basis (excluded from net sales) as permitted under EITF 06-3, there will be no impact on
our financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities��Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 (�SFAS 159�). This standard permits an entity to choose to measure many financial instruments and
certain other items at fair value. Most of the provisions in SFAS 159 are elective; however, the amendment to SFAS 115, Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities, applies to all entities with available-for-sale and trading securities. The fair value option established
by SFAS 159 permits all entities to choose to measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates. A business entity will report
unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings (or another performance indicator if the
business entity does not report earnings) at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value option: (a) may be applied instrument by instrument,
with a few exceptions, such as investments otherwise accounted for by the equity method; (b) is irrevocable (unless a new election date occurs);
and (c) is applied only to entire instruments and not to portions of instruments. SFAS 159 is effective as of the beginning of an entity�s first fiscal
year that begins after November 15, 2007. We are currently evaluating the effect that adoption of this statement will have on our consolidated
balance sheets and results of operations.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, selected income statement data expressed as a percentage of net sales. We primarily
evaluate the results of our operations as a percentage of net sales rather than in terms of absolute dollar increases or decreases by analyzing the
year over year change in our business expressed as a percentage of net sales (i.e. �basis points�). For example, our selling, general and
administrative expenses increased approximately 20 basis points to 31.0% of net sales during the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007 from 30.8%
during the fiscal year ended January 28, 2006. Accordingly, to the extent that our sales have increased at a faster rate than our costs (i.e.
�leveraging�), the more efficiently we have utilized the investments we have made in our business. Conversely, if our sales decrease or if our costs
grow at a faster pace than our sales (i.e. �de-leveraging�), we have less efficiently utilized the investments we have made in our business.

61

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

153



Fiscal Year Ended

February 3,
2007

January 28,
2006(1)

(As restated)

January 29,
2005(1)

(As restated)
Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales 58.9 60.4 60.9
Gross profit 41.1 39.6 39.1
Selling, general and administrative expenses 31.0 30.8 29.1
Asset impairment charges 0.8 � �
Depreciation and amortization 3.3 3.2 4.2
Operating income 5.9 5.6 5.7
Interest income, net 0.2 � �
Income before income taxes and extraordinary gain 6.1 5.6 5.7
Provision for income taxes 1.8 2.1 2.2
Income before extraordinary gain 4.3 3.5 3.5
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes � 0.1 �
Net income 4.3% 3.6% 3.5%
Number of stores, end of period 1,194 1,119 1,056

Table may not add due to rounding.

(1)   See the �Explanatory Note� immediately preceding Part I, Item 1 and Note 2, �Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,� in Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Year Ended February 3, 2007 Compared to Year Ended January 28, 2006
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Net sales increased $349 million, or 21%, to $2.018 billion during fiscal 2006 from $1.669 billion during fiscal 2005. Sales for fiscal 2006 were
comprised of $1.405 billion from The Children�s Place business, a 20% increase over the $1.171 billion reported in fiscal 2005 and $612.3
million in sales from the Disney Store business, a 23% increase over the $497.7 million reported in fiscal 2005. Consolidated comparable store
sales increased 11% and contributed $163.7 million of our net sales increase in fiscal 2006. Net sales from our new stores, as well as other stores
that did not qualify as comparable stores, increased our sales by $159.1 million. Our closed stores partially offset our consolidated sales increase
by approximately $3.4 million. Consolidated comparable store sales increased 9% during fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2006, our consolidated
comparable store sales increase was the result of a 7% increase in the number of comparable store sales transactions and a 4% increase in our
average dollar transaction size. Comparable store sales increased 10% for The Children�s Place business as compared to a 9% comparable store
sales increase in fiscal 2005. Disney Stores reported a 14% comparable store sales increase. In addition, fiscal 2006 was a 53-week year, with
the extra week contributing approximately $29.5 million to fiscal 2006 net sales.

Our 10% comparable store sales increase for The Children�s Place business was primarily the result of an 8% increase in the number of
comparable store sales transactions and a 2% increase in our average dollar transaction size. Our increased dollar transaction size was driven
primarily by an increase in the number of items sold in each transaction. During the fiscal 2006, we achieved comparable store sales increases in
The Children�s Place business across all geographical regions, departments and store types.

For the Disney Store, our 14% comparable store sales increase was primarily the result of a 9% increase in our average dollar transaction size
and a 5% increase in the number of comparable store sales transactions. Our increase in dollar transaction size in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal
2005 was driven by an increase in the number of items sold in each transaction and new merchandise that commanded a higher price point.
During fiscal 2006, all geographical regions, departments and store types experienced comparable store sales increases.

During fiscal 2006, we opened 69 The Children�s Place stores, 60 in the United States, seven in Canada and two in Puerto Rico. We also opened
19 Disney Stores, 18 in the United States and one in Canada. We closed five The Children�s Place stores and eight Disney Stores in fiscal 2006.

Consolidated gross profit increased by $168.4 million to $828.4 million during fiscal 2006 from $660.0 million during fiscal 2005. As a
percentage of net sales, gross profit increased 150 basis points to 41.1% during fiscal 2006 from 39.6% during fiscal 2005. This increase in
consolidated gross profit, as a percentage of net sales, resulted from
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the leveraging of occupancy costs of approximately 120 basis points, a higher initial markup of approximately 120 basis points, partially offset
by higher markdowns of approximately 80 basis points and higher distribution and production and design costs of approximately 10 basis points.
Our increase in gross margin as a percentage of net sales was primarily driven by the Disney Stores. At the Disney Store, our gross margin, as a
percentage of net sales, was higher in fiscal 2006 than in fiscal 2005 due to a higher initial markup, the leveraging of occupancy costs and lower
markdowns. For The Children�s Place business, our gross margin, as a percentage of net sales, was flat in fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005.
At The Children�s Place business, the leveraging of occupancy costs and a higher initial markup was offset by higher markdowns. While Disney
Store continues to have a lower gross margin structure than The Children�s Place business, it has benefited from increased full price selling and
the implementation of our low-cost sourcing strategies.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $112.3 million to $626.3 million during fiscal 2006 from $514.0 million during 2005. As
a percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses increased approximately 20 basis points to 31.0% during fiscal 2006 from
30.8% during fiscal 2005. Selling, general and administrative expenses were unfavorably impacted in fiscal 2006 primarily as a result of:

�      Stock option investigation costs which approximated $16.1 million, or 80 basis points, and included legal, forensic
accounting and other professional fees of $8.1 million, the tax consequences associated with discounted employee
stock options, which approximated $6.3 million, as well as non-cash compensation expense associated with option
terms that were extended due to the suspension of option exercises during the investigation, which approximated $1.7
million;

�      Increased store incentives and management bonuses which approximated $6.2 million, or approximately 20 basis
points;

�      Equity compensation expense for (i) the implementation of SFAS 123(R) and (ii) promises to grant stock options
and restricted stock, which approximated $2.0 million, or 10 basis points;

�      Increased legal settlement expenses, primarily due to the settlement of two class action litigations, which
represented approximately $2.9 million or 20 basis points; and

�      Increased marketing of approximately $10.9 million, which approximated 10 basis points, due to increased
marketing efforts to promote our brands.

As a percentage of net sales, these increases in selling, general and administrative expenses were partially offset by equity compensation and
other stock option related expenses of approximately $9.7 million recorded in fiscal 2005, or approximately 60 basis points, consisting of
approximately:

�      $6.7 million for revised measurement dates on stock options;

�      $1.4 million for the resolution of tax consequences associated with discounted options;

�      $1.3 million for the accelerated vesting of approximately 2.1 million stock options; and

�      $0.3 million for the modification of options for a terminated associate.
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In addition, while we incurred approximately $44.8 million more in store and administrative payroll and benefits costs in fiscal 2006, we
leveraged these costs as a percentage of net sales by approximately 40 basis points. In fiscal 2006, due to our increased store base, we incurred
approximately $34.5 million more in utilities, supplies, repair and maintenance and other variable store expenses to support our business.

During fiscal 2006, we recorded asset impairment charges of $17.1 million, or approximately 0.8% of net sales, as compared to $0.2 million
recorded in fiscal 2005 for one underperforming store. During fiscal 2006, our asset impairment charge was comprised of a $9.6 million charge
related to the renovation of 29 Mickey stores and $7.1 million related to our decision not to proceed with a New York City Disney Store location
and infrastructure investments that were written off in conjunction with our decision to form an e-commerce alliance with a Disney affiliate in
which select Disney Store merchandise is sold on the disneyshopping.com website. The remaining $0.4 million related to the write down of
leasehold improvements and fixtures in five underperforming The Children�s Place stores. During 2005, we introduced the Mickey store
prototype at the Disney Store but we became dissatisfied with the prototype from a brand, design and construction standpoint. The impairment
charge for the 29 Mickey stores reflects stores that were unable to generate sufficient cash flow prior to their renovation to cover the carrying
value of
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these long-term assets. We currently have a total of 70 Mickey stores in our store base, of which we plan to renovate 37 and refresh the
remainder during fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2008.

Depreciation and amortization amounted to $65.7 million or 3.3% of net sales, during fiscal 2006, as compared to $52.9 million, or 3.2% of net
sales, during fiscal 2005. The $12.8 million increase in depreciation expense in fiscal 2006 is due primarily to our new stores and remodels, as
well as investments made in our distribution facilities and our new administrative office in Pasadena, California.

Interest income, net, was $3.9 million, or approximately 20 basis points, of net sales, during fiscal 2006 as compared to $0.6 million during
fiscal 2005. The increase in interest income, net, during fiscal 2006 resulted from higher net cash investment position and higher interest rates
during fiscal 2006. Additionally, during fiscal 2005, because we are required to manage liquidity for our businesses separately, we incurred
interest expense on borrowings under our credit facility for The Children�s Place business while we earned interest on our net cash investment
position for the Disney Store.

Our income tax provision was approximately $35.9 million during fiscal 2006 as compared to $35.1 million during fiscal 2005. Our effective tax
rate was 29.1% during fiscal 2006 versus 37.6% in fiscal 2005. The reduction in our effective tax rate in fiscal 2006 primarily resulted from a
one time cash dividend from some of our Canadian subsidiaries, which also brought foreign tax credits that can be utilized to reduce U.S.
income taxes. Our fiscal 2006 tax provision was reduced by approximately $9.5 million after the effect of this transaction.

During fiscal 2005, we recorded a $1.7 million extraordinary gain, net of taxes. This extraordinary gain represented the incremental gain
recognized upon the finalization of purchase accounting for the DSNA Business. The extraordinary gain arose because the fair value of net
assets acquired was in excess of the amounts paid to acquire the DSNA Business.

Due to factors discussed above, net income for fiscal 2006 increased $27.4 million to $87.4 million from $60.0 million in fiscal 2005.

Year Ended January 28, 2006 Compared to Year Ended January 29, 2005
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Net sales increased $511.2 million, or 44%, to $1.669 billion during fiscal 2005 from $1.158 billion during fiscal 2004. Sales for fiscal 2005
were comprised of $1.171 billion from The Children�s Place business, an 18% increase over the $994.1 million reported in fiscal 2004 and
$497.7 million in sales from the Disney Store business, a 205% increase over the $163.4 million reported in fiscal 2004. Disney Store results in
fiscal 2005 reflect a full year of operation versus 10 weeks of operations in fiscal 2004. Our fiscal 2005 net sales increase resulted from $429.5
million in net sales from new stores and other stores that did not qualify as comparable stores, $81.5 million in net sales from comparable stores
and $0.2 million in sales from closed stores. Comparable store sales increased 9% as compared to a 16% comparable store sales increase in
fiscal 2004. During fiscal 2005, our comparable store sales increase was the result of a 6% increase in our average dollar transaction size and a
3% increase in the number of comparable store sales transactions. Due to the acquisition of the DSNA Business in fiscal 2004, the Disney Store
business did not have any comparable stores in fiscal 2005.

During fiscal 2005, we achieved comparable store sales increases across all geographical regions, departments, and store types in The Children�s
Place business. Our West, Southwest, Southeast, and Canadian regions reported the strongest comparable store sales increases. By department,
our comparable store sales increases were in line with the chain average, except for our newborn department, which reported a low single-digit
comparable store sales increase.

During fiscal 2005, we opened 55 The Children�s Place stores, 41 in the United States, 10 in Canada and four in Puerto Rico. We also opened 18
Disney Stores, 16 in the United States and two in Canada. We closed three The Children�s Place stores and seven Disney Stores in fiscal 2005.

Consolidated gross profit increased by $207.9 million to $660.0 million during fiscal 2005 from $452.1 million during fiscal 2004. As a
percentage of net sales, gross profit increased 50 basis points to 39.6% during fiscal 2005 from 39.1% during fiscal 2004. This increase in gross
profit, as a percentage of net sales, was comprised primarily of a higher merchandise margin of approximately 110 basis points and the impact of
the sell through of acquired Disney Store inventory, which was favorable to fiscal 2004 by approximately 30 basis points, partially offset by
higher distribution and occupancy costs which were approximately 90 basis points unfavorable due to costs associated with our new distribution
center facility. In accounting for the acquisition of the DSNA Business, we were required to
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write-up acquired inventory to its fair value as of the acquisition. The subsequent sell through of this written up inventory unfavorably impacted
gross margins by $1.2 million, or approximately 10 basis points, during fiscal 2005 and $5.0 million, or approximately 40 basis points, during
fiscal 2004. For The Children�s Place business, our gross margin was higher in fiscal 2005 than in fiscal 2004 due to a higher initial markup,
lower markdowns and the leveraging of occupancy expenses, partially offset by higher distribution costs.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $177.4 million to $514.0 million during fiscal 2005 from $336.6 million during 2004.
Approximately $125.6 million of our dollar increase in selling, general and administrative expenses was attributable to the Disney Stores, which
we operated for the full year in fiscal 2005 as compared to ten weeks during fiscal 2004. The remainder of our dollar increase in selling, general
and administrative expenses is attributable to our The Children�s Place business and relates primarily to our increased store base.

As a percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses increased 170 basis points to 30.8% during fiscal 2005 from 29.1%
during fiscal 2004. This increase as a percentage of net sales increase was due primarily to:

�      Disney Store expenses we did not have in fiscal 2004 which were approximately $16.2 million higher than last
year, or approximately 80 basis points, and included increased royalty expense of approximately $12.9 million, with
the remainder primarily due to increased remodeling expense resulting from the remodeling of 31 Disney Stores
during fiscal 2005;

�      Increased repair, maintenance and utility expenses, which were approximately $18.7 million, or 60 basis points,
higher on a consolidated basis than last year due to our continued focus on enhancing the store environment and
increased utility costs;

�      Store and administrative payroll, which increased on a consolidated basis approximately $72.2 million, or 40 basis
points, partially offset by favorable medical costs, which were approximately 30 basis points lower in fiscal 2005 as
compared to fiscal 2004.

�      Equity compensation expense increased approximately 30 basis points in fiscal 2005, as compared to fiscal 2004.
Equity compensation expense during fiscal 2005 was approximately $9.7 million, or approximately 60 basis points of
net sales, and consisted of:

�      Approximately $6.7 million for revised measurement dates on stock options;

�      Approximately $1.4 million for the resolution of tax consequences associated with discounted options;
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�      Approximately $1.3 million for the accelerated vesting of approximately 2.1 million stock options; and

�      Approximately $0.3 million for the modification of options for a terminated associate.

Equity compensation expense in fiscal 2004, was approximately $2.8 million, or approximately 30 basis points of net sales, and consisted of:

�      Approximately $2.4 million related to revised measurement dates on stock options; and

�      Approximately $0.4 million for the resolution of tax consequences of discounted options.

Depreciation and amortization amounted to $52.9 million or 3.2% of net sales, during fiscal 2005, as compared to $49.0 million, or 4.2% of net
sales, during fiscal 2004. Excluding the $1.7 million of depreciation expense associated with the Disney Store business, depreciation and
amortization as a percentage of The Children�s Place brand sales approximated 4.4% in fiscal 2005, which reflects higher fiscal 2005
infrastructure capital expenditures such as our new distribution center and enterprise software platforms. Fiscal 2005 depreciation and
amortization expense for the Disney Store business represents the expense for assets put in service during fiscal 2005 as we remodeled and
opened new stores. No depreciation expense was recorded on acquired property and equipment since the fair value of net assets acquired
exceeded the amounts paid for the DSNA Business.

Our income tax provision was $35.1 million during fiscal 2005 as compared to $25.9 million during fiscal 2004 due to our increased
profitability. Our effective tax rate was 37.6% during fiscal 2005 versus 39.1% in fiscal 2004. The improvement in the effective tax rate reflects
a larger portion of our income derived from lower tax jurisdictions,
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partially offset by the $1.9 million expense associated with our approximately $45 million repatriation under the American Jobs Creation Act.

Due to factors discussed above, net income for fiscal 2005 increased $19.4 million to $60.0 million from $40.6 million in fiscal 2004.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
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Debt Service/Liquidity

Our working capital requirements follow a seasonal pattern, peaking during the second and third quarters when inventory is purchased for the
back-to-school and holiday selling seasons. Our primary uses of cash are financing new store openings and providing working capital,
principally used for inventory purchases. We have been able to meet our cash needs principally by using cash on hand, cash flows from
operations and seasonal borrowings under our credit facilities, and we believe that this will be sufficient to fund our capital and other cash flow
requirements for at least the next 12 months. Our ability to meet our capital requirements will depend on our ability to generate cash flows from
operations.

The terms of the License Agreement and our credit facilities, among other things, restrict the commingling of funds between The Children�s
Place and Hoop and limit borrowings by Hoop from The Children�s Place as well as distributions from Hoop to The Children�s Place, other than
payment for the allocated costs of shared services. Therefore, we have segregated all cash receipts and disbursements, investments, and credit
facility borrowings and letter of credit activity. This segregation could lead to a liquidity need in one business even while there is adequate
liquidity in the other business. We believe that cash flow from operations and availability and borrowings under our amended credit facilities
will be adequate to fund the growth needs and operations of each division. During the next 12 months, it is probable that The Children�s Place
business will provide additional capital to the Disney Store business for that business to meet its growth objectives or operating commitments
(including our obligations under the Refurbishment Amendment).

Further, we anticipate that The Children�s Place business might need to provide additional capital to the Disney Stores thereafter, to support the
Company�s commitment in the Refurbishment Amendment to remodel and maintain the Disney Stores over the next five
years. With respect to the total capital commitment of $175 million that we have made for the work required by the
Refurbishment Amendment, we expect to fund these amounts through cash flow from operations of the Disney Store
business, borrowings and availability under our credit facilities and capital contributions from The Children�s Place
business to the Disney Store business.

In connection with our acquisition of the Disney Store business in 2004, we entered into a Guaranty and Commitment dated as of November 21,
2004, in favor of Hoop and Disney. As required by the Guaranty and Commitment, we invested $50 million in Hoop concurrently with the
consummation of the acquisition, and agreed to invest up to an additional $50 million to enable Hoop to comply with its obligations under the
License Agreement and otherwise fund the operations of Hoop. The Guaranty and Commitment provides that our $50 million additional
commitment is subject to increase if certain distributions are made by Hoop to The Children�s Place. To date, we have not invested any portion of
the additional $50 million in Hoop. We also agreed in the Guaranty and Commitment to guarantee the payment and performance of Hoop (for its
royalty payment and other obligations to Disney), subject to a maximum guaranty liability of $25 million, plus expenses.

In connection with our acquisition of the DSNA Business, Hoop and Disney�s subsidiaries entered into a License Agreement under which Hoop
has the right to use certain Disney intellectual property in the DSNA Business in exchange for ongoing royalty payments. The License
Agreement limits Hoop�s ability to make cash dividends or other distributions. Specifically, Hoop�s independent directors must approve payment
of any dividends or other distributions, other than payments of:

�  Amounts due under terms of the tax sharing and intercompany services agreements;
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�  Approximately $61.9 million which represents a portion of the purchase price paid by the Company to Disney
(limited to cumulative cash flows since the date of the acquisition); and
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�  Certain other dividend payments, subject to satisfaction of additional operating conditions and limited to 50% of
cumulative cash flows up to $90 million, and 90% of cumulative cash flows thereafter (provided that at least $90
million of cash and cash equivalents is maintained at Hoop).

In the normal course of business, Hoop has reimbursed intercompany services but has not paid any dividends or made other distributions. We do
not expect Hoop to pay dividends or reimburse all or a portion of the $61.9 million described above to the Company during the next 12 months.
Hoop�s cash on hand and cash generated from operations will be utilized to finance store remodels and provide working capital.

Under the License Agreement, Hoop may not incur indebtedness or guarantee indebtedness without written approval from TDS Franchising
LLC (�TDSF�), an affiliate of The Walt Disney Company, except in permitted circumstances as outlined by the License Agreement. The License
Agreement provides that trade letters of credit to fund inventory purchases are permitted without limitation; borrowings under all term and
revolving loans are limited to $35.0 million, with a maximum of $7.5 million for term loan borrowings; and the aggregate amount outstanding
under all term and revolving loans must be reduced to $10.0 million or less at least once annually.

2004 Amended Loan Agreement

In October 2004, we amended and restated our credit facility (the �2004 Amended Loan Agreement�) with Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC,
(�Wells Fargo�) as senior lender and syndicated and administrative agent, and certain other lenders, partly in connection with our acquisition of the
DSNA Business. The 2004 Amended Loan Agreement provided for borrowings up to $130 million (including a sublimit for letters of credit of
$100 million), depending on our levels of inventory and accounts receivable relating to the Children�s Place business. The term of the facility
under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement was scheduled to end on November 1, 2007 with successive one-year renewal options.

Advances under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement were secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all of our assets, other than
assets in Canada and Puerto Rico and assets owned by our subsidiaries that were formed in connection with the acquisition of the DSNA
Business. Amounts outstanding under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement bore interest at a floating rate equal to the prime rate or, at our
option, a LIBOR rate plus a pre-determined margin. The LIBOR margin was 1.50% to 3.00%, and the unused line fee under the 2004 Amended
Loan Agreement was 0.38%.

As of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, there were no outstanding borrowings under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement. During fiscal
2006, various letters of credit were issued pursuant to the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement, but there were no borrowings under the 2004
Amended Loan Agreement, other than letters of credit that cleared after business hours. The average loan balance under the 2004 Amended
Loan Agreement during fiscal 2006 was approximately $0.6 million. During fiscal 2006, our maximum borrowings under the 2004 Amended
Loan Agreement were $7.5 million. Availability under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement as of February 3, 2007 was $78.5 million as
compared to availability of $74.1 million as of January 28, 2006. Letters of credit outstanding under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement as of
February 3, 2007 were $51.5 million as compared with $49.2 million as of January 28, 2006. The interest rates charged under the 2004 Amended
Loan Agreement were 8.25% and 7.25% per annum as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively.

The 2004 Amended Loan Agreement contained various covenants, which included limitations on our annual capital expenditures, maintenance
of certain levels of excess collateral and a prohibition on the payment of dividends. The 2004 Amended Loan Agreement also contained
covenants limiting the amount of funds we can invest in Hoop to $20 million in fiscal 2007 and $15 million in fiscal 2008.
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Primarily as a result of our restatement and the delay in completing our financial statements caused by our stock option investigation, we were
not in compliance with the financial reporting covenants under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement as of February 3, 2007, nor have we been in
compliance since that time. However, we obtained waivers from our lenders for such noncompliance. As discussed below, in June 2007, we
entered into an amended and restated loan and security agreement with Wells Fargo and other lenders, which amended and restated the 2004
Amended Loan Agreement. There were no fees associated with obtaining the waivers through June 28, 2007, the date the 2004 Amended Loan
Agreement was amended and restated. In the amended and restated loan agreement, we received forbearance of these reporting requirements
through July 31, 2007 and subsequently we were granted a waiver through August 30, 2007, which was extended through January 1, 2008.
There were no fees associated with

67

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

167



obtaining the waiver through August 30, 2007; however, we were required to pay a fee of $102,000 to extend the waiver from August 30, 2007
through the date this Annual Report on Form 10-K was filed with the SEC.

As discussed below, in June 2007, we entered into an amended and restated loan and security agreement with Wells Fargo and other lenders,
which amended and restated the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement.

2007 Amended Loan Agreement; Letter of Credit Agreement

In June 2007, we entered into a Fifth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement (the �2007 Amended Loan Agreement�) and a new
letter of credit agreement with Wells Fargo and our other senior lenders (the �Letter of Credit Agreement�) for the purpose of better supporting the
capital needs of our business and reducing the fees associated with our credit facility borrowings. Wells Fargo continues to serve as the
administrative agent under all these facilities.

The 2007 Amended Loan Agreement reduced the facility maximum to $100 million for borrowings and letters of credit, with a $30 million
�accordion� feature that enables us to increase the facility to an aggregate amount of $130 million at our option. There is also a seasonal
over-advance feature that enables us to borrow up to an additional $20 million from July 1 through October 31, subject to satisfying certain
conditions, including a condition relating to our earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (�EBITDA�) on a trailing 12 month
basis based upon the most recent financial statements furnished to Wells Fargo and our estimate of projected pro forma EBITDA for the
over-advance period. The term of the facility ends on November 1, 2010. If we terminate the 2007 Amended Loan Agreement during the first
year there is a termination fee of 0.5% of the $100 million facility maximum ($130
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million if the accordion feature is in use) plus any seasonal over-advance amounts in effect. Under the 2007 Amended Loan Agreement the
LIBOR margin has been reduced to 1.00% to 1.50%, depending upon our average excess availability, and the unused line fee has been reduced
to 0.25%.

Credit extended under the 2007 Amended Loan Agreement continues to be secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all of our
assets, other than assets in Canada and Puerto Rico and assets owned by Hoop. The amount that can be borrowed under the 2007 Amended Loan
Agreement depends on our levels of inventory and accounts receivable relating to The Children�s Place business. The 2007 Amended Loan
Agreement contains covenants, which include limitations on our annual capital expenditures, maintenance of certain levels of excess collateral,
and a prohibition on the payment of dividends. The 2007 Amended Loan Agreement also contains covenants limiting the amount of funds we
can invest in Hoop to $20 million, $55 million, $36 million and $52 million in fiscal years 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively, not to
exceed a maximum aggregate of $175 million over the term of the credit facility.

Under the new Letter of Credit Agreement, we can issue letters of credit for inventory purposes for up to $60 million to support The Children�s
Place business. The Letter of Credit Agreement can be terminated at any time by either us or Wells Fargo. Interest is paid at the rate of 0.75% on
the aggregate undrawn amount of all letters of credit outstanding. Our obligations under the Letter of Credit Agreement are secured by a security
interest in substantially all of our assets for The Children�s Place business, other than assets in Canada and Puerto Rico and assets of Hoop. Upon
any termination of the Letter of Credit Agreement, we would be required to fully collateralize all outstanding letters of credit issued thereunder
and, if we failed to do so, our outstanding liability under the letter of credit agreement would reduce our borrowing capacity under the 2007
Amended Loan Agreement.

On November 2, 2007, we entered into an amendment of the 2007 Amended Loan Agreement (the �First Amendment�), extending the period of
the over-advance feature of the credit facility until November 30 for fiscal 2007. We were required to pay a fee of $30,000 in connection with
this amendment.

Hoop Loan Agreement

As of November 21, 2004, the domestic Hoop entity entered into a Loan and Security Agreement (the �Hoop Loan Agreement�) with Wells Fargo
as senior lender and syndicated and administrative agent, and certain other lenders, establishing a senior secured credit facility for Hoop.
Through fiscal 2006, the Hoop Loan Agreement provided for borrowings up to $100 million (including a sublimit for letters of credit of $90
million), subject to the amount of eligible inventory and accounts receivable of the domestic Hoop entity. The term of the facility extended until
November 21, 2007.

Credit extended under the Hoop Loan Agreement is secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all the assets of Hoop as well as a
pledge of a portion of the equity interests in Hoop Canada. Borrowings and letters of credit under the Hoop Loan Agreement are used by Hoop
for working capital purposes for the Disney Store business. Amounts outstanding under the Hoop Loan Agreement bear interest at a floating rate
equal to the prime rate plus a pre-determined margin or, at Hoop�s option, the LIBOR rate plus a pre-determined margin. The prime rate margin
was 0.25% and the LIBOR margin was 2.00% or 2.25%, depending on the domestic Hoop entity�s level of excess availability. The unused line
fee was 0.30%.

As of February 3, 2007 and as of January 28, 2006, there were no borrowings under the Hoop Loan Agreement. Letters of credit outstanding
were $16.6 million and $25.8 million as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively. Availability under the Hoop Loan Agreement
was $31.6 million and $16.3 million as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively. During fiscal 2006, various letters of credit were
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issued pursuant to the Hoop Loan Agreement, but there were no borrowings under the Hoop Loan Agreement other than letters of credit that
cleared after business hours. The average loan balance under the Hoop Loan Agreement during fiscal 2006 approximated $0.4 million. The
maximum overnight borrowings during fiscal 2006 were $1.7 million. The interest rate charged under the Hoop Loan Agreement was 8.50% and
7.50% per annum as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively.

The Hoop Loan Agreement contains various covenants, including limitations on indebtedness, maintenance of certain levels of excess collateral
and restrictions on the payment of dividends and indebtedness. In addition, an event of default under the Disney License Agreement would
create a cross-default under the Hoop Loan Agreement. Primarily as a result of the delay in completion of our financial statements caused by our
stock option investigation and our discussions with Disney regarding breaches of the License Agreement, we were not in compliance as of
February 3, 2007 or thereafter with the financial reporting covenants under the Hoop Loan Agreement or the provision requiring Hoop to
comply with the License Agreement. However, we obtained waivers from our lenders for such noncompliance. There were no fees associated
with obtaining the waivers through August 30, 2007. However, we were required to pay a fee of $48,000 to extend the waiver from August 30,
2007 through the date this Annual Report on Form 10-K was filed with the SEC.

As discussed below, in June 2007 and August 2007, we entered into amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement.

Amendments to Hoop Loan Agreement

In June 2007, concurrently with the execution of the 2007 Amended Loan Agreement, and in August 2007, we entered into Second and Third
Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement, both with Wells Fargo and the other lenders under the Hoop Loan Agreement (collectively, the
�Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement�). The Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement reduced the facility maximum to $75 million for
borrowings and provide for a $25 million accordion feature that enables us to increase the facility to an aggregate amount of $100 million. The
accordion feature is available at our option, subject to the amount of eligible inventory and accounts receivable of the domestic Hoop entity. In
addition, in the Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement, we extended the termination date of the facility from November 21, 2007 to
November 21, 2010 and reduced the interest rates that we are charged on the outstanding borrowings and letters of credit. Amounts outstanding
under the Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement bear interest at a floating rate equal to the prime rate or, at Hoop�s option, the LIBOR rate
plus a pre-determined margin. Depending on the domestic Hoop entity�s level of excess availability, the LIBOR margin has been reduced to
1.50% or 1.75%, commercial letter of credit fees have been reduced to 0.75% or 1.00%, and standby letter of credit fees have been reduced to
1.25% or 1.50%. The unused line fee has been reduced to 0.25%.

The Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement continue the covenants included in the Hoop Loan Agreement, including limitations on
indebtedness, maintenance of certain levels of excess collateral and restrictions on the payment of dividends and indebtedness. Credit extended
under the Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement continues to be secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all the assets of
the domestic Hoop entity as well as a pledge of a portion of the equity interests in Hoop Canada.

Cash Flows/Capital Expenditures

Cash flows provided by operating activities were $135.6 million, $115.9 million, and $209.2 million in fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004,
respectively. In fiscal 2006, cash flows from operating activities were driven by net income of $87.4 million. Significant non-cash expenses
included approximately $65.7 million in depreciation and amortization expense as well as $18.8 million in net royalty expense, $17.1 million in
asset impairment charges, including $9.6 million in impairments at 29 of our Mickey prototype stores, $7.1 million in disposals of property and
equipment resulting from our decisions not to proceed with a New York City store location and infrastructure investments that were written off
in conjunction with our decision to form an e-commerce alliance with a Disney
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affiliate in which select Disney Store merchandise is sold on the disneyshopping.com website, and $0.4 million of impairment at five
underperforming stores. During fiscal 2006, we made cash payments of approximately $92.5 million for taxes. These payments included
payments related to income earned in fiscal 2005 and estimated tax payments for fiscal 2006. Our primary use of operating cash was the
purchase of inventories, which accounted for $26.2 million.

In fiscal 2005, cash flows from operating activities were driven by net income of $60.0 million. Significant non-cash expenses included $52.9
million of depreciation and amortization expense and $20.0 million of net royalty expense. In fiscal 2005, we were in the royalty holiday period
for our Disney Stores, and therefore, all of the royalty expense was non-cash. The major operating asset that was used in operating activities was
inventories, which accounted for approximately $50.5 million. This increase in inventories primarily reflected the earlier flow of our spring
inventory for both businesses, and for Disney Stores, our planned unit increase in support of our value pricing strategy. Offsetting this use of
cash flows in operating activities were a $41.3 million increase in taxes payable resulting from our higher taxable income in fiscal 2005 and
estimated tax payments made during fiscal 2006 related to income earned in fiscal 2005, and a $23.6 million increase in deferred rent liabilities
primarily reflecting the growth in landlord incentives received for new stores opened at The Children�s Place.

Cash flows used in investing activities were $229.2 million, $89.0 million, and $142.9 million, in fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004,
respectively. During 2006, cash flows used in investing activities increased $140.2 million, primarily as a result of a $75.2 million increase in
our investments and a $65.9 million increase in capital expenditures. During fiscal 2006, we had net investments of approximately $75.2 million
related to Variable Rate Demand Notes (�VRDNs�). Our fiscal 2006 investments in VRDNs were part of our investment strategy to increase our
interest income. During fiscal 2005, our cash flows used in investing activities represented investments made during the year that were sold and
used for working capital needs. During fiscal 2006, our capital expenditures were approximately $155.1 million as compared to $89.2 million in
fiscal 2005.

Capital expenditures increased in fiscal 2006 as a result of our new stores and remodels and investments in our distribution and administrative
facilities. During fiscal 2005, capital expenditures increased $31.4 million due to our increased number of new stores and remodels; investments
made for our new distribution center in South Brunswick, New Jersey; upgrades in our other distribution centers to support the Disney Store
acquisition; our new office facility in Pasadena, California; and other information technology infrastructure investments required to operate our
significantly larger business. During fiscal 2004, cash flows used in investing activities increased primarily due to the acquisition of the DSNA
Business for $107.3 million; capital expenditures related to store openings and remodelings; and investments in our logistics and information
technology infrastructure, partially offset by the net sale of $22.3 million of investments. The number of new store openings and remodelings
has a significant impact on our cash flows used in investing activities. In fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005, and fiscal 2004, we opened 88, 73, and 62
stores, respectively while remodeling 33, 38, and 13 stores, respectively.

Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities were $38.2 million, $(21.3) million, and $44.3 million in fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005, and
fiscal 2004, respectively. In fiscal 2006, cash flows provided from financing activities reflected the funds and tax benefits received from the
exercise of employee stock options and employee stock purchases. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), we presented the tax deductions
resulting from the exercise of stock options as an operating cash flow, in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (�EITF�) Issue No.00-15,
�Classification in the Statement of Cash Flows of the Income Tax Benefit Received by a Company upon Exercise of a Nonqualified Stock
Option.� SFAS 123(R) now requires us to reflect the tax savings resulting from tax deductions in excess of expense as a financing cash flow.
During fiscal 2005, cash flows used in financing activities represented the repayment of borrowings under our revolving credit facilities, which
reflects repayments of borrowings to fund the acquisition of the DSNA Business, partially offset by exercises of employee stock options and
employee stock purchases. During fiscal 2004, cash flows provided by financing activities reflected funds received from borrowings under our
revolving credit facilities, partly used to fund the acquisition of the DSNA Business, and funds received from the exercise of employee stock
options and employee stock purchases.

We anticipate that total capital expenditures will approximate $200 million in fiscal 2007. We also anticipate receiving approximately $20
million in lease incentives in fiscal 2007. These capital expenditures will provide for the opening of approximately 60 The Children�s Place stores
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and approximately 15 Disney Stores, and the remodeling of approximately 21 The Children�s Place stores and seven Disney Stores. During fiscal
2007, a significant portion of our capital expenditures were used to open a distribution center in Ft. Payne, Alabama, to commence construction
on

70

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

173



our new office facilities in Secaucus, New Jersey and to make information technology infrastructure investments. The total project cost of our Ft.
Payne distribution center was approximately $68.0 million, of which approximately $14.6 million was expended in fiscal 2006, with the
remaining approximately $53.4 million spent in fiscal 2007. Our Ft. Payne distribution center, including the material handling
equipment, may be leased or used as collateral for financing in the future.

For our Emerson Lane administrative offices, we originally estimated the total project would cost approximately $65.0 million, of which
approximately $4.7 million was expended in fiscal 2006, approximately $11.7 million has been spent to date in fiscal 2007, with the remaining
approximately $48.6 million expected to be spent in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2009. We are currently reviewing the project to determine if there is a
more cost effective plan to construct the administrative facility.

We believe that cash on hand, cash generated from operations and funds available under our amended credit facilities will be sufficient to fund
our capital and other cash flow requirements for at least the next 12 months. Our ability to meet our capital requirements will depend on our
ability to generate cash flows from operations. In addition, we may consider additional sources of financing to fund our long-term growth.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS

The following tables summarize our contractual and commercial obligations as of February 3, 2007 (in thousands):

Payments Due By Period
Contractual Obligations
(dollars in thousands) Total

1 year or
less 1�3 years 3�5 years

More than
5 years

Operating leases(1) $ 1,146,782 $ 183,272 $ 334,837 $ 271,364 $ 357,309
Employment contracts (2)(3)(4) � � � � �
Minimum Disney Store royalty (5) 260,000 20,000 40,000 40,000 160,000
Disney Store remodel and maintenance
obligations(6) 237,206 16,250 35,750 26,000 159,206
Disney Store remodels in arrears(7) 73,450 73,450 � � �
New store and remodel capital expenditure
commitments � The Children�s Place(8) 24,101 20,477 3,624 � �
New store capital expenditure
commitments � The Disney Store(8) 6,404 6,404
Long-term debt � � � � �
Capital leases � � � � �

Total � Contractual Obligations $ 1,747,943 $ 319,853 $ 414,211 $ 337,364 $ 676,515

Total Amounts of Commitment Expiration Per Period
Other Commercial Commitments
(dollars in thousands)

Amounts
Committed 1 year or less 1�3 years 3�5 years

More than
5 years

Credit facilities $ � $ � $ � $ � $ �
Purchase commitments (9) 453,971 453,971 � � �
Merchandise letters of credit 55,364 55,364 � � �
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Standby letters of credit (10) 12,732 12,732 � � �

Total � Other Commercial Commitments $ 522,067 $ 522,067 $ � $ � $ �

Total - Contractual Obligations and Other
Commercial Commitments $ 2,270,010 $ 841,920 $ 414,211 $ 337,364 $ 676,515

(1)   Certain of our operating leases include common area maintenance charges in our monthly rental expense. For other leases which do not
include these charges in our monthly rental expense, we record the expense in cost of goods sold.

71

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

175



(2)   We have entered into employment agreements with certain executives which provide for the payment of severance up to three times the
executive�s salary and certain benefits following any termination without cause. These contracts commit the Company in the aggregate to
approximately $5.6 million of employment termination costs, of which $5.0 million represents severance payments.

(3)   Steven Balasiano resigned his position as Senior Vice President of the Company effective July 20, 2007. We entered into a severance
agreement with him on July 9, 2007, under which Mr. Balasiano will receive a severance payment of $438,000 and certain other severance
benefits. In addition, the Performance Award agreement between Mr. Balasiano and the Company was amended to provide that, if the Company
meets the performance goals applicable to the Performance Awards previously granted to him, he will receive a prorated portion (30/36) of the
number of shares he would be entitled to receive had he been employed by the Company. The Company currently expects that it will not meet
the performance criteria established for these awards.

(4)   Ezra Dabah resigned his position as CEO on September 24, 2007. Pursuant to his employment agreement, he is entitled to receive a cash
payment of $3.0 million and over the next three years he is entitled to receive non-cash benefits of $0.4 million, subject to final determination by
the Board. In addition, two executive officers have employment agreements that provide that Mr. Dabah�s departure constitutes �good reason� for
such executives to terminate their employment agreements with us and receive severance.

(5)   Royalty payments commenced in November 2006 for certain stores. We became subject to minimum royalties at the beginning of fiscal
2007. See Note 11�Commitments and Contingencies in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for a description of the computation
of the minimum royalty. In accordance with the terms of the License Agreement, the Company has averaged its eligible Disney Store sales for
the previous two years and used that amount to impute the minimum royalty due over the remainder of the 15-year term of the License
Agreement. This estimate does not include future increases or decreases in Disney Store sales and cost of living adjustments since these are
unknown contingencies. The actual minimum royalty may differ materially from the amount currently estimated.

(6)   Contractual amounts for our Disney Store renovations are estimated based on License Agreement provisions as to the number of Disney
Stores required to be remodeled each year. The License Agreement, among other things, requires us to remodel stores within a specified time
period following a long-term lease renewal or at least once every 12 years.

(7)   Represents 113 store remodels required under the License Agreement to be completed by February 3, 2007 which had not been completed
by that date. Since this commitment relates to prior years, we assumed for purposes of this table that the full amount, estimated at $650,000 per
store, would be required in one year or less. However, as of February 3, 2007, we were in negotiations with Disney regarding potential
modifications to the License Agreement to address our remodeling commitment. Refer to the paragraphs below for a discussion of the
Refurbishment Amendment entered into in August 2007, which modified, supplemented and superseded certain provisions of the License
Agreement, including our remodeling commitments through fiscal 2011.

(8)   As of February 3, 2007, we had executed 40 leases for new stores and major remodels (30 for The Children�s Place business and 10 for the
Disney Store). This amount represents our estimate of the capital expenditures required to open and begin operating these stores. We also expect
to receive landlord lease incentives of approximately $12.5 million for these stores, approximately $10.0 million for The Children�s Place and
approximately $2.5 million for the Disney Store.

(9)   Represents purchase orders for merchandise for re-sale of approximately $388.3 million and equipment and construction commitments of
approximately $65.7 million, including commitments related to our Ft. Payne, Alabama distribution center and our new administrative offices at
2 Emerson Lane in Secaucus, NJ.
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(10) Represents letters of credit issued to landlords, banks, insurance companies and Disney subsidiaries. We do not expect a cash outlay for
these stand-by letters of credit during 2007.

In August 2007, following lengthy discussions between the parties, the Company and a Disney subsidiary entered into a Refurbishment
Amendment, which modified, supplemented and superseded the store renovation provisions of the License Agreement, effective through
January 31, 2012. The Refurbishment Amendment sets forth specific requirements regarding Disney Stores to be remodeled and otherwise
refreshed over the period the Refurbishment Amendment is in effect and obligates not only Hoop but also our parent company (which operates
The Children�s Place business), among other things, to commit $175 million to remodel and refresh these stores through fiscal 2011. While the
original provisions of the License Agreement obligated Hoop to remodel Disney Stores under certain circumstances and at certain times, as
reflected in the table above, the original License Agreement did not obligate our parent company beyond the original purchase price and
amounts payable pursuant to the Guaranty and
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Commitment, nor did the original License Agreement establish a specific dollar commitment for our store remodel obligations. Accordingly, the
amounts in the table above as of February 3, 2007 are based on our internal estimates of the costs that would have been incurred by Hoop to give
effect to the store remodels required by the original License Agreement. Additionally, as part of our $175 million capital commitment, the
Refurbishment Amendment requires that we complete a �maintenance and refresh� program (which includes the Mickey retrofits) in
approximately 165 Disney Stores by June 30, 2008 (including the flagship store located on Michigan Avenue in Chicago, which was completed
on September 12, 2007). Although the original License Agreement generally required us to maintain the physical appearance of the Disney
Stores in accordance with the highest standards prevailing in specialty retailing, the �maintenance and refresh� program under the Refurbishment
Amendment imposes specific requirements for timing, numbers of stores and the type of work to be performed. This �maintenance and refresh�
program was considered necessary to upgrade the quality of the Disney Stores to the standard required under the License Agreement and is
incremental to the original License Agreement. The �maintenance and refresh� program is expected to cost approximately $16 million over the 12
month period. Some of the stores required to be refreshed under this program will also be remodeled at a later date in accordance with the
Refurbishment Amendment. With respect to the total capital commitment of $175 million that we have made for the work required by the
Refurbishment Amendment, we expect to fund these amounts through cash flow from operations of the Disney Store business, borrowings and
availability under our credit facilities and capital contributions from The Children�s Place business to the Disney Store business.

Pursuant to the Refurbishment Amendment, we are obligated to remodel a total of 236 existing Disney Stores by the end of fiscal 2011 into a
new store prototype the Company developed, of which the first seven remodels must be completed during fiscal 2007, with an additional 49, 60,
70 and 50 stores required to be remodeled during fiscal 2008, fiscal 2009, fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011, respectively. The Refurbishment
Amendment also limits the number of new Disney Stores to be opened during the remodeling period. However, under the Refurbishment
Amendment, we agreed to open at least 18 new Disney Stores using the new store prototype by the end of fiscal 2008, the majority of which will
open in fiscal 2007, and we have the right to open up to a specified number of additional new stores using the new store prototype during each
fiscal year. The following table summarizes our remodel and maintenance refresh obligations between fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2011 under the
terms of the Refurbishment Amendment (amounts in thousands):

Store Remodel Mickey Retrofit Maintenance Refresh Total

Fiscal Year Stores (#)
Estimated
Cost ($ ) Stores (#)

Estimated
Cost ($ ) Stores (#)

Estimated
Cost ($ ) Contingency ($ )

Estimated
Cost ($)

2007 7 $ 4,250 7 $ 1,050 6 $ 950 $ 1,245 $ 7,495
2008 49 31,650 28 4,200 129 9,675 1,245 46,770
2009 60 39,000 � � � � 1,245 40,245
2010 70 45,500 � � � � 1,245 46,745
2011 50 32,500 � � � � 1,245 33,745

2007 - 2011 236 $ 152,900 35 $ 5,250 135 $ 10,625 $ 6,225 $ 175,000

The table above reflects the requirements of the Refurbishment Amendment, under which we must complete a maintenance refresh in
approximately 170 Disney Stores by June 30, 2008 and then remodel certain of those stores at a later date. However, in the event we were to
remodel or close any such store prior to the time when it is due for a maintenance refresh, we would no longer be obligated to refresh that store.
Accordingly, we anticipate that not all of the 170 stores reflected in the table will need to be refreshed, and at the time the Refurbishment
Amendment was executed, we estimated that 165 stores would be refreshed.

As mentioned above, in addition to the remodel and maintenance costs shown in the above table, the Refurbishment Amendment obligates us to
open a total of 18 new Disney Stores by January 31, 2009, which we estimate will cost approximately $11.7 million in capital expenses. The
majority of these costs will be incurred in fiscal 2007 and are included in our capital expenditure plans. In addition to these 18 new Disney
Stores, during the term of the Refurbishment Amendment we may elect to open additional new Disney Stores, subject to certain limitations
under the Refurbishment Amendment and the original License Agreement. The costs of any such other Disney Stores we may voluntarily elect
to open are not reflected as commitments in the tables in this section.
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The following table represents our store opening, remodeling and maintenance commitments for the Disney Store business for the remainder of
the initial term of the License Agreement (through fiscal 2019) taking into account
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the requirements of the Refurbishment Amendment that apply through fiscal 2011as if the Refurbishment Amendment had been in effect at
February 3, 2007:

Payments Due By Period

(dollars in thousands) Total
1 year or
less 1�3 years 3�5 years

More than
5 years

Disney Store new store capital
expenditure, remodel and maintenance
and refresh obligations (1) $ 341,296 $ 17,245 $ 88,965 $ 80,490 $ 154,596

(1)   Our Disney Store obligation of approximately $341.3 million is comprised of the $175 million remodel, retrofit and maintenance and
refresh obligation noted above through fiscal 2011, approximately $11.7 million in new store capital expenditures (18 stores estimated at
$650,000 each) as provided for in the Refurbishment amendment, and our remaining estimated obligation of approximately $154.6 million as
provided for by the terms of the original License Agreement.

QUARTERLY RESULTS AND SEASONALITY
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Our quarterly results of operations have fluctuated and are expected to continue to fluctuate materially depending on a variety of factors,
including overall economic conditions, the timing of new store openings and related pre-opening and other startup costs, net sales contributed by
new stores, increases or decreases in comparable store sales, weather conditions, shifts in timing of certain holidays, changes in our merchandise
mix and pricing strategy.

Our business is also subject to seasonal influences, with heavier concentrations of sales during the back-to-school and holiday seasons. Our first
quarter results are heavily dependent upon sales during the period leading up to the Easter holiday. Our third quarter results are heavily
dependent upon back-to-school sales at The Children�s Place and upon Halloween sales at Disney Store. Our fourth quarter results are heavily
dependent upon sales during the holiday season. As is the case with many retailers of apparel and related merchandise, we typically experience
lower net sales and net income during the first two fiscal quarters, and net sales and net income are lower during the second fiscal quarter than
during the first fiscal quarter. We experienced losses in the second quarters of fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005. It is also possible that we
could experience losses in other quarters. Because of these fluctuations in net sales and net income (loss), the results of operations of any quarter
are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for a full fiscal year or any future quarter.

The following table sets forth certain statement of operations data and selected operating data for each of our last eight fiscal quarters. The
quarterly statement of operations data and selected operating data set forth below were derived from our unaudited consolidated financial
statements and reflect, in our opinion, all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) necessary to fairly present the results of
operations for these fiscal quarters (in thousands, except per share data):

Fiscal Year Ended February 3, 2007
First

Quarter(1)
Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Net sales $ 426,509 $ 395,614 $ 550,410 $ 645,180
Gross profit 166,963 137,314 242,148 281,988
Operating income (loss) 22,942 (21,791) 64,988 53,256
Net income (loss) 14,720 (13,519) 41,528 44,661
Basic net income (loss) per common share $ 0.52 $ (0.47) $ 1.43 $ 1.54
Diluted net income (loss) per common
share $ 0.50 $ (0.47) $ 1.38 $ 1.48
Comparable store sales increase 9% 16% 14% 6%
Stores open at end of period 1,125 1,142 1,182 1,194
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Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2006(1)
First

Quarter
Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter(2)

Fourth
Quarter

Net sales $ 369,217 $ 318,750 $ 441,051 $ 539,718
Gross profit 141,981 98,754 185,420 233,858
Operating income (loss) 16,532 (33,222) 42,018 67,652
Net income (loss) $ 10,042 $ (20,119) $ 28,738 $ 41,308
Basic net income (loss) per common share $ 0.37 $ (0.73) $ 1.04 $ 1.48
Diluted net income (loss) per common
share $ 0.35 $ (0.73) $ 1.01 $ 1.42
Comparable store sales increase 13% 4% 6% 11%
Stores open at end of period 1,059 1,075 1,107 1,119

(1)    See the �Explanatory Note� immediately preceding Part I, Item 1, Note 2, �Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,� in Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and Note 16, �Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited).�

(2)    Third quarter of fiscal 2005 includes an extraordinary gain net of taxes of $1.7 million, or $0.06 per share, resulting from the finalization of
the fair value of the DSNA Business acquired versus the amount we paid.

QUARTERLY EFFECTS OF RESTATEMENT

The quarterly effects of the restatement on selected income statement line items for the first quarter of fiscal 2006 and the quarters in fiscal 2005
are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended February 3, 2007
Increase/(Decrease) in financial statement line items April 29, 2006 Fiscal Year
(in thousands)
Cost of sales $ 620 $ 620
Selling, general & administrative 384 384
Operating income (1,004) (1,004)
Provision for income taxes (383) (383)
Net income $ (621) $ (621)

Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2006

Increase/(decrease) in financial statement line items
April 30,
2005

July 30,
2005

October 29,

2005
January 28,

2006
Fiscal
Year

(in thousands)
Cost of sales $ (451) $ 321 $ (252) $ 1,609 $ 1,227
Selling, general & administrative (99) 1,588 670 6,395 8,554
Operating income 550 (1,909) (418) (8,004) (9,781)
Provision for income taxes 306 (701) (163) (3,617) (4,175)
Net income $ 244 $ (1,208) $ (255) $ (4,387) $ (5,606)

ITEM 7A.�QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
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In the normal course of business, the Company�s financial position and results of operations are routinely subject to market risk associated with
interest rate movements on borrowings and investments and currency rate movements on non-U.S. dollar denominated assets, liabilities and
income. The Company utilizes cash from operations and short-term borrowings to fund our working capital and investment needs.

Cash, cash equivalents and investments are normally invested in short-term financial instruments that will be used in operations within a year of
the balance sheet date. Because of the short-term nature of these investments, changes in interest rates would not materially affect the fair value
of these financial instruments.
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The Company�s credit facilities with Wells Fargo provide a source of financing for its working capital requirements. The Company�s credit
facilities bear interest at either a floating rate equal to the prime rate or a floating rate equal to the prime rate plus a pre-determined spread. At the
Company�s option, it could also borrow at a LIBOR rate plus a pre-determined spread. As of February 3, 2007, the Company had no borrowings
under the Amended Loan Agreement or the Hoop Loan Agreement. The Company amended its Wells Fargo credit facilities in June 2007. For a
discussion of the amended facilities, please refer to Note 7�Credit Facilities in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Assets and liabilities outside the United States are primarily located in Canada and Hong Kong. The Company�s investment in foreign
subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are generally considered long-term. The Company does not generally hedge
these net investments. As of February 3, 2007, the Company is not a party to any derivative financial instruments.

As of February 3, 2007, the Company had approximately $54.1 million of its cash and investment balances held in foreign countries, of which
approximately $23.5 million was in Canada and approximately $30.6 million in Hong Kong. While the Company does not have substantial
financial assets in China, it imports a large percentage of its merchandise from that country. Consequently, any significant or sudden change in
China�s political, foreign trade, financial, banking or currency policies and practices could have a material adverse impact on the Company�s
financial position or results of operations.

In addition to the Company�s Asian operations, the Company has a growing business in Canada. While currency rates with the Canadian dollar
moved in the Company�s favor for the first and third quarters of the fiscal year, they moved against the Company in the second and fourth
quarters of fiscal 2006 and there can be no guarantee that the exchange rate will move in the Company�s favor in the future. Foreign currency
fluctuations could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operation.

The Company is sensitive to customers� spending patterns which are subject to prevailing regional and national economic conditions such as
consumer confidence, recession, interest rates, energy prices, taxation, and unemployment to name a few. The Company is, and will continue to
be, susceptible to changes in weather conditions, national and regional economic conditions, raw material costs, demographic and population
characteristics, hourly wage legislation, consumer preferences and other regional factors.

As is the case with many retailers, the Company experiences seasonal fluctuations in net sales and net income. Net sales and net income are
generally weakest during the first two fiscal quarters, and are lower during the second fiscal quarter than during the first fiscal quarter. First
quarter results at The Children�s Place are heavily dependent upon sales leading up to the Easter holiday. Third quarter results are heavily
dependent on back-to-school sales at The Children�s Place stores and the Disney Store is heavily dependent on Halloween sales. Fourth quarter
results are heavily dependent upon sales during the holiday season. Weak sales during any of these periods could have a material adverse effect
on the Company.

The Company�s quarterly results of operations may also fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter as a result of a variety of other factors,
including:

�      Increases or decreases in comparable stores sales,

�      Changes in our merchandise mix or pricing strategy,
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�      Weather conditions,

�      Overall macro-economic conditions,

�      The timing of new store openings and related pre-opening and other start-up costs,

�      Net sales contributed by new stores, and

�      Shifts in the timing of certain holidays.

Moreover, a significant portion of Disney Store net sales are generated during the third and fourth quarters of the fiscal year, which may,
therefore, make the seasonality of the total Company more heavily weighted to those quarters. Any failure to meet the Company�s business plans
for, in particular, the third and fourth quarter of any fiscal year would have a material adverse effect on full year earnings, which in all likelihood
would not be offset by satisfactory results achieved in other quarters of the same fiscal year. In addition, because the Company�s expense levels
are based in part on expectations of future sales levels, a shortfall in expected sales could result in a disproportionate decrease in net income.
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Under the provisions of SFAS 123(R), the Company is required to record compensation costs for its various equity plans for employees and
directors. Under the measurement provisions of SFAS 123(R), interest rates, the Company�s stock price and the volatility of the Company�s stock
price each have a significant impact on the determination of equity value; changes in these factors could have a material adverse impact on the
determination of equity compensation costs and, therefore, impact future results of operations. The Company�s risk mitigation for these factors is
to limit or cease its equity compensation plans, which the Company does not feel is reasonable given the competition for highly talented and
qualified employees.

ITEM 8.�FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
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The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the consolidated financial statements and supplementary data listed
in Item 15 of Part IV of this report.

ITEM 9.�CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

187



On October 9, 2007, we were advised by Deloitte & Touche LLP (�Deloitte�), our independent registered public accounting firm, that Deloitte will
not stand for re-election as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending February 2, 2008 (�fiscal 2007�). Deloitte
agreed to complete its engagement as auditor of our consolidated financial statements for the three fiscal years in the period ended February 3,
2007, which are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

On October 15, 2007, the Company, as approved by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, engaged BDO Seidman, LLP (�BDO�) as the
Company�s independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2007.

Prior to the resignation of the Company�s former CEO on September 24, 2007, Deloitte advised the Company that it had determined, in its
professional judgment, that it was no longer willing to rely on his representations in connection with its audits.

Other than as described below, during our two most recent fiscal years ended January 28, 2006 and February 3, 2007, and during the subsequent
interim periods to the date of this filing, there has been no disagreement between the Company and Deloitte on any matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure that, if not resolved to Deloitte�s satisfaction, would have
caused Deloitte to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection with its audit report.

Deloitte has informed us that the difference in judgment between the Company and Deloitte, which resulted in the modification of Deloitte�s
report with respect to management�s assessment of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting relating to the Company�s disclosure of
its material weaknesses (which report is included in Item 9A of this report on Form 10-K), represents, in Deloitte�s professional judgment, a
disagreement with the Company under Item 304 of Regulation S-K of the SEC and the Company agrees that the difference in judgment should
be so treated. The Company does not believe that its disclosure regarding its material weaknesses, as contained in Item 9A of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K, was not fairly presented in all material respects as referred to in such report of Deloitte.

ITEM 9A.�CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
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(a)  Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management, including our principal executive officers (our Interim CEO and our Executive Vice President � Finance and Administration, who is
also our interim CFO), evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as of the end of fiscal 2006. Based on this review, our principal executive officers concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of February 3, 2007 because of the material weaknesses in internal control over
financial reporting discussed below.

In light of these material weaknesses, the Company performed additional analyses and other post-closing procedures to ensure the Company�s
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, management believes
that the financial statements included in this report fairly represent in all material respects the Company�s financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows for the periods presented.

(b) Management�s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Securities
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Our system of internal control is evaluated on a cost benefit basis and is designed to provide reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that reported financial information is materially accurate.
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Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officers, we conducted an evaluation of
the design and effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the criteria set forth in Internal Control�Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (�COSO�). During this evaluation, management
identified three material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company�s
annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. As a result of the following three material weaknesses,
management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of February 3, 2007 based upon the criteria
issued by COSO.

Control Environment

We conducted an evaluation of the design and effectiveness of our control environment, including the control consciousness of our executives
and other personnel, as a foundation for all other components of internal control over financial reporting. Among other factors, the matters we
considered in assessing the control environment included:

�      The existence and implementation of our Code of Business Conduct and related policies and procedures regarding
compliance with law, avoidance and mitigation of conflicts of interest, stock trading and expected standards of ethical
and moral behavior, including dealings with other employees, suppliers, customers, investors, creditors, insurers and
competitors;

�      The existence and implementation of other policies and procedures pertaining to internal governance and business
processes such as expense reimbursement and expenditure authorization, as well as those pertaining to the Company�s
stock option grant practices discussed below;

�      The actions of senior management throughout the year in adhering to good control practices and fostering
adherence by other employees with such practices; and

�      The effect on the control consciousness of management and other employees of sanctions imposed and other
remedial actions taken when violations of Company policies and procedures occur.

Our Code of Business Conduct, which is overseen by our Audit Committee, is intended to ensure that the Company conducts business on a high
ethical plane and employees and others representing the Company pay proper attention to ethical issues. We consider proper attention to
compliance with the code and other policies and procedures, actions by our senior management during the year in dealing with governance
practices and matters affecting internal control, and sanctions imposed and other remedial actions taken when violations of our policies and
procedures occur key to maintaining the �tone at the top� requisite in order for the code and our other policies and procedures to be taken seriously
and fully implemented throughout our organizational structure.
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Our evaluation concluded that, although policies and procedures appropriate for a strong control environment were designed and in large part
instituted, the Company has not been successful in ensuring overall adherence to them to the degree necessary for maintenance of a fully
effective control environment. Matters important to the conclusion reached in our evaluation included:

�      The findings regarding deficiencies in the Company�s stock option granting practices made in the Company�s
investigation;

�      Violations during fiscal 2006 of the Code of Business Conduct by two members of senior management; and

�      Certain other deficiencies noted in adherence during the year to good control practices by certain members of
senior management.

Management has concluded, and the Audit Committee of the Board agrees, that collectively the problems found in these areas reflected a
material weakness in our internal control environment.

Stock Options

As discussed in Note 2 in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, on September 7, 2006 the Company
announced that an internal
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review had discovered irregularities related to the issuance of certain past stock option grants. On or about September 14, 2006, the
Company suspended the granting of stock options or other equity awards to employees and directors and the exercise
of outstanding options until it implements new practices for equity awards and becomes current in its periodic
reporting to the SEC. This suspension continues currently.

The Company subsequently announced that a special committee of outside directors (the �Special Committee�) had been formed and had hired
independent counsel to conduct a comprehensive investigation of the Company�s past stock option granting practices. As a result of the
independent investigation, management has concluded, and the Audit Committee of the Board agrees, that the lack of adequate controls over the
granting of stock options and related documentation constituted a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting. Specifically, we
identified a material weakness comprising the following internal control deficiencies:

�      A formal policy for approving and granting options was not in place.

�      There was a lack of oversight by executive management with respect to the issuance and administration of the
Company�s stock options.

�      The record keeping in connection with the authorization and issuance of stock options was inadequate.

�      Our procedures were insufficient to ensure that all option grants complied with our stock option plans and were
recorded in accordance with applicable accounting rules.

This weakness resulted in the use of incorrect accounting measurement dates for certain stock option grants and related errors in recording
compensation expense. Accordingly, the Company is restating previously filed financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Financial Closing and Reporting Process

Due to a lack of resources and the diversion of resources to the stock option investigation and the resulting restatement of our financial
statements, the Company did not maintain effective controls over the period-end financial close and reporting processes. As a result, the
Company identified a number of adjustments to its 2006 financial statements after their normal release date. Due to the actual and potential
effect on financial statement balances and disclosures, and the importance of the financial closing and reporting processes, management has
concluded, and the Audit committee of the Board agrees, that, in the aggregate, these deficiencies in internal controls over the period end
financial close and reporting process constituted a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting. The specific deficiencies
contributing to these adjustments were that:

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

192



�      The Company did not maintain effective controls over the review and analysis of period-end account balances and
the monitoring of account activity, resulting in an incorrect balance in certain accrual accounts and related
adjustments. In addition, this deficiency had the potential to affect all significant financial statement accounts and
could result in a material adjustment to the financial statements;

�      The Company did not maintain effective controls to ensure the accuracy of the supporting calculations for certain
routine and non-routine transactions. As a result, immaterial errors in spreadsheets resulted in the incorrect recording
of certain transactions; and

�      While accounting reconciliations were performed, the Company did not maintain effective controls to ensure that
they were performed and reviewed on a timely basis and that the analyses and decisions around some reconciling
items were properly documented.

Deloitte & Touche, LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an audit report on management�s assessment of internal
control over financial reporting, which is included immediately following Item 9A(d) to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(c) Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

The following significant changes in our internal control over financial reporting have occurred during our fourth fiscal quarter ended February
3, 2007 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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The following governance and management changes were implemented:

�      The positions of Chair of the Board and CEO were separated. Our Lead Director is serving as acting Chair until a
permanent Chair is selected.

�      The new position of Executive Vice President, Finance and Administration was established, reporting to the CEO
and the Board. Our former Senior Vice President and CFO was elected to this position and currently also serves on an
interim basis as our principal financial and accounting officer. Responsibilities of this position include supervising our
finance, treasury, accounting, legal and human resource functions and serving along with our CEO as a principal
executive officer for purposes of certifying our SEC reports and similar matters.

�      At our Board�s request, our former Chief Administrative Officer, General Counsel and Secretary resigned from
such positions. However, he continued as a Senior Vice President with supervisory responsibility for our real estate,
construction and facilities, store design, and non-merchandise purchasing until he mutually agreed with the Company
to resign such position in July 2007.

Subsequent to February 3, 2007, the following additional governance and management changes were implemented or are in process:

�      Our Board is conducting a search for at least two new independent directors. It is anticipated that, after this
expansion of our Board, an independent director will be selected to serve as our Chair of the Board on an ongoing
basis.

�      We have hired a new Senior Vice President, Finance, who is expected to become CFO shortly after this filing. In
the interim, our Executive Vice President, Finance and Administration, is serving as our CFO. In addition, we have
hired a new General Counsel.

�      Our Board has commenced a comprehensive review, with the assistance of independent counsel, of our
governance system and processes and the Company�s internal controls. As a result, amendments to several committee
charters and to our Corporate Governance Guidelines were adopted. In addition, improvements in our internal policies
and procedures were instituted, including amendments to the Code of Business Conduct, Securities Law Compliance
Guidelines and Related Party Transaction Control Procedures. Additional improvements are under review.

In addition, the specific violations of our Code of Business Conduct by senior management referred to above were uncovered and investigated
under the authority of the Audit Committee, and the Board imposed significant sanctions on the two members of management who committed
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the violations. To help strengthen the overall control environment, the Company is instituting a formal training program for all Corporate
personnel, including executive management, regarding compliance with the Company�s Code of Business Conduct and other Company policies
and procedures.

Additionally, under the supervision of our Compensation Committee, we are instituting more rigorous policies, procedures and practices
governing the approval and granting of stock options and other equity incentive awards and related accounting and internal controls. The Board
in June 2007 adopted a formal Policy Regarding Awards of Equity-Based Incentives to Executive Officers and Other Employees, which is
further discussed below and, consistent with that policy, procedures, practices and controls to the following effect will generally
be applied to all such grants:

�      Grants will be dated on the date that all required approvals have been obtained or a future date, not later than one
month after the approval date, specified when approval is given. The exercise price for each option granted will not be
less than the closing price of our stock on the date of grant.

�      Equity grants will generally be approved only at duly convened, regularly scheduled meetings of our
Compensation Committee or pursuant to a formal, limited delegation by the committee of grant-making authority to a
committee of specified senior officers, as discussed below. Minutes of such meetings will be kept which shall reflect
the specifics of any equity grants approved at the meeting. If in extenuating circumstances grants are to be made by
unanimous written consent of the members of the Compensation Committee, the grant date will be no earlier than the
date the last member signs the consent and the consent
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is received by the Company. We will no longer use �as of� dating for written consents approving equity grants.

�      All grants made to executive officers will be specifically approved by our Compensation Committee as will grants
to employees in other positions designated by the committee.

�      If the making of any grants to non-executives is to be delegated to a committee of senior officers, the overall terms
of such grants will be approved in advance by the Committee. Terms will include annual limits as to the number of
shares subject to all such delegated grants including a limit as to the number of shares available for grant to any
particular employee and may include guidelines for grants that may be made to specified levels of employees. Actions
taken pursuant to delegated authority will be required to be in writing, dated and signed by the executive delegated
authority to make the grant and will be regularly reported to the Committee.

�      Annual grants will be considered and approved by our Compensation Committee at its meeting most closely
preceding or following the first meeting of the Board following the filing of the Company�s Annual Report on Form
10-K. The same grant date will apply to annual grants made to executive officers and other employees.

�      Designated members of our legal and accounting staffs will oversee the documentation, accounting and disclosure
of all equity awards. Standard forms will be established and used for grant documentation (e.g., option agreements and
award notices).

�      Recipients will be advised of awards within a reasonable time period after the grant date.

�      There will be no changes to grants after approval, other than to withdraw a grant to an individual in its entirety to
reflect changes in circumstances between approval and issuance or to correct clear clerical errors. Any other changes
will require approval in accordance with the requirements for making new grants.

No further equity grants will be made until the new policies, procedures and controls are instituted.

The Company has hired a Senior Vice President, Finance, who is expected to assume the role of CFO shortly after this filing, and has filled
substantially all open positions in the accounting department, which the Company expects will help to remediate the material weakness in the
financial closing and reporting process. In addition, the Company�s management and its Audit Committee are taking steps to:
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�      Conduct a review of accounting processes to incorporate technology enhancements and strengthen the design and
operation of controls;

�      Formalize the process, analytics and documentation around the monthly analysis of actual results against forecasts
conducted within the finance department;

�      Document and communicate a detailed comprehensive financial reporting timeline and checklist process to assist
in the timely gathering and review of financial information;

�      Improve quality control reviews within the accounting function to ensure reconciliations are completed accurately,
in a timely manner and with proper management review;

�      Reinforce the thresholds required for management review and approval of account reconciliations and journal
entries; and

�      Formalize and expand the documentation of certain of the Company�s procedures with respect to review and
oversight of financial reporting.

These remediation steps are currently being implemented. The material weakness will not be considered remediated until the applicable remedial
procedures operate for a period of time, such procedures are tested and management has concluded that the procedures are operating effectively.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of

The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc.

Secaucus, New Jersey:

We have audited management�s assessment, included in the accompanying �Management�s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting,�
that The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (the �Company�) did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as
of February 3, 2007, because of the effect of  material weaknesses  identified in management�s assessment based on criteria established in
Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company�s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management�s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management�s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company�s principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performing
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similar functions, and effected by the company�s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company�s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Company�s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis.

The following material weaknesses have been identified and included in management�s assessment:

Control Environment - The Company's controls did not operate to maintain a fully effective control environment.
Specifically, the following deficiencies resulted in this conclusion: (a) the findings regarding deficiencies in the
Company�s stock option granting practices made in the Company�s investigation, (b) violations during fiscal 2006 of
the Code of Business Conduct by two members of senior management, and (c) certain other deficiencies noted in
adherence during the year to good control practices by certain members of senior management.

Stock Options - The Company did not design adequate controls over the granting of stock options and the related
documentation. Specifically, the following deficiencies existed: (a) formal policy for granting and approving options
was not in place, (b) there was a lack of oversight in the issuance and administration of the Company�s stock options,
(c) the record keeping in connection with the authorization and issuance of stock options was inadequate, and (d) the
Company�s procedures were insufficient to provide reasonable assurance that all option grants complied with stock
option plans and applicable accounting rules. This weakness resulted in the use of incorrect accounting measurement
dates for certain stock option grants and related errors in recording compensation expense. Accordingly, the Company
is restating previously filed financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Financial Closing and Reporting - The Company did not design adequate controls over the financial closing and reporting
process. Specifically, due to the lack of and diversion of resources to the stock option investigation and the resulting
restatement of the Company�s financial statements, the Company did not maintain effective controls over the
period-end financial close and reporting processes. As a result, the Company identified a number of adjustments to its
2006 financial statements before their release date. Due to the actual and potential effect on the financial statements
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and disclosures, it was concluded that these deficiencies in internal control over the period end reporting process result
in a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company�s annual or interim financial statements would
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In addition, while the Control Environment material weakness described above was identified and included in management�s assessment, the
disclosure of such material weakness is not fairly presented in all material respects. Specifically, the Company�s disclosure was incomplete with
respect to describing an inadequate tone at the top resulting not only from the matters identified above, but also from insufficient
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remediation actions imposed by those charged with governance in response to violations of Company policies and other actions of senior
management.

These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the financial
statements and financial statement schedule of the Company as of and for the year ended February 3, 2007, and this report does not affect our
reports on such financial statements and financial statement schedule.

In our opinion, because of the incomplete disclosure of the Company�s control environment material weakness as described above, management�s
assessment regarding the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, is not fairly stated, in
all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, because of the effect of the material weaknesses described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
February 3, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended February 3, 2007, of the Company and our report dated,
December 5, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and included explanatory paragraphs relating to (i) the
restatement as discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, (ii) adoption of the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123(R), �Share-Based Payment� as discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, and (iii) a refurbishment
amendment to the Company�s license agreement for the Disney Store chain in North America relating to non-compliance by the Company with
certain provisions of the license agreement, as discussed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Parsippany, New Jersey

December 5, 2007
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ITEM 9B.�OTHER INFORMATION
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None.
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PART III
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ITEM 10.�DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
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Executive Officers and Directors
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The following table lists the current executive officers and directors of the Company:

NAME AGE POSITION
Sally Frame Kasaks 63 Acting Chairman of the Board, Lead Director
Charles Crovitz 54 Director; Interim Chief Executive Officer
Susan Riley 49 Executive Vice President, Finance & Administration, Interim Chief Financial Officer
Neal Goldberg 48 President
Tara Poseley 42 President, Disney Store North America
Richard Flaks 45 Senior Vice President, Planning, Allocation and Information Technology
Mark L. Rose 42 Senior Vice President, Chief Supply Chain Officer
Ezra Dabah 54 Director (1)
Malcolm Elvey 66 Director
Robert Fisch 57 Director
James Goldman 49 Director
Stanley Silverstein 82 Director

(1) Mr. Ezra Dabah served as our CEO until his resignation on September 24, 2007.

Sally Frame Kasaks has served as a director of the Company since 2000, as our lead director since 2005, and as our
acting-chairman since January 2007. Ms. Kasaks is a member of the Company�s audit and compensation committees
and is chairman of the Company�s corporate governance committee. Ms. Kasaks served as Interim Chief Executive
Officer of Pacific Sunwear of California, Inc. from October 2006 through May 2007 when she became Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. Since 1997, she has served as a business consultant to a number of retailers through ISTA
Incorporated. In addition to being a director of Pacific Sunwear of California, Inc., Ms. Kasaks is also a director of
Crane & Co., Inc.
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Charles Crovitz was appointed as our interim CEO in September 2007 and has served as a director of the Company since
2004. Upon becoming our interim CEO, Mr. Crovitz resigned as chairman of the compensation committee and as a
member of the corporate governance committee. Since 2003 Mr. Crovitz has operated Crovitz Consulting Co. From
1993 to 2003, Mr. Crovitz served in several senior executive positions, including as the Executive Vice President &
Chief Supply Chain Officer for Gap Inc. He is also a director of United Stationers, Inc.
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Susan Riley has served as our Executive Vice President, Finance and Administration and as our interim Chief Financial
Officer since January 2007. From April 2006 to January 2007, Ms. Riley served as our Senior Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer. From March 2006 to April 2006, Ms. Riley served as our Senior Vice President, Finance. Prior to
joining us, from July 2005 to February 2006, Ms. Riley served as the Chief Financial Officer of Klinger Advanced
Aesthetics. From February 2004 to April 2005, Ms. Riley served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of Abercrombie & Fitch and from August 2002 to November 2003, she served as Chief Financial Officer of The
Mount Sinai Medical Center. Prior to Mount Sinai, she served as Vice President and Treasurer of Colgate Palmolive
Company from January 2001 to August 2002.
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Neal Goldberg has served as our President since January 2004. Prior to joining us, from September 2001 to October
2003, Mr. Goldberg served as President of Gap Inc.�s Outlet Division, overseeing 220 stores across the Gap, Old Navy
and Banana Republic brands.
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Tara Poseley has served as our President, Disney Store since September 2006. Prior to joining us, from August 2004 to
May 2006 Ms. Poseley served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Design Within Reach. Prior to Design
Within Reach, Ms. Poseley held various management positions within merchandising and operations for Gap Inc.,
most recently serving as Senior Vice President of GapKids/babyGap.
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Richard Flaks has served as our Senior Vice President, Planning, Allocation and Information Technology since
November 2004. Mr. Flaks served as Vice President, Planning and Allocation from March 2003 through November
2004. Prior to joining us, from May 2001 to March 2003, Mr. Flaks held various positions within Victoria�s Secret
Stores division of Limited Brands, Inc. most recently serving as Vice President, Planning and Allocation.
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Mark Rose has served as our Senior Vice President, Chief Supply Chain Officer since November 2004. Mr. Rose
previously served as our Vice President, Merchandising Procurement since 1992.
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Ezra Dabah has served as a director of the Company since 1989. From 1991 to September 2007, Mr. Dabah served as
our CEO. From 1989 to 2006, Mr. Dabah served as our Chairman of the Board. Mr. Dabah is the son-in-law of
Stanley Silverstein, another of our directors.
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Malcolm Elvey has served as a director of the Company since 2002. Mr. Elvey is the chairman of the audit committee
and is a member of the corporate governance committee. Mr. Elvey is the Chief Executive Officer of the U.S. licensee
of The International Academy for Chief Executives, a UK�based executive education business. From 2004 to 2006,
Mr. Elvey served as the Chief Executive Officer of QLIMO, a ground transportation company he helped found in New
York. Since 1999, he has also served as Managing Partner of Collaborative Capital, a venture capital fund focused on
early-stage technology companies.
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Robert Fisch has served as a director of the Company since 2004 and is a member of the audit committee. Since 2001
Mr. Fisch has served as the President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of rue21, a leading
specialty retailer of value priced apparel for young women and men with over 300 stores across the United States.
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James Goldman has served as a director of the Company since 2006 and is a member of the compensation committee.
Mr. Goldman has served as President, Worldwide of Godiva Chocolatier, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Campbell Soup Company, Inc. since 2004. From 2001 to 2004, Mr. Goldman served as President, North America
Food and Beverage of Campbell Soup Company.
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Stanley Silverstein has served as a director since 1996. Since 1952 Mr. Silverstein has served as Chairman of the Board
of Directors of Nina Footwear, a company he founded with his brother. Mr. Silverstein is the father-in-law of Ezra
Dabah, our former CEO and another of our directors.
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Board Committees
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Our Board of Directors has three standing committees: the compensation committee, the corporate governance committee and the audit
committee. In addition to the duties described below and contained in their respective charters, each committee may be assigned additional
duties by our Board from time to time, and each is charged with reporting its activities to our Board. The Board has also established a special
committee composed of all of our independent directors to convene from time to time when considered warranted by the members to discuss
strategic and governance matters. In addition, in November 2006 our Board appointed a special committee to investigate our stock option
granting practices, the work of which was completed in April 2007.

Compensation Committee
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The compensation committee discharges the responsibilities of our Board relating to compensation of our executive officers and other members
of management. The compensation committee establishes our management compensations policies, reviews and recommends to the Board the
terms of the Company�s incentive compensation plans and programs, oversees the implementation of these plans and programs, including the
making of all equity awards, and determines all aspects of the compensation of our executive officers. For more information on the role played
by the compensation committee in setting the compensation of our executives, see �Compensation Disclosure and Analysis � Role of the
Compensation Committee, the CEO and Other Executives� below. In addition, the compensation committee reviews and approves any of our
�related-person� transactions.

Messrs. Crovitz and Goldman and Ms. Kasaks served on the compensation committee throughout fiscal 2006, each of whom our Board
determined to be independent within the meaning of Rule 4200(a)(15) of the National Association of Securities Dealers� Marketplace Rules and
under Rule 10A-3 of the Exchange Act and who qualifies as an outside director for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code
and as a non-management director for purposes of SEC Rule 16b-3. Mr. Crovitz served as this committee�s Chairman throughout fiscal 2006. In
September 2007, the
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Board named Mr. Crovitz interim CEO. In connection with this appointment, Mr. Crovitz resigned from the compensation committee.

The compensation committee operates pursuant to a charter which can be viewed under the �Investor Relations� section of our website at
www.childrensplace.com.

Corporate Governance Committee
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The corporate governance committee acts as a nominating committee to select the Board�s nominees for election by the stockholders as directors
and recommends candidates for election by our Board to fill vacancies. The committee determines the qualifications that should be satisfied by
members of our Board and recommends to the Board the membership of the Board�s standing committees. The corporate governance committee
also assists our Board with oversight of other corporate governance matters, including the evaluation of the effectiveness of each member of our
Board and the performance of the Board as a whole. Each year, the corporate governance committee administers an assessment of our Board,
which includes: (1) a self assessment, pursuant to which our Board evaluates itself as a whole; (2) a peer assessment, pursuant to which our
Board evaluates the effectiveness of each of its members; and (3) a committee assessment pursuant to which each member of our Board
evaluates the effectiveness of its committees.

Ms. Kasaks and Messrs. Crovitz and Elvey served on the corporate governance committee throughout fiscal 2006, each of whom our
Board determined to be independent within the meaning of Rule 4200(a)(15) of the National Association of Securities Dealers�
Marketplace Rules and under Rule 10A-3 of the Exchange Act. Ms. Kasaks serves as the corporate governance committee�s

Chairperson. In September 2007, the Board named Mr. Crovitz interim CEO. In
connection with this appointment, Mr. Crovitz resigned from the corporate
governance committee.
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The corporate governance committee operates pursuant to a charter which can be viewed under the �Investor Relations� section of our website at
www.childrensplace.com.

Audit Committee
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The audit committee monitors the preparation and integrity of our financial statements, our other financial reports and our overall
disclosure practices; the soundness of our system of internal financial controls and our compliance with good accounting practices, and
the appointment, qualifications, independence and performance of our independent registered public accounting firm. Additionally, the
audit committee has oversight responsibility for the performance of our internal audit function and compliance with related legal and
regulatory requirements.
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Messrs. Elvey and Fisch and Ms. Kasaks currently serve on the audit committee, each of whom our Board has determined to be
independent within the meaning of Rule 4200(a)(15) of the National Association of Securities Dealers� Marketplace Rules and under Rule
10A-3 of the Exchange Act. Mr. Elvey serves as the audit committee�s Chairperson. In addition, our Board of Directors has determined
that all three members meet the �financial sophistication� requirement of Rule 4350(d)2(a)(i) of the NASDAQ listing standards and that
Messrs. Elvey and Fisch are each an �audit committee financial expert,� as such term is defined in Item 401(h) of Regulation S-K of the
Exchange Act.
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The audit committee operates pursuant to a charter which can be viewed under the �Investor Relations� section of our website at

www.childrensplace.com.
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As discussed above under �Stock Option Investigation�Overview of the Investigation,� in October 2006 our Audit Committee commenced an
investigation into our stock option grant practices. On November 24, 2006, the Board determined to establish a two-member special committee
of independent members of our Board (the �Special Committee�) to supervise and complete the investigation commenced by the audit committee.
The Special Committee retained separate outside counsel to conduct the balance of the investigation. The Special Committee completed its work
in April 2007. The report and recommendations of the Special Committee and the remedial actions and governance initiatives undertaken by the
Board based on the report and recommendation are discussed above.

Code of Business Conduct
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The Board has adopted a Code of Business Conduct which is applicable to all employees, directors and officers of the Company and its
subsidiaries and affiliates. The Code of Business Conduct is posted under the �Corporate
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Governance� tab under the �Investor Relations� section of our website at www.childrensplace.com and is available in print upon request by
contacting our Assistant Secretary by email at corporatesecretary@childrensplace.com or by mail at the Company�s principal executive offices.
We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement regarding any amendment to, or a waiver of, a provision of the Code of Business Conduct for the
Company�s principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer and controller, or persons performing similar
functions, by posting such information on the Company�s website or by filing a Current Report on Form 8-K.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
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Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our executive officers, directors and persons who own more than 10% of a registered class of our
equity securities to file statements on Form 3, Form 4 and Form 5 of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC. Officers, directors and
greater than 10% stockholders are required by the regulation to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) reports that they file.

Based solely upon a review of Forms 3 and 4 and amendments to these forms furnished to us during the most recent fiscal year, and written
representations that no Form 5 was required, all parties subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) filed all such required reports
during and with respect to the fiscal year ended January 28, 2006, except for the following late filings: (i) on May 23, 2006, Malcolm Elvey
exercised and held 5,000 shares of common stock, which was reported on Form 4 on June 13, 2006; (ii) on August 17, 2006, James Goldman
was elected to our Board of Directors, which was reported on Form 3 on September 22, 2006; and (iii) it is our understanding that on March 8,
2006 Renee Dabah, the wife of our former CEO, received a distribution of 66,500 shares of common stock from a trust, which to date has not
been reported on a Section 16(a) report.

ITEM 11.�EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
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Compensation Discussion and Analysis
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Introduction

In this section we discuss the objectives of our executive compensation programs, the policies we follow in pursuing those objectives and the
material elements of the compensation provided for fiscal 2006 to our senior executives. Specifically, we describe how we have implemented
our compensation policies in determining each material element of the compensation we provided for fiscal 2006 to the following seven
individuals who, in accordance with rules of the SEC, were considered, based on their positions during fiscal 2006, our �named executive officers�
(�NEOs�):

�      Ezra Dabah, CEO until September 24, 2007;

�      Neal Goldberg, President;

�      Susan Riley, Executive Vice President, Finance & Administration and interim CFO;

�      Richard Flaks, Senior Vice President, Planning, Allocation and Information Technology;

�      Mark Rose, Senior Vice President, Chief Supply Chain Officer;

�      Steven Balasiano, Senior Vice President, Store Planning, Maintenance and Purchasing through July 2007 and,
through January 31, 2007, Senior Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer, General Counsel and Secretary; and

�      Hiten Patel, Senior Vice President, CFO until April 15, 2006.

Following this section, we present tabular and narrative information concerning the compensation of each of the NEOs and the terms of their
employment and other compensatory arrangements with the Company. The following compensation discussion and analysis should be read
together with such additional information.

Our Principal Executive Compensation Policies

The fundamental objective of our executive compensation programs is to attract, retain and motivate the performance of the executive
management talent needed to advance both the short-term and long-term interests of our
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stockholders. We have used the following principles in developing and implementing compensation programs to achieve this fundamental
objective.

�           Pay for Performance: We establish each executive�s compensation on terms intended to reward his or her
individual contribution to the Company�s performance and the attainment of the Company�s business goals over the
short-term and the long-term.

�           Competitive Pay: We design a total compensation package for each executive that is intended to be competitive
with the compensation provided to executives with comparable responsibilities at other companies in order to attract
and retain executives with the skills and experience needed to achieve our business goals.

�           Stockholder Value Creation: We use equity awards to motivate executives to build stockholder value on a
consistent basis over time.

�           Clarity: We use clear and understandable performance objectives in our compensation programs that can be
readily assessed by our executives and stockholders.

We applied these principles to determine the main elements we used in our compensation programs in fiscal 2006, as in prior years: salary,
annual cash bonuses and equity awards. We also provided other commonly offered benefits on terms and conditions that we consider consistent
with providing competitive compensation; however, individually and in the aggregate, none of these other benefits were of the same magnitude
as the main elements. Additionally, we have provided for severance benefits where we determined appropriate, including as part of a package of
benefits designed to recruit and retain an executive.

We rely heavily on incentive compensation to encourage superior performance. In general, we believe that short-term incentive compensation
should be based primarily on achieving specified business goals that further stockholder interests (even where not yet recognized in the price of
the Company�s common stock) and that long-term incentive compensation should correlate with changes in stockholder returns. Consequently,
we use annual performance-based cash bonuses to provide short-term incentive compensation and equity awards to provide long-term incentive
compensation. We measure our performance historically over time and in comparison to our peer group companies. In addition, we believe that
a substantial portion of an executive�s compensation should be based on performance factors that management can control.

We strive to achieve an appropriate mix of elements to meet our business objectives, applying our annual bonus and equity-based award
programs so as to balance achievement of short-term business goals with value creation for stockholders over the long-term. These elements are
intended to work together to attract and retain the top talent needed to advance both the short-term and long-term interests of our stockholders by
rewarding exceptional performance sustained over time with a higher level of compensation.

In implementing our executive compensation objectives and principles, we have applied the following standards when determining the amounts
of compensation of our executives:

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

257



�           Base compensation (salary and customary benefits) should be targeted at the median level for executives
having comparable responsibilities at peer group companies, considering variations in size and business complexity;

�           Annual cash bonuses should be based significantly on achievement of our annual business plan goals and
should be targeted at a level that is in the 50% to 75% quartile of executives having comparable responsibilities at
peer group companies if the Company achieves business plan goals that reflect performance in such quartile in
comparison to the historical performance of peer group companies, and should be scaled to produce bonuses at a level
at the upper end of such range if superior performance in comparison to our business plan is achieved;

�           The potential value of equity awards should be targeted somewhat above the median for executives with
comparable responsibilities at peer group companies and equity awards should be designed, taking into account
performance vesting and other performance criteria, so as to generate value for executives if the Company achieves its
business plan goals and should target a potential value in
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line with the top quartile of awards made to executives with comparable responsibilities at peer group companies if the Company exceeds its
business plan goals over the performance period; and

�           Total potential compensation (i.e., the aggregate of base compensation, cash bonuses and equity awards) should
generally be targeted in the 50% to 75% quartile of compensation provided to executives with comparable job
responsibilities at peer group companies if the Company achieves its business plan goals consistently over time and
designed, when taking into account the expected value of equity awards, to produce total compensation in the top
quartile if the Company exceeds its business plan goals consistently over time.

In general, in applying these standards we contemplate a level of potential incentive compensation for senior executives, assuming Company
performance meets business plan objectives, that will constitute roughly two-thirds of total annual compensation, of which half of total
compensation will be in the form of equity awards, with the potential for executives to receive higher total compensation and a higher portion of
their total compensation from equity awards as the market value of the Company�s common stock appreciates.

We generally do not adhere to formulaic financial or other performance or comparative metrics in determining the total amount of an executive�s
compensation, the amount of salary or incentive awards or the mix of elements used in our compensation programs. In general, in determining
incentive awards, we review the performance of each executive officer against performance goals we set for the executive and for the Company
in advance in connection with the development of our business plans and goals. In particular, in determining annual cash bonuses we consider,
as discussed below, satisfaction of objective performance measures for the year determined at the beginning of the year and establish a minimum
target level of performance that must be attained by the Company in order for executives to receive any bonus and a target bonus amount (in the
form of a percentage of annual salary) that an executive may receive if Company performance meets a pre-established target, with larger bonus
amounts possible (subject to a maximum) if the target performance measure is exceeded. However, we also take into account other factors in
determining annual bonuses. We consider in determining each element of the compensation for an executive his or her demonstrated leadership
qualities including the ability to respond to unexpected circumstances. Specific non-quantitative factors affecting compensation decisions for our
executive officers include:

�      Identified and evolving job responsibilities, including changes in the scope of the executive�s responsibilities,

�      The degree and quality of an executive�s Company-specific, industry and management experience,

�      Proven performance over several years,

�      Competitive considerations pertinent to the Company�s need to retain an executive in light of alternative
employment opportunities believed to be available and the compensation practices of other companies, and

�      Compliance with, and leadership in motivating employees in general to comply with, Company policies, including

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

259



our code of business conduct, and good business practices.

We exercise judgment on a discretionary basis in determining the appropriate amount of each type of compensation and the total value of all
compensation provided to each executive after considering the relevant performance metrics and these factors.

Peer Group Companies

In order to assess the competitiveness of the Company�s compensation practices, we compare our compensation programs, particularly salary,
incentive compensation awards and total compensation levels, against companies in the same or similar lines of business and of comparable size.
Specifically, for fiscal 2006 we have identified the following as peer group companies and use available information on their compensation
practices in assessing our own practices: Abercrombie & Fitch; Aeropostle; American Eagle; Ann Taylor; Bon-Ton; Charming Shoppes; Chico�s;
Dress Barn; Gymboree; Mothers Work; Pacific Sunwear of California; Phillips Van Heusen; Polo Ralph Lauren; Talbots; and The Men�s
Wearhouse. These companies were identified as appropriate peer group companies with the assistance of the independent compensation
consulting firm retained by the Company to assist it, initially in connection with the development of our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the �2005
Equity Plan�), which is further
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discussed below. The Compensation Committee of the Board (the �Committee�) reviews the disclosed salary, bonus and equity compensation for
executives with comparable job responsibilities at these companies in determining the compensation levels it uses in setting the main elements of
our executive compensation program.

Role of the Compensation Committee, the CEO and Other Executives

Each member of the Committee is independent, in accordance with applicable rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market. For more information about
the Committee�s composition, responsibilities and practices, see �Part III, Item 10.�Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant, Board
Committees.�

The Committee reviews and recommends to the Board the terms of the Company�s incentive compensation plans and programs for management
personnel, determines the total amounts to be awarded each year under such plans and programs, establishes and oversees the implementation of
our executive compensation policies and programs, and evaluates the performance of and approves the salary, target annual bonus level, actual
annual bonus payments, equity incentive awards and other benefits provided to all executive officers of the Company, as well as other senior
management personnel selected by the Committee. Accordingly, the Committee approved the compensation for each of our NEOs in fiscal 2006.
The Committee also reviews and approves the compensation paid to any individual who in the judgment of the Committee has a close familial
relationship with a director or executive officer, generally applying the standard used in the rules of the SEC with respect to the identification of
related person transactions (as discussed in �Part III, Item 13.�Certain Relationships and Related Transactions�).

In fiscal 2004, the Committee, with advice and assistance from its independent compensation consultant, began a comprehensive review of the
Company�s executive compensation programs, including the competitiveness of each element of the program, with a focus on redesigning the
Company�s performance-based annual cash bonus program and long-term equity incentive program. This review led to the recommendation by
the Committee to the Board and the approval by the Board and subsequently by our stockholders at our 2005 annual meeting of the Company�s
2005 Equity Plan, which expanded the range of equity incentive awards available to be granted beyond stock options. In addition, the review
resulted in the adoption of the Company�s 2006 Annual Management Incentive Bonus Plan (�2006 Bonus Plan�) which was approved by the
Committee, the Board and subsequently by the stockholders at our 2006 annual meeting. Both the 2005 Equity Plan and the 2006 Bonus Plan
were intended for application to all senior management and bonus-eligible employees, not only our executive officers. During the current year,
the Committee further reviewed the Company�s annual bonus program, with the assistance of outside counsel to the Company, and determined
that a revised program should be instituted. As further discussed below, the Committee recommended to the Board and the Board approved
discontinuing the 2006 Bonus Plan and adopting the 2007 Annual Management Incentive Bonus Plan (the �2007 Bonus Plan�) and the Annual
Management Supplemental Bonus Program (the �Supplemental Bonus Program�) to be applied in fiscal 2007 and subsequent years. The 2007
Bonus Plan is subject to stockholder approval and will be presented for a vote at our 2007 annual meeting.

In addition, during the current year, the Committee, after considering the review of the Company�s historical stock option practices by the Special
Committee of the Board and its recommendations, as discussed in �Explanatory Note, Stock Option Investigation, Findings of the Stock Option
Investigation�, developed with the assistance of independent counsel to the Committee and recommended to the Board, and the Board adopted,
new equity grant practices, including policies with respect to the timing of equity grants. These policies are discussed below.

The Committee works with the Company�s CEO, CFO and Senior Vice President, Human Resources in establishing the Company�s management
compensation principles, policies and programs and in making specific executive compensation decisions. Compensation decisions regarding
executive officers, other than the CEO, are made after the Committee reviews performance evaluations and recommendations with respect to
salary adjustments, annual bonuses and incentive awards prepared by the CEO. The Committee then exercises its discretion in deciding whether
or not to modify any such recommended adjustments or awards. The Committee, along with the other independent members of the Board,
evaluated the former CEO�s performance and the Committee determined his salary, annual bonus and incentive awards. The Committee, along
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with the other independent members of the Board have determined the interim CEO�s compensation package. For a detailed description of Mr.
Crovitz�s compensation package, see �Employment and Severance Agreements with NEOs� below. Compensation decisions with respect to the
Company�s former and interim CEOs and, where determined by the Committee, other executive officers are made by the Committee in executive
session (without the participation of any member of management).
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Role of Compensation Consultants and Counsel

The Company starting in 2004 engaged F. W. Cook & Co., a nationally recognized compensation consulting firm, to provide information and
analysis to the Company on specified management compensation matters and to act as an independent consultant to the Committee, reporting to
it on the matters on which it provides advice. F. W. Cook & Co. provided the Committee with information, analysis and advice, including the
identification of peer group companies and comparison of their compensation practices to those of the Company, in connection with the design
and implementation of the Company�s 2005 Equity Plan and the initial implementation of that plan by the making of Performance Awards early
in fiscal 2006, as further discussed below. The Committee has also used the information provided by F. W. Cook & Co. in connection with the
2005 Equity Plan in making other compensation decisions. Although F. W. Cook & Co.�s role in providing these services has primarily involved
advising the Committee, the firm also interacted with management to gather relevant data and to assist in the implementation of compensation
plans and programs. Recently, it has been retained to advise the Committee in making compensation decisions and to assist in the preparation of
disclosures regarding compensation in the Company�s proxy statement and other public filings. When considered appropriate in connection with
the design of the Company�s compensation programs or other decisions regarding the compensation of the Company�s executives, the Committee
has also been advised by outside counsel to the Company and/or, recently, counsel to the Committee.

Role of Employment Agreements

The Committee has approved the Company entering into employment agreements with executives when it has considered such agreements
necessary or appropriate to recruit or retain these executives. In general, such agreements establish an annual salary level subject to increase
upon annual review and provide for the executive�s participation in the Company�s management cash bonus and equity compensation programs
but do not provide the specific terms on which bonus or equity grants may be made to the executive, other than to provide in some instances for
an initial equity grant and that the executive will be eligible to receive a bonus under our bonus program at a minimum target level. The
agreements usually are of indefinite duration, terminable upon advance notice by the executive or the Company. In addition, the agreements
usually provide for severance benefits if the executive�s employment is terminated by the Company without cause. For more information on our
employment agreements with our NEOs, see �Employment and Severance Agreements with NEOs� below.

Accounting and Tax Considerations

During fiscal 2005 and 2006, the Committee established a new program for providing equity incentive awards to management, which included
an April 2005 award of options to most members of the management team, the acceleration of the vesting of many previously issued stock
options, the adoption of the 2005 Equity Plan and the making of Performance Awards. In establishing this program (particularly in providing for
the accelerated vesting of previously granted options), the Company considered the accounting rules that require that stock options and other
equity awards be expensed. The Company�s equity incentive program, including the action taken to accelerate the vesting of certain options, is
described below.

We consider the tax consequences of our compensation programs on both employees and the Company. In particular, we consider the effects of
Sections 162(m), 280G (and the related provision of Sections 4999) and 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the �Code�).

Section 162(m) bars corporations from deducting compensation in excess of $1 million paid to certain executive officers unless the
compensation satisfies certain requirements. Excluded from the $1 million limitation is compensation that, among other tax code requirements,
meets pre-established performance criteria that have been approved by stockholders. The Company�s objective is to structure our compensation
programs to permit the deductibility under Section 162(m) of the incentive compensation we provide our executives to the extent consistent with
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the efficacy of the programs, but the Committee retains the flexibility to provide compensation that may not be tax deductible when it
determines that doing so is in the Company�s best interests.

In fiscal 2005, we were unable to deduct approximately $500,000 of bonus compensation that we paid to certain of our executive officers
because we had not obtained at the time we made bonus awards stockholder approval of the performance criteria used in our bonus program. At
the 2006 annual meeting of stockholders, upon recommendation of the Committee and the Board, the stockholders approved the 2006 Bonus
Plan, including a variety of performance
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criteria which could be used in the discretion of the Committee under the plan. As further discussed below, for fiscal 2006, the Committee
determined to pay bonuses to our executive officers in part under the 2006 Bonus Plan based on the Company�s fiscal 2006 earnings per share,
one of the objective performance criteria provided for by such plan, and in certain cases in part based on a subjective evaluation of the
executives� performance. In the case of certain of our executive officers, the Committee also determined to pay additional bonus amounts
determined by adjusting our earnings per share to reflect the exclusion of certain expenses but otherwise on the same pre-established bonus
terms as applied under the 2006 Bonus Plan. To the extent bonuses were paid to certain of our executive officers based on the subjective
evaluation of their performance or based on these adjustments, such bonus compensation does not qualify for deduction under Section 162(m)
because it did not reflect the application of pre-established and shareholder-approved performance criteria. Approximately $0.2 million of an
aggregate of $2.4 million of bonus compensation paid for fiscal 2006 to our executive officers who are subject to Section 162(m) will,
accordingly, not be deductible by the Company. The Committee and the Board in April 2007 approved, subject to stockholder approval at our
2007 annual meeting of stockholders, the 2007 Bonus Plan to replace the 2006 Bonus Plan. Bonuses paid pursuant to the 2007 Bonus Plan are
intended to qualify for deduction under Section 162(m). The Committee and the Board have also approved the Supplemental Bonus Program,
which provides a framework for the award of bonuses based on criteria that do not qualify under Section 162(m). Accordingly, if bonuses are
paid under the Supplemental Bonus Program, they will not qualify for deduction under Section 162(m).

Section 280G imposes in certain circumstances an excise tax and certain other unfavorable tax results on certain payments or benefits made to
certain executives in connection with a change in control of the Company if the aggregate amount of such payments, after certain exclusions,
exceed a certain level, which, subject to certain qualifications, depends principally on the executive�s average annual taxable compensation from
the Company over the five years preceding the change of control. Under Section 280G, as applied to amounts potentially payable by the
Company, the bulk of such payments would not be deductible to the Company. The compensation payable by the Company to some of its NEOs
in connection with a change of control of the Company as discussed below could reach the level where such excise tax or loss of deductibility
would apply. The Company has undertaken no obligation to pay any excise tax on behalf of, or otherwise compensate it executives, for
unfavorable tax consequences under Section 280G.

Section 409A imposes, commencing December 31, 2004 and subject to certain transitional exemptions, in certain circumstances an excise tax
and certain other unfavorable tax results on certain payments that are considered deferred compensation but that do not satisfy the requirements
of Section 409A. In fiscal 2006, the Company entered into amendments to the employment agreements with two of its NEOs, Ezra Dabah and
Neal Goldberg, intended to assure that payments under such agreements conform to the requirements of Section 409A. The Company believes
that it has no deferred compensation arrangements with any of its executive officers or other employees that are subject to Section 409A that do
not meet its requirements, except as described below with respect to certain option grants, and is under no obligation to any employee to make
him or her whole against the application of Section 409A despite the Company�s belief regarding the applicability of Section 409A and whether
its requirements have been satisfied.

The vesting after December 31, 2004 of options that have an exercise price that is less than the fair market value of the related shares on the date
of grant (�discounted options�) is considered a deferred compensation arrangement subject to, and not qualified under, Section 409A, unless
certain transitional exemptions are applicable. As a result of the Company�s investigation of its historical stock option grant practices, the
Company has determined that many of the option grants that it made, including certain options which vested after December 31, 2004, had an
exercise price less than the fair market value of the Company�s common stock related to the option on the measurement date applicable to such
grants under U.S. GAAP (the �revised measurement date�) and, if such revised measurement date is considered the date of grant for purposes of
Section 409A, then such grants will be considered discounted options subject to the excise tax and other unfavorable tax results provided under
Section 409A, absent the availability of a transitional exemption.

In the case of officers of the Company subject to reporting under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, as amended, in order to be eligible for a
transitional exemption, any discounted options held by such officer were required to be amended before December 31, 2006 to change the
exercise price or the exercise period of such options so as to comply with Section 409A. The Company in December 2006 offered to amend the
terms of all discounted options that vested after December 31, 2004 held by such officers and certain other Vice Presidents and Senior Vice
Presidents of the Company (a total of 13 individuals) so as to satisfy such requirements and all of such officers
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irrevocably agreed before the end of 2006 to either amend all such discounted options to increase the exercise price to the average of the high
and low trading price on the date the Company determined to be the revised measurement date for the option grant or to limit the period in which
such options may be exercised so as to satisfy the requirements of Section 409A. The Company intends to provide in the near future, subject to
satisfaction of certain regulatory requirements, to all current employees, other than those that agreed in December 2006 to amend their
discounted options, who hold options that vested after December 31, 2004 and that have an exercise price below the revised measurement date
price determined by the Company to be applicable to such options an offer to exchange such options for options with an exercise price increased
to the revised measurement date price determined by the Company and, if the recipient elects to accept such offer, to receive a cash payment in
the amount by which the aggregate exercise price of all such options have been increased. In addition, in the case of such employees who have
exercised discounted options during 2006 before the Company suspended option issuances and exercises starting on September 14, 2006, if the
exercise of the option subjects the employee to the 409A excise tax, the Committee has approved the Company paying to or on behalf of the
recipient an amount sufficient so that, after paying the 20% excise tax required under Section 409A and any applicable income tax on such
payments, he or she will have the benefit of the amount by which the exercise price was less than the revised measurement date price (but such
individual will be responsible for the amount of income tax that he or she would normally have incurred upon the exercise of such discounted
options absent the applicability of Section 409A).

Other Policies Relating to Executive Compensation

Equity Award Policy. On June 21, 2007, the Board, upon recommendation of the Committee, adopted a formal Policy
Regarding Awards of Equity-Based Incentives to Executive Officers and Other Employees (the �Equity Grant Policy�).
The Equity Grant Policy applies to all awards by the Company of equity-based compensation to employees and
consultants and sets forth policies and procedures with respect to granting, reporting, documenting and disclosing
awards. The policy is intended to remedy in part the governance and control deficiencies found in the Special
Committee�s investigation of the Company�s historical stock option grant practices and implements in part the Special
Committee�s recommendations regarding the manner in which equity awards should be made, as discussed in
�Explanatory Note, Stock Option Investigation, Findings of the Stock Option Investigation.� In particular, the policy is
intended to help ensure that all equity awards are made in accordance with applicable law, are properly accounted for
and disclosed and are otherwise handled in accordance with the Board�s intentions and good business practice. Subject
to oversight by the Board, the Committee is charged with supervising the application by management of the Equity
Grant Policy.

Under the policy, shares of the Company are to be valued or priced for purposes of all awards, including for purposes of setting the exercise
price of options, at not less than the fair market value of the shares on the date the award is granted, determined by the closing market price on
the date of grant or, if the shares are not traded on such date, on the most recent trading day. All awards must be approved by the Committee,
which must approve before the award is given effect the recipient, the number of shares involved in the award (or a formula for determining the
number of shares) and all other material terms, except that the Committee may delegate the making of awards as described below. The
Committee may delegate to a committee of at least three senior officers the making of awards to employees other than executive officers or a
committee member, subject to various limitations provided by the Equity Grant Policy, including the establishment by the Committee when
making a delegation of a maximum number of shares that may be subject to all such awards, and that may be subject to awards made to any one
recipient, in any fiscal year. All awards made by the Committee�s delegate must be reported to the Committee at its next regularly scheduled
meeting. All awards shall be on standard terms (subject to variations among recipients in award amounts and vesting schedules) approved by the
Committee, except where otherwise specifically provided by the Committee, including where the Committee has specifically delegated the
authority to make exceptions to a committee of officers.

The Equity Grant Policy also establishes guidelines as to the timing for making awards. Awards to executive officers and other senior managers
designated by the Committee are to be made on an annual basis and are to be approved at the meeting of the Committee most closely preceding
or following the first regularly scheduled Board meeting following the filing with the SEC of the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K,
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except where made in connection with the hiring or promotion of an executive. Awards to other employees or to consultants will also be made
on an annual basis at or about the same time as awards to executives. Awards will be made at other times only where specifically approved by
the Committee in light of extraordinary circumstances. Awards will be considered granted when approved unless when the approval is given a
future date within one month is specified as the date of
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grant, except that awards made in connection with the hiring or promotion of an executive or other employee will be considered granted on the
first business day of the month following approval and the recipient�s commencement of employment or promotion and that awards may become
effective at a later date where made subject to satisfaction of conditions such as stockholder approval. Actions by the Committee regarding
awards will generally be made at minuted meetings of the Committee and may be made by unanimous written consent only in extenuating
circumstances, in which event the action by consent will be given effect only after all committee members have signed and dated the consent; �as
of� consents will not be used. Awards may be made at a time when the Company has material undisclosed information if the Company has such
information at the time scheduled in accordance with the Equity Grant Policy for the making of such awards and the timing is not motivated by
an intention to improperly use such information for the benefit of a recipient.

The Equity Grant Policy also establishes requirements governing the reporting and documentation of awards, including requirements for the
prompt reporting of all granting actions to members of the Company�s Legal and Accounting Departments who are specifically designated as
responsible for supervising the administration of awards. In addition, awards once approved by the Committee or its delegate may not be
modified (other than to reflect correction of a clerical error) unless such modification is approved in the same manner as required for the making
of a new award.

The requirements and guidelines established by the Equity Grant Policy are subject to waiver or modification from time to time by action of the
Committee (but not its delegate) or the Board.

Recovery of Compensation Upon a Restatement. The Company has not established a policy with respect to the recovery or
other adjustment of compensation to be provided to executives or other employees in the event of a restatement of its
financial statements. In fiscal 2005, we were required to restate our financial statements to reflect the reclassification
of certain investments previously classified as cash equivalents, the accounting treatment of certain minimum lease
payments. The Committee did not consider the circumstances surrounding that restatement to warrant any adjustment
to compensation to be provided executives for such year or any effort to recover compensation provided for that year.
As a result of the Company�s recent investigation of its historical option grant practices, the Company has recently
restated its financial statements for the fiscal years 2005 and 2006 and the first quarter ended April 29, 2006. As the
Board, upon recommendation of a special committee of independent directors, determined that the circumstances
leading to this statement did not involve any misconduct by any executive (see the discussion under �Explanatory Note,
Stock Option Investigation, Findings of the Stock Option Investigation.�), the Committee has also determined not to
adjust the compensation otherwise to be provided executives for fiscal 2006 or to recover any compensation provided
for prior years, except that, as described above, the executive officers of the Company have agreed to increase the
exercise price of their discounted options to the revised measurement date price determined by the Company or to
limit the exercise period of their options so as to comply with Section 409A.

Under certain circumstances, the Company may in the future have the right or the duty to adjust compensation before it is paid to its then NEOs
or to recover compensation after it is paid to its then NEOS. Under Section 304 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, if we are required to prepare
an accounting restatement due to a material noncompliance, as a result of misconduct, with any financial reporting requirement under the
securities laws, our CEO and CFO must reimburse the Company for any bonus or other incentive-based or equity-based compensation received
by them during the 12-month period following the first public issuance or filing with the SEC (whichever first occurs) of the document
embodying that financial reporting requirement and any profits realized by them from the sale of our securities during that 12-month period. We
will rely on an evaluation by the Board, after receiving advice of counsel, as to whether the circumstances giving rise to any restatement of the
Company�s financial restatement and the interpretation of the requirements of Section 304 warrant application in the case of any particular future
restatement.
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Elements of Compensation

General.

The compensation packages we provide our NEOs are designed to generate total compensation at levels that are sufficient in light of competitive
considerations to attract and retain executives with the skills and experience required for the successful conduct of the Company�s business and
that reflect the performance of the executive and the Company�s business performance, financial results and stock performance over time. In
setting total compensation for

96

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

270



fiscal 2006, the Compensation Committee reviewed the total compensation for each NEO for each of the prior three fiscal years, if available, as
well as the total compensation of executives with similar job responsibilities at peer group companies. To achieve our executive compensation
objectives and in applying our compensation policies, we used for fiscal 2006 primarily three forms of compensation:

�           salary;

�           a performance-based annual cash bonus, with objective and subjective components; and

�           long-term equity incentives in the form of performance shares or restricted stock grants or deferred stock
awards.

Base Salary.

The Committee sets annual salaries at a level designed to attract and retain superior leaders. An annual salary is agreed upon when an executive
is hired, as part of the recruitment process and taking into account the specific competitive factors regarding the candidate and general
competitive factors as reflected in salary and total compensation levels for persons with similar job responsibilities at peer group companies,
determined based on publicly available information compiled by the Company�s Human Resources Department. When an annual salary is set
forth in an agreement, it is usually established as a minimum and is subject to annual review and adjustment. Except in the case of Ms. Riley,
who was hired during fiscal 2006 and whose salary for the year was set forth in her employment agreement, the fiscal 2006 salary of each of our
NEOs were set by the Committee at the beginning of the year as part of its annual review of the executive�s compensation package and
considering his performance during the previous year. Due to the variation in the number of pay periods during a fiscal year, the salary amounts
reflected on the Summary Compensation table below and shown in prior years may vary slightly from the annual salary levels established for the
executives.

In setting an executive�s salary, the Committee considers the executive�s scope of responsibilities (including changes in responsibility made
during the year or slated to be made), his or her expertise in matters pertinent to the Company, the executive�s level of experience with the
Company, in its industry and with business affairs and the executive�s performance over several years, and also benchmarks salary levels and
total compensation against the salary and total compensation of executives with similar job responsibilities at our peer group companies, using
information from publicly available sources. Generally, the Committee targets each executive�s salary to be within the 50% to 75% quartile of
salaries of executives with comparable responsibilities at peer group companies, considering variation in size and business complexity among
the peer group companies.

Annual Bonuses.

Creation of Pre-Established 2006 Bonus Program
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In accordance with the 2006 Bonus Plan, the Committee in the first quarter of fiscal 2006 selected earnings per share before equity
compensation expense as the objective performance measure to be used in the Company�s annual cash bonus program for such year. Consistent
with the plan�s provisions, the Committee established during the first quarter a target bonus amount for each NEO based on a percentage of the
NEO�s annual salary and established a range of earnings per share levels that it believed would support awarding bonuses to the NEOs (and other
bonus plan participants). If earnings per share before equity compensation expense were below this range, no bonuses would be paid under the
plan and, if above the minimum, bonuses of between 1% and up to 200% of the target bonus amount would be considered, with a target level of
earnings specified at which bonuses of 100% of the target bonus amount would be considered. The minimum level of earnings for fiscal 2006
established for bonus plan purposes was $2.53 per share and the target level at which bonuses of 100% of the target bonus amount would be paid
was set at $3.10 per share.

For each NEO either Company-wide earnings per share before equity compensation expense or in part Company-wide and in part divisional
earnings per share before equity compensation expense was specified as the performance measure applicable to such NEO under the 2006 Bonus
Plan, with the weight to be given to the Company-wide and divisional earnings per share targets varying from executive to executive. For this
purpose, divisional earnings per share would be determined, generally speaking, by allocating against the Disney Stores division�s operating
profit a portion of the costs of distribution shared services the Company incurred with respect to both the Disney Stores and The Children�s Place
divisions.
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In setting earnings per share targets, the Committee considered the Company�s business plan and historical earnings and earnings growth rate, as
well as the earnings growth rates of peer group companies, and targeted a level of earnings performance for bonus plan purposes that it
anticipated would be in the 50% to 75% quartile of earnings growth performance of peer group companies based on their historical performance.

In setting target bonus amounts for executives, the Committee determined that for each NEO (other than the former CEO) a portion of the award
equal to 10% or 20% of the target bonus amount would be based on the Committee�s assessment of the NEO�s personal performance, although
achievement of the objective performance measures would be paramount. Notwithstanding the Committee�s establishment of target bonus
amounts and objective performance criteria for the award of bonuses, the Committee retained flexibility to award bonuses in a greater or lesser
amount or to determine bonuses using different or additional criteria.

Determination of Bonuses Paid Pursuant to the Pre-Established 2006 Bonus Program

Since the Company�s earnings per share before equity compensation expense (Company-wide and divisional) for fiscal 2006 was within the
range of targeted earnings it had established for purposes of the 2006 Bonus Plan, the Committee determined that the objective performance
measures had been met and made a bonus award to each NEO (other than Mr. Patel, whose employment had terminated during the year). In the
case of the former CEO the Committee applied the Company�s earnings level to the range of targeted earnings it had established and his
individualized earnings target and his target bonus amount in order to determine the amount of his bonus for fiscal 2006. In the case of each of
the other NEOs, the Committee applied the Company�s earnings level to the range of targeted earnings it had established and the NEO�s
individualized earnings portion of 80% or 90% of his or her target bonus amount in order to determine the amount of such NEO�s bonus under
the 2006 Bonus Plan for fiscal 2006. After considering the personal performance evaluation of each NEO by the former CEO, the Committee
(with the assistance of the Senior Vice President, Human Resources) also determined that each NEO had satisfied his or her personal
performance measurement and made a bonus award to each NEO (other than the former CEO and Mr. Patel). The actual bonus amount each
NEO received was based on his or her actual performance score and was limited to the remaining 10% or 20% of such NEO�s target bonus
amount that he or she would have received if his or her bonus was determined based solely on the Company�s earnings performance and the
earnings targets the Committee had established under the 2006 Bonus Plan.

Determination of Additional Discretionary Bonus

In addition, in the first quarter of fiscal 2007, based on available financial information, the Committee approved additional bonuses for certain
senior management and other bonus-eligible employees beyond the targeted amounts originally determined in the first quarter of fiscal 2006. In
particular, for purposes of determining the additional bonus amounts, the Committee decided to adjust the amount to be reported as the
Company�s earnings to exclude certain unusual items arising in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, and to approve additional discretionary bonuses
determined based on the amount that would have been available for fiscal 2006 bonus under the 2006 Bonus Plan given the earnings per share
targets established for the year if such unusual items had not affected the Company�s earnings per share. Two expense items were excluded in
calculating the Company�s earnings per share for purposes of determining these additional bonus amount: (i) costs paid or accrued in connection
with the investigation of the Company�s historical stock option grant practices and in tax costs accrued for planned remedial actions plus (ii)
write-offs arising out of asset impairment charges related to fixed assets at 29 recently remodeled Disney Stores. The effect of excluding these
expense items on earnings per share was reduced by also excluding the portion of the tax benefit received by the Company due to certain foreign
tax credits that the Company was able to utilize in fiscal 2006 but had not anticipated utilizing under its 2006 business plan. The matters giving
rise to the items for which the adjustments were made arose primarily out of events occurring before fiscal 2006 and were not anticipated when
the earnings per share targets were set and the Committee concluded, consistent with our principal compensation policies, that, in general, the
management team was not in a position to control these matters and the related accounting charges or benefits did not reflect the level of
management�s performance. This additional discretionary bonus was not awarded to Messrs. Dabah and Balasiano. For all employees, the
additional discretionary bonus amounts awarded totaled approximately $2.2 million, as determined by the Committee in the first quarter of fiscal
2007, based on available financial information.
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In general, the Company applied the same procedures and criteria as described above in setting annual cash bonus amounts for the Company�s
other employees who received bonuses for fiscal 2006.
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Creation of Pre-Established 2007 Bonus Program

In applying the 2006 Bonus Plan over the past year and in otherwise determining the bonuses appropriate for fiscal 2006, the Committee
determined that certain refinements of the Company�s bonus program should be instituted. Accordingly, on April 25, 2007 the Committee
decided to recommend to the Board, and the Board approved, termination of the 2006 Bonus Plan after fiscal 2006 and adoption of a new bonus
plan, the 2007 Bonus Plan, for use in fiscal 2007 and subsequent years and, also, adoption of the Supplemental Bonus Program for use in fiscal
2007 and subsequent years. The 2007 Bonus Plan, which will be submitted for stockholder approval at the 2007 annual meeting of stockholders,
is similar to the 2006 Bonus Plan and provides for performance-based bonuses for members of management selected by the Committee in
amounts that are to be determined (subject to the Committee�s discretion to reduce such amounts) based upon the attainment of any of a variety
of objective performance criteria established in the first quarter of the year, including Company-wide and divisional earnings per share as was
used by the Committee in determining fiscal 2006 bonuses. The total bonuses payable under the 2007 Bonus Plan for a fiscal year to all
employees participating in the plan are limited to 25% of income from continuing operations, determined on a consolidated basis, adjusted to
exclude restructuring and disposition-related charges or credits, net of tax effects, and incremental and non-recurring integration costs and other
financial effects related to business operations of any entity acquired by the Company (the �maximum bonus pool�). The plan provides that the
maximum bonus for any participating employee may not exceed $5 million in any performance period and, to the extent the total of all bonuses
payable to participating employees for a performance period exceeds the maximum bonus pool, all participants� bonuses will be prorated.
Bonuses payable under the 2007 Bonus Plan are intended to constitute performance-based compensation deductible under Section 162(m) of the
Code, subject to shareholder approval of the plan. See �Accounting and Tax Considerations� above. The Compensation Committee has selected
Company-wide and divisional earnings per share as the performance criteria the Committee will apply under the 2007 Bonus Plan in fiscal 2007.

The Supplemental Bonus Program is intended to provide a framework for the making of bonuses based on factors not considered under the 2007
Bonus Plan including the Committee�s assessment of the performance of individual employees and extraordinary contributions to the Company.
The program provides an individualized performance-based bonus opportunity for those employees selected by the Committee to participate in
the program for a fiscal year. Under the program, an individual target bonus amount will be established by the Committee for a participating
employee and will be payable only if (i) a minimum score is achieved on the employee�s individual performance review, which is scored from 0
to 5.0, and (ii) a threshold objective Company (or divisional) performance target is achieved for the fiscal year. No individual performance
component is paid to any bonus-eligible employee who does not achieve a minimum score of 3.0 on their annual performance review.
Additional performance criteria may be established by the Committee. The actual bonus earned by an eligible employee under the Supplemental
Bonus Program may be less than, or greater than, the target bonus amount depending upon the extent to which the applicable performance
targets are met or exceeded and any additional factors the Committee determines to take into account in making bonus determinations under the
program. Although for fiscal 2007 all the Company�s executives are eligible to participate in the Supplemental Bonus Program, the Committee
currently intends that all of the annual bonus awards for executive officers in fiscal 2007 will be made under the 2007 Bonus Plan.

In addition, the Compensation Committee has recommended certain compensation arrangements designed to retain our NEOs and other key
employees. The Board has already adopted a cash retention bonus program for our employees other than our senior management and we
anticipate that the Board may adopt a cash retention bonus for our senior management, including our NEOs, shortly after we become current in
our SEC filings. For a more detailed description of the compensation programs that we anticipate the Board will adopt please see �Compensation
Programs for NEOs and Other Key Employees Currently under Consideration� below.

Equity Awards.

General � As discussed under �Our Principal Executive Compensation Policies� above, a significant portion of the total
package of executive compensation we provide is in the form of equity-based incentive awards. In the past we have
provided equity-based incentives in the form of stock options, which generally were granted to members of the senior
management team, as well as other employees, on an annual basis in connection with annual performance reviews,
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upon hiring or promoting employees and, occasionally, in other instances. However, early in fiscal 2006, we made
Performance Awards to members of the senior management team. These awards were made in connection with a
modification of our equity award programs, and, in combination with the 2005 option awards, were intended to
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provide a multi-year incentive. They were conditioned on satisfaction of performance criteria for both fiscal 2007 and the fiscal 2005 through
2007 period, and have been viewed as a substitute for the option grants that under previous policies would have been awarded to senior
management in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007. The Company currently expects that it will not satisfy the performance criteria for the Performance
Awards and that no shares will be issued pursuant to the awards.

In addition, we anticipate that the Board will, shortly after we become current in our SEC filings, (1) make a grant of equity awards that the
Company had previously promised to certain key employees in connection with their hiring or promotion, (2) adopt a new long term equity
incentive program for our NEOs and certain other key employees to replace the above mentioned performance share program that expires at the
end of fiscal 2007, and (3) make an annual equity compensation grant (of deferred shares or restricted stock) to all eligible employees covering
the 2006 and 2007 (and possibly 2008) annual grant periods. For a more detailed description of the compensation programs that we anticipate
the Board will adopt please see �Compensation Programs for NEOs and Other Key Employees Currently under Consideration� below.

Stock Options � The most recent option award we have made to members of senior management generally was on April
29, 2005, when we granted options for a total of 926,500 shares to senior management and other employees. These
options were granted pursuant to our 1997 Stock Option Plan in connection with our review of our equity-based
compensation program. Each such option has a ten year duration and, at the time they were granted, vested over a four
year period.

On January 27, 2006, the Committee, upon management�s recommendation and after discussion with the Board, approved the acceleration of
vesting of most of the outstanding in- and out-of-the-money stock options held by our employees, collectively involving the right, subject to
certain conditions, to purchase a total of approximately 2.1 million shares of our common stock. We decided to accelerate the vesting of these
stock options to reduce equity compensation expense that would have been recorded in future periods following our adoption as of the start of
fiscal 2006 of SFAS 123(R). Under accounting guidance effective during fiscal 2005 (APB 25 and other relevant accounting guidance), we
recorded an expense in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 of approximately $1.7 million, which represents our estimate of the intrinsic value that
would have been forfeited had the acceleration not occurred. See the table of �Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End� below. The vesting
of stock options for a total of 355,000 shares previously granted to our non-employee directors and certain of our executives was, however, not
changed by this action.

As part of our action accelerating the vesting of options, holders of unvested options for 5,000 or more shares agreed that if they exercised
options prior to the time such accelerated options would have vested under their original vesting schedule, they would not sell or otherwise
transfer the shares they acquired until such time as the shares would have otherwise vested under their original vesting schedule. However, this
restriction lapses upon the option holder�s disability, death or in the event of a change in control of the Company. Unless the transfer restriction is
waived by the Company, in the event such holder ceases to be employed by us for any reason other than death, disability or retirement, the
transfer restrictions continue to apply for the remainder of the original vesting period as if such holder�s employment with us had not ceased or
terminated. Except as described above, all other terms and conditions of each accelerated option remained unchanged.

We suspended the issuance of options and other equity awards, and the issuance of shares upon the exercise of options, in September 2006, in
connection with the investigation of our historical option granting practices, pending the adoption of new equity grant policies and procedures
and the Company becoming current in its periodic reporting. As discussed under �Explanatory Note�Resolution of Tax Consequences and
Corrective Action Related to Discounted Options� above, as a result of the investigation into our stock option granting practices, we determined
that the exercise price of many of our outstanding stock options, including those granted on April 29, 2005, were set below the fair market value
of the related shares on the date of grant, contrary to our policies. As also discussed above, all officers of the Company subject to reporting under
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, as amended, and certain other vice presidents and senior vice presidents of the Company agreed in December
2006 with respect to all options held by them
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that vested after December 31, 2004 and that the Company determined had an exercise price less than the fair market value of the related shares
on the date the Company determined to be the appropriate measurement date for such options to be used in the preparation of its restated
financial statements to the fair market value of the shares on such measurement date to increase the exercise price or to limit the exercise period
of such options. In addition, our former CEO, President and former General Counsel agreed as to all the options held by them that, where the
exercise price was less than the fair market value on the date determined by the Company in connection with the restatement of its financial
statements to be the measurement date for the option, the exercise price would be increased to the fair market value on such date. The
information provided below regarding options held by our NEOs reflects this repricing action. We did not consider the effect of the repricing in
setting fiscal 2006 bonuses for the NEOs or otherwise in determining the fiscal 2006 compensation of the NEOs and have not done so in the
actions we have taken regarding the fiscal 2007 compensation of the NEOs.

2006 Performance Awards � On January 30, 2006, the Committee granted Performance Awards under our 2005 Equity Plan
to the senior management team and certain other employees, including our NEOs then employed by the Company.
This was the first equity-based incentive award made by the Company other than a stock option award. We made
additional Performance Awards later in 2006, including to Susan Riley in connection with her employment as our
Chief Financial Officer. Except for the number of shares that may be received pursuant to an award, the same award
terms applied to all award recipients.

In general, under the award terms, shares of common stock will be issued to an award recipient if certain Company-wide performance criteria
are exceeded and the recipient remains in the Company�s employ at the time shares are to be delivered to recipients. To be eligible for an award,
each employee (other than Mr. Dabah and Mr. Goldberg, who were already parties to such agreements) was required to enter into a
non-competition and confidentiality agreement with the Company. Issuance of shares pursuant to an award is contingent upon the Company
meeting a specified consolidated minimum earnings per share level for fiscal 2007 and a cumulative earnings per share level for the three fiscal
years 2005 through 2007. A target number of shares was designated for each recipient and, depending on the extent to which the minimum fiscal
2007 earnings per share level is met or exceeded, the recipient is entitled (subject to the other award terms) to receive a number of shares up to a
maximum of 200% of the target number of shares. The aggregate target number of shares which may be issued pursuant to the awards (after
giving effect to forfeitures of awards that have already occurred) is 543,979 shares and the maximum number of shares is 1,087,958 shares. In
general, to the extent shares are earned pursuant to the Performance Awards upon satisfaction of the minimum performance levels, 50% of the
shares earned will be delivered promptly following the Committee�s determination that the performance standards have been met and 50% one
year later. Under the terms of the 2005 Equity Plan, if a change of control of the Company occurs before the end of 2007, an award recipient
(unless his or her employment by the Company has already terminated) would be entitled to receive at such time a pro rated portion of his or her
target number of shares determined based on the number of full months that have elapsed from the beginning of fiscal 2005 until the change of
control divided by 36. The terms of the awards are intended to further our policy of utilizing equity based incentives in order to retain key
executive talent. For more detail on the Performance Awards made during fiscal 2006, see the discussion below under �Grants of Plan-Based
Awards.�

The Performance Awards we made in 2006 were intended to provide a major part of the equity incentives we would provide the management
team with respect to fiscal 2006 and 2007. The awards made to our NEOs and other executives were determined taking into account competitive
(including retention) considerations, based primarily on the nature and level of the equity awards and total compensation levels provided
executives of peer group companies with comparable job responsibilities and the standards for setting incentive compensation discussed above,
and the executive�s prior performance and compensation level in previous years.

The Company currently expects that minimum earnings per share level in fiscal 2007 will not be met and that no performance shares will be
issued. In addition, we anticipate that the Board will, shortly after we become current in our SEC filings, adopt a new long term equity incentive
program for our NEOs and certain other key employees to replace the above mentioned performance share program that expires at the end of
fiscal 2007. For a more detailed description of the compensation programs that we anticipate the Board will adopt please see �Compensation
Programs for NEOs and Other Key Employees Currently under Consideration� below.
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan � The Company�s 2005 Employee Stock Purchase Plan authorizes the issuance of up to
360,000 shares of common stock for purchase by employees through payroll deductions. All employees of the
Company who have completed at least 90 days of employment and attained 21 years of age are eligible to participate,
except for employees who own common stock or options on such common stock which represents 5% or more of the
Company�s outstanding common stock. The purchase price for common stock under the plan is 95% of the stock�s fair
market value at the time of purchase.
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Other Benefits.

401(k) Plan � The Company has adopted The Children�s Place 401(k) Savings Plan (the �401(k) Plan�), which qualifies
under Section 401(k) of the Code. The 401(k) Plan is a defined contribution plan established to provide retirement
benefits for all employees who have completed 90 days of service with the Company. The 401(k) Plan is employee
funded up by an annual amount elected by the employee that is limited to the maximum amount provided by the Code,
and also provides for the Company to make matching contributions to the 401(k) Plan. Company matching
contributions for non-highly compensated employees, as defined in the Code, are equal to 100% of the employee�s
contribution up to 3% of compensation plus 50% of the employee�s contribution between 3% and 5% of compensation.
Matching contributions for non-highly compensated employees are immediately vested. Company matching
contributions for highly compensated employees, as defined in the Code, are equal to the lesser of 50% of the
employee�s contribution or 2.5% of the employee�s covered compensation. Matching contributions for highly
compensated employees vest over five years.

Life Insurance � In addition to the perquisites described below, we paid $20,000 in annual premiums due on an individual
life insurance policy for our former CEO. All of our NEOs, including our former CEO, received life insurance
coverage under a program that is generally available to all employees.

Perquisites � We provide our NEOs with limited perquisites that we believe are reasonable and appropriate on a
competitive basis in comparison to peer companies, such as participation in group health insurance program available
to all of our employees. In fiscal 2006 we provided our former CEO with an allowance of $4,000 each month, to be
applied to lease payments and insurance costs on a car available for his exclusive personal as well as business use and
the balance of which he applied in his discretion to expenses which were not reimbursable under the Company�s
normal business expense reimbursement policies, which included the cost of items provided through Company
programs that are used for personal purposes. We also provided our former CEO with a driver and paid our former
CEO for the income tax payable by him (calculated at a rate of 40%) with respect to the income he accrued by reason
of our providing him with a driver for personal as well as business use and making such payments in respect of
income taxes to him. The Committee reviews at least annually the perquisites provided to our NEOs. Costs associated
with perquisites are included in the �All Other Compensation� column in the �Summary Compensation Table� below.

Determination of Fiscal 2006 NEO Compensation

Discussed below are the compensation decisions we made with regard to the fiscal 2006 compensation of each of the NEOs. Each of the
principal elements of our executive compensation programs (salary, annual bonus and equity awards) is addressed where applicable. Except as
specified below, the NEOs did not receive any other material element of compensation and each of them received only the additional benefits
and perquisites discussed above and in the �Summary Compensation� table below. When the Company has entered into an employment agreement
with the NEO and this was a factor in the Compensation Committee�s decision-making, this factor is discussed.
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Except when the particular circumstances relating to the NEO led the Compensation Committee�s decision-making to differ as indicated below,
the Committee determined the annual salary level of each NEO for fiscal 2006 in the spring of 2006 in connection with his or her annual
performance review for fiscal 2005, determined his or her annual bonus in the spring of the current year as part of his or her annual performance
review for fiscal 2006, and with regard to equity awards made a Performance Award to the executive at the end of January 2006 (the beginning
of fiscal 2006). Other than to Susan Riley in connection with her hiring as our CFO in April 2006 and her promotion in January 2007, we did not
make stock option grants or other equity incentive awards to any of the NEOs during fiscal 2006 nor have we done so afterwards to date.

In making decisions about the fiscal 2006 compensation of each NEO, the Committee applied the policies and standards discussed above and
determined that the salary, annual bonus, equity awards and total compensation of the NEO was appropriate, in furtherance of the objectives of
our compensation programs and in the best interest of the Company and its stockholders. In making these compensation decisions the
Committee took into account the performance of the Company and the executive in fiscal 2006 and (where applicable) in previous years, the
executive�s experience and expertise and competitive (including retention) considerations, assessed principally in relation to our practice of
benchmarking our executive�s compensation to that provided executives with comparable responsibilities at the peer group companies identified
above.
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The Committee considered, in particular, in setting the incentive awards provided to each NEO in fiscal 2006 the Company�s financial, strategic
and operational performance and the goals with respect to these matters the Board had established for the year under the Company�s business
plan. With respect to Performance Awards made to certain of our NEOs at the beginning of fiscal 2006, in considering such NEO�s bonus for
fiscal 2005 early in fiscal 2006 and for fiscal 2006 early in fiscal 2007 and in considering the NEO�s total annual compensation for such years,
the Committee considered a range of values that the NEO might receive from the Performance Awards. In particular, the Committee considered
the value of the awards based on three measures: (i) the fair market value of the awards at the time of the Committee�s consideration of such
matters, (ii) the estimated value of the shares that the executive would receive if only the target number of shares were issued pursuant to such
awards and (iii) the estimated value of the shares that the executive would receive if the maximum number of shares permitted to be issued
pursuant to such awards were issued.

The Committee concluded that the incentive award made to each NEO was in each case important to provide appropriate short- and long-term
incentives for such NEO�s continued performance in his or her position and considers them consistent with the Company�s objectives of attracting
and retaining appropriate management talent, aligning the executive�s incentives with corporate goals and the interests of stockholders and
motivating his or her best performance.

Mr. Dabah.

During fiscal 2006, Mr. Dabah served as the CEO of the Company. Mr. Dabah resigned as CEO on September 24, 2007. Mr. Dabah remains a
member of the Board. On May 12, 2006, the Company entered into an amended and restated employment agreement with Mr. Dabah, which
revised the agreement that had been entered into on, and had been in effect since, June 27, 1996. The changes made from the 1996 agreement
were primarily intended to assure compliance with the new deferred compensation requirements established under Section 409A of the Code,
which was enacted in 2004. The other terms of Mr. Dabah�s amended and restated employment agreement did not differ materially from the
terms of the 1996 agreement. For details on the terms of Mr. Dabah�s amended and restated employment agreement, see �Employment
Agreements� below. However, in connection with the amended and restated employment agreement, Mr. Dabah�s annual salary was set at
$1,000,000, which was his salary level during the previous fiscal year as set during his fiscal 2005 performance review and Mr. Dabah was paid
at this salary level in fiscal 2006. The 1996 agreement had provided for an annual salary of $480,000 but Mr. Dabah�s annual salary had been
increased over the years as the Committee had determined such increases were appropriate to ensure that Mr. Dabah�s compensation package
remained competitive with that provided to CEOs of peer group companies. Mr. Dabah�s salary for fiscal 2007 was $1,000,000. All other
components of Mr. Dabah�s annual cash compensation have been determined, as described below.

His amended and restated employment agreement provided for Mr. Dabah�s participation in the incentive programs the Company makes
available to its executives but did not require any specific bonus or equity or other incentive awards. Mr. Dabah received for fiscal 2006 an
annual cash bonus of $1,050,000. This bonus was established under the Company�s 2006 Bonus Plan, which is discussed above, based upon his
target bonus amount for the year, which the Committee had set in the spring of 2006 at 100% of his annual salary rate, and the Company�s
achievement of the Company-wide earnings per share target for fiscal 2006 that the Company had established for him under the program. While
the Committee assessed Mr. Dabah�s performance for the year in determining fiscal 2006 bonus, his bonus was in the amount that would have
resulted based entirely upon the objective performance criteria set for him under the bonus plan. After benchmarking Mr. Dabah�s total
compensation level against that of the CEOs of peer group companies, the Committee in the spring of 2007 determined that it was appropriate to
increase Mr. Dabah�s target bonus amount for fiscal 2007 from 100% to 137% of his annual salary rate in order to target his total compensation at
the level of the peer group mean. On January 28, 2006, the Committee made a Performance Award to Mr. Dabah with a target number of shares
of 57,429, determined based on the factors discussed above. The other terms of the award are as described above.

In connection with his resignation as the Company�s CEO, Mr. Dabah is to receive severance benefits as provided by his employment agreement;
the Company has not entered into any additional agreements with Mr. Dabah concerning additional severance benefits. Mr. Dabah is to receive a
lump sum cash payment of $3.0 million (three times his base salary). Mr. Dabah is not entitled to any bonus payment for fiscal 2007. In addition,
Mr. Dabah is entitled to continue to receive (i) all of his health and welfare benefits, (ii) the use of the services of a driver and (iii) a $20,000
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premium for a life insurance policy, through September 24, 2010.
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For more detail on Mr. Dabah�s compensation for fiscal 2006, see the �Summary Compensation� table and �Employment and Severance
Agreements with NEOs� below.

Mr. Goldberg.

On January 22, 2004 we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Goldberg pursuant to which he serves as our President. Pursuant to the
agreement his annual salary was set at $625,000. On May 12, 2006 we entered into an amended and restated employment agreement with Mr.
Goldberg. The changes made from the 2004 agreement were primarily intended to assure compliance with the new deferred compensation
requirements established under Section 409A of the Code. The other terms of Mr. Goldberg�s amended and restated employment agreement do
not differ materially from the terms of the 2004 agreement. However, in connection with the execution of Mr. Goldberg�s amended and restated
employment agreement, Mr. Goldberg�s annual salary was set at $690,000, subject to annual review, an increase the Committee considered
appropriate based on competitive considerations and Mr. Goldberg�s performance in the prior year. For details on the terms of Mr. Goldberg�s
amended and restated employment agreement, see �Employment Agreements� below. In connection with his fiscal 2006 performance review and
based on similar considerations, Mr. Goldberg�s annual salary was increased to $715,000, effective beginning March 25, 2007 and for the
remainder of fiscal 2007, unless otherwise modified by the Committee.

Mr. Goldberg�s amended and restated employment agreement provides for his participation in the Company�s executive incentive programs but,
other than certain initial awards, does but not require any specific bonus or equity or other incentive awards. His 2004 agreement provided for an
option grant upon commencement of his employment covering 300,000 shares, although, as discussed below, the Company initially was able to
grant to him options for only 250,000 shares and agreed to make an adjustment payment to him in connection with the delay in granting him the
additional 50,000 shares. As amended and restated, his employment agreement also provides that he shall be eligible for an incentive bonus on
the terms of our incentive bonus program at a target level of at least 60% of his annual salary and, depending on satisfaction of performance
criteria, ranging up to at least 200% of such amount.

Mr. Goldberg received for fiscal 2006 an annual cash bonus of $581,256. This bonus was established under the Company�s annual performance
bonus program, based upon his target bonus amount for the year, which the Committee had set in the spring of 2006 at 60% of his annual salary,
and the Company�s achievement of each of the Company-wide and divisional earnings per share targets for fiscal 2006 that the Company had
established for him under the program, as well as the Committee�s evaluation of his performance over the past year and an additional bonus
amount calculated as described above. The Committee has determined that for fiscal 2007 Mr. Goldberg�s target bonus amount will be 60% of
his annual salary rate.

In, addition, in fiscal 2006, Mr. Goldberg received $260,000 as part of an agreed-upon cash adjustment relating to the exercise price of an option
grant for 50,000 shares that the Company agreed to make to him at the time his employment as President of the Company commenced but was
not able to make until April 2005 because of limits under the applicable option plan. The adjustment amount was intended to reflect the increase
in the market price of our shares and correspondingly the exercise price of the options from the time the Company had promised to grant the
options to him until the time the options were granted and was agreed in April 2005 to be paid in installments as the options vested. On January
28, 2006, the Committee made a Performance Award to Mr. Goldberg with a target number of shares of 57,429, determined based on the factors
discussed above. The other terms of the award are as described above. For more detail on Mr. Goldberg�s compensation for fiscal 2006, see the
�Summary Compensation� table below.

Ms. Riley.
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In April 2006, Ms. Riley accepted an offer letter from the Company pursuant to which she was employed as our Senior Vice President, CFO.
Under the terms of Ms. Riley�s offer letter, her annual salary was set at $400,000 and a target bonus amount was set for her under the 2006 Bonus
Plan at 40% of her annual salary. In addition, the Committee made a Performance Award to Ms. Riley on March 13, 2006 with a target number
of shares of 25,000, determined based on the factors discussed above applied in the context of the negotiation of her retention. The other terms
of the award are as described above.

On January 31, 2007, Ms. Riley was promoted to Executive Vice President, Finance and Administration. On April 16, 2007 we entered into an
employment agreement with Ms. Riley, effective as of February 4, 2007, the beginning of our current fiscal year. This agreement provides for an
annual salary of $525,000, subject to annual
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review starting in fiscal 2008, and for an award of 15,000 shares of common stock, to be made as soon as practicable after the Company has
become current in its periodic reporting and vesting one third on each of the first three anniversaries of the date of grant. The agreement provides
for her participation in our equity incentive programs on a basis no less favorable than provided for any other executive officer other than the
CEO but not for any specific incentive compensation level, except that she shall be eligible for an incentive bonus on the terms of our incentive
bonus program in fiscal 2007 of at least 50% of her annual salary at target. For details on the terms of Ms. Riley�s employment agreement, see
�Employment Agreements� below. The Committee determined that the target bonus amount provided to her, taken in the context of her new
position and the equity award promised to her under her employment agreement, was important to provide appropriate short-term and long-term
incentives for Ms. Riley�s continued performance as Executive Vice President and considers them consistent with the Company�s objective to
reward, retain and motivate Ms. Riley in the performance of her job responsibilities.

In considering the terms of Ms. Riley�s initial retention as Senior Vice President and CFO and her employment as Executive Vice President,
Finance and Administration, the Compensation Committee considered, with the assistance of the Senior Vice President, Human Resources, the
compensation provided to executives having similar positions at comparable companies. However, among our peer group companies there are
few, if any, executives who have a set of responsibilities comparable to those she has as Executive Vice President. We also considered the
employment terms of other senior executives of the Company. We determined that the terms of Ms. Riley�s employment agreement, including
the severance provisions, were necessary and appropriate in order to retain and to reward Ms. Riley.

Ms. Riley received $234,880 as a cash bonus for fiscal 2006. This reflected the Company�s achievement of the Company-wide earnings per share
target for fiscal 2006 that the Company had established for her under the 2006 Bonus Plan, as well as the Compensation Committee�s evaluation
of her performance over the past year and an additional bonus amount calculated as described above. For more detail on Ms. Riley�s
compensation for fiscal 2006, see �Summary Compensation� below.

Mr. Flaks.

The Company has not entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Flaks. For fiscal 2006, Mr. Flaks was paid an annual salary of $450,000.
The Committee established Mr. Flaks� fiscal 2006 salary in connection with his 2005 performance review and determined that it was reasonable
and in the best interest of the Company based on Mr. Flaks� job responsibilities and compared to the base salaries of executives at our peer group
companies with comparable responsibilities. In connection with his fiscal 2006 performance review and in light of similar considerations, Mr.
Flaks� annual salary was increased to $490,500, effective beginning March 25, 2007 and for the remainder of fiscal 2007, unless otherwise
modified by the Committee.

For fiscal 2006, Mr. Flaks received an annual cash bonus of $282,240. This bonus was established under the 2006 Bonus Plan, based upon his
target bonus amount for the year, which the Committee had set in the spring of 2006 at 40% of his annual salary, and the Company�s
achievement of the Company-wide earnings per share targets for fiscal 2006 that the Committee established for him under the program, as well
as the Committee�s evaluation of his performance over the past year, and also includes an additional bonus amount calculated as described above.
Based upon the factors described above, the Committee has determined that for fiscal 2007, unless otherwise modified by the Committee, Mr.
Flaks� target bonus amount is appropriate at 40% of his annual salary rate. On January 28, 2006, the Committee made a Performance Award to
Mr. Flaks with a target number of shares of 36,180, determined based on the factors discussed above. The other terms of the award are as
described above. For more detail on Mr. Flaks� compensation for fiscal 2006, see �Summary Compensation� below.

Mr. Rose.
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The Company has not entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Rose. For fiscal 2006, Mr. Rose was paid an annual salary rate of
$400,000. The Committee established Mr. Rose�s fiscal 2006 salary in connection with his 2005 performance review and determined that it was
reasonable and in the best interest of the Company based on Mr. Rose�s job responsibility and compared to the base salaries of executives at our
peer group companies with comparable responsibilities. In connection with his fiscal 2006 performance review and in light of similar
considerations, Mr. Rose�s annual salary was increased to $436,000, effective beginning March 25, 2007 and for the remainder of fiscal 2007,
unless otherwise modified by the Committee.
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For fiscal 2006, Mr. Rose received an annual cash bonus of $234,880. This bonus was established under the Company�s 2006 Bonus Plan, based
upon his target bonus amount for the year, which the Committee had set in the spring of 2006 at 40% of his annual salary, and the Company�s
achievement of the Company-wide earnings per share targets for fiscal 2006 that the Committee established for him under the plan, as well as
the Committee�s evaluation of his performance over the past year and an additional bonus amount calculated as described above. Based upon the
factors described above, the Committee has determined that for fiscal 2007, unless otherwise modified by the Committee, Mr. Rose�s target
bonus amount is appropriate at 40% of his annual salary rate. On January 28, 2006, the Committee made a Performance Award to Mr. Rose with
a target number of shares of 36,180, determined based on the factors discussed above. The other terms of the award are as described above. For
more detail on Mr. Rose�s compensation for fiscal 2006, see �Summary Compensation� below.

Mr. Balasiano.

During fiscal 2006 Mr. Balasiano served as a Senior Vice President of the Company and (until January 31, 2007) as Chief Administrative
Officer, General Counsel and Secretary. Mr. Balasiano was initially employed by the Company as a Vice President and General Counsel in 1995
pursuant to an offer letter. Under the terms of Mr. Balasiano�s offer letter, his annual salary was set at $140,000, subject to annual review. For
fiscal 2006, Mr. Balasiano was paid an annual salary of $430,000, which was set by the Committee in connection with his 2005 performance
review. The Committee determined that this salary was reasonable and in the best interest of the Company based on Mr. Balasiano�s job
responsibilities and compared to the salaries of executives with comparable responsibilities at our peer group companies. On January 31, 2007,
at the request of the Board of Directors, Mr. Balasiano resigned all positions held by him with the Company and was appointed as Senior Vice
President with responsibility for store development, construction and non-merchandise strategic sourcing. The Committee did not increase Mr.
Balasiano�s annual salary rate for such position from his prior position; therefore, his annual salary rate for fiscal 2007 remained at $430,000.

Mr. Balasiano received a cash bonus for fiscal 2006 of $220,590. This bonus was established under the 2006 Bonus Plan, based upon his target
bonus amount for the year, which the Committee had set in the spring of 2006 at 45% of his annual salary, and the Company�s achievement of
the Company-wide earnings per share target for fiscal 2006 that the Committee established for him under the program, as well as the
Committee�s evaluation of his performance over the past year. Based upon the factors described above, the Committee determined that it was
appropriate for fiscal 2007, unless otherwise modified by the Committee, to reduce Mr. Balasiano�s target bonus amount from 45% to 40% of his
annual salary rate. On January 28, 2006, the Committee made a Performance Award to Mr. Balasiano with a target number of shares of 36,180,
determined based on the factors discussed above. The other terms of the award were as described above. For more detail about Mr. Balasiano�s
compensation for fiscal 2006, see the �Summary Compensation� table below.

Effective July 20, 2007, Mr. Balasiano resigned his position as Senior Vice President of the Company to pursue other opportunities. The
Company entered into a severance agreement with him on July 9, 2007. Under the severance agreement, Mr. Balasiano will receive a severance
payment in the amount of $438,000 and certain other severance benefits, and the transfer restrictions applicable to the shares underlying the
vested options to acquire 50,300 shares held by him have been waived and, upon lifting of the temporary suspension on the exercise of options,
he will be afforded the same period in which to exercise his options as is afforded current employees (as the Compensation Committee may
determine in its discretion). In addition, the performance share agreement between Mr. Balasiano and the Company was amended to provide
that, if the Company meets the performance goals applicable to the Performance Awards previously granted to him, he will receive, promptly
after satisfaction of the performance criteria is certified by the committee, a prorated portion (30/36) of the number of shares he would otherwise
be entitled to receive thereunder, even though he no longer continues in the Company�s employ at the time such shares are to be delivered
pursuant to the awards. Further information regarding Mr. Balasiano�s severance agreement is contained below under �Employment and
Severance Agreements with NEOs� below. The terms of Mr. Balasiano�s termination of employment were negotiated on behalf of the Company
primarily by Mr. Dabah and were determined by the Committee to be reasonable and appropriate. For further information regarding the
considerations involved in setting Mr. Balasiano�s severance benefits, see below.
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Mr. Patel.

Mr. Patel served as Senior Vice President, CFO of the Company from April 2005 through April 15, 2006, when the Company and Mr. Patel
mutually agreed that Mr. Patel would leave the Company. The Company did not enter into an employment agreement with him in connection
with hiring him or subsequently. In connection with hiring Mr. Patel in 2005, the Committee set his annual salary at $360,000 per year, at which
salary rate he was paid during the portion of fiscal 2006 in which he was employed. Mr. Patel was awarded in April 2005 options for 50,000
shares, the vesting of which was accelerated in January 2006 as discussed above.

In connection with Mr. Patel�s resignation, the Company entered into a severance agreement with him. Pursuant to such agreement, Mr. Patel
received a severance payment during fiscal 2006 of $180,000 and certain other benefits he also received $27,692 for accrued but unused
vacation and personal days, and the Company waived the transfer restrictions that were applicable with respect to the shares that he could
acquire pursuant to vested options he held to purchase 50,000 shares of our common stock. In consideration for these benefits, Mr. Patel agreed
to certain non-competition, non-solicitation, non-interference, non-disparagement and confidentiality restrictions with the Company and to
release any claims against the Company he might have arising out of his employment or the termination of his employment. Further information
regarding Mr. Patel�s severance agreement is contained below under �Employment and Severance Agreements with NEOs.� The terms of Mr.
Patel�s termination of employment were negotiated on behalf of the Company primarily by Mr. Dabah and were determined by the Committee to
be reasonable and appropriate. For further information regarding the considerations involved in setting Mr. Patel�s severance benefits, see below.
Mr. Patel did not receive any other compensation of a material amount from the Company in fiscal 2006. For more detail on Mr. Patel�s
compensation, see the �Summary Compensation� table below.

Compensation Programs for NEOs and Other Key Employees Currently Under Consideration

Because we have not been current in our SEC filings since September 2006, our ability to effectively address compensation matters impacting
our NEOs and other key employees has been adversely affected. In particular, we have not made our customary annual equity compensation
grants since the spring of 2005. In addition, over the past year we have faced several additional challenges that have impacted our ability to
retain and motivate our employees.

Accordingly, the Board is considering a comprehensive strategy to address the retention and appropriate compensation of our NEOs and other
key employees. Based on recommendations from Frederick W. Cook & Co., Inc. and management, the Compensation Committee has
recommended certain compensation arrangements designed to retain our NEOs and other key employees, as well as to address our objective of
maintaining competitive compensation programs. We anticipate that the Board may adopt some or all of these compensation arrangements being
recommended by the Compensation Committee shortly after we become current in our SEC filings. These new compensation arrangements for
NEOs and other key employees may include some or all of the following components:

�      A new long term equity incentive program for our NEOs and certain other key employees to replace the
performance share program that expires at the end of fiscal 2007;

�      A cash retention bonus for our NEOs;
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�      Change in control and severance agreements for our NEOs and other key employees;

�      An equity compensation grant to all eligible employees covering the 2006 and 2007 (and possibly 2008) annual
grant periods covering the grants that customarily would have been made for such years;

�      A severance policy for our NEOs and other key employees; and

�      The granting of equity awards the Company previously promised to certain key employees in connection with
their hiring or promotion, including 15,000 shares of restricted stock that we promised to Ms. Riley in connection with
her promotion to Executive Vice President in the spring of 2007.

If the Board approves any of the above compensation programs for, or that include, our NEOs, we will disclose the material terms of such
programs as required in a Form 8-K filing.

107

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

291



Compensation Upon Termination of Employment Including After a Change in Control

We have entered into employment and severance agreements with certain of our NEOs that require us to make payments and provide various
benefits to these officers in the event of termination of his or her employment. The severance provisions of the employment agreements of Mr.
Goldberg and Ms. Riley provide for severance payments and other benefits upon termination of employment by the Company without cause or
by the executive for �good reason� and additional benefits are provided upon a termination of employment in connection with a change in control.
Mr. Goldberg and Ms. Riley�s agreements provided for acceleration of vesting of option awards upon their death or disability. For a summary of
the terms of the agreements, including the change in control provisions, see �Employment and Severance Agreements with NEOs� below. For
further information regarding the possible payments under these agreements in the event of a termination of employment or change in control,
see �Potential Payments Upon Termination or a Change in Control� below.

In connection with their resignations, we entered into severance agreements with Mr. Patel and Mr. Balasiano. For information on the severance
payments and benefits provided to them under such agreements and the other material terms of the agreements, see �Determination of Fiscal 2006
NEO Compensation � Mr. Balasiano� and �� Mr. Patel� above and �Employment and Severance Agreements with NEOs� below. In connection with the
resignation of Mr. Dabah, Mr. Dabah is entitled to receive severance pursuant to Section 5.01 of his employment agreement.

The Committee has determined that the change in control and other severance arrangements provided Mr. Goldberg and Ms. Riley in connection
with their employment agreements are appropriate in order to recruit and retain, including to obtain a long-term commitment to employment
from, these executives. We also believe that these severance arrangements will provide our executives with appropriate incentives to remain
employed with us in the event of a change in control of the Company becomes imminent or occurs. In determining the appropriate severance
benefits to be provided to Messrs. Balasiano and Patel, we considered that severance arrangements of the type granted are common
arrangements among our peer group companies in dealing with senior management and consistent with arrangements we have provided other
executives in the past and were appropriate to maintain and enhance the ability of the Company to recruit talented executives in future and in
light of the non-competition restrictions, releases and other benefits obtained by the Company in connection with the severance arrangements.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table summarizes the compensation for fiscal 2006 for our NEOs:

Name and
Principal Position Year Salary(1) Bonus

Stock
Awards
(2)

Option
Awards

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation

(3)
All Other

Compensation Total
Ezra Dabah
Chief Executive Officer(4) 2006 $ 1,028,846 $ � $ � $ � $ 1,050,000 $ 197,484(5) $ 2,276,330

Susan Riley
Executive Vice President,
Finance & Administration
and interim CFO 2006 353,846 100,480(6) � � 134,400 485(7) 589,211

Neal Goldberg
President 2006 709,808 170,154(8) � 776,891 411,102 279,177(9) 2,347,132

Richard Flaks
2006 459,616 131,040(6) � � 151,200 6,512(10) 748,368
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Senior Vice President,
Planning, Allocation and
Information Technology

Mark Rose
Senior Vice President,
Chief Supply Chain Officer 2006 409,615 100,480(6) � � 134,400 13,413(11) 657,908

Steven Balasiano
Senior Vice President, Real
Estate (12) 2006 436,923 58,050(13) � � 162,540 14, 482(14) 671,995

Hiten Patel
Senior Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer (15) 2006 90,000 � � � � 214,600(16) 304,600
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(1)       Since fiscal 2006 was a 53-week year, amounts shown include compensation for the extra week.

(2)       Performance Awards were made under our 2005 Equity Plan. SFAS 123(R) requires that we recognize as compensation expense the
value of all stock-based awards granted to employees in exchange for services over the requisite service period, which is typically the vesting
period. However, because the Company currently expects that it will not satisfy the performance criteria established for these awards, no
Performance Shares will be issued and no compensation expense will be recognized for the Performance Awards granted under the 2005 Equity
Plan. Performance Shares were granted on January 30, 2006, except for those granted to Susan Riley, which were granted on March 13, 2006, in
connection with the commencement of her employment by the Company. For more information, see Note 3�Equity Compensation and Stock
Purchase Plans in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3)       Amounts shown were bonuses granted pursuant to the 2006 Bonus Plan. Bonuses were earned in fiscal 2006 and paid in fiscal 2007.

(4)       Mr. Dabah resigned from his position as CEO on September 24, 2007. Regarding the terms of Mr. Dabah�s resignation from the
Company, see �Employment and Severance Agreements with NEOs� below.

(5)       Amount shown consists of $48,000, representing a $4,000 per month allowance for car lease, insurance and other expenses, $72,562 in
costs incurred by us in providing a driver and $48,374 in payments for related income taxes, all as discussed above, $21,990 in insurance
premiums paid by us with respect to life insurance for the benefit for the executive and $6,558 in matching contributions under the 401(k) Plan.

(6)       Amount shown consists of (a) the personal performance and divisional portion of the cash bonus paid in connection with our
Pre-Established 2006 Bonus Program and (b) the additional discretionary bonus paid to the executive based on the Company�s adjusted earnings
per share targets.

(7)       Amount shown consists of insurance premiums paid by us with respect to life insurance for the benefit of the executive.

(8)       Amount shown consists of (a) the personal performance and divisional portion of the cash bonus paid in connection with our
Pre-Established 2006 Bonus Program and (b) the additional discretionary bonus paid to the executive based on the Company�s adjusted earnings
per share targets.

(9)       Amount shown consists of an $18,000 car allowance and $1,177 in insurance premiums paid by us with respect to life insurance for the
benefit for the executive. In addition, Mr. Goldberg received two $130,000 installment payments in fiscal 2006 in connection with a cash
adjustment relating to an April 2005 grant to him of options for 50,000 shares. See above for more information regarding this cash adjustment.

(10)     Amount shown consists of $502 in insurance premiums paid by us with respect to life insurance for the benefit for the executive and
$6,010 in matching contributions under the 401(k) Plan.
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(11)     Amount shown partially consists of an $8,000 in car allowance, $425 in insurance premiums paid by us with respect to life insurance for
the benefit for the executive and $4,988 in matching contributions under the 401(k) Plan.

(12)     Mr. Balasiano resigned from his position as our Chief Administrative Officer, General Counsel and Secretary effective January 31, 2007
but continued as a Senior Vice President with responsibility for store development, construction and non-merchandise strategic sourcing until his
resignation from that position on July 20, 2007. Regarding the terms of Mr. Balasiano�s severance from the Company, see �Employment and
Severance Agreements with NEOs� below.

(13)     Amount shown consists of the personal performance portion of the cash bonus paid in connection with our Pre-Established 2006 Bonus
Program.

(14)     Amount shown consists of an $8,000 in car allowance, $473 in insurance premiums paid by us with respect to life insurance for the
benefit for the executive and $6,009 in matching contributions under the 401(k) Plan.

(15)     Mr. Patel resigned from his position as Senior Vice President and CFO, effective April 15, 2006. Regarding the terms of Mr. Patel�s
severance from the Company, see �Employment and Severance Agreements with NEOs� below.
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(16)     Amount shown consists of $207,692 in severance payments, $4,791 in accrued vacation and personal time, $77 in insurance premiums
paid by us with respect to life insurance for the benefit for the executive and $2,040 in premium payments for medical insurance coverage for
the executive.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards
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Performance Shares

In fiscal 2006 the compensation committee made equity incentive grants to our executive officers and other key employees in the form of
Performance Awards. Under the terms of these awards, shares of our common stock will be issued to an award recipient if, among other
conditions, the Company achieves a minimum earnings per share level in fiscal 2007 (the �threshold target level�) and a minimum cumulative
earnings per share level for fiscal 2005, 2006 and 2007 (together with the threshold target the �minimum performance target�). For purposes of the
awards, earnings per share will be calculated on a consolidated basis as reported in the Company�s audited financial statements but before
extraordinary items and equity compensation expense and the committee may in its discretion disregard the effects on reported earnings of a
business acquisition or a disposition of assets or a line of business occurring after the award date, as long as such adjustment would not cause the
award to cease to be treated as �qualified performance-based compensation� for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code. If the minimum
performance target is achieved, recipients of the Performance Awards will earn (i.e., become entitled to receive, subject to certain conditions)
50% of a target number of shares established by the compensation committee for each recipient and, if the Company�s fiscal 2007 earnings per
share are above the threshold target level, and the number of shares to be issued to each recipient of the awards will increase (at varying rates) up
to a maximum of 200% of the recipient�s target number of shares to the extent that fiscal 2007 earnings per share exceed the threshold target
level. In the aggregate, the target number of shares that may be earned pursuant to Performance Awards is 543,979 shares and recipients may
earn up to a maximum of 1,087,958 shares if the level of fiscal 2007 earnings per share reach or exceed the 200% target performance level (such
numbers of shares being calculated after giving effect to forfeitures of awards that have already occurred).

If after the end of fiscal 2007 the compensation committee determines that the requisite performance level has been achieved, 50% of the shares
earned under the Performance Awards will be delivered to award recipients promptly following the date of such determination. The remaining
50% of the earned shares will be delivered one year later. In each case, delivery of such shares is contingent, unless the committee otherwise
determines, on the award recipient remaining employed by us at the time of delivery, unless the recipient�s employment ended due to his or her
death or disability. If the recipient died or became disabled before the end of fiscal 2007, he or she will be entitled to receive when shares are
first delivered pursuant to the awards only a pro rated portion of the shares he or she is considered to have earned, determined based on the
number of full months of employment since the beginning of fiscal 2005 divided by 36. In addition, if a change in control of the Company
occurs before the end of fiscal 2007, an award recipient (unless his or her employment by the Company has already terminated) will be entitled
to receive at such time a pro rated portion of his or her target number of shares determined based on the number of full months that have elapsed
from the beginning of fiscal 2005 until the change of control divided by 36. Prior to the delivery of shares pursuant to the awards, no award
recipient will have any ownership or stockholder rights (including, without limitation, dividend and voting rights) with respect to shares to be
delivered nor may the recipient sell or otherwise transfer any interest in the shares.

Each Performance Award is subject to the terms and conditions of our 2005 Equity Plan and an agreement between the award recipient and us in
a standard form. In addition, each Performance Award was conditioned upon the recipient entering into a confidentiality, non-competition and
non-solicitation agreement with us.

The Company currently expects that it will not satisfy the performance criteria established for these awards and that no shares will be issued
pursuant to this program.

For more information on the Performance Awards made during fiscal 2006, see �Compensation Discussion and Analysis � Elements of
Compensation � Equity Awards � 2006 Performance Awards� above. See also, Note 3�Equity Compensation and Stock Purchase Plans in the
accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

No other equity incentive awards were made to executive officers in fiscal 2006. As discussed above, we suspended making equity awards in
September 2006 and the only awards other than the Performance Awards
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referred to above made during fiscal 2006 were option grants made earlier in the year to certain non-executive employees. However, after the
suspension went into effect we did promise to make certain equity awards to directors, executives and other employees when the suspension was
lifted, including, as discussed above, to Susan Riley in connection with her employment as Executive Vice President.

The following table sets forth information regarding grants of incentive awards made to our NEOs during fiscal 2006. Specifically, grants were
made to our NEOs of Performance Awards under our 2005 Equity Plan and cash bonuses under our 2006 Bonus Plan. No stock options were
granted during fiscal 2006. As discussed above, additional cash bonus awards were also made to certain NEOs on a basis similar to the bonuses
paid under the 2006 Bonus Plan.

Estimated Possible Payouts Under Non-Equity
Incentive Plan Awards

Estimated Future Payouts Under Equity
Incentive Plan Awards (In Shares)

Grant Date
Fair Value
of Stock

Name Grant Date
Threshold

($)
Target (1)

($)
Maximum (1)

($)
Threshold

(#)
Target
(#)

Maximum
(#)

Awards
(2)

Ezra Dabah 1/30/06
6/22/06 (3) 0 1,000,000 2,000,000

0 57,429 114,858 $ 2,533,767

Susan Riley 3/13/06
6/22/06 (3) 0 128,000 256,000

0 25,000 50,000 1,247,375

Neal Goldberg 1/30/06
6/22/06 (3) 0 124,200 248,400

0 57,429 114,858 2,533,767

Richard Flaks 1/30/06
6/22/06 (3) 0 144,000 288,000

0 36,180 72,360 1,596,262

Mark Rose 1/30/06
6/22/06 (3) 0 128,000 256,000

0 36,180 72,360 1,596,262

Steven
Balasiano

1/30/06
6/22/06 (3) 0 154,800 309,600

0 36,180 72,360 1,596,262

Hiten Patel 1/30/06
6/22/06 (3) � � �

� � � �

(1)   These amounts only include the amount of bonus payable under the 2006 Bonus Plan which does not include amounts actually paid to the
executives based upon the NEOs� personal performance, divisional earnings per share, or at the Compensation Committee�s discretion.

(2)   Determined in accordance with SFAS 123(R) based on the target number of shares involved in the Performance Awards multiplied by the
closing trading price on the grant date. See Note 3 � Equity Compensation and Stock Purchase Plans in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

(3)   This is the date the stockholders approved the 2006 Bonus Plan.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table sets forth information regarding outstanding equity awards held by our NEOs at the end of fiscal 2006.
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Option Awards(1) Stock Awards

Name

Number
of

Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
(#)

Exercisable(2)

Equity Incentive
Plan Awards:
Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Unearned
Options
(#)

Option
Exercise
Price
($)

Option
Expiration Date

Equity Incentive
Plan Awards:
Number of

Unearned Shares,
Units or Other

Rights That Have
Not Vested
(#) (3)

Equity Incentive
Plan Awards:

Market or Payout
Value of Unearned
Shares, Units or
Other Rights That
Have Not Vested

($)(4)

Ezra Dabah(5) 15,000(6) � $ 15.40 9/18/2007 57,429 $ 3,348,685
100,000 20.29 8/14/2009
85,000 44.95 4/29/2010

Susan Riley � � 25,000 1,457,750

Neal Goldberg 70,750 100,000(7) 27.65 1/22/2014 57,429 3,348,685
38,750 40.65 4/21/2015
63,750 44.95 4/29/2015

Richard Flaks 4,000 9.35 3/31/2013 36,180 2,109,656
12,000 � 17.92 8/15/2013
15,000 25.63 12/5/2013
20,000 31.91 11/3/2014
27,500 37.66 12/31/2007
13,750 37.66 12/31/2008
13,750 37.66 12/31/2009

Mark Rose 3,600 � 19.03 12/31/2007 36,180 2,109,656
6,189 19.03 11/8/2010
3,143 23.94 12/31/2007
6,081 11.23 1/31/2013
15,000 25.63 12/5/2013
20,000 31.91 11/3/2014
55,000 44.95 4/29/2015

Steven
Balasiano(8) 12,000 � 15.94 12/31/2009 36,180 2,109,656

18,000 26.94 11/8/2010
12,000 27.6 11/1/2011
6,882 11.23 1/31/2013
20,000 25.63 12/5/2013
20,000 31.91 11/3/2014
55,000 44.95 4/29/2015

Hiten Patel � � � � � �

(1)   In connection with our investigation of our option granting practices, certain of our NEOs agreed to increase the exercise price of options
held by them to the fair market value of the related shares on the date determined by the Company to be the appropriate measurement date to be
used in accounting for the option awards in the Company�s restatement of its financial statements where the market price on such date was higher
than the exercise price at which the option was awarded subject to final determination by the Board. In other instances, the NEOs agreed to limit
the future time when such options held by them may be exercised. For more information on such increases in option exercise prices and changes
in exercise periods, see �Explanatory Note�Resolution of Tax Consequences and Corrective Action Related to Discounted Options� and
�Compensation Discussion and Analysis � Accounting and Tax Considerations� above. The table above reflects such increases in option exercise
prices and limits on option exercise periods.
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(2)   In September 2006, the Company suspended the issuance of shares of common stock pursuant to the exercise of stock options. This
suspension remained in effect through February 3, 2007 and thereafter.

(3)   The amounts shown reflect the target number of shares of common stock to be issued to each executive if the performance goals are met. If
these goals are met during the performance period, the executives will be entitled to receive at least 50% of such participant�s target number of
shares of common stock and if these goals are exceeded during the performance period, the executives may be entitled to receive up to 200% of
such participant�s target number of shares of common stock.

(4)   Based on the $58.31 closing price of our common stock on February 2, 2007, the last business day of our fiscal year end. The Company
currently expects that it will not satisfy the performance criteria established for the Performance Awards and that no shares will be issued
pursuant to this program. See Note 3 � Equity Compensation and Stock Purchase Plans in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(5)   Mr. Dabah resigned as CEO on September 24, 2007. The Compensation Committee has determined that pursuant to the 2005 Equity
Incentive Plan that Mr. Dabah�s options shall continue to remain effective through the earlier of, (i) 90 days after he no longer is a member of the
Board, or, (ii) the expiration date of such options.

(6)   These 15,000 options expired on September 18, 2007 and were forfeited.

(7)   50,000 of such options vest per year.

(8)   Mr. Balasiano resigned from the Company on July 20, 2007. All of Mr. Balasiano�s options that remain unexercised 90 days from the date
that the Company becomes current in its SEC filings will automatically expire.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested
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The following table sets forth information regarding options exercised by our NEOs during fiscal 2006:

Option Awards Stock Awards

Name

Number of Shares
Acquired
on Exercise

(#)

Value Realized
on Exercise

($)

Number of Shares
Acquired
on Vesting

(#)

Value Realized
on Vesting

($)
Ezra Dabah 84,660 $ 3,746,172(1) � �
Susan Riley � � � �
Neal Goldberg 91,750 2,587,202(1) � �
Richard Flaks 2,000 89,310(2) � �
Mark Rose 57,400 3,213,777(2) � �
Steven Balasiano 17,118 873,147(1) � �
Hiten Patel 50,000 1,232,245(2) � �

(1)   This amount is the aggregate difference in the exercise price and what the shares were actually sold for on the date of exercise.

(2)   This amount is the aggregate difference between the exercise price and the per share market price of our common stock on the date of the
exercise.

Employment and Severance Agreements with NEOs

Employment Agreements

Ezra Dabah, former CEO

During fiscal 2006, Mr. Dabah served as the CEO of the Company. Mr. Dabah resigned as CEO, at the request of the Board on September 24,
2007. Mr. Dabah remains a member of the Board.

Mr. Dabah entered into an amended and restated employment agreement on May 12, 2006 providing for him to serve as our CEO until May 12,
2009, a term that was to be automatically renewed for successive three year periods,
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subject to termination by either party on 60 days� notice (or lesser notice in the event of a termination by the Company for cause or by Mr. Dabah
for �good reason� as further discussed below). Mr. Dabah�s annual salary was set at $1,000,000 under the agreement, subject to annual review by
the compensation committee. The agreement provided for Mr. Dabah to receive annually during his employment a bonus based on the
Company�s performance during the year in an amount equal to the product of (a) Mr. Dabah�s annual salary for the year times (b) a percentage
equal to or greater than 100% as directed by the compensation committee times (c) a bonus percentage of not more than 200% that shall be
determined based on a schedule set by the committee at the beginning of the year for the purpose of determining bonuses for all senior
executives and varying with the level of our performance during such year.. In addition, during his employment Mr. Dabah was entitled under
the agreement to a $4,000 a month allowance to be applied to the costs of a car that he could use for personal as well as business purposes and/or
other personal expenses, and also to the services of a personal driver. Other benefits provided to Mr. Dabah pursuant to the terms of his
employment agreement included individual life insurance coverage in the amount that may be obtained by a $20,000 a year premium and
retirement, stock purchase, group life, medical and disability insurance and other benefits on a basis no less favorable than generally made
available to other senior executives of the Company.

At the time it asked for his resignation, the Board determined that Mr. Dabah�s resignation would be treated for purposes of his employment
agreement as a termination of his employment by the Company without cause. Upon such a termination of his employment, the agreement
provides that, if Mr. Dabah complies with certain non-competition and other restrictions, as described below, he is to receive a severance
payment of three times his annual salary, payable in a lump-sum. The agreement further provides for Mr. Dabah to receive for the next 36
months life and medical insurance benefits and other benefits substantially as previously provided to him, as well as the services of a driver and
payment of $20,000 per year of life insurance premiums during such period. Under the employment agreement Mr. Dabah agreed that for a
period of five years following the termination of his employment he would not participate in or promote, directly or indirectly, any businesses
directly competing with the Company�s business or solicit our directors or employees to provide services to any other company or interfere with
any person doing business with the Company or disparage the Company or furnish confidential information of the Company to any other person
(except as required by law). Assuming compliance by Mr. Dabah with his obligations to the Company, including those referred to above and
other obligations arising out of his past employment and continued service as a director, the Company currently expects to provide Mr. Dabah
the severance benefits provided for by the agreement.

Susan Riley, Executive Vice President, Finance and Administration and Interim Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Riley�s employment agreement, entered into in April 2007, effective as of February 2007, provides that she will serve as our Executive Vice
President, Finance and Administration, reporting dually to the CEO and the Board, for an indefinite period, subject to termination by either party
(in the case of the Company by action of a majority of the independent directors) on 30 days� notice (or lesser notice in the event of a termination
by the Company for cause or by Ms. Riley for �good reason� as further discussed below). Under her employment agreement with us, Ms. Riley�s
annual salary is set at $525,000 for the initial year of her employment, subject to annual review by the compensation committee. Ms. Riley is
also entitled to participate annually in, and eligible to receive an annual performance bonus pursuant to, the Company�s annual management
incentive plan (and any other bonus plan for executives the Company may establish) and will be eligible for a bonus thereunder to a degree no
less favorable than any other executive of the Company, other than the CEO, and to a minimum bonus eligibility of 50% of her then annual
salary (subject to achievement of the performance targets established under plan). In addition, as soon as practicable (but in no event before such
time as we determine that we are in compliance with the periodic reporting requirements of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act), Ms. Riley will
be granted, pursuant to and subject to the provisions of the 2005 Equity Plan, an award for 15,000 shares of common stock, with 5,000 of such
shares vesting on the first anniversary of the date of grant and 5,000 vesting on each of the next two anniversaries thereof. In respect of our 2008
fiscal year and subsequent fiscal years, Ms. Riley is entitled to participate in our equity incentive plans on a basis no less favorable than that on
which any our other executive officer, other than the CEO, is permitted to participate. The agreement also provides for Ms. Riley to participate
in other benefit plans made available by the Company to its senior executives on the same basis on which such benefits are from time to time
generally made available to other senior executives.

The employment agreement provides that if Ms. Riley�s employment is terminated by us without cause or by Ms. Riley with �good reason� or
without �good reason� within one year following a change in control (as each such term s defined in the agreement), Ms. Riley will be entitled to
(i) continuation of her annual salary then in effect for a period of one year following the termination of her employment, plus (ii) a pro rata
portion of the performance bonus she
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would have been entitled to receive for the year in which her employment terminated, calculated based on the target bonus established for her for
the year under the applicable bonus plan or, if such target bonus has not been established at the time of termination of employment, on the basis
of the target bonus for the previous year. Upon a change in control, the restricted stock awards Ms. Riley is entitled to receive in connection with
entering into the employment agreement will, in accordance with their terms and the 2005 Equity Plan, vest and be delivered to her immediately.
In addition, with respect to the Performance Award previously made to Ms. Riley under the 2005 Equity Plan (as described above), if the
performance criteria for such performance shares are satisfied, the delivery of such shares to her will be accelerated upon a termination of her
employment by us without cause or by Ms. Riley for good reason. In general, a material breach by us of the agreement or the assignment to Ms.
Riley of duties inconsistent with her status as Executive Vice President � Finance and Administration or a significant relocation of the place of
her employment will constitute �good reason� for Ms. Riley to terminate her employment. In the event Ms. Riley�s employment terminates by
reason of death disability or normal retirement, she shall be entitled to any then accrued but unpaid salary and bonus and a prorated portion of
the performance bonus for the year in which her employment so terminates based on the portion of the year in which she was employed. The
employment agreement also provides that Ms. Riley will not for a period of one year following any termination of her employment participate in
or promote, directly or indirectly, any businesses directly competing with the Company�s business or solicit our directors or employees to provide
services to any other company or interfere with any person doing business with the Company or at any time disparage the Company or furnish
confidential information of the Company to any other person (except as required by law).

Neal Goldberg, President

Mr. Goldberg�s amended and restated employment agreement, entered into on May 16, 2007, provides that he will serve as our President for an
indefinite period, subject to termination by either party upon notice (in the case of the Company of at least 30 days� or lesser notice in the event
of a termination by the Company for cause or by Mr. Goldberg for �good reason� as further discussed below). Pursuant to his employment
agreement, Mr. Goldberg�s annual salary was set at $690,000 per year, which his subject to annual review by the compensation committee.
Mr. Goldberg is also entitled to receive each year a bonus, provided he remains in the Company�s employ at the time the bonus is payable, in an
amount equal to the product of (a) Mr. Goldberg�s annual salary for the year, times (b) a percentage equal to or greater than 60% as directed by
the compensation committee, times (c) a bonus percentage of not more than 200% that shall be determined based on a schedule set by the
committee at the beginning of the year for the purpose of determining bonuses for all senior executives and varying with the level of our
operating income during such year. Mr. Goldberg�s previous employment agreement provided for the grant of an aggregate 250,000 stock options
which were granted on January 22, 2004 and vest over a five year period. In addition, Mr. Goldberg was promised and additional 50,000 stock
options in connection with the commencement of his employment, also to vest over a five year period, but such options could not be granted at
that time because of limitations under the applicable option plan and were granted to him on April 21, 2005 and we separately agreed to pay
Mr. Goldberg a cash adjustment in the amount of $650,000, representing the difference between the aggregate exercise price for the 50,000
options granted on April 21, 2005 and the aggregate exercise price for such options that would have applied if such options had been granted on
January 22, 2004. The $650,000 was made payable in five equal installments of $130,000 as the options vest. We made the first installment
payment within ten days of May 12, 2005 and the second and third installment payment on January 31, 2006 and January 31, 2007, respectively.
The subsequent $130,000 payments will be paid on each of January 31, 2008 and January 31, 2009, subject to Mr. Goldberg�s continued
employment.

The employment agreement provides that if Mr. Goldberg�s employment is terminated by us without cause or by Mr. Goldberg with �good reason�
or without �good reason� following a change in control (as such term is defined in the agreement), Mr. Goldberg will be entitled to continuation of
his annual salary then in effect for a period of one year following the termination of his employment. In addition, if his employment terminates
for any such reason, the portion of the 300,000 stock options granted to him in connection with his employment as our President that will vest by
the next anniversary date following the date of termination of his employment will vest to the extent of the pro rated portion thereof equal to the
portion of that year in which he was employed and he shall have the next three months in which to exercise such options before they expire. In
addition, it the termination of employment occurs following a change in control of the Company all then remaining unvested stock options held
by him shall immediately vest and may be exercised during the next three months before they expire. In general, a material breach by us of the
agreement or the assignment to Mr. Goldberg of duties inconsistent with his status as President or a significant relocation
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of the place of his employment or Mr. Dabah ceasing to hold the position of CEO will constitute �good reason� for Mr. Goldberg to terminate his
employment. Since Mr. Dabah has resigned as our CEO, Mr. Goldberg has the right at any time to terminate the employment agreement for
�good reason� and will then be entitled to the above mentioned severance. If Mr. Goldberg�s employment is terminated by reason of death or his
disability, all unvested stock options held by him will immediately vest and remain exercisable for a period of one year. The employment
agreement also provides that Mr. Goldberg will not for a period of one year following any termination of his employment participate in or
promote, directly or indirectly, any businesses directly competing with the Company�s business or solicit our directors or employees to provide
services to any other company or interfere with any person doing business with the Company or at any time disparage the Company or furnish
confidential information of the Company to any other person (except as required by law). Mr. Goldberg�s employment agreement also provides
that Mr. Goldberg will not engage or be engaged in a competing business or solicit our directors, officers and employees for a period of one year
following termination of his employment.

Steven Balasiano, former Senior Vice President

Mr. Balasiano and the Company in 1995 entered into an offer letter that provided for his employment as Vice President and General Counsel at
an annual salary of $140,000 and that in the event his employment was terminated without cause he would be entitled to six months� salary as a
severance payment. In fiscal 2005, Mr. Balasiano was promoted to Senior Vice President and also Chief Administrative Officer. The
compensation provided to Mr. Balasiano in fiscal 2006 is discussed above.

In connection with the termination of Mr. Balasiano�s employment by the Company in July 2007, the Company entered into a severance
agreement with him. Under the severance agreement, (i) Mr. Balasiano will receive a severance payment in the amount of $438,000 in
accordance with the Company�s regular payroll practices in 26 biweekly installments, $24,808 as compensation for unused vacation and personal
days, and no later than April 15, 2008, a pro rated portion of the cash bonus he would have received under the Company�s annual management
incentive program for fiscal 2007 determined based on the portion of fiscal 2007 he continued in the Company�s employ, (ii) the transfer
restrictions applicable to the shares underlying the vested options to acquire 50,300 shares held by him have been waived and, upon lifting of the
temporary suspension on the exercise of options, he will be afforded the same period in which to exercise his options as is afforded current
employees (as the Compensation Committee may determined in its discretion), (iii) the Company will waive all premium costs that Mr.
Balasiano would otherwise be required to pay for continuation of the existing group heath and dental coverage provided to him and his family
for a period of 12 months or the earlier date on which he commences full-time employment that provides to him health coverage comparable to
the medical, dental and vision benefits he would be entitled to receive under the Company�s programs through COBRA. In addition, the
performance share agreement between Mr. Balasiano and the Company was amended to provide that, if the Company meets the performance
goals applicable to the Performance Awards previously granted to him, he will receive, promptly after satisfaction of the performance criteria is
certified by the committee, a prorated portion (30/36) of the number of shares he would otherwise be entitled to receive thereunder, even though
he no longer continues in the Company�s employ at the time such shares are to be delivered pursuant to the awards. Mr. Balasiano will remain
subject to the non-competition and confidentiality agreement with the Company he entered into in connection with
receiving the Performance Award and in connection with his severance agreement releases any claims against the
Company he might have arising out of his employment or the termination of his employment. For further information
regarding the considerations involved in setting Mr. Balasiano�s severance benefits, see above.

116

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

311



Hiten Patel, former Chief Financial Officer

In connection with Mr. Patel�s resignation in April 2006, the Company entered into a severance agreement with him. Pursuant to such agreement,
Mr. Patel received a severance payment during fiscal 2006 of $180,000 and $27,692 for accrued but unused vacation and personal days, and the
Company waived the transfer restrictions that were applicable with respect to the shares that he could acquire pursuant to vested options he held
to purchase 50,000 shares of our common stock. In consideration for these benefits, Mr. Patel agreed to certain non-competition,
non-solicitation, non-interference, non-disparagement and confidentiality restrictions with the Company and released any claims against the
Company he might have arising out of his employment or the termination of his employment. For further information regarding the
considerations involved in setting Mr. Patel�s severance benefits, see above.

Other Executive Compensation Information

Charles Crovitz, Interim CEO

On November 20, 2007, in connection with his election as Interim CEO, the Company entered into an employment agreement term sheet (the
�Term Sheet�) with Mr. Crovitz outlining the compensatory arrangements that he shall receive for serving as Interim CEO.

The Term Sheet provides that Mr. Crovitz will serve as our Interim CEO commencing as of October 1, 2007 until the earlier of (i) the end of
fiscal 2008 or (ii) the selection and commencement of service of a permanent CEO. Pursuant to the Term Sheet, Mr. Crovitz shall receive an
annual salary of $1 million, payable in accordance with the Company�s normal payroll practices. However, in all events, salary payments will be
made for a minimum of six months (through March 2008), even if Mr. Crovitz�s employment period ends earlier. If Mr. Crovitz�s employment
ends before the end of fiscal 2008 because a permanent CEO commences service, the Company shall retain him as a consultant for the two
months following the termination of employment to provide assistance as requested in transitioning the chief executive responsibilities. Mr.
Crovitz shall receive a consulting fee for each of these months equal to his pro rated monthly salary of $83,333. If Mr. Crovitz�s employment
continues into fiscal 2008, he will be entitled to participate in the Company�s annual management incentive bonus program in which other senior
executives participate for fiscal 2008. His target bonus will be $1 million and his bonus will be based on the same performance criteria and other
terms applicable to other senior executives including payment of any bonus earned at the beginning of fiscal 2009 but without a requirement for
continued employment at the time of payment. If Mr. Crovitz�s employment terminates before the end of fiscal 2008, he shall be entitled to a pro
rated portion of any bonus otherwise earned.

As soon as practicable after the Company is legally able to resume making equity awards, and whether or not Mr. Crovitz�s employment has then
terminated, Mr. Crovitz is entitled to receive a restricted stock grant of the number of shares then having a fair market value of $1 million. The
shares shall vest ratably on a monthly basis over the 36 month period starting in October 2007 as long as employment continues or, after
termination of employment (unless by reason of dismissal for cause or resignation without good reason), service as a director. If Mr. Crovitz�s
service as a director is terminated as result of Mr. Crovitz not being re-nominated for election as a director or, if re-nominated, he is not
re-elected to serve as a director, any shares then remaining unvested will vest. In addition, the entire award shall vest upon a change in control of
the Company. Notwithstanding this vesting schedule, Mr. Crovitz is not allowed to sell any of the shares until the beginning of fiscal 2010,
except that if all such restricted stock grant has become fully vested for any reason or upon the one year anniversary of Mr. Crovitz�s termination
of employment for any reason, all of the then vested shares will become immediately saleable.
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Mr. Crovitz will be entitled to participate in all executive benefit plans, and will be provided substantially the same benefits and perquisites,
from time to time maintained by the Company for senior executives, except that additional incentive awards will not be provided and, in lieu of
the Company providing a car to Mr. Crovitz, the Company will provide him with (or reimburse him for) a car service to/from Manhattan to the
Company�s offices on an as-needed and reasonable basis.

In connection with his appointment as Interim CEO, Mr. Crovitz will be required to temporarily relocate to the New York metropolitan area.
Accordingly, Mr. Crovitz�s employment agreement also provides that he is entitled to a $15,500 a month housing allowance. In addition, the
Company is responsible for commissions, security deposit and
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any lease termination costs associated with such housing arrangements. Mr. Crovitz shall also receive a furniture rental allowance of, up to
$2,000 per month. Mr. Crovitz shall also receive round trip airfare (business class) to his permanent residence twice per month during fiscal
2007 and once per month during fiscal 2008. The Company will also make �gross up� payments to Mr. Crovitz sufficient to cover the income
taxes he will incur as a result of the Company bearing these costs and his receiving such payments.

In addition, the Company has agreed to indemnify Mr. Crovitz and provide him with directors and officers� liability insurance to the same extent
provided for other senior executives. Upon termination of his employment, Mr. Crovitz shall provide the Company a release of all claims against
the Company in the form customarily provided to the Company by departing executives. Following termination of his employment, Mr. Crovitz
will be subject to substantially the same (i) confidentiality and (ii) non-competition and non-solicitation restrictions as apply under the
Company�s form of agreement used in connection with its Performance Award plan, for a term not in excess of one year in the case of the
obligations under clause (ii).

It is expected that the Company and Mr. Crovitz will promptly enter into definitive employment and equity award agreements reflecting terms
consistent with the Term Sheet, at which time such agreements shall supersede the Term Sheet.

Tara Poseley, President

Ms. Poseley�s employment agreement provides that she will serve as our President, Disney Store North America until such time as her
employment is terminated in accordance with the termination provisions thereof. Ms. Poseley reports directly to our CEO. Pursuant to her
employment agreement, Ms. Poseley�s annual salary was set at $625,000, subject to annual review by our compensation committee. Ms. Poseley
is entitled to receive an annual bonus, pursuant to the Annual Management Incentive Bonus Plan, in an amount equal to the product of
(a) Ms. Poseley�s annual base salary, times (b) a percentage equal to or greater than 50% as determined by the compensation committee in their
discretion, times (c) a bonus percentage of not more than 200% that shall be determined in accordance with the Annual Management Incentive
Bonus Plan. Subject to the terms of the Annual Management Incentive Bonus Plan, the minimum bonus that Ms. Poseley was entitled to receive
for (a) fiscal 2006 was $156,250 and (b) fiscal 2007 is $312,500.

Ms. Poseley�s employment agreement provided that we (a) pay her $10,000 for relocation incidentals, (b) provide her and her family with
housing in the Los Angeles, California area from September 18, 2006 through December 31, 2006 (which was later amended by the
compensation committee to extend through May 31, 2007; provided that the aggregate cost of such extension, including gross up, shall not
significantly exceed $75,000), and (c) pay the cost of roundtrip airfare for either Ms. Poseley or her family to travel to Los Angeles each week
from September 18, 2006 through December 31, 2006.

Ms. Poseley�s employment agreement provides that if Ms. Poseley�s employment is terminated by us �without cause�, or by Ms. Poseley for �good
reason� or following a �change in control� (as each such term is defined in the agreement), we will be required to pay Ms. Poseley her base salary
then in effect for one year following such termination, which amount will be payable in bi-weekly installments following her termination. Since
Mr. Dabah has resigned as our CEO, Ms. Poseley has the right at any time to terminate the employment agreement for �good reason� and will then
be entitled to the above mentioned severance. If Ms. Poseley�s employment is terminated due to a change of control, all of her outstanding
unvested stock options and restricted shares, if any, excluding any equity-based compensation granted to Ms. Poseley pursuant to any long term
compensation program which shall be governed by the terms of such program, will immediately vest.

Mario Ciampi Severance Agreement and Release
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Mario Ciampi served as President of Disney Store until April 30, 2006, as of which the Company and Mr. Ciampi entered into a severance
agreement and release dated April 14, 2006 and effective April 30, 2006. Until such time, he received during fiscal 2006 salary payments
totaling $144,231 and other benefits, comparable to those provided our other executives during fiscal 2006 as discussed above.

Pursuant to such agreement, (i) Mr. Ciampi received a severance payment in the total amount of $510,000, (ii) transfer restrictions with respect
to Mr. Ciampi�s vested options to acquire 30,400 shares of our common stock were
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waived, (iii) 10,000 unvested stock options scheduled to vest on April 29, 2007 were accelerated to vest on April 27, 2006, (iv) we waived all
applicable premium costs that Mr. Ciampi would otherwise be required to pay for continuation of the existing group health coverage provided to
him and his family under its medical and dental plans for a period of 12 months or the date on which Mr. Ciampi commences full time
employment with another company that provides health benefits to Mr. Ciampi and his family which are comparable to the medical, dental and
vision benefits available to Mr. Ciampi and his family through COBRA, whichever date is sooner, (v) through June 30, 2006, Mr. Ciampi and
his family were permitted to continue to reside in a residence in California leased by us, we paid the costs associated with the lease, and we paid
Mr. Ciampi an additional amount intended to be sufficient to cover the income taxes payable by him (calculated at a rate of 40%) on the amounts
paid by us in connection with this lease and such additional payments that are reported as income to Mr. Ciampi, and (vi) we reimbursed Mr.
Ciampi $12,125 for costs incurred by Mr. Ciampi and his family to relocate from California to New York.

In consideration for these benefits, Mr. Ciampi agreed to certain non-competition, non-solicitation, non-interference,
non-disparagement and confidentiality restrictions with the Company and released any claims against the Company he
might have arising out of his employment or the termination of his employment.

The terms of Mr. Ciampi�s termination of employment were negotiated on behalf of the Company primarily by Mr. Dabah and were determined
by the compensation committee to be reasonable and appropriate in light of the practices the Company had followed in the past of providing
severance benefits upon the termination of employment of other executives, the severance benefit practices followed by comparable companies
and the restrictive covenants Mr. Ciampi agreed to and his release of possible claims against the Company.

Potential Payments on Account of Retirement, Termination without Cause, Termination for Good Reason, Change in Control,
Death/Disability or Resignation

We have entered into employment and severance arrangements with certain of our named NEOs that require us to make payments and provide
various benefits to these officers in the event of termination of his or her employment. The severance provisions of the employment agreements
of Mr. Goldberg and Ms. Riley provide for severance payments and other benefits upon termination of employment by the Company without
cause or by the executive for good reason and additional benefits are provided upon a termination of employment in connection with a change of
control. In April 2006, in connection with his resignation, the Company and Mr. Patel entered into a severance agreement that provided for him
to receive certain severance payments and other benefits. In July 2007, in connection with his resignation, the Company and Mr. Balasiano
entered into a severance agreement that provides for him to receive severance payments and other benefits. In September 2007, Mr. Dabah
resigned as the Company�s CEO. The Board has determined that Mr. Dabah�s resignation was deemed to be a termination by the Company
without cause. Therefore, Mr. Dabah is entitled to severance pursuant to Sections 5.01 and 6.01 of his employment agreement. Further
information regarding the termination of employment arrangements pertaining to these NEOs is provided above. The other NEOs do not have
employment or severance agreements with the Company. The Company since the start of fiscal 2006 has agreed to severance benefits in
connection with the resignation of other executives or in hiring other executives, as also discussed above. The amount of compensation
potentially payable to our NEOs in each termination of employment situation, assuming the termination of employment had occurred on the last
day of fiscal 2006, is listed in the table below.

Termination without Cause, for Good Reason or following a Change in Control

The following sets forth compensation due the NEO if we terminate the NEO�s employment without cause, if the NEO terminates the NEO�s
employment for �good reason� or the NEO�s employment terminates following a Change in Control of the Company. Payment of compensation is
generally conditioned on the NEO executing a general release of claims and the NEO�s compliance with certain confidentiality, non-compete and
non-disparagement provisions contained therein.
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Susan Riley

�      One times her annual base salary payable in accordance with normal payroll practices;

�      Earned but not yet paid Performance Bonus;

�      Prorated portion of her target Performance Bonus for the year in which her termination takes place;
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�      Except in the event of a Change in Control, all of her Performance Shares vest as long as performance criteria
satisfied and delivery of such shares occurs promptly after termination; and

�      Only in the event of a Change in Control, (i) a prorated portion of the target number of Performance Shares and
(ii) non-performance restricted shares immediately vest.

Neal Goldberg

�      One times his annual base salary payable in equal monthly installments;

�      Except in the event of a Change in Control, outstanding, unvested stock options granted to him on January 22,
2004, that are scheduled to vest on the next anniversary date following his termination date, will immediately vest;
and

�      Only in the event of a Change in Control, (i) a prorated portion of target number of Performance Shares; (ii) all of
his outstanding, unvested stock options immediately vest; and (iii) transfer restrictions on stock options granted
pursuant to the Transfer Restriction Agreement immediately lapse.

Richard Flaks and Mark Rose

�      Only in the event of a Change in Control, a prorated portion of Performance Shares are awarded as long as
performance criteria are satisfied and transfer restrictions on stock options granted pursuant to the Transfer Restriction
Agreement immediately lapse.

Termination due to Retirement, Resignation, Death or Disability

The following sets forth compensation due the NEO if the NEO�s employment is terminated because of retirement, resignation, death or
disability. Payment of certain compensation hereunder is generally conditioned on the NEO executing a general release of claims and the NEO�s
compliance with certain confidentiality, non-compete and non-disparagement provisions contained therein.

Susan Riley
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�      Except in the event of resignation, a prorated portion of her target Performance Bonus for the year in which her
termination takes place; and

�      Only in the event of disability or death, a prorated portion of Performance Shares are awarded as long as
performance criteria are satisfied and non-performance restricted shares immediately vest.

Neal Goldberg

�      Only in the event of disability or death, (i) a prorated portion of Performance Shares are awarded as long as
performance criteria are satisfied; (ii) all outstanding, unvested stock options immediately vest, and (iii) transfer
restrictions on stock options granted pursuant to the Transfer Restriction Agreement immediately lapse.

Richard Flaks and Mark Rose

�      Only in the event of disability or death, (i) a prorated portion of Performance Shares are awarded as long as
performance criteria are satisfied; and (ii) transfer restrictions on stock options granted pursuant to the Transfer
Restriction Agreement immediately lapse.

Summary of Potential Severance Payments

The following table summarizes the Company�s potential obligations under employment and severance arrangements with certain of the
Company�s NEOs upon termination of his or her employment as if such termination had occurred on February 3, 2007 (Mr. Dabah and Mr.
Balasiano both resigned from the Company subsequent to February 3, 2007 and received severance as described above):
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Executive Termination Reason Salary

Accrued but
Unpaid

Performance
Bonus

Accelerated
Vesting of Stock
Option Awards

Payment of
Performance

Shares

Health and
Welfare
Benefits

Ezra By Company without cause $ 3,000,000 $ 1,050,000 $ � $ � $ 407,028
Dabah(1) By Executive for Good Reason 3,000,000 1,050,000 � � 407,028

Following Change in Control 3,000,000 1,050,000 � 2,232,457 407,028
Retirement � 1,050,000 � � �
Resignation � � � � �
Death � � � 2,232,457 �
Disability 3,000,000 1,050,000 � 2,232,457 407,028

Susan By Company without cause 200,000 � � 1,457,750 �
Riley(2) By Executive for Good Reason 200,000 � � 1,457,750 �

Following Change in Control 200,000 � � 1,239,088 �
Retirement � � � � �
Resignation � � � � �
Death � � � 1,239,088 �
Disability � � � 1,239,088 �

Neal By Company without cause 690,000 � 1,533,000 � �
Goldberg By Executive for Good Reason 690,000 � 1,533,000 � �

Following Change in Control 690,000 � 3,066,000 2,232,457 �
Retirement � � � � �
Resignation � � � � �
Death � � 3,066,000 2,232,457 �
Disability � � 3,066,000 2,232,457 �

Steven By Company without cause 215,000 � � � �
Balasiano By Executive for Good Reason � � � � �

Following Change in Control � � � 1,406,437 �
Retirement � � � � �
Resignation � � � � �
Death � � � 1,406,437 �
Disability � � � 1,406,437 �

Richard By Company without cause � � � � �
Flaks By Executive for Good Reason � � � � �

Following Change in Control � � � 1,406,437 �
Retirement � � � � �
Resignation � � � � �
Death � � � 1,406,437 �
Disability � � � 1,406,437 �

Mark By Company without cause � � � � �
Rose By Executive for Good Reason � � � � �

Following Change in Control � � � 1,406,437 �
Retirement � � � � �
Resignation � � � � �
Death � � � 1,406,437 �
Disability � � � 1,406,437 �

(1)   The amount of Mr. Dabah�s Health and Welfare Benefits are subject to final determination by the Board.
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(2)   These amounts are pursuant to Ms. Riley�s offer letter which was in effect as of February 3, 2007. In April 2007, Ms. Riley executed
an employment agreement which provides for additional compensation to be paid under certain circumstances upon termination.
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Compensation of Directors

We pay each of our non-employee directors an annual retainer, attendance fees and a committee chair retainer (if applicable). In 2007, the
Board, with the advice of a compensation consultant, revised the director compensation
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program for fiscal 2007, effective as of February 4, 2007, and subsequent years. With respect to the equity portion of the new program, such
changes are subject to and only effective upon our stockholders� approval of an amendment to our 2005 Equity Plan.

Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2007
Initial Equity Grant Options

for 15,000
shares(1)

Pro rated portion
of $100,000 worth

of restricted
stock(2)

Annual Retainer
Cash $ 30,000 $ 35,000
Equity Grant Options

for 6,000
shares(3)

$100,000 worth of
restricted stock

(4)

Annual Retainer for Committee Chairs
Lead Director � $ 65,000(5)
Audit Committee $ 10,000 $ 15,000
Compensation Committee 7,500 10,000
Corporate Governance Committee 7,500 10,000
Fee per Board Meeting 1,250 1,500
Fee per Committee Meeting 1,000 1,500

(1)   Our 2005 Equity Plan provides for issuance of these options, which are to have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of our shares
on the date of grant and are to vest over a three year period. Mr. Goldman did not receive his initial option grant.

(2)   Any new non-employee director appointed prior to stockholder approval of the amendment to the 2005 Equity Plan shall receive 15,000
options as described in the Fiscal 2006 column of this table. Subject to and effective only upon such stockholder approval, each new Director
appointed after such stockholder approval shall receive as of the date of appointment to the Board a portion of the annual retainer of $100,000
worth of restricted common stock, pro rated according to the number of days left in our fiscal year. The number of shares of restricted common
stock will be calculated using the fair market value of our common stock on the third business day following the date we file our first periodic
report with the SEC (Form 10-Q or Form 10-K) after such director�s initial appointment to the Board. The restricted common stock will be issued
pursuant to our 2005 Equity Plan, as proposed to be amended, and shall vest one year from the date of grant.

(3)   Our 2005 Equity Plan, provides for issuance of these options, which are to have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of our
shares on the date of grant and are to vest over a three year period.

(4)   Until our stockholders approve an amendment to our 2005 Equity Plan, our non-employee directors will continue to receive 6,000 options
on an annual basis as described in the Fiscal 2006 column. Subject to and effective only upon such stockholder approval, on the first day of our
fiscal year, each director shall receive an award of restricted shares of our common stock, the aggregate value of which shall be $100,000, based
on the fair market value of our common stock on the date of issuance. The common stock will be issued pursuant to our 2005 Equity Plan  as
proposed to be amended, and shall vest one year from the date of grant.

(5)   The Board approved an annual retainer for the Lead Director/Chairman which shall apply for fiscal 2007 as of the beginning of the year.
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In light of the extraordinary effort and time expended by our independent directors during the recent investigation of the Company�s stock option
granting practices, the Board determined that each independent director should receive an additional fee of $1,000 per meeting of the special
committee he or she attended. Each of our non-employee directors earned a fee of: (a) $1,000 for each meeting of a standing committee of the
Board and (b) $1,250 for each
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meeting of the Board, attended by such non-employee director in connection with the stock option investigation. In addition, the Board
determined that Malcolm Elvey and Charles Crovitz should receive an additional fee of $5,000 for the considerable amount of time spent on the
investigation outside of committee or board meetings. Lastly, the Board determined that Mr. Elvey, Mr. Crovitz and James Goldman should
each receive an additional fee equal to a prorated portion of the annual retainer of $30,000, based on the number of months of additional time
served by each of them respectively in connection with the Investigation.

Accordingly, through July 15, 2007, each of our non-employee directors has earned the amounts listed in the following table for services
performed in connection with the investigation of the Company�s stock option granting practices.

Director

Amount Earned
in Connection with
Investigation during

fiscal 2006

Amount Earned
in Connection with
Investigation during

fiscal 2007

Total Amount Earned
in Connection with

Investigation
Sally Frame Kasaks $ 10,500 $ 2,250 $ 12,750
Charles Crovitz 26,000 10,750 36,750
Malcolm Elvey 32,000 9,750 41,750
Robert Fisch 10,500 2,250 12,750
James Goldman 21,000 10,750 31,750
Stanley Silverstein 2,500 1,250 3,750

We also pay for or reimburse directors for travel expenses related to attending meetings of our Board or its committees, company business
meetings and approved educational seminars. All directors and their immediate families are eligible to receive discounts on our merchandise in
accordance with our employee merchandise discount policy.

Employee directors are not eligible for the annual retainer or attendance fees or to serve on any committees of our Board.

As discussed above under �Explanatory Note�Resolution of Tax Consequences and Corrective Action Related to Discounted Options,� the
Company and its non-employee directors have agreed to amend all options held by them that were issued with a lower exercise price to increase
the exercise price to the trading price on the date determined by the Company to be the revised measurement date with respect to the option
award or in some instances to a higher price.

2006 Board of Director Compensation

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

2006 Board of Director Compensation 326



The following table summarizes director compensation earned during fiscal 2006:

Non-Employee Director

Fees Earned or
Paid in

Cash ($) (1)
Option

Awards (2)
All Other

Compensation ($) Total (3)
Sally Frame Kasaks $ 78,250 � � $ 78,250
Charles Crovitz 82,000 � � 82,000
Malcolm Elvey 101,250 � � 101,250
Robert Fisch 65,000 � � 65,000
James Goldman 41,669(4) (5) � 41,669
Stanley Silverstein 40,000 � � 40,000
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(1)   Includes annual retainer, annual retainer for service as a committee chair, if any, fees for each board meeting attended, fees for each
committee meeting attended and the fees earned in connection with resolving our stock option granting practices ($10,500 for Ms. Kasaks,
$26,000 for Mr. Crovitz, $32,000 for Mr. Elvey, $10,500 for Mr. Fisch, $21,000 for Mr. Goldman and $2,500 for Mr. Silverstein).

(2)   Each non-employee director should have been issued 6,000 options on the last day of fiscal 2006. However, due to the investigation of our
stock option granting practices, we did not grant the non-employee directors these options. When the Company becomes current in its periodic
reports to the SEC its suspension on granting equity awards will end and the compensation committee will recommend to the Board how to
compensate the non-employee directors for these equity awards.

(3)   Does not include reimbursement for travel and merchandise discount.

(4)   Mr. Goldman joined the Board on August 17, 2006; therefore his annual retainer was pro rated.

(5)   Mr. Goldman was elected to our Board on August 17, 2006 and pursuant to the 2005 Equity Plan should have been issued 15,000 options
that would vest over three years. However, due to the investigation of our stock option granting practices, we did not grant Mr. Goldman his
options upon election to our Board. When the Company becomes current in its periodic reports to the SEC, its suspension on granting equity
awards will end, and the compensation committee will then determine how to compensate Mr. Goldman for this equity award.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
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Members of the compensation committee for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007 were Messrs. Crovitz and Goldman and Ms. Kasaks. No
member of the compensation committee was, during the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007, an officer or employee of our Company or any of
our subsidiaries, was formerly an officer of our Company or any of our subsidiaries or had any relationships requiring disclosure under the
heading �Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.� None of our executive officers serves as a member of the Board or compensation
committee of any entity that has one or more of its executive officers serving as member(s) of our Board or compensation committee.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required in the Company�s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007 by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K with management and, based on this review and
discussion, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Company�s Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be
included in this Annual Report.

Submitted by the Compensation Committee

Sally Frame Kasaks

James Goldman

ITEM 12.�SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
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The following table sets forth information regarding ownership of shares of our common stock, as of October 6, 2007:

�      by each person known by us to be the beneficial owner of 5% or more of our common stock;

�      by each of our current directors and named executive officers; and

�      by all of our current directors and executive officers as a group.

Except as otherwise indicated, each person and each group shown in the table below has sole voting and investment power with respect to the
shares of common stock indicated. For purposes of the table below, in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, a person is deemed
to be the beneficial owner of any shares of common stock over which he or she has or shares, directly or indirectly, voting or investment power;
or of which he or she has the right to acquire beneficial ownership at any time within 60 days after October 6, 2007. As used herein, the term
�voting power� means the power to vote or direct the voting of shares and the term �investment power� includes the power to dispose or direct
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the disposition of shares. Percentage ownership has been calculated based on 29,083,916 shares of our common stock outstanding as of October
6, 2007.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner (1)

Shares
Beneficially
Owned

Percent
of

Class (2)
Ezra Dabah (3) 5,027,310 17.2%
Stanley Silverstein (4) 3,360,180 11.6%
Sally Frame Kasaks (5) 32,000 *
Malcolm Elvey (6) 22,000 *
Charles Crovitz (7) 21,000 *
Robert Fisch (8) 21,000 *
James Goldman (9) � *
Neal Goldberg (10) 173,250 *
Susan Riley � *
Richard Flaks (11) 106,000 *
Mark Rose(12) 147,713 *
Steven Balasiano (13) 168,940 *
Hiten Patel (14) � *
All directors and executive officers as a Group (12 persons) (15) 6,045,573 20.3%

Wellington Management Company, LLP (16) 1,976,540 6.8%

*  Less than 1%

(1)     The address of all directors and executive officers is c/o The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc., 915 Secaucus Road, Secaucus, New
Jersey 07094.

(2)     The percentage of stock outstanding for each stockholder is calculated by dividing (i) the number of shares deemed to be beneficially held
by such stockholder as of October 6, 2007 by (ii) the sum of (A) the number of shares of common stock outstanding as of October 6, 2007 plus
(B) the number of shares issuable upon exercise of options held by such stockholder which were exercisable as of October 6, 2007 or which will
become exercisable within 60 days after October 6, 2007.

(3)     Includes (i) 1,371,250 shares held by Mr. Dabah, (ii) 2,879,360 shares held by trusts or custodial accounts for the benefit of Mr. Dabah�s
relatives,  (iii) 104,100 shares held by Mr. Dabah�s wife, as to which Mr. Dabah disclaims beneficial ownership, (iv) 445,600 shares held by Mr.
Dabah and his wife as joint tenants with right of survivorship, (v) 185,000 shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days after October 6,
2007, (vi) 22,000 shares held by the Renee and Ezra Dabah Charitable Foundation, Inc., and (vii) 20,000 shares held by The Dabah Children
Charitable Foundation, Inc. Of the shares held by Mr. and Mrs. Dabah, 1,358,750 of these shares have been pledged as collateral in margin
accounts. Does not include 2,125,630 shares beneficially owned by relatives of Mr. Dabah, including Mr. Dabah�s father-in-law, Stanley
Silverstein.

(4)     Includes (i) 2,864,880 shares that are also deemed to be beneficially owned by Ezra Dabah and are held by trusts or custodial accounts for
the benefit of Mr. Silverstein�s relatives, and as to which shares Mr. Silverstein disclaims beneficial ownership; (ii) 72,000 shares that are held by
trusts for the benefit of Mr. Silverstein�s relatives and are not deemed to be beneficially owned by Mr. Dabah; (iii) 383,300 shares held by
Mr. Silverstein; (iv) 5,000 shares held in Mr. Silverstein�s profit sharing account; (v) 15,000 shares held by the Raine & Stanley Silverstein
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Charitable Foundation; and (vi) 20,000 shares issuable to Mr. Silverstein upon exercise of outstanding stock options exercisable within 60 days
of October 6, 2007. Of the shares held by Mr. and Mrs. Silverstein, 383,300 of these shares have been pledged as collateral in margin accounts.
Does not include 6,000 shares held by Mr. Silverstein subject to options not yet vested.

(5)     Includes 32,000 shares issuable to Ms. Kasaks upon exercise of outstanding stock options exercisable within 60 days of October 6, 2007.
Does not include 6,000 shares subject to options not yet vested.

(6)     Includes (i) 5,000 shares held by Mr. Elvey and (ii) 17,000 shares issuable to Mr. Elvey upon exercise of outstanding stock options
exercisable within 60 days of October 6, 2007. Does not include 6,000 shares subject to options not yet vested.

(7)     Includes 21,000 shares issuable to Mr. Crovitz upon exercise of outstanding stock options exercisable within 60 days of October 6, 2007.
Does not include 6,000 shares subject to options not yet vested.
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(8)     Includes 21,000 shares issuable to Mr. Fisch upon exercise of outstanding stock options exercisable within 60 days of October 6, 2007.
Does not include 6,000 shares subject to options not yet vested.

(9)     Mr. Goldman was elected to our Board on August 17, 2006 and pursuant to the 2005 Equity Plan should have been issued 15,000 options
that would vest over three years. However, due to the investigation of our stock option granting practices, we did not grant Mr. Goldman his
options upon election to our Board. When the Company becomes current in its periodic reports to the SEC, its suspension on granting equity
awards will end and the compensation committee will then determine how to compensate Mr. Goldman for this equity award.

(10)   Includes 173,250 shares issuable to Mr. Goldberg upon exercise of outstanding stock options exercisable within 60 days of October 6,
2007. Does not include 100,000 shares subject to options not yet vested.

(11)   Includes 106,000 shares issuable to Mr. Flaks upon exercise of outstanding stock options exercisable within 60 days of October 6, 2007.

(12)   Includes (i) 38,700 shares held by Mr. Rose, and (ii) 109,013 shares issuable to Mr. Rose upon exercise of outstanding stock options
exercisable within 60 days of October 6, 2007.

(13)   Includes (i) 24,040 shares held by Mr. Balasiano, (ii) 1,018 shares held in Mr. Balasiano�s 401(k) account and (iii) 143,882 shares issuable
upon exercise of outstanding stock options exercisable within 60 days of October 6, 2007. Mr. Balasiano resigned from the Company effective
July 20, 2007. Accordingly, the number of shares beneficially owned by Mr. Balasiano is based on information available to us on the date of his
resignation.

(14)   Mr. Patel resigned effective April 15, 2006; therefore the Company is unable confirm Mr. Patel�s beneficial ownership.

(15)   Includes the aggregate number of shares held by all of our non-employee directors (Ezra Dabah, Stanley Silverstein, Sally Frame Kasaks,
Malcolm Elvey, Robert Fisch and James Goldman) and our executive officers (Charles Crovitz, Neal Goldberg, Tara Poseley, Susan Riley,
Richard Flaks, and Mark Rose), in each case as of October 6, 2007. Includes shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options
exercisable within 60 days of October 6, 2007.

(16)   The information set forth with respect to Wellington Management Company, LLP is based on information contained in a statement on
Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 14, 2007. The shares may be deemed beneficially owned by Wellington Management Company,
LLP as an investment adviser to the owners of record.

Equity Plan Compensation Information
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The following table provides information as of February 3, 2007 about our common stock, which may be issued upon the exercise of options
granted to employees or members of our Board under all of our existing equity compensation plans, including our 1996 Stock Option Plan, 1997
Stock Option Plan, 2005 Equity Plan and Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Equity Plan Summary

Column (A) Column (B) Column (C)

Plan Category

Securities to be
Issued Upon
Exercise of
Outstanding
Options

Weighted Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding
Options

Securities Remaining
Available for Future

Issuances Under Equity
Compensation Plans
(Excluding Securities

Reflected in Column (A))
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Security Holders 2,321,805(1)$ 30.36(2) 2,071,093(3)
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Security
Holders N/A N/A N/A
Total 2,321,805 $ 30.36 2,071,093

(1)   Amount consists of 3,300 shares issuable under our 1996 Stock Option Plan, 2,220,505 shares issuable under our 1997 Stock Option Plan,
98,000 shares issuable under our 2005 Equity Plan and zero shares under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
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(2)   Represents shares issuable upon exercise of stock options granted under our 1996 Stock Option Plan, 1997 Stock Option Plan and 2005
Equity Plan.

(3)   Includes 1,896,400 shares issuable upon grant of equity awards under our 2005 Equity Plan and 174,693 issuable under Employee Stock
Purchase Plan. We have also made Performance Awards and if the performance targets are met at 100%, we will be required to issue 543,979
shares, leaving 1,352,421 shares available under our 2005 Equity Plan. If targets for our Performance Awards are met at 200%, we will be
required to issue an aggregate of 1,087,958 shares, leaving 808,442 shares available under our 2005 Equity Plan. As previously discussed, we do
not currently expect to meet the performance criteria established for these awards. In addition, during fiscal 2006, we made promises to award
25,000 shares of stock options, 2,500 shares of restricted stock.

Effective upon approval of our 2005 Equity Plan by our stockholders at our annual meeting held on June 23, 2005, we agreed not to make any
further grants under our 1996 Stock Option Plan and 1997 Stock Option Plan. As of the date hereof, the compensation committee intends to
grant restricted shares under our 2005 Equity Plan to eligible employees rather than stock options.

ITEM 13.�CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
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Review and Approval of Related Person Transactions
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Pursuant to formal policies adopted by our Board and implemented in the charter of our compensation committee, the committee approves all
related person transactions, included related person compensation arrangements. In addition, the compensation committee reviews all on-going
related person transactions on at least an annual basis to ensure that such transactions are being pursued in accordance with the understandings
made at the time such transactions were originally approved. With respect to employment relationships, the Company, with the approval of the
compensation committee, has set up a written procedure by which all new employees must submit a questionnaire that is intended to identify any
potential related person relationship. All new compensation arrangements and any changes to existing compensation arrangements for
employees who are related persons must be approved by the compensation committee. With respect to vendor relationships, the Company, with
the approval of the compensation committee, has developed written procedures whereby all new vendor forms include a �check� box stating that
such vendor is not a related person. The Vice Presidents who are in charge of new vendor relationships work to ensure that these forms are filled
out accurately. In the event a related person relationship is identified, the engagement with the vendor must be pre-approved by the
compensation committee.

Transactions With Related Persons
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Ezra Dabah, our former CEO, is the son-in-law of Stanley Silverstein, a member of our Board.

Nina Miner, Mr. Silverstein�s daughter and Mr. Dabah�s sister-in-law, is employed by us as our Chief Creative Director. For the 2006 fiscal year,
Ms. Miner received cash compensation of $575,962 in base salary, a $390,195 bonus, $10,000 in car allowance, $2,615 in insurance premiums
paid by us with respect to life insurance for the benefit of Ms. Miner and $5,035 in matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan. On January
30, 2006, we granted Ms. Miner a Performance Award with a target number of shares of 56,498 shares, subject to the terms and conditions of a
Performance Award agreement between Ms. Miner and us. Depending on the level of achievement of the performance targets pertaining to the
Performance Awards, Ms. Miner may be entitled to receive a maximum of up to 112,996 shares of our common stock pursuant to the award.

Jason Yagoda, Mr. Dabah�s son-in-law and Mr. Silverstein�s granddaughter�s husband, left the employ of the Company as Vice President,
Marketing, Disney Store effective as of January 19, 2007. During fiscal 2006, Mr. Yagoda received cash compensation of $288,558 in base
salary, and $305,624 in housing allowance and relocation expense (including payments to cover income taxes to which he became liable in
respect of such allowance) and $5,108 in 401(k) matching contributions. In connection with his departure from the Company, we offered Mr.
Yagoda a severance package. Since Mr. Yagoda did not respond to our severance proposal, we determined that he has rejected our offer and we
have withdrawn our proposal.

During fiscal 2006, we purchased approximately $3.2 million of footwear from Nina Footwear Corporation. Stanley Silverstein, who is a
member of the Board and the father-in-law of Ezra Dabah, our former CEO, owns Nina
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Footwear Corporation with his brother. Mr. Silverstein is not actively involved in the Nina Footwear business. Our compensation committee
determined that, the transactions with Nina Footwear Corporation were on terms no less favorable than could have been obtained from an
unaffiliated third party.

In September 2007, we hired Gary Flaks as our Vice President, Footwear. Mr. Flaks is the brother of Richard Flaks, who is a named executive
officer and serves as our Senior Vice President, Planning, Allocation and Information Technology. The compensation committee granted him a
$45,000 signing bonus, set his annual salary at $250,000 per year and that for fiscal 2007, Mr. Flaks� target bonus amount is 25% of his annual
salary. He is also entitled to participate in the other benefit plans made available by the Company to other executives of the Company. In
addition, as soon as practicable (but in no event before such time as we determine that we are in compliance with the periodic reporting
requirements of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act), Mr. Flaks will be granted, pursuant to and subject to the provisions of the 2005 Equity Plan,
an award of shares of common stock. The number of shares Mr. Flaks is to receive will determined by the compensation committee at a later
date.

Our compensation committee has reviewed and approved each of the foregoing compensation arrangements and transactions.

ITEM 14.�PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
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Our Board has appointed BDO as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending February 2, 2008. Our
independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal years 2004, 2005 and 2006 was Deloitte & Touche LLP.

Fees Paid to Deloitte & Touche LLP for Services Rendered During the Last Two Fiscal Years
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The following table summarizes the aggregate fees billed to us by Deloitte & Touche LLP.

Fiscal Year Ended February 3, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2006

Amount
% of Total Fees

for Year Amount
% of Total Fees

for Year
(in thousands) (in thousands)

Audit fees $ 3,954 93% $ 1,560 86%
Audit-related fees 6 �% 28 2%
Tax fees 277 7% 216 12%
All other fees 4 �% � �%

TOTAL $ 4,241 100% $ 1,804 100%

Audit Fees
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Fees for audit services billed by Deloitte & Touche LLP in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 consisted of fees related to:

�      Audits of our annual financial statements,

�      Audit of the restatement of our historical financial statements to reflect additional stock-based compensation
expense relating to stock option grants made in each year during the period from fiscal year ended January 31, 1997
through the first quarter of fiscal 2006,

�      Reviews of our quarterly financial statements,

�      Planning and attestation of management�s assessment of internal control, as required by the Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and

�      Statutory audits of our subsidiaries.

Audit-Related Fees
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Fees for audit-related services billed by Deloitte & Touche LLP in fiscal 2006 consisted of fees related to the preparation of our registration
statement on Form S-8 and in fiscal 2005 consisted of employee benefit plan audits.
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Tax Fees

Fees for tax compliance services totaled approximately $124,000 and $86,000 in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively. Tax compliance
services are services rendered to document, compute and obtain government approval for amounts to be included in tax filings and consisted of
Federal, state and local income tax return assistance, assistance with tax return filings in certain foreign jurisdictions, and assistance with tax
audits.

Fees for tax planning and advice billed by Deloitte & Touche LLP totaled approximately $153,000 and $130,000 in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005,
respectively. Tax planning and advice services include tax advice related to international regulations and structuring of foreign operations and
tax advice on the impact of new legislation on the Company, including advice relating to the impact of adopting FIN 48.

All Other Fees
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All other fees in 2006 consisted of seminars and a subscription to an online research tool. Other than those specified above, we did not have any
fees billed by Deloitte & Touche LLP in fiscal 2005.

It is the audit committee�s policy to monitor and limit, as appropriate, non-audit related services performed by our independent registered public
accounting firm. In considering the nature of the services provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP, the audit committee determined that such
services are compatible with the provision of independent audit services. The audit committee discussed these services with management, with
advice from Deloitte & Touche LLP to determine that they are permitted under the rules and regulations concerning auditor independence
promulgated by the SEC and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board to implement the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as by the
professional standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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PART IV

ITEM 15.�EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)(1) Financial Statements

The following documents are filed as part of this report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 (as restated)

Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscal years ended February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006 (as restated) and January 29, 2005 (as
restated)

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders� Equity for the fiscal years ended February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006 (as restated) and
January 29, 2005 (as restated)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006 (as restated) and January 29, 2005 (as
restated)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of

The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc.

Secaucus, New Jersey:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of
February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders� equity and cash flows for
each of the three fiscal years in the period ended February 3, 2007. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule included in the
Index at Item 15. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company�s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The Children�s Place Retail
Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three fiscal years in the period ended February 3, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been restated.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the provision of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123(R), �Share-Based Payment,� effective January 29, 2006.

As discussed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements, on August 29, 2007, the Company entered into a refurbishment amendment to
its license agreement for the Disney Store chain in North America relating to non-compliance by the Company with certain provisions of the
license agreement.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of
the Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007 based on the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated December 5, 2007
expressed adverse opinions on (i) management�s assessment relating to the disclosure of the Company�s control environment material weakness
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and (ii) the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting because of material weaknesses.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Parsippany, New Jersey
December 5, 2007
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THE CHILDREN�S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

February 3,
2007

January 28,
2006(1)

(As restated)
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 116,991 $ 173,323
Short-term investments 75,175 �
Accounts receivable 35,173 29,121
Inventories 239,039 213,665
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 42,817 38,550
Deferred income taxes 16,410 5,387
Total current assets 525,605 460,046

Property and equipment, net 341,739 248,628
Deferred income taxes 69,039 50,168
Other assets 3,103 5,206
Total assets $ 939,486 $ 764,048

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 82,970 $ 81,620
Taxes payable 20,116 52,707
Accrued expenses, interest and other current liabilities 138,770 95,681
Total current liabilities 241,856 230,008
Deferred rent liabilities 123,585 105,560
Deferred royalty 45,941 27,152
Other long-term liabilities 6,317 5,678
Total liabilities 417,699 368,398

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 11)
STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY:
Common stock, $0.10 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 29,083,916 and 27,954,386
shares issued and outstanding at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively 2,909 2,796
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, 0 shares issued and outstanding
at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 � �
Additional paid-in capital 188,566 147,065
Accumulated other comprehensive income 4,344 7,211
Retained earnings 325,968 238,578
Total stockholders� equity 521,787 395,650
Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 939,486 $ 764,048

(1)   See Note 2�Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements
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THE CHILDREN�S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3,

2007
January 28,
2006(1)

January 29,
2005(1)

(As restated) (As restated)
Net sales $ 2,017,713 $ 1,668,736 $ 1,157,548
Cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation shown separately below) 1,189,300 1,008,722 705,422
Gross profit 828,413 660,014 452,126
Selling, general and administrative expenses 626,251 513,994 336,610
Asset impairment charges 17,066 244 164
Depreciation and amortization 65,701 52,886 49,049
Operating income 119,395 92,890 66,303
Interest income (expense), net 3,933 563 (22)
Income before income taxes and extraordinary gain 123,328 93,453 66,281
Provision for income taxes 35,938 35,149 25,905
Income before extraordinary gain 87,390 58,304 40,376
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes � 1,665 273
Net income $ 87,390 $ 59,969 $ 40,649
Basic net income per common share before extraordinary gain $ 3.03 $ 2.11 $ 1.50
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes � 0.06 0.01
Basic net income per common share $ 3.03 $ 2.17 $ 1.51
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 28,828 27,676 26,919
Diluted net income per common share before extraordinary gain $ 2.92 $ 2.03 $ 1.47
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes � 0.06 0.01
Diluted net income per common share $ 2.92 $ 2.09 $ 1.48
Diluted weighted average common shares and common share
equivalents outstanding 29,907 28,687 27,545

(1)   See Note 2�Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements
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THE CHILDREN�S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY

(In thousands)

Common Stock
Additional
Paid-In Retained

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Total

Stockholders� Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Earnings (Loss)/Income Equity Income

BALANCE, January 31, 2004
(As reported) 26,733 $ 2,673 $ 101,288 $ 139,118 $ 2,775 $ 245,854
ADJUSTMENTS related to
stock-based compensation
expense and other
adjustments for periods ended
prior to January 31, 2004 3,733 (1,158) (247) 2,328
BALANCE, January 31, 2004
(As restated)(1) 26,733 2,673 105,021 137,960 2,528 248,182
Exercise of stock options and
employee stock purchases 485 49 7,570 7,619
Tax benefit of stock option
exercises 2,099 2,099
Stock based compensation
expense (As restated)(1) 2,732 2,732
Change in cumulative
translation adjustment, net of
taxes of $567 (As restated)(1) 1,843 1,843 $ 1,843
Net income (As restated)(1) 40,649 40,649 40,649
Comprehensive income $ 42,492
BALANCE, January 29, 2005
(As restated) 27,218 2,722 117,422 178,609 4,371 303,124
Exercise of stock options and
employee stock purchases 736 74 15,854 15,928
Tax benefit of stock option
exercises 3,715 3,715
Stock based compensation,
including acceleration charges
(As restated) (1) 10,371 10,371
Modifications of stock
options - reclassification from
equity to liability award (297) (297)
Change in cumulative
translation adjustment, net of
taxes of $1,038 (As
restated)(1) 2,840 2,840 $ 2,840
Net income (As restated) 59,969 59,969 59,969
Comprehensive income $ 62,809
BALANCE, January 28, 2006
(As restated)(1) 27,954 2,796 147,065 238,578 7,211 395,650

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements
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THE CHILDREN�S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY (continued)

(In thousands)

Common Stock
Additional
Paid-In Retained

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Total

Stockholders� Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Earnings (Loss)/Income Equity Income

Exercise of stock options and
employee stock purchases 1,130 113 27,048 27,161
Tax benefit of stock option
exercises 11,001 11,001
Equity based compensation
expense - stock options 3,452 3,452
Change in cumulative
translation adjustment, net of
taxes of $1,038 (2,867) (2,867) $ (2,867)
Net income 87,390 87,390 87,390
Comprehensive income $ 84,523
BALANCE, February 3,
2007 29,084 $ 2,909 $ 188,566 $ 325,968 $ 4,344 $ 521,787

(1)   See Note 2�Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements
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THE CHILDREN�S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3,

2007
January 28,
2006(1)

January 29,
2005(1)

(As restated) (As restated)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 87,390 $ 59,969 $ 40,649
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 65,701 52,886 49,049
Deferred financing fee amortization 319 370 108
Amortization of lease buyouts 260 168 158
Loss on disposals of property and equipment 1,770 625 457
Asset impairment charges 17,066 244 164
Stock-based compensation and acceleration of stock option vesting 3,452 10,371 2,732
Stock-based compensation related to liability awards 929 � �
Deferred royalty, net 18,789 20,046 7,097
Extraordinary gain � (2,774) (444)
Deferred taxes (30,001) (37,120) 1,644
Deferred rent expense and lease incentives (7,616) (10,061) (8,583)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (6,123) (5,065) (6,552)
Inventories (26,168) (50,473) 39,612
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (3,723) 1,082 (4,089)
Prepaid income taxes (5,958) � �
Other assets (435) � �
Accounts payable (1,642) 265 30,524
Accrued expenses, interest and other current liabilities 22,888 11,341 34,181
Income taxes payable (32,593) 41,344 8,838
Deferred rent liabilities 30,669 23,586 15,246
Other liabilities 638 (908) (1,552)
Total adjustments 48,222 55,927 168,590
Net cash provided by operating activities 135,612 115,896 209,239
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Property and equipment purchases, lease acquisition and software costs (155,069) (89,229) (57,804)
Acquisition of Disney Stores, net of acquired cash � 2,240 (107,256)
Purchase of investments (1,869,519) (52,515) (43,930)
Sale of investments 1,794,344 52,515 66,270
Other investing activities 1,023 (2,030) (157)
Net cash used in investing activities (229,221) (89,019) (142,877)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings under revolving credit facilities 246,967 577,344 300,235
Repayments under revolving credit facilities (246,967) (614,612) (262,967)
Exercise of stock options and employee stock purchases 27,161 15,928 7,619
Net excess tax benefit for stock option exercises 11,001 � �
Deferred financing costs � � (626)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 38,162 (21,340) 44,261
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (885) 2,590 2,141
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (56,332) 8,127 112,764
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Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 173,323 165,196 52,432
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 116,991 $ 173,323 $ 165,196

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements
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THE CHILDREN�S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(In thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3,

2007
January 28,
2006(1)

January 29,
2005(1)

(As restated) (As restated)
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for income taxes $ 92,459 $ 29,462 $ 18,734
Cash paid during the year for interest 1,063 848 209
Accrued purchases of property and equipment, lease acquisition and
software costs 19,915 7,976 (454)

(1)    See Note 2�Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements
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THE CHILDREN�S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.      BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (the �Company�) is primarily a specialty retailer of merchandise for children from
newborn to ten years of age. The Company designs, contracts to manufacture and sells high-quality, value priced apparel and accessories and
other children�s-oriented merchandise under two brands and store concepts��The Children�s Place� and �Disney Store.� As of February 3, 2007, the
Company operated 866 The Children�s Place stores in the United States, Canada and Puerto Rico and 328 Disney Stores in the United States and
Canada. In addition, the Company operated Internet stores at www.childrensplace.com and www.disneystore.com. In addition to corporate
offices and distribution facilities in the United States and Canada, the Company also has business operations in Asia.

Fiscal Year
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The Company�s fiscal year is a 52-week or 53-week period ending on the Saturday nearest to January 31. The results for fiscal 2006 represents
the 53-week period ended February 3, 2007 (�fiscal 2006�). The results for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 represent the 52-week periods ended
January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively.

Use of Estimates
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (�U.S. GAAP�) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and amounts of revenues and expenses reported during the period. Actual results could differ
from the assumptions used and estimates made by management, which could have a material impact on the Company�s financial position
or results of operations.

Consolidation
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The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated. As of February 3, 2007, the Company does not have any investments in unconsolidated affiliates. The
principles of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation (FIN) No. 46 (revised December 2003), �Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities� and Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51, �Consolidated Financial Statements� are considered when determining whether
an entity is subject to consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

370



Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

371



The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition
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The Company recognizes revenue, including shipping and handling fees billed to customers, upon purchase at the Company�s retail stores or
when received by the customer if the product was purchased via the Internet, net of coupon redemptions and anticipated sales returns. The
Company deferred approximately $0.3 million and $0.2 million as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively, for Internet
shipments sent but not yet received by the customer.

An allowance for estimated sales returns is recorded and is reflected in accrued expenses and other current liabilities. The allowance for
estimated sales returns was approximately $3.4 million and $1.8 million as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively.

The Company acts as an agent on behalf of a subsidiary of The Walt Disney Company, for the sale of Walt Disney World® Resort and
Disneyland® Resort tickets sold in the Disney Stores. The Company includes in net sales the 7% commission it receives for the sale of these
theme park tickets. The Company recorded commission income of approximately $5.0 million and $4.8 million during fiscal 2006 and fiscal
2005, respectively. During the ten weeks
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the Company operated the Disney Store business ended January 29, 2005, the Company recorded commission income of approximately $1.4
million. (For clarification, the �DSNA Business� refers to the business the Company acquired from Disney as of November 21, 2004, whereas the
�Disney Store business� refers to the Disney Store business the Company has operated since the acquisition. See Note 4�Acquisition of the DSNA
Business. The Walt Disney Company and/or its subsidiaries are referred to interchangeably as �Disney.�)

The Company�s policy with respect to gift cards is to record revenue as the gift cards are redeemed for merchandise. For The Children�s Place,
prior to their redemption, gift cards are recorded as a liability, included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities. The Company
recognizes income from gift cards that are not expected to be redeemed based upon an extended period of dormancy where statutorily permitted.
The Company recognized income for gift card dormancy of approximately $0.4 million, $0.3 million and $0.4 million during fiscal 2006, fiscal
2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively. The Disney Store business acts as an agent on behalf of Disney for gift cards sold to customers. Therefore,
the Company does not record a customer gift card liability for the Disney Store business. However, the Company recognizes a trade payable to
Disney for the net purchases and redemptions of Disney gift cards.

The Company offers a private label credit card to its Children�s Place customers that provides a discount on future purchases once a minimum
annual purchase threshold has been exceeded. The Company estimates the future discounts to be provided based on history, the number of
customers who have earned or are likely to earn the discount and current year sales trends on the private label credit card. The Company defers a
proportionate amount of revenue from customers based on an estimated value of future discounts. The Company recognizes such deferred
revenue as future discounts are taken on sales above the annual minimum. This is done by utilizing estimates based upon sales trends and the
number of customers who have earned the discount privilege. The Company�s private label customers must earn the discount privilege on an
annual basis, and such privilege expires at fiscal year end. Accordingly, all deferred revenue is recognized by the end of the fiscal year.

Inventories
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Inventories, which consist primarily of finished goods, are stated at the lower of average cost or market, calculated using the retail inventory
method. Under the retail inventory method, the valuation of inventories at cost and the resulting gross margins are calculated by applying a
cost-to-retail ratio by merchandise department to the retail value of inventories. Inventory includes items that have been marked down to the
Company�s best estimate of their fair market value and an estimate for inventory shrinkage. The Company bases its decision to mark down
merchandise upon its current rate of sale, the season and the sell-through of the item. The Company adjusts its inventory based upon an annual
physical inventory and shrinkage is estimated in interim periods based upon the historical results of physical inventories in the context of current
year facts and circumstances.

Cost of Sales
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In addition to the cost of inventory sold, the Company includes buying and distribution expenses, shipping and handling costs on merchandise
sold directly to customers, and letter of credit fees in its cost of sales. The Company records all occupancy costs in its cost of sales, except
administrative office buildings, which are recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses.

Accounting for Equity Compensation and Stock Purchase Plans

The Company maintains several equity compensation plans, which are administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors
(the �Compensation Committee�). The Compensation Committee is composed of independent members of the Board of Directors (the �Board�). The
Company has granted stock options under its 1996 Stock Option Plan (the �1996 Plan�), its 1997 Stock Option Plan (the �1997 Plan�), and its 2005
Equity Incentive Plan (the �2005 Equity Plan�) (collectively, the �Plans�). The 2005 Equity Plan, which was approved at the June 23, 2005 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, enabled the Compensation Committee to grant multiple forms of equity compensation such as stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, deferred stock awards and performance awards. In connection with the adoption of the 2005 Equity
Plan, the Compensation Committee agreed not to issue any additional stock options under the 1996 Plan or the 1997 Plan and to limit the
aggregate grant
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of awards under the 2005 Equity Plan during fiscal years 2005, 2006 and 2007 to less than 2.5% of the aggregate number of shares of the
Company�s common stock outstanding on the last day of the 2005, 2006, and 2007 fiscal years, respectively. The Company also maintains an
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the �ESPP�).

Stock Options

At the discretion of the Compensation Committee, the Plans provide for granting incentive stock options (�ISOs�) qualified under Section 422 of
the Internal Revenue Code and non-qualified stock options (�NQOs�). Options granted under the Plans have a maximum term of ten years.
Exercise prices of options granted under the 2005 Equity Plan may not be less than the fair market value of the underlying shares at the date of
the grant. The Plans also contain certain provisions requiring that the exercise price of ISOs granted to stockholders owning greater than 10% of
the Company be at least 110% of the fair market value of the underlying shares and a maximum term of five years. Unless otherwise specified
by the Compensation Committee:

�      Options granted prior to April 2005 under the 1996 Plan and the 1997 Plan vest at 20% a year over a five-year
period; and

�      Options granted subsequent to April 2005 under the 1997 Plan and the 2005 Equity Plan vest at 25% a year over a
four-year period.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 123 (Revised 2004), �Accounting for Share-Based Payments,�
(�SFAS 123(R)�), the Company recognizes equity compensation expense for its stock options on a straight-line basis.

Effective January 29, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospective
transition method. Under this method, prior periods are not restated. In applying SFAS 123(R), the Company uses the Black-Scholes option
pricing model based on a Monte Carlo simulation, which requires extensive use of accounting judgment and financial estimates, including
estimates of how long an employee will hold their vested stock options before exercise, the estimated volatility of the Company�s common stock
over the expected term, and the number of options that will be forfeited prior to the completion of vesting requirements. Application of other
assumptions could result in significantly different estimates of fair value of stock-based compensation and the related expense recognized in the
Company�s financial statements. The provisions of SFAS 123(R) apply to new stock options and stock options outstanding, but not yet vested, as
of the effective date. SFAS 123(R) requires disclosure of pro forma financial information for periods prior to adoption. Refer to Note 3�Equity
Compensation and Stock Purchase Plans for the Company�s pro forma disclosure as required by SFAS 123(R).

Prior to January 29, 2006, in accordance with SFAS No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation� and the disclosure requirements of
SFAS No. 148, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, Transition and Disclosure,� the Company accounted for its stock option plans and its
ESPP under the intrinsic value method described in the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, �Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees� (�APB 25�) and related accounting interpretations. Under APB 25, options granted at prices that equaled or exceeded their quoted
market price at the date of grant generally required no compensation expense to be recorded at the date of the grant.
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On January 27, 2006, the Company accelerated the vesting of approximately 2.1 million stock options, excluding approximately 355,000 options
held by non-executive members of the Board of Directors, certain executives of the Company, and a subsidiary board member, in order to
eliminate the impact of approximately $24.5 million of share-based compensation expense on future operating results related to past option
grants. As a result, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, in accordance with APB 25, the Company recognized a share-based compensation charge
of approximately $1.7 million, which represents the Company�s estimate of intrinsic value that would have been forfeited had the acceleration not
occurred. For option holders with 5,000 or more unvested options that were accelerated, the Company imposed restrictions on their sale or
transfer until the time the option would have vested under its original vesting schedule. However, these vesting restrictions lapse upon the option
holder�s disability, death or in the event of a change in control of the Company. Transfer restrictions will not apply after the original vesting date
for the accelerated options with respect to any shares acquired upon the exercise of accelerated options, whether or not the transfer restriction
agreement was signed.
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Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company presented the tax savings resulting from tax deductions resulting from the exercise of stock
options as an operating cash flow, in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (�EITF�) Issue No. 00-15, �Classification in the Statement of
Cash Flows of the Income Tax Benefit Received by a Company upon Exercise of a Nonqualified Stock Option.� SFAS 123(R) now requires the
Company to reflect the tax savings resulting from tax deductions in excess of expense in its financial statements as a financing cash flow.

Performance Awards

Prior to fiscal 2006, equity compensation for key management consisted only of stock option awards. Upon consideration of several factors,
including the impact of SFAS 123(R), the Company decided in fiscal 2006 to begin awarding to members of key management selected by the
Compensation Committee (the �Participants�) performance awards (�Performance Awards�). Performance Awards are shares of our common stock
(�Performance Shares�) to be issued to Participants if, among other conditions, the Company achieves a minimum earnings per share level in fiscal
2007 (the �Threshold Target�) and a minimum cumulative earnings per share level for fiscal 2005, 2006 and 2007 (together with the Threshold
Target, the �Minimum Performance Target�). At the time the Performance Awards were granted, the fiscal 2005 earnings per share component of
the Company�s three year cumulative target was known. If the Minimum Performance Target is achieved, Participants may earn (i.e., become
entitled to receive) 50% of a target number of shares established by the Compensation Committee. To the extent the Company�s fiscal 2007
earnings per share exceed the Threshold Target, the number of shares to be issued to each Participant will increase (at varying rates) from a
minimum of 50% to a maximum of 200% of the recipient�s target number of shares. Compensation expense for Performance Awards is
determined by the fair market value of the Company�s stock on the date of grant, as determined by the average of the high and low trading price.

Based on the Company�s estimate of the level of performance targets for which attainment is probable, Performance Awards are expensed on a
straight line basis as follows:

�  The first 50% of the awards are expensed over a two year vesting period from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007 and are
earned based on the Company meeting the Minimum Performance Target; and

�  The remaining 50% of the awards are expensed over a three year vesting period from fiscal 2006 through fiscal
2008 based on the Participant�s continued service to the Company through that period.

Restricted Stock
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In addition to granting Performance Shares, the Company began awarding shares of restricted stock to key management during fiscal 2006.
Shares of restricted stock vest equally over four years from the date of grant. Compensation expense for restricted stock is determined by the fair
market value of the Company�s stock on the date of grant, as determined by the average of the high and low trading price, and is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the service period. During fiscal 2006, the Company recognized expense related to restricted stock awards the Company
has agreed to make but has been unable to grant, pending becoming current in its periodic SEC reporting.

Stock Purchase Plan
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The Company also administers an ESPP. Under the ESPP, eligible employees are permitted to subscribe to purchase shares of
Company common stock through payroll deductions of up to 10% of eligible compensation, subject to limitations. The purchase price is
95% of the average high and low prices of the Company�s common stock on the last trading day of each monthly offering period, which
is deemed to be non-compensatory.
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Net Income per Common Share
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The Company reports its earnings per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, �Earnings Per Share� (�SFAS 128�), which requires the presentation
of both basic and diluted earnings per share on the statements of income.

In accordance with SFAS 128, the following table reconciles income and share amounts utilized to calculate basic and diluted net income per
common share (in thousands):
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For the Fiscal Year Ended
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
January 29,

2005
Net income $ 87,390 $ 59,969 $ 40,649

Basic weighted average common shares 28,828 27,676 26,919
Dilutive effect of stock options 1,079 1,011 626
Diluted weighted average common shares 29,907 28,687 27,545
Antidilutive options 23 57 829

Antidilutive options consist of the weighted average of stock options that had an exercise price greater than the average market price during the
period. Such options are therefore excluded from the computation of diluted shares.

Accounting for Royalties Due Under the License Agreement
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In fiscal 2004, the Company entered into a License and Conduct of Business Agreement (the �License Agreement�) to secure the right to use
certain Disney intellectual property in the Disney Store business in exchange for ongoing royalty payments. (See Note 5�License Agreement with
Disney.)

Minimum royalty commitments are recorded on a straight-line basis over the life of the initial 15 year term of the License Agreement. During
each period, amounts due in excess of the minimum royalty commitment are recorded as an expense if management expects to surpass the
minimum royalty commitment on an annual basis, even if the contingency threshold has not been surpassed in that particular period. The royalty
percentage does not increase over the initial term of the License Agreement.

In accordance with the License Agreement, following a two year royalty abatement, the Company began making royalty payments to Disney in
November 2006 equal to 5% of net sales from physical Disney Store locations, subject to an additional royalty holiday period of up to eight
years from the date of the License Agreement with respect to a limited number of stores. Total payments in 2006 were $6.1 million. The
amortization of the royalty holiday is recognized on a straight-line basis as a reduction of royalty expense over the term of the License
Agreement. Royalty expense, and the associated amortization of the royalty holiday, is recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses.
In August 2007, the Company and Disney entered into an agreement which modified certain provisions of the License Agreement and created
certain additional obligations on the part of the Company (the �Refurbishment Amendment�). The Refurbishment Amendment, among other
things, ended the royalty abatement at certain locations identified in the original License Agreement. Refer to Note 5�License Agreement with
Disney for additional information regarding the Refurbishment Amendment.

As of February 3, 2007, management�s estimate of the value of the earned net royalty holiday of $45.9 million has been recorded in deferred
royalties. The actual value of the royalty holiday is not determinable until the completion of the royalty holiday period, and may differ materially
from the Company�s current estimate. Estimates for the royalty holiday are adjusted on a periodic basis, and the cumulative adjustment is
recorded in such period. Royalty expense of $25.0 million, $20.0 million, and $7.1 million has been included in selling, general and
administrative expenses for fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively. The Company�s classification of royalty expense in selling,
general and administrative expenses may not be comparable to the classification of such costs at other companies.

Accounts Receivable
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Accounts receivable consist of credit card receivables, landlord construction incentive receivables and other miscellaneous receivables. Landlord
construction incentive receivables were approximately $19.3 million and $11.6 million at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively.

Investments
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Investments are classified in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 115, �Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities.� The Company�s short-term investments are principally composed of
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Auction Rate Securities (�ARS�) and Variable Rate Demand Notes (�VRDN�). The Company had short-term investments in VRDN of
approximately $75.2 million as of February 3, 2007 and had no short-term investments as of January 28, 2006. ARS and VRDN are classified as
available-for-sale and are stated at fair value. Interest rates reset periodically and the investments typically are settled within 35 days. As a result,
there are no cumulative gross unrealized holding gains or losses related to these securities. All income from these investments is recorded as
interest income.

Derivative Instruments
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SFAS No. 133, �Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,� (�SFAS 133�), as amended and interpreted, requires that each
derivative instrument (including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) be recorded on the balance sheet as either an asset
or liability and measured at its fair value. The statement also requires that changes in the derivative�s fair value be recognized currently in
earnings in either income from continuing operations or accumulated other comprehensive income, depending on whether the derivative
qualifies for hedge accounting treatment.

During fiscal 2006, the Company was not party to any derivative financial instruments. In the second quarter of 2004, the Company used foreign
currency forward contracts for the specific purpose of reducing the exposure to variability in forecasted cash flows associated primarily with
inventory purchases for the Company�s Canadian operations. These instruments were not designated as hedges and, in accordance with SFAS
No. 133, the changes in fair value were recorded in period earnings. As of January 29, 2005, the Company�s forward contracts had matured and a
realized loss of $0.6 million and was recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2004.

Insurance and Self-Insurance Reserves
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The Company self-insures and purchases insurance policies to provide for workers� compensation, general liability and property losses, as well as
director and officer�s liability, vehicle liability and employee medical benefits. The Company estimates risks and records a liability based on
historical claim experience, insurance deductibles, severity factors and other actuarial assumptions. As of February 3, 2007 and January 28,
2006, the Company recorded $6.6 million and $5.6 million in accrued expenses and other current liabilities for the current portions of employee
medical benefits, workers compensation and general liability reserves, and $5.8 million and $5.3 million for the long-term portion of employee
medical benefits, workers� compensation and general liability reserves, respectively.

Property and Equipment
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Property and equipment are stated at cost. Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight line basis over the life of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the asset, whichever is shorter. All other property and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis based upon their
estimated useful lives, which generally range from three to ten years. Interest costs related to the construction of property and equipment are
capitalized as incurred as part of the cost of the constructed asset. Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

The Company accounts for internally developed software intended for internal use in accordance with SOP 98-1, �Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.� The Company capitalizes development-stage costs such as direct external costs,
direct payroll related costs and interest costs incurred to develop the software prior to implementation. When development is substantially
complete, the Company amortizes the cost of the software on a straight-line basis over the expected life of the software. Preliminary project
costs and post-implementation costs such as training, maintenance and support are expensed as incurred.

Accounting for Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
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In accordance with SFAS No. 144, �Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets� (�SFAS 144�), the Company evaluates each
store�s performance (in the fiscal year after a store has been opened) and measures the carrying value of each location�s fixed assets, principally
leasehold improvements and certain fixtures, versus its undiscounted estimated future cash flows. When the evaluation of a store location
indicates that the cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying value of the long-term assets at the store, the store assets are deemed to be
impaired and are adjusted to their fair values.
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Deferred Financing Costs
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The Company capitalizes costs directly associated with acquiring third-party financing. Deferred financing costs are included in other assets and
are amortized on a straight line basis as interest expense over the term of the related indebtedness. As of February 3, 2007, deferred financing
costs were approximately $1.1 million, before accumulated amortization of approximately $0.9 million. As of January 28, 2006 deferred
financing costs were approximately $1.1 million, before accumulated amortization of approximately $0.5 million.

Pre-opening Costs
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Store pre-opening costs, which consist primarily of occupancy costs, payroll, supply, and marketing expenses, are expensed as incurred, and are
included in selling, general and administrative expenses. Occupancy costs incurred during construction, prior to and during store pre-opening
activities are considered pre-opening costs, not rent expense.

Advertising and Marketing Costs
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The Company expenses the cost of advertising when the advertising is first run or displayed. Included in selling, general and administrative
expenses for fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 are advertising and other marketing costs of approximately $57.2 million, $46.4 million and
$30.8 million, respectively.

Landlord Construction Allowances
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The Company accounts for landlord construction allowances as lease incentives and records them as a component of deferred rent, which is
amortized as a reduction of rent expense over the lease term.

Rent Expense and Deferred Rent

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

413



Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

414



Rent expense and lease incentives, including landlord construction allowances, are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
commencing generally on the date the Company takes possession of the leased property. The Company records rent expense and the impact of
lease incentives for its stores and distribution centers as a component of cost of sales. The unamortized portion of deferred rent is included in
deferred rent liabilities.

Income Taxes
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The Company computes income taxes using the liability method. This method requires recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
measured by enacted rates, attributable to temporary differences between financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities.
Temporary differences result primarily from depreciation and amortization differences for book and tax purposes and the non-deductibility of
certain reserves and accruals for tax purposes.

During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. As a
result, the Company recognizes tax liabilities when they become probable and estimable, and the Company�s estimates include taxes and interest.
These tax liabilities are recognized when, despite the Company�s belief that its tax return positions are supportable, the Company believes that
certain positions are likely to be challenged and may not be fully sustained upon review by tax authorities. The Company believes that its
accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open audit years based on its assessment of many factors including past experience and
interpretations of tax law. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of complex judgments about future
events. To the extent that the final tax outcome of these matters is different than the amounts recorded, such differences will impact the
provision for income taxes in the period in which such determination is made. As of February 3, 2007, the Company recorded approximately
$6.2 million in taxes payable related to various tax contingencies.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
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SFAS No. 107, �Disclosures about Fair Values of Financial Instruments� requires entities to disclose the fair value of financial instruments, both
assets and liabilities, recognized and not recognized in the balance sheets, for

144

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

419



which it is practicable to estimate fair value. For purposes of this disclosure, the fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Fair value is based on
quoted market prices for the same or similar financial instruments.

As cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and payable, and certain other short-term financial instruments are all short-term in nature,
their carrying amount approximates fair value.

Foreign Currency Translation
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The Company has determined that the local currencies of its Canadian and Asian subsidiaries are their functional currencies. In accordance with
SFAS No. 52, �Foreign Currency Translation,� the assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated into U.S. dollars at the
current rate of exchange existing at period-end and revenues and expenses are translated at average monthly exchange rates. Related translation
adjustments are reported as a separate component of stockholders� equity.

Legal Contingencies
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The Company reserves for litigation settlements and contingencies when it can determine the probability of outcome and can estimate losses.
Estimates are adjusted as facts and circumstances require. The Company is involved in various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of
its business. In the opinion of management, any ultimate liability arising out of such proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company�s financial position or results of operations. The Company expenses the costs to settle litigation as incurred.

Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements
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In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�An Interpretation of FASB Statement
109� (�FIN 48�) which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48, effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, requires that the
tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be recognized only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will
be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The amount of tax
benefits recognized from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate resolution. The Company has substantially completed the process of
evaluating the effect of FIN 48 on its consolidated financial statements as of the beginning of the period of adoption,
February 4, 2007. The Company estimates that the cumulative effects of applying this interpretation will be recorded
as a decrease of approximately $6.6 million to beginning retained earnings. In addition, in accordance with the
provisions of FIN 48, the Company will reclassify an estimated $6.2 million of unrecognized tax benefits from current
to non-current liabilities because payment of cash is not anticipated within one year of the balance sheet date.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements� (�SFAS 157�) which provides guidance for using fair value to
measure assets and liabilities, defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in U.S. GAAP, and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 for interim periods within those years. The
Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of adopting SFAS 157 on its consolidated balance sheets and results of operations.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, �Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements� (�SAB 108�). SAB 108 provides interpretive guidance on how the effects of prior year
uncorrected misstatements should be considered when quantifying misstatements in current year financial statements. SAB 108 requires
registrants to quantify misstatements using a balance sheet and income statement approach and to evaluate whether either approach results in
quantifying an error that is material in light of relative quantitative and qualitative factors. SAB 108 is effective for annual financial statements
covering the first fiscal year ending after November 15, 2006. The Company has applied SAB 108 in its restatement of its consolidated financial
statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In June 2006, the FASB ratified the consensuses reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force in Issue No. 06-3, �How Taxes Collected from
Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should be Presented in the Income
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Statement (That is, Gross Versus Net Presentation)� (�EITF 06-3�). EITF 06-3 requires disclosure of an entity�s accounting policy regarding the
presentation of taxes assessed by a governmental authority that are directly imposed on a revenue-producing transaction between a seller and a
customer including sales, use, value added and some excise taxes. Since the Company presents such taxes on a net basis (excluded from net
sales) as permitted under EITF 06-3, there will be no impact on the Company�s financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities�Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115� (�SFAS 159�). This standard permits an entity to choose to measure many financial instruments and
certain other items at fair value. Most of the provisions in SFAS 159 are elective; however, the amendment to SFAS 115, �Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities�, applies to all entities with available-for-sale and trading securities. The fair value option established
by SFAS 159 permits all entities to choose to measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates. A business entity will report
unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings (or another performance indicator if the
business entity does not report earnings) at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value option: (a) may be applied instrument by instrument,
with a few exceptions, such as investments otherwise accounted for by the equity method; (b) is irrevocable (unless a new election date occurs);
and (c) is applied only to entire instruments and not to portions of instruments. SFAS 159 is effective as of the beginning of an entity�s first fiscal
year that begins after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that adopting this statement will have on its
consolidated balance sheets and results of operations.

2.      RESTATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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As a result of an investigation into its stock option granting process, the Company is restating its consolidated balance sheet as of January 28,
2006 (�fiscal 2005�) and its consolidated statements of income, cash flows and changes in stockholders� equity for fiscal years ended January 28,
2006 and January 29, 2005 (�fiscal 2004�) to reflect additional stock-based compensation expense relating to stock option grants and to correct
other errors unrelated to stock option grants.

The Company discovered errors in the dating of its stock options. In many instances, options were dated before all grant-making processes were
finalized. Consequently, in some instances the option exercise price was lower than it should have been based on the trading price on the date the
grant process was completed. In those instances, compensation expense related to those options was not recognized for financial reporting
purposes when it should have been.

Basis for Use of the Company�s Documentation Hierarchy

APB 25 provides that the accounting measurement date is the first date on which both of the following are known: (1) the number of shares that
an individual employee is entitled to receive and (2) the option or purchase price, if any. In light of the Company�s option granting practices, the
Company has concluded that there was a mutual understanding that the terms of an award were approved by the authorized body or person and
final prior to completion of all formal granting actions. The Company therefore has used the date when, most likely, the terms of the awards can
be identified as approved and final, as established by the best available evidence, as the revised measurement date for accounting under APB 25.
(Each of these grant authorizing occasions is referred to herein as a �Recorded Grant�, regardless of the number of people who received an option
award on such occasion or any variations in terms of the awards so granted.)

The Company�s Documentation Hierarchy

The Company has developed a hierarchy of documentation as its basis for determining the revised measurement date for stock option grants. In
each case, the document used to establish the revised measurement date is dated and evidences the point in time when the Company can
substantiate with finality approval of the award, the recipients of the option award, and the number of shares purchasable pursuant to the option
awarded to that recipient. This award-by-award review resulted in different measurement dates in some instances for grants made within the
same Recorded Grant. Metadata was accumulated where available to corroborate the revised measurement date for an option award. Metadata,
obtained as part of the electronic data collection process, provides information about electronic data, such
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as how, when and by whom a set of data was collected, recorded or changed. When the metadata did not corroborate the revised measurement
date (i.e., indicated that a document was created or revised later than it was dated), the metadata date was used as the date of the supporting
document. If another source of support was available with an earlier date, that support was used to define the revised measurement date.

Grant dates based on Board minutes were deemed appropriate in determining the revised measurement dates if the minutes specified: (i) a list of
stock option recipients, (ii) the number of options granted to each recipient, and (iii) the grant date and price. If the minutes were not
determinative, the Company applied the following document hierarchy to determine the revised measurement dates:

1.     Offer Letters to New Employees/Promotion Letters�The Company has concluded that information set forth in accepted offer
letters and promotion letters, which specified the number of options to be granted at a stated date, constituted a mutual
understanding between the employee and the Company. Once the employee began to render service under the terms of
the employment or promotion letter, the Company believes it had a legal liability to grant the option as promised in
the letter. As such, the Company has concluded that these letters established with finality the number of options
granted to a recipient and the date to be used as a grant date, as long as the employee had commenced employment.

2.     Documentation Sent to Third Parties and the Compensation Committee Members�If acceptable evidence was not identified in the Board
minutes or offer and promotion letters, the Company determined that the earliest date on which a list of option recipients and number of options
to each recipient was disseminated outside the Company established the finality of the grant. The Company has identified the following sources
of documentation sent outside the Company as establishing the date on which the terms of an option became final: (i) Forms 3 and 4 filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�), (ii) archive data obtained from the Company�s outside stock option plan administrator (�Stock
Option Administrator�) with the list of option recipients and number of options evidencing the terms of option grants that was provided by the
Company and the date when the Stock Option Administrator was so advised of the grant, and (iii) Legal Department Memoranda requesting
unanimous written consent (�UWC�) approval with an attached UWC documenting with finality (either in the body of the UWC or as a referenced
attachment) the option recipients, number of shares subject to each grant and the exercise price (as well as the �as of� grant date) which, in
accordance with the Company�s option granting process, would not have been prepared if the related list of option recipients was not final and
approved by the former Chief Executive Officer (�CEO�).

3.     Internal Documentation�The next level of documentation used included the �last modified� date metadata of a Microsoft Excel file specifying
the recipient and the number of shares subject to an option grant, or email dates on comparable data prepared by the Legal or Human Resources
Departments where in each case the grant was recorded in the Stock Option Administrator�s records.

4.     Unanimous Written Consents�If no other support was available, the Company used the �last modified� date metadata associated with the UWC
reflecting formal approval of a grant as the revised measurement date.

The Company has revised the measurement dates used to account for certain stock option grants since fiscal year ended January 31, 1998 (�fiscal
1997�) based on the hierarchy above.

Variable Accounting
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During the course of the investigation and the review of the documentation for each grant, the Company identified instances where changes were
made in its records respecting certain Recorded Grants. In these instances, the Company reviewed all documents related to the grant to
determine if the change was an isolated change to an individual award or if the change indicated that the granting process was not complete for
the entire Recorded Grant. If the change was an isolated change, the Company determined whether the change represented an administrative
error or a modification of a term of the award. The investigation did not reveal a practice by the Company of retracting awards or modifying the
terms of awards across a group of recipients after the date determined to be the revised measurement date. Instead, changes were rare and
occurred only at the individual level. The Company found
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no evidence regarding any of the changes that indicated that at the time of the change the granting process remained open for an entire Recorded
Grant.

Since none of the changes indicated an incomplete granting process, the Company used available documentation to determine whether the
changes represented administrative errors or a modification to an individual award. For changes deemed to be administrative errors (e.g., adding
an individual to a list of recipients for service awards where the number of options involved in the award and the criteria required to earn the
award were set prior to the issuance of the award), the Company did not change the revised measurement date applicable to the individual award
from that determined from the Recorded Grant as determined based on the documentation hierarchy.

If the Company determined based on a review of supporting documentation that the change was a modification to the original award (e.g., a
change in the number of shares for which the option was granted or the exercise price of the option), the Company considered the appropriate
accounting for the individual award in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 44, �Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock
Compensation� (�FIN 44�). For any changes involving either the number of shares for which the options was granted or the exercise price of the
option, the Company determined that variable accounting should be applied in accordance with FIN 44. With respect to options for 328,775
shares, the Company has applied variable accounting because of a modification to the terms of the award, resulting in additional stock-based
compensation expense.

The 1997 CEO IPO Grant

The Company granted to Ezra Dabah, its former CEO, who owned more than 10% of the Company�s outstanding shares, options under its 1996
Plan for 99,660 shares in connection with its initial public offering in September 1997 (the �1997 CEO IPO Grant�). Under the plan, options could
be granted as either ISOs or as NQOs. The plan required grants to more than 10% shareholders treated as ISOs to have an exercise price of
110% of the fair market value of the stock on the grant date and to have a five year duration. The plan required NQOs to have a ten year duration
and an exercise price determined by the Compensation Committee. At the time of the grant, the Company issued two certificates in Mr. Dabah�s
name reflecting the 1997 CEO IPO Grant as bifurcated partly into ISOs and partly into NQOs, both parts having a five year duration and an
exercise price of 110% of the initial public offering price. However, other Company records reflected the options as having different terms. In
2004, the Company realized there were inconsistencies in the Company�s records regarding the duration, exercise price and ISO/NQO status
related to the 1997 CEO IPO Grant. On May 6, 2004, management, without review or approval of the Compensation Committee, interpreted the
grant to have a ten year duration in its entirety and changed the Company�s records of outstanding options to reflect the entire grant as NQOs
with a duration of ten years. In April 2007, after an investigation of the circumstances, the Company�s Board of Directors ratified the change to
the records made in May 2004. The Company considers the accounting consequence of the now ratified 2004 action to be the equivalent of a
grant to Mr. Dabah for a �below market�, fully vested option, since, based on the certificates, the options would have expired on September 17,
2002. Accordingly, the Company has recognized in its restatement of its financial statements a charge to compensation expense of
approximately $0.9 million in fiscal 2004.

Other Adjustments
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In addition to the adjustments related to the stock option investigation, the restated consolidated financial statements presented herein
include other adjustments to correct errors related to personal property taxes and certain accrual accounts and reserves, including
those related to occupancy costs for the Company�s 52- and 53-week fiscal years. The aggregate impact of these adjustments on the
Company�s consolidated statements of income, net of taxes, between fiscal year ended February 2, 2002 (�fiscal 2001�) and fiscal 2005 was
an increase to net income of approximately $1.7 million. Additionally, variable rate demand note balances as of the
quarter ended April 29, 2006 have been reclassified from cash to short-term investments, and certain other balance
sheet amounts have been reclassified. These reclassifications do not result in any additional charges in any period and
do not affect working capital for the affected periods.
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The following table reconciles as reported net income to as restated net income and retained earnings (in thousands):

Net Income for
the fiscal year ended

Retained
Earnings as of

January 28,
2006

January 29,
2005

February 1,
2004

As previously reported $ 65,575 $ 42,756 $ 139,118
Increase/(decrease) to net income and retained earnings
Stock based compensation expense(1) (7,955) (2,732) (4,022)
Payroll withholding expense and penalties related to stock
options (1,549) (654) (153)
Other stock option related expenses 577 � �
Total additional stock option related expense (8,927) (3,386) (4,175)

Other adjustments(2) (853) 589 2,734
Income tax benefit (provision) related to stock compensation

3,956 772 1,387
Income tax benefit (provision) related to other adjustments 218 (82) (1,104)
Total (5,606) (2,107) (1,158)
As restated $ 59,969 $ 40,649 $ 137,960

(1)  The Company has not previously recorded stock-based compensation expense in any fiscal year other than
fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2005, the Company recorded approximately $0.3 million related to the modification of stock
options for a terminated employee, before taxes of approximately $0.1 million. The Company also recorded
approximately $2.1 million, before taxes of approximately $0.1 million, of stock-based compensation expense related
to the acceleration of the vesting of certain options. As part of the restatement process, the stock option acceleration
amounts were adjusted to approximately $1.7 million of stock-based compensation expense, before taxes of
approximately $0.5 million. Therefore, the restated total stock-based compensation expense for fiscal 2005 is
approximately $11.3 million, before taxes of approximately $4.1 million.

(2)  Other adjustments relate to personal property taxes and certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those
related to occupancy costs for the Company�s 52- and 53-week fiscal years.

The following table details the components of the beginning retained earnings adjustment as of February 1, 2004 (in thousands):        

Stock Option Related Adjustments(1) Other Adjustments(2)

Period Ended
Expense
(Increase)

Tax
Benefit

Net Stock
Option Related
Adjustments

Expense
Decrease

Tax
(Provision)

Net
Other

Adjustments

Total After
Tax

Adjustment
January 30, 1999 (fiscal
1998) $ (59) $ 19 $ (40) $ � $ � $ � $ (40)
January 29, 2000 (fiscal
1999) (211) 81 (130) � � � (130)
February 3, 2001 (fiscal
2000) (386) 131 (255) � � � (255)

(915) 295 (620) 240 (98) 142 (478)
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February 2, 2002 (fiscal
2001)
February 1, 2003 (fiscal
2002) (972) 375 (597) 772 (311) 461 (136)
January 31, 2004 (fiscal
2003) (1,632) 486 (1,146) 1,722 (695) 1,027 (119)

Cumulative at January
2004 $ (4,175) $ 1,387 $ (2,788) $ 2,734 $ (1,104) $ 1,630 $ (1,158)

(1)  There was no stock-based compensation expense previously recorded by the Company during the period from
fiscal 1998 through fiscal 2003.
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(2)  Other adjustments relate to personal property taxes and certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those
related to occupancy costs for the Company�s 52- and 53-week fiscal years.

The following tables reconcile the Company�s consolidated results of operations and financial position from the previously reported consolidated
financial statements to the restated consolidated financial statements. Refer to Note 16�Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) for changes to the
Company�s quarterly results for fiscal 2005 and the first quarter of fiscal 2006.

Consolidated Balance Sheet Impact

The following table reconciles the consolidated balance sheet previously reported to the restated amounts as of January 28, 2006 (in thousands):

January 28, 2006

As Reported

Stock Option
Related

Adjustments
Other

Adjustments(1) As Restated
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 173,323 $ � $ � $ 173,323
Accounts receivable 28,971 � 150 29,121
Inventories 214,702 � (1,037) 213,665
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 36,955 � 1,595 38,550
Deferred income taxes 6,043 � (656) 5,387
Total current assets 459,994 � 52 460,046

Property and equipment, net 248,628 � � 248,628
Deferred income taxes 43,492 4,397 2,279 50,168
Other assets 5,206 � � 5,206
Total assets $ 757,320 $ 4,397 $ 2,331 $ 764,048

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS�
EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 82,826 $ � $ (1,206) $ 81,620
Income taxes payable 49,078 � 3,629 52,707
Accrued expenses, interest and other current
liabilities 94,160 2,077 (556) 95,681
Total current liabilities 226,064 2,077 1,867 230,008
Deferred rent liabilities 105,560 � � 105,560
Deferred royalty 27,152 � � 27,152
Other long-term liabilities 5,678 � � 5,678
Total liabilities 364,454 2,077 1,867 368,398

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(NOTE 11)
STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY:
Common stock, $0.10 par value 2,796 � � 2,796
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value � � � �
Additional paid-in capital 134,372 12,693 � 147,065
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Accumulated other comprehensive income 8,249 � (1,038) 7,211
Retained earnings 247,449 (10,373) 1,502 238,578
Total stockholders� equity 392,866 2,320 464 395,650
Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 757,320 $ 4,397 $ 2,331 $ 764,048

(1)  Other adjustments relate to personal property taxes certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those
related to occupancy costs for the Company�s 52- and 53-week fiscal years and inventory adjustments.

150

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

437



Consolidated Statements of Income Impact

The following table reconciles the consolidated statement of income previously reported to the restated amounts as of January 28, 2006 (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2006

As Reported

Stock Option
Related

Adjustments
Other

Adjustments(1) As Restated
Net sales $ 1,668,736 $ � $ � $ 1,668,736
Cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation shown separately
below) 1,007,496 2,232 (1,006) 1,008,722
Gross profit 661,240 (2,232) 1,006 660,014
Selling, general and administrative expenses 505,440 6,695 1,859 513,994
Asset impairment charges 244 � � 244
Depreciation and amortization 52,886 � � 52,886
Operating income 102,670 (8,927) (853) 92,890
Interest income (expense), net 563 � � 563
Income before income taxes and extraordinary gain 103,233 (8,927) (853) 93,453
Provision for income taxes 39,323 (3,956) (218) 35,149
Income before extraordinary gain 63,910 (4,971) (635) 58,304
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes 1,665 � � 1,665
Net income $ 65,575 $ (4,971) $ (635) $ 59,969
Basic net income per common share before extraordinary
gain $ 2.31 $ (0.18) $ (0.02) $ 2.11
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes 0.06 � � 0.06
Basic net income per common share $ 2.37 $ (0.18) $ (0.02) $ 2.17
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 27,676 27,676
Diluted net income per common share before
extraordinary gain $ 2.21 $ (0.17) $ (0.01) $ 2.03
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes 0.06 � � 0.06
Diluted net income per common share $ 2.27 $ (0.17) $ (0.01) $ 2.09
Diluted weighted average common shares and common
share equivalents outstanding 28,877 (190) � 28,687

(1)  Other adjustments relate to personal property taxes and certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those
related to occupancy costs for the Company�s 52- and 53-week fiscal years.
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The following table reconciles the consolidated statement of income previously reported to the restated amounts as of January 29, 2005 (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended January 29, 2005

As Reported

Stock Option
Related

Adjustments
Other

Adjustments(1) As Restated
Net sales $ 1,157,548 $ � $ � $ 1,157,548
Cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation shown separately
below) 705,681 601 (860) 705,422
Gross profit 451,867 (601) 860 452,126
Selling, general and administrative expenses 333,554 2,785 271 336,610
Asset impairment charges 164 164
Depreciation and amortization 49,049 � � 49,049
Operating income 69,100 (3,386) 589 66,303
Interest income (expense), net (22) � � (22)
Income before income taxes and extraordinary gain 69,078 (3,386) 589 66,281
Provision for income taxes 26,595 (772) 82 25,905
Income before extraordinary gain 42,483 (2,614) 507 40,376
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes 273 � � 273
Net income $ 42,756 $ (2,614) $ 507 $ 40,649
Basic net income per common share before extraordinary
gain $ 1.58 $ (0.10) $ 0.02 $ 1.50
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes 0.01 � � 0.01
Basic net income per common share $ 1.59 $ (0.10) $ 0.02 $ 1.51
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 26,919 26,919
Diluted net income per common share before
extraordinary gain $ 1.54 $ (0.09) $ 0.02 $ 1.47
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes 0.01 � � 0.01
Diluted net income per common share $ 1.55 $ (0.09) $ 0.02 $ 1.48
Diluted weighted average common shares and common
share equivalents outstanding 27,633 (88) � 27,545

(1)  Other adjustments relate to personal property taxes and certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those
related to occupancy costs for the Company�s 52- and 53-week fiscal years.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Impact

The following table reconciles the consolidated statement of cash flows previously reported to the restated amounts as of January 28, 2006 (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2006

As Reported

Stock Option
Related

Adjustments
Other

Adjustments(1) As Restated
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 65,575 $ (4,971) $ (635) $ 59,969
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 52,886 � � 52,886
Deferred financing fee amortization 370 � � 370
Amortization of lease buyouts 168 � � 168
Loss on disposals of property and equipment 625 � � 625
Asset impairment charges 244 � � 244
Stock based compensation & acceleration 2,416 7,955 � 10,371
Deferred royalty, net 20,046 � � 20,046
Extraordinary gain (2,774) � � (2,774)
Deferred taxes (30,276) (3,956) (2,888) (37,120)
Deferred rent expense and lease incentives (9,167) � (894) (10,061)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (5,065) � � (5,065)
Inventories (51,401) � 928 (50,473)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 832 � 250 1,082
Other assets � � � �
Accounts payable 1,155 � (890) 265
Accrued expenses, interest and other current liabilities 8,411 972 1,958 11,341
Taxes payable 38,673 � 2,671 41,344
Deferred rent liabilities 24,086 � (500) 23,586
Other liabilities (908) � � (908)
Total adjustments 50,321 4,971 635 55,927
Net cash provided by operating activities 115,896 � � 115,896
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Property and equipment purchases, lease acquisition and
software costs (89,229) � � (89,229)
Acquisition of Disney Stores, net of acquired cash 2,240 � � 2,240
Purchase of investments (52,515) � � (52,515)
Sale of investments 52,515 � � 52,515
Other investing activities (2,030) � � (2,030)
Net cash used in investing activities (89,019) � � (89,019)
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Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2006

As Reported

Stock Option
Related

Adjustments
Other

Adjustments(1) As Restated
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings under revolving credit facilities 577,344 � � 577,344
Repayments under revolving credit facilities (614,612) � � (614,612)
Exercise of stock options and employee stock purchases 15,928 � � 15,928
Net excess tax benefit for stock option exercises � � � �
Deferred financing costs � � � �
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (21,340) � � (21,340)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 2,590 2,590
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 8,127 � � 8,127
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 165,196 � 165,196
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 173,323 $ � $ � $ 173,323

(1)   Other adjustments relate to personal property taxes certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those related
to occupancy costs for the Company�s 52- and 53-week fiscal years and inventory adjustments.
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The following table reconciles the consolidated statement of cash flows previously reported to the restated amounts as January 29, 2005 (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended January 29, 2005

As Reported

Stock Option
Related

Adjustments
Other

Adjustments(1) As Restated
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 42,756 $ (2,614) $ 507 $ 40,649
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 49,049 � � 49,049
Deferred financing fee amortization 108 � � 108
Amortization of lease buyouts 158 � � 158
Loss on disposals of property and equipment 457 � � 457
Asset impairment charges 164 � � 164
Stock based compensation & acceleration � 2,732 � 2,732
Deferred royalty, net 7,097 � � 7,097
Extraordinary gain (444) � � (444)
Deferred taxes 2,256 (772) 160 1,644
Deferred rent expense and lease incentives (7,930) � (653) (8,583)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (6,552) � � (6,552)
Inventories 39,504 � 108 39,612
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (3,689) � (400) (4,089)
Other assets � � � �
Accounts payable 30,840 � (316) 30,524
Accrued expenses, interest and other current liabilities 33,354 654 173 34,181
Taxes payable 8,917 � (79) 8,838
Deferred rent liabilities 14,746 � 500 15,246
Other liabilities (1,552) � � (1,552)
Total adjustments 166,483 2,614 (507) 168,590
Net cash provided by operating activities 209,239 � � 209,239
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Property and equipment purchases, lease acquisition and
software costs (57,804) � � (57,804)
Acquisition of Disney Stores, net of acquired cash (107,256) � � (107,256)
Purchase of investments (43,930) � � (43,930)
Sale of investments 66,270 � � 66,270
Other investing activities (157) � � (157)
Net cash used in investing activities (142,877) � � (142,877)
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Fiscal Year Ended January 29, 2005

As Reported

Stock Option
Related

Adjustments
Other

Adjustments(1) As Restated
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings under revolving credit facilities 300,235 � � 300,235
Repayments under revolving credit facilities (262,967) � � (262,967)
Exercise of stock options and employee stock purchases 7,619 � � 7,619
Net excess tax benefit for stock option exercises � � � �
Deferred financing costs (626) � � (626)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 44,261 � � 44,261
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 2,141 2,141
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 112,764 � � 112,764
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 52,432 � 52,432
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 165,196 $ � $ � $ 165,196

(1)   Other adjustments relate to personal property taxes certain accrual accounts and reserves, including those related
to occupancy costs for the Company�s 52- and 53-week fiscal years and inventory adjustments.

3.    EQUITY COMPENSATION AND STOCK PURCHASE PLANS

The Company maintains several equity compensation plans. The Company has granted stock options under its 1996 Plan, its 1997 Plan and its
2005 Equity Plan. Under its 2005 Equity Plan, the Company also has granted, or has agreed to grant, other forms of equity compensation,
including restricted stock awards and Performance Awards. In addition, the Company maintains an ESPP, in which participants purchase stock
at 95% of fair market value, which is deemed to be non-compensatory.

The following tables summarize the Company�s equity and other stock-based compensation expense, which in fiscal 2006 was determined in
accordance with SFAS 123(R) and in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 was determined in accordance with APB 25 (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended February 3, 2007
Cost of Goods

Sold
Selling, General &
Administrative Total

Stock option expense $ � $ 1,944 $ 1,944
Performance Award expense(1) � � �
Stock compensation expense related to the issuance of liability
awards(2) � 97 97
Expense related to the modification of previously issued stock
options
(i.e. tolling)(3) 26 1,482 1,508
Tolled stock options accounted for as liability awards and related
fair market value adjustments(3) 552 280 832
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 578 $ 3,803 $ 4,381

(1)   The Company determined that it is not probable that the Minimum Performance Target will be met. Accordingly, the Company has not
recognized compensation expense related to Performance Awards.
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(2)   Compensation expense for awards of restricted stock and stock options promised for which the Company has not completed the granting
process due to the suspension of equity award grants and related fair market value adjustments.

(3)   Terminated employees have 90 days from date of termination to exercise their vested options. Due to the suspension of stock option
exercises, the Company modified options held by terminated employees to extend their expiration dates to 30 days after the date the suspension
is lifted (i.e., tolled stock options). Options for terminated employees that were
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tolled after the Company suspended option activity on September 14, 2006 were accounted for as liability awards because the option holders
were no longer employees at the time of the modification. Options that were tolled after September 14, 2006 were accounted for as equity
awards because their options were tolled in conjunction with their termination.

Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2006
Cost of Goods

Sold
Selling, General &
Administrative Total

Stock compensation expense related to revised measurement
dates $ 1,701 $ 6,664 $ 8,365
Stock compensation expense related to acceleration of vesting 394 1,258 1,652
Expense related to the modification of previously issued stock
options(1) � 354 354
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 2,095 $ 8,276 $ 10,371

(1)   Compensation expense associated with the modification of a stock option award related to a terminated employee.

Fiscal Year Ended January 29, 2005
Cost of Goods

Sold
Selling, General &
Administrative Total

Stock compensation expense related to revised measurement
dates $ 353 $ 2,379 $ 2,732

The Company recognized a tax benefit related to equity compensation expense of approximately $1.7 million, $3.9 million and $0.5 million in
fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively.

As of February 3, 2007, the Company had the following shares available for grant under its 2005 Equity Plan, assuming Performance Award
targets are not met, are met at 100% and are met at 200%:

Performance Award target assumption(1) 0% 100% 200%

Shares available at January 29, 2005 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Stock options granted during fiscal 2005 (100,600) (100,600) (100,600)

Shares available at January 28, 2006 1,899,400 1,899,400 1,899,400

Equity awards made during fiscal 2006:
Stock options granted 3,000 3,000 3,000
Performance Awards granted � 566,500 1,133,000
Performance Awards cancelled � (22,521) (45,042)
Total equity awards granted during fiscal 2006 3,000 546,979 1,090,958

Shares available at February 3, 2007(2) 1,896,400 1,352,421 808,442

(1)   The Company determined that it is not probable that the Minimum Performance Target will be met. Accordingly, the Company has not
recognized compensation expense related to Performance Awards.
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(2)   During fiscal 2006, the Company made promises to award 25,000 stock options and 2,500 shares of restricted stock. When the equity award
suspension is lifted and these awards are granted, the resulting shares available will be reduced by 27,500 shares.
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Stock Option Plans

As a result of the January 29, 2006 adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company recognized approximately $1.9 million in equity compensation
expense during the fiscal 2006 related to stock options granted under the Plans. Accordingly, net income was reduced by approximately $1.1
million, and basic and diluted net income per common share was reduced by approximately $0.04 per share.

SFAS 123(R) also requires disclosure of pro forma financial information for periods prior to adoption. The following table sets forth the effects
on net income and earnings per share as if the fair value accounting method under SFAS 123 had been applied to all outstanding and unvested
stock option awards and employee stock purchases in the fiscal years ended January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005 (in thousands, except per
share amounts):

Fiscal Year Ended
January 28,

2006
January 29,

2005
Net income -
As restated (1) $ 59,969 $ 40,649
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in restated net income, net of
related tax effects(2) 6,158 2,202
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value
based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (28,857) (7,608)
Pro forma $ 37,270 $ 35,243
Earnings per share -
Basic�as restated $ 2.17 $ 1.51
Basic�pro forma 1.35 1.31
Diluted�as restated 2.09 1.48
Diluted�pro forma $ 1.30 $ 1.28

(1)   See Note 2�Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2)   Includes effects of stock option vesting acceleration recognized in advance of adoption of SFAS 123(R).

Pro forma income per common share excludes the effect of approximately 57,000 and 829,000 stock options for the fiscal years ended
January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively, which would have been antidilutive as a result of the impact of unamortized stock-based
compensation expense determined under fair value-based methods. The above pro forma results are not indicative of equity compensation
expense reported under the requirements of SFAS 123(R).

The fair value of issued stock options has been estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, incorporating the
following assumptions:

February 3, 2007 January 28, 2006 January 29, 2005
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Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Volatility factor(1) 41.4% 44.7% 57.3%
Weighted average risk-free interest rate(2) 4.35% 3.94% 3.59%
Expected life of options(3) 4.8 years 4.8 years 5 Years
Weighted average fair value on grant date $19.37 per share $21.14 per share $14.64 per share
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(1)   Commencing in fiscal 2005 expected volatility is based on a 50:50 blend of the historical and implied volatility
with a two-year look back on the date of each grant. For options issued in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the
Company used the average of the implied volatility from the Company�s market-traded options and the historical
volatility of its stock price to compute the volatility factor, which approximated 52% in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2004.

(2)   The risk-free interest rate is based on the risk-free rate corresponding to the grant date and expected term.

158

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

449



(3)   Commencing in fiscal 2005, the expected option term used in the Black-Scholes calculation is based on a Monte Carlo simulation
incorporating a forward-looking stock price model and a historical model of employee exercise and post-vest forfeiture behavior.

Changes in stock options under equity plans for the three fiscal years in the period ended February 3, 2007 are summarized below:

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3, 2007 January 28, 2006 January 29, 2005

Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price(4) Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price(5) Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price(5)

Options outstanding at beginning of
year 3,494,061 $ 28.34 3,225,685 $ 22.67 3,013,985 $ 20.16
Granted 3,000 46.24 1,182,900 39.27 881,725 27.64
Exercised(1) (1,117,286) 23.77 (716,940) 21.10 (460,235) 15.31
Forfeited (57,970) 36.01 (197,584) 25.93 (209,790) 29.81
Options outstanding at end of
year(2) 2,321,805 $ 30.36 3,494,061 $ 28.34 3,225,685 $ 22.67
Options exercisable at end of year(3) 2,172,138 $ 30.32 3,101,058 $ 27.95 1,104,899 $ 18.91
Options available for grant at end of
year(4) 1,896,400

(1)   The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised was approximately $37.0 million, $18.6 million and $7.9 million for fiscal 2006, fiscal
2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively.

(2)   The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding at the end of fiscal 2006 was approximately $63.2 million.

(3)   The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercisable at the end of fiscal 2006 was approximately $60.8 million.

(4)   Assumes the issuance of Performance Shares at 0% of target. Options available for grant would be 1,352,421 and 808,442 if Performance
Shares were issued at 100% and 200% of target, respectively.

(5)   Does not reflect certain option repricings resulting from the stock option investigation, pending Board approval and the Company becoming
current in its filings with the SEC.

The following table summarizes information regarding options outstanding at February 3, 2007:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
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Range of Exercise Prices Options

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual

Life Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual

Life
$8.70�$12.88 160,883 $ 11.12 5.6 160,883 $ 11.12 5.6
$14.00�$20.55 285,663 18.41 4.0 285,663 18.41 4.0
$21.20�$31.63 815,925 26.82 6.7 702,592 26.73 6.6
$32.80�$49.41 1,059,334 39.24 7.3 1,023,000 39.12 7.3
$8.70�$49.41 2,321,805 $ 30.36 6.6 2,172,138 $ 30.32 6.5

During fiscal 2006, the Company recognized an expense of approximately $0.1 million related to stock option awards the Company promised
but has not granted due to the suspension of equity awards. In addition, the Company has recognized a stock-based compensation expense of
$2.3 million related to options which recipients have not been able to exercise due to the Company�s suspension of option exercises until it
becomes current in its periodic reports to the SEC.
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Changes in the Company�s unvested stock options for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007 were as follows:

Number of
Options

Weighted Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

(in thousands)
Unvested options, beginning of year 390 $ 16.69
Granted 3 19.37
Vested (193) 16.07
Forfeited (50) 22.13
Unvested options, end of year 150 $ 15.73

Total unrecognized equity compensation expense related to unvested stock options approximated $2.1 million as of February 3, 2007, which will
be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 1.9 years.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company presented the tax deductions resulting from the exercise of stock options as an operating
cash flow, in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (�EITF�) Issue No.00-15, �Classification in the Statement of Cash Flows of the Income
Tax Benefit Received by a Company upon Exercise of a Nonqualified Stock Option.� SFAS 123(R) now requires the Company to reflect the tax
savings resulting from tax deductions in excess of expense as a financing cash flow. In fiscal 2006, cash flow provided by financing activities
included $11.0 million related to excess tax benefits from the Company�s equity compensation plans.

Performance Awards

During the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007, under the 2005 Equity Plan, the Company granted Performance Awards pursuant to which
566,500 Performance Shares may be issued to Participants at 100% of target (1,133,000 Performance Shares at maximum). The issuance of
Performance Shares is contingent upon, among other things, meeting the Minimum Performance Target. If the Company�s performance falls
below the Minimum Performance Target, no Performance Shares will be earned by or issued to Participants. If the Company�s performance
satisfies the Minimum Performance Target. Participants may earn 50% of a target number of the Performance Shares, and if financial targets are
exceeded, Participants may earn up to a maximum of 200% of a target number of Performance Shares. The shares automatically vest on a
pro-rata basis if there is a change in control (as defined) of the Company prior to the end of fiscal 2007. The Company determined that it is not
probable that the Minimum Performance Target will be met. Accordingly, the Company has not recognized
compensation expense related to the Performance Awards. The remaining unvested shares will be automatically
canceled at the end of fiscal 2007, assuming there is not a change in control of the Company.

Changes in the Company�s unvested Performance Awards for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007 were as follows:

Number of
Performance

Shares

Weighted Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

(in thousands)
Unvested performance shares, beginning of year � $ �
Granted 567 46.60
Vested � �
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Forfeited (23) 44.12
Unvested performance shares, end of year 544 $ 46.70

Stock Purchase Plans
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The Company�s ESPP is authorized to issue up to 360,000 shares of common stock for employee purchase through payroll deductions. During
fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, employees purchased stock at 95% of fair market
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value and during fiscal 2004 at 85% of fair market value. As of February 3, 2007, there were 174,693 shares available for grant under the ESPP.
All employees of the Company who have completed at least 90 days of employment and attained 21 years of age are eligible to participate,
except for employees who own common stock or options on such common stock which represents 5% or more of the Company�s outstanding
common stock. On September 14, 2006, as a result of the Company�s investigation into its stock option practices, the Company suspended
employee deductions and related stock purchases under the ESPP. During fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, there were 11,744 shares,
19,051 shares and 24,847 shares, respectively, issued under the ESPP.

For fiscal 2006 and 2005, no pro forma compensation expense was calculated for the Company�s ESPP because the ESPP purchase price was
95% of the fair market value of the stock on the day of the ESPP purchase, which is deemed to be non-compensatory. For fiscal 2004, pro forma
compensation expense for the Company�s ESPP was calculated by multiplying the number of shares issued by the spread between the fair market
value of the stock on the day of the ESPP purchase and the purchase price paid by employees, which was 85% of the fair market value. During
fiscal 2004, pro forma compensation expense for the ESPP was approximately $0.1 million.

4.      ACQUISITION OF THE DSNA BUSINESS

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

455



On November 22, 2004, effective as of November 21, 2004 (the �Closing Date�), two of the Company�s wholly-owned subsidiaries acquired the
DSNA Business consisting of all existing Disney Stores in the United States and Canada, other than �flagship� stores and certain stores located at
Disney theme parks and other Disney properties, along with certain other assets used in the Disney Store business. All store leases and certain
other legal obligations of the acquired entities remain the obligations of the acquired subsidiaries. Subsequently, the Company�s subsidiaries
acquired two Disney Store flagship stores, one in Chicago, Illinois and the other in San Francisco, California, as well as certain Disney Store
outlet stores. The Disney Store business� results of operations subsequent to the Closing Date have been included in the Company�s consolidated
financial statements. The Company�s subsidiaries that operate the Disney Store business are referred to herein interchangeably and collectively as
�Hoop�.

The Company and one of its subsidiaries entered into a Guaranty and Commitment (the �Guaranty and Commitment�) dated as of November 21,
2004, in favor of Hoop and Disney. As required by the Guaranty and Commitment and the Acquisition Agreement, the Company invested
$50 million in Hoop concurrently with the consummation of the acquisition, and agreed to invest up to an additional $50 million to enable Hoop
to comply with its obligations under the license and conduct of business (�License Agreement�) (Note 5�License Agreement with Disney), and
otherwise fund the operations of Hoop. The Guaranty and Commitment provides that the $50 million additional commitment is subject to
increase if certain distributions are made by Hoop. To date, the Company has not invested any portion of the additional $50 million in Hoop.
The Company also agreed in the Guaranty and Commitment to guarantee the payment and performance of Hoop (for their royalty payment and
other obligations to Disney), subject to a maximum guaranty liability of $25 million, plus expenses.

The DSNA Business was acquired for a total acquisition cost of $105.0 million, including transaction costs. During the third quarter of 2005, the
Company finalized the post-closing purchase price adjustment and purchase accounting for the acquisition of the DSNA Business.

Purchase Price Allocation
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This acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting in accordance with SFAS No. 141, �Business Combinations� (�SFAS
141�). As such, the Company analyzed the fair value of tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and determined the excess
of fair value of net assets acquired over cost. The Company�s purchase price allocation is as follows (in thousands):
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Acquisition cost:
Acquisition payment, inclusive of the post-closing adjustment $ 98,611
Transaction costs 6,405
Total acquisition cost 105,016
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
Inventories 104,212
Prepaid expenses and other assets 29,520
Property and equipment 48,293
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (17,955)
Leasehold interests and other long-term liabilities (7,543)
Total fair value of net assets 156,527
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired over cost 51,511
Allocation of excess of fair value of net assets acquired over cost to long-lived assets 48,293
Extraordinary gain on the acquisition of DSNA Business $ 3,218
Extraordinary gain on the acquisition of DSNA Business, net of tax $ 1,938

As the fair value of the acquired assets and liabilities assumed exceeded the acquisition price, in accordance with SFAS 141, the valuation of the
long-lived assets acquired was reduced. Accordingly, no basis was assigned to property and equipment or any other long-lived assets and the
remaining excess was recorded as an extraordinary gain, net of taxes. Of the $1.9 million net extraordinary gain, approximately $0.3 million was
recognized in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 based upon the Company�s preliminary purchase price allocation, and approximately $1.7 million
was recognized in the third quarter of fiscal 2005 when the purchase price allocation was finalized subsequent to the post-closing adjustment.

Accrued expenses as of the Closing Date were approximately $0.8 million related to the estimated cost of exiting certain Disney Store facilities,
stores and operations. Through February 3, 2007, the Company has utilized all of these exit activity reserves.

5.      LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH DISNEY
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Royalty Payments

Under the License Agreement entered into in November 2004, Hoop has the right to use certain Disney intellectual property, subject to Disney
approval, in the DSNA Business in exchange for ongoing royalty payments. Pursuant to the terms of the License Agreement, Hoop operates
retail stores in North America using the �Disney Store� name and contract to manufacture, source, offer and sell merchandise featuring
Disney-branded characters, past, present and future. The initial term of the License Agreement is 15 years and, if certain financial performance
and other conditions are satisfied, the License Agreement may be extended at the Company�s option for up to three additional ten-year terms.
Following an initial two-year royalty holiday, Hoop began making royalty payments to Disney in November 2006 equal to 5% of net sales at
physical Disney Store retail locations, subject to an additional royalty holiday with respect to a limited number of stores (the �Non-Core Stores�).

Beginning in fiscal 2007, under the License Agreement, the royalty payments are also subject to minimum royalties. The minimum royalty
payment is computed as the greater of:

�      60% of the royalty that would have been payable under the terms of the License Agreement for acquired stores in
the base year, which was the year ended October 2, 2004, as if the License Agreement had been in effect in that year,
increased at the rate of the Consumer Price Index, or

�      80% of the average of the royalty amount payable in the previous two years.

During fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, the Company recorded $25.0 million, $20.0 million and  $7.1 million, respectively, for royalty
expense and had an accrued liability of $45.9 million and $27.2 million on its fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 balance sheets, respectively. The
Company commenced royalty payments under the License Agreement in November 2006 and paid $6.1 million in royalties during fiscal 2006
and, due to the royalty holiday discussed above, made no royalty payments in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004.
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Liquidity Restrictions

The License Agreement limits Hoop�s ability to make cash dividends or other distributions. Hoop�s independent directors must approve payment
of any dividends or other distributions, other than payments of:

�      Amounts due under the terms of the tax sharing and intercompany services agreements;

�      Approximately $61.9 million which represents a portion of the purchase price paid by the Company to Disney
(limited to cumulative cash flows, as defined, since the date of the acquisition); and

�      Certain other dividend payments, subject to satisfaction of certain additional operating conditions, and limited to
50% of cumulative cash flows up to $90 million, and 90% of cumulative cash flows thereafter (provided that at least
$90 million of cash and cash equivalents is maintained at Hoop).

In the normal course of business, Hoop has reimbursed the Company for intercompany services but has not paid any dividends or made other
distributions. Under the License Agreement, Hoop may not incur indebtedness or guarantee indebtedness without written approval from Disney,
except in permitted circumstances as outlined by the License Agreement. The License Agreement provides that trade letters of credit to fund
inventory purchases are permitted without limitation; borrowings under all term and revolving loans are limited to $35.0 million, with a
maximum of $7.5 million for term loan borrowings; and the aggregate amount outstanding under all term and revolving loans must be reduced
to $10.0 million or less at least once annually.

Business Review and Approvals

The License Agreement includes provisions regarding the manner in which Hoop will operate the Disney Store business and requires that
approvals be obtained from a Disney affiliate for certain matters, including all uses of the intellectual property of Disney and its affiliates and the
opening or closing of Disney Stores beyond certain parameters set forth in the License Agreement.

The License Agreement also entitles Disney to designate a representative to attend meetings of the Board of the Company as an observer. Upon
the occurrence of certain specified events, including an uncured royalty breach and other repeated material breaches by Hoop of the terms of the
License Agreement, certain material breaches by the Company of the terms of the Guaranty and Commitment, and certain changes in ownership
or control of the Company or Hoop, Disney will have the right to terminate the License Agreement, in which event Disney may require the
Company to sell the Disney Store business to Disney or one of its affiliates or to a third party at a price to be determined by appraisal or, in the
absence of such sale, to wind down the Disney Store business in an orderly manner.

Remodeling Obligations
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The License Agreement obligates the Company to maintain the quality, appearance and presentation standards of the Disney Store chain in
accordance with the highest standards prevailing in the specialty retail industry. In addition, under the License Agreement, the Company has a
remodel commitment, which is subject to revision depending upon what actions management takes regarding, among other things, the timing
and nature of lease renewals for acquired stores. The License Agreement, as amended in April 2006, required the Company to:

�      Completely remodel each store within a specified period of time following expiration or termination of the initial
term of the lease for such store, if such lease is renewed or extended on a long-term basis upon or following such
expiration or termination;

�      Completely remodel each store at least once every 12 years; and

�      Completely remodel a minimum of approximately 160 of the 313 acquired stores by January 1, 2009.

During fiscal 2006, the Company suspended the store renovation program because of dissatisfaction with the �Mickey� store prototype. As of
February 3, 2007, the Company had remodeled a total of 45 Disney Stores since the 2004 acquisition. Pursuant to the provisions of the License
Agreement, as amended in 2006, relating to required remodeling following lease renewals and remodeling of stores at least once every 12 years,
the Company was required to remodel a total of approximately 145 stores by February 3, 2007. As of February 3, 2007, the Company had
remodeled 32 of these required stores, with the result that 113 of the store remodels required by that date under
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the terms of the License Agreement had not been completed by that date. The remaining 13 store remodels the Company had completed were
not required pursuant to the provisions of the License Agreement.

Modifications of the Disney License Agreement

The Company, its subsidiaries Hoop Retail Stores, LLC and Hoop Canada, Inc. (collectively, �Hoop�) and TDS Franchising LLC (�TDSF�), an
affiliate of The Walt Disney Company, entered into a letter agreement on June 7, 2007 (dated as of June 6, 2007) (the �June Letter Agreement�),
addressing issues that had been raised by TDSF, as previously disclosed by the Company, relating to the compliance by Hoop with certain
provisions of the Disney License Agreement. The June Letter Agreement set forth TDSF�s position that Hoop has committed 120 uncured
material breaches of the License Agreement, primarily relating to Hoop�s obligations with respect to store remodeling and store maintenance.
TDSF asserted that the existence of these breaches would permit TDSF to exercise its rights and remedies under the License Agreement, which
could include termination of the License Agreement.

The June Letter Agreement, among other things, suspended the remodel obligations in the License Agreement for the approximately 4.5 year
term of the June Letter Agreement and, in lieu of those provisions, committed the Company to remodel by the end of fiscal 2011 a total of 234
existing Disney Stores into a new store prototype the Company developed. The June Letter Agreement contained specific deadlines for
submission of construction documents to Disney and completion of construction with respect to those stores required to be remodeled during
fiscal 2007. The June Letter Agreement imposed new obligations on the Company with respect to the renovation and maintenance of numerous
stores in the Disney Store chain between fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2011 and, for the stores to be remodeled in fiscal 2007, set forth a detailed
timetable for submission of plans and completion dates.

Subsequent to the execution of the June Letter Agreement, the Company was unable to meet several of the deadlines set forth in the June Letter
Agreement. In addition, the Company determined that there were upcoming deadlines during the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2007
specified in the June Letter Agreement that the Company would likely not meet. Accordingly, the Company and Disney engaged in further
discussions during August 2007 and, based on these discussions, agreed upon changes to the requirements of the June Letter Agreement that
would postpone the due dates of certain remodel obligations until later in fiscal 2007 or fiscal 2008. In connection with these postponements, the
Company agreed to remodel two additional Disney Stores during fiscal 2009 and agreed upon changes to the original License Agreement to
modify restrictions on Disney�s ability to relocate its flagship retail store in Manhattan and to narrow the restrictions on Disney�s ability to grant
direct licenses to other specialty retailers so that these restrictions would apply only with respect to specialty retail stores focusing primarily on
the sale of children�s merchandise.

During August 2007, the Company and Disney formally amended the License Agreement by executing the Refurbishment Amendment, which
incorporated the terms of the June Letter Agreement, as modified by mutual agreement during August, and the aforementioned changes to the
License Agreement. The Refurbishment Amendment by its terms superseded the June Letter Agreement and took effect retroactively as of June
6, 2007, the original effective date of the June Letter Agreement. Like the June Letter Agreement, the Refurbishment Amendment states that, if
the Company fully complies with its terms, Disney will forbear from exercising any rights or remedies it would have under the License
Agreement based on the breaches of the License Agreement that were asserted by Disney and were the subject of the Refurbishment
Amendment. However, under the terms of the Refurbishment Amendment, if the Company violates any of its provisions, Disney will have the
right to terminate its forbearance under the Refurbishment Amendment, in which case Disney would be free to exercise any or all of its rights
and remedies under the License Agreement, including possibly terminating the Company�s license to operate the Disney Stores based on the
occurrence of numerous material breaches and claiming breach fees, as if the Refurbishment Amendment had not been executed. The
Refurbishment Amendment also states that, if the Company breaches any of the provisions of the Refurbishment Amendment on three or more
occasions and Disney has not previously exercised its right to terminate the Refurbishment Amendment, a payment of $18.0 million to Disney
becomes immediately due and payable with respect to the breach fees called for by the License Agreement. If the Company violates any of the
provisions of the Refurbishment Amendment on five or more occasions, Disney will have the right to immediately terminate the License
Agreement, without any right by the Company to defend, counterclaim, protest or cure. It should be noted that the Refurbishment Amendment
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addresses only those breaches specifically enumerated therein.
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Disney continues to retain all its other rights and remedies under the License Agreement with respect to any other breaches.

The Refurbishment Amendment sets forth specific requirements regarding the Disney Stores to be remodeled and otherwise refreshed over the
period the Refurbishment Amendment is in effect and obligates the parent company, The Children�s Place Retail Stores, Inc., among other things,
to commit $175 million to remodel and refresh these stores through fiscal 2011. While the original provisions of the License Agreement
obligated Hoop to remodel Disney Stores under certain circumstances and at certain times, as reflected in the table above, the original License
Agreement did not establish a specific dollar commitment for this obligation. Although the original License Agreement generally required Hoop
to maintain the physical appearance of the Disney Stores in accordance with the highest standards prevailing in specialty retailing, the
�maintenance and refresh� program under the Refurbishment Amendment imposes specific requirements for timing, numbers of stores and the
type of work to be performed. This �maintenance and refresh� program was considered necessary to upgrade the quality of the Disney Stores to the
standard required under the License Agreement and is incremental to the original License Agreement. The �maintenance and refresh� program is
expected to cost approximately $16 million over the 12 month period. Some of the stores required to be refreshed under this program will also
be remodeled at a later date in accordance with the Refurbishment Amendment. The Refurbishment Amendment commits the Company to a
capital commitment of $175 million to remodel, refresh and maintain the Disney Stores and to open 18 new stores which will cost approximately
$11.7 million. The Company expects to fund these amounts through cash flow from operations of the Disney Store business, borrowings and
availability under the Company�s credit facilities and capital contributions from The Children�s Place business to the Disney Store business.

The following reflects additional information regarding the Refurbishment Amendment and certain additional obligations on the part of the
Company and Hoop:

1.  Hoop developed a new store prototype for Disney Store and for Disney Store outlets and obtained TDSF�s
approval of these new store prototypes. The Refurbishment Amendment requires Hoop to convert seven existing
Disney Stores identified in the Refurbishment Amendment to the new store prototype by December 31, 2007, based
upon a detailed timeline for each of these stores. In addition, under the Refurbishment Amendment, by the end of
fiscal 2008, Hoop is required to convert at least 49 additional existing Disney Stores identified in the Refurbishment
Amendment to the new store prototype and to open at least 18 new Disney Stores using the new prototype. Hoop is
required to convert to the new prototype at least 60 additional existing stores by the end of fiscal 2009, at least 70
additional existing stores by the end of fiscal 2010, and at least 50 additional existing stores by the end of fiscal 2011.
In addition to the 18 new stores to be opened by the end of fiscal 2008 using the new store prototype, Hoop has the
right to open up to a specified number of additional new stores using the new store prototype during each fiscal year.

2.  Hoop conducted a review of all existing Disney Stores bearing the �Mickey� store design (excluding those �Mickey�
stores that are to be converted to the new store prototype), as well as all existing Disney Stores bearing the �Castle�
design that were constructed after November 2004, and delivered to TDSF a written report on this review, along with
an enhanced maintenance and remodel plan for these stores and a detailed timeline for implementation of this plan.
Hoop is required to implement this plan at a minimum of five existing stores by December 31, 2007, at a minimum of
14 additional stores by March 31, 2008, and at all remaining stores bearing these store designs by June 30, 2008.

3.  Similarly, Hoop conducted a review of all existing Disney Stores bearing the �pink and green� store design, as well
as all existing Disney Stores bearing the �Castle� design that were constructed prior to November 2004, and delivered to
TDSF an enhanced maintenance and remodel plan for these stores and a detailed timeline for implementation of this
plan. Hoop is required to implement this plan at one-half of these store locations by March 31, 2008 and at the
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remaining stores bearing these store designs by June 30, 2008.

4.  Hoop also agreed to prepare a refresh and enhancement plan for the Disney Store flagship location on Michigan
Avenue in Chicago and to expend at least $200,000 on this store by October 31, 2007. The refresh and enhancement
of this store was completed on September 12, 2007.

5.  As required by both the June Letter Agreement and the Refurbishment Amendment, the Company�s Board of
Directors approved the Refurbishment Amendment and committed $175 million over the period between
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June 6, 2007 and January 31, 2012 to implement the renovation and maintenance plans called for by the Refurbishment Amendment. The
following table summarizes the Company�s remodel and maintenance refresh obligations under the terms of the Refurbishment Amendment
(amounts in thousands):

Store Remodel Mickey Retrofit Maintenance Refresh Total

Fiscal Year Stores (#)
Estimated
Cost ($) Stores (#)

Estimated
Cost ($) Stores (#)

Estimated
Cost ($) Contingency ($)

Estimated
Cost ($)

2007 7 $ 4,250 7 $ 1,050 6 $ 950 $ 1,245 $ 7,495
2008 49 31,650 28 4,200 129 9,675 1,245 46,770
2009 60 39,000 � � � � 1,245 40,245
2010 70 45,500 � � � � 1,245 46,745
2011 50 32,500 � � � � 1,245 33,745

2007 - 2011 236 $ 152,900 35 $ 5,250 135 $ 10,625 $ 6,225 $ 175,000

6.  The Refurbishment Amendment states that the maintenance and store renovation requirements of the
Refurbishment Amendment supersede the store renovation provisions in Section 9.3.5(b)(i) and (ii) of the original
License Agreement through January 31, 2012, so long as the Refurbishment Amendment remains in effect and is not
terminated by TDSF in accordance with its terms. Following January 31, 2012 (or a termination of the Refurbishment
Amendment), the store renovation provisions in Section 9.3.5(b)(i) and (ii) of the original License Agreement will
become effective again.

7.  Hoop also agreed in the Refurbishment Amendment that, with respect to those Disney Stores that were identified
as �Non-Core Stores� for purposes of the original License Agreement, for which Hoop was entitled to an extended
royalty abatement under the License Agreement, to the extent that the lease for any such store was or is renewed but
the store is not remodeled within a specified time period after such lease renewal, Hoop will no longer be entitled to
the royalty abatement for these stores.

8.  The parties also agreed in the Refurbishment Amendment to amend the License Agreement in order to reduce
certain of the restrictions on TDSF�s ability to grant direct merchandising licenses to other specialty retail store chains.

9.  Hoop agreed to conduct consumer research regarding the need for a differentiated merchandising plan for Disney
Store outlets and, if requested by TDSF based on such research and mutually agreed upon, to develop and implement
such a plan during fiscal 2008.

10.  Finally, TDSF and Hoop agreed to certain modifications of the provisions of the License Agreement establishing
standards for Disney Store merchandise based upon Disney merchandise available through other retailers and to
modify the provisions that would apply to a potential wind-down of the Disney Store business following any
termination of the License Agreement.
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The table above reflects the requirements of the Refurbishment Amendment, under which the Company must complete a maintenance
and refresh in approximately 170 Disney Stores (which includes the Mickey retrofits) by June 30, 2008 and then remodel certain
of those stores at a later date. However, in the event the Company were to remodel or close any such store prior to
when it is due for a maintenance refresh, the Company would no longer be obligated to refresh that store.
Accordingly, the Company anticipates that not all of the 170 stores reflected in the table will need to be refreshed, and
at the time the Refurbishment Amendment was executed, the Company estimated that 165 stores would be refreshed.
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As mentioned above, in addition to the remodel and maintenance costs shown in the above table, the Refurbishment Amendment obligates the
Company to open a total of 18 new Disney Stores by January 31, 2009, which the Company estimates will cost approximately $11.7 million in
capital expenses. The majority of these costs will be incurred in fiscal 2007 and are included in the Company�s capital expenditure plans. Refer to
Footnote 11�Commitments and Contingencies for a discussion of the Company�s capital commitments under the License Agreement as amended
by the Refurbishment Amendment.
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Internet Agreement

Beginning in July 2007, the Company�s Hoop subsidiaries commenced Internet commerce operations through an alliance with a Disney affiliate
in which certain Disney Store merchandise is sold on the disneyshopping.com website. Disney Store merchandise is accessible through either
www.disneystore.com or www.disneyshopping.com. The Company anticipates entering into a formal amendment to the License Agreement
relating to this Internet business. It is anticipated that this amendment to the License Agreement will supersede the Company�s obligation to
launch its own Disney Store Internet store, which pursuant to the License Agreement, as modified by certain letter agreements, the Company is
required to launch by January 31, 2008.

6.      PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Edgar Filing: CHILDRENS PLACE RETAIL STORES INC - Form 10-K

470



Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):

February 3,
2007

January 28,
2006

Property and equipment:
Leasehold improvements $ 321,019 $ 259,789
Store fixtures and equipment 229,880 186,683
Capitalized software 43,116 34,949
Construction in progress 58,529 20,809

652,544 502,230
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (310,805) (253,602)
Property and equipment, net $ 341,739 $ 248,628

During the last three fiscal years, certain stores experienced declining performance and management estimated that future cash flows were
insufficient to recover the carrying value of their assets. During fiscal 2006, the Company recorded asset impairment charges of $17.1 million.
The fiscal 2006 asset impairment charges included a $9.6 million charge related to the renovation of 29 Mickey prototype stores, $7.1 million
related to the Company�s decision not to proceed with a New York City Disney Store location and infrastructure investments that were written
off in conjunction with the Company�s decision to form an e-commerce alliance with a Disney affiliate in which select Disney Store merchandise
is sold on the disneyshopping.com website, and the remaining $0.4 million related to the write down of leasehold improvements and fixtures in
five underperforming stores. The Company introduced the Mickey store prototype at the Disney Store in fiscal 2005 but was dissatisfied with the
prototype from a brand, design and construction standpoint. The impairment charge for the 29 Mickey stores reflects stores that were unable to
generate sufficient cash flow to cover the carrying value of their fixed assets prior to their renovation. During fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, the
Company impaired certain fixed assets by $0.2 million and $0.2 million, respectively for one store deemed to be impaired in each of those years.

The Company capitalized approximately $1.0 million, $0.4 million and $0.5 million in programming and development costs of employees in
fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively. The Company also capitalized approximately $9.8 million, $9.6 million and $2.5 million in
external software costs in fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively.

During fiscal 2006 the Company capitalized no interest costs. During fiscal 2005, the Company capitalized approximately $0.3 million of
interest costs relating primarily to the construction of its new distribution center facility.

As of February 3, 2007, the Company had $28.8 million in property and equipment for which payment had not been made, compared to $8.0
million as of January 28, 2006. These amounts are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities.
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7.      CREDIT FACILITIES
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2004 Amended Loan Agreement

In October 2004, the Company amended and restated its credit facility (the �2004 Amended Loan Agreement�) with Wells Fargo Retail Finance,
LLC (�Wells Fargo�) as senior lender and syndicated and administrative agent, and certain other lenders, partly in connection with its acquisition
of the Disney Store retail chain. The 2004 Amended Loan Agreement provided for borrowings up to $130 million (including a sublimit for
letters of credit of $100 million). The term of the facility under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement was scheduled to end on November 1, 2007
with successive one-year renewal options. The amount available for extensions of credit under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement depended on
the level of inventory and accounts receivable relating to the Children�s Place business.

Advances under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement were secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all the assets of the
Company and its subsidiaries, other than assets in Canada and Puerto Rico and assets owned by the Company�s subsidiaries that were formed in
connection with the acquisition of the DSNA Business. Amounts outstanding under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement bore interest at a
floating rate equal to the prime rate or, at the Company�s option, a LIBOR rate plus a pre-determined margin. The LIBOR margin was 1.50% to
3.00%. The unused line fee under the Amended Loan Agreement was 0.38%.

The Company had no outstanding borrowings under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement as of February 3, 2007 or January 28, 2006. During the
fiscal year ended February 3, 2007, various letters of credit were issued pursuant to the 2004 Loan Agreement, but there were no borrowings
other than letters of credit that cleared after business hours. Letters of credit outstanding as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 were $51.5
million and $49.2 million, respectively. Availability as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 was $78.5 million and $74.1 million,
respectively. The interest rate charged under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement was 8.25% and 7.25% as of February 3, 2007 and January 28,
2006, respectively.

The 2004 Amended Loan Agreement contained covenants, which included limitations on the Company�s annual capital expenditures, the
maintenance of certain levels of excess collateral, and a prohibition on the payment of dividends. The 2004 Amended Loan Agreement also
contained covenants limiting the amount of funds the Company can invest in Hoop to $20 million in fiscal 2007 and $15
million in fiscal 2008. Noncompliance with these covenants could result in additional fees, could affect the Company�s
ability to borrow or could require the Company to repay the outstanding balance.

Primarily as a result of the Company�s restatement and the delay in completing its financial statements caused by the stock option investigation,
the Company was not in compliance with the financial reporting covenants under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement as of February 3, 2007.
However, the Company obtained waivers from its lenders for such noncompliance. There were no fees associated with obtaining these waivers
during fiscal 2006.

Borrowing activity under this agreement was as follows (in thousands, except percentages):

For the Fiscal Year Ended
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
Average balance outstanding $ 640 $ 18,906
Weighted average interest rate 8.16% 6.49%
Maximum balance outstanding $ 7,516 $ 58,157
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See below for information related to the Company�s June 2007 and November 2007 amendments and restatement of the 2004 Amended Loan
Agreement.

2007 Amended Loan Agreement; Letter of Credit Agreement

In June 2007, the Company entered into a Fifth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement (the �2007 Amended Loan Agreement�) and
a new letter of credit agreement with Wells Fargo and the Company�s other senior lenders (the �Letter of Credit Agreement�) for the purpose of
better supporting the Company�s capital needs and reducing the fees associated with its credit facility borrowings. Wells Fargo continues to serve
as the administrative agent under all these facilities.

The 2007 Amended Loan Agreement reduced the facility maximum to $100 million for borrowings and letters of credit, with a $30 million
�accordion� feature that enables the Company to increase the facility to an aggregate amount of $130 million at its option. There is also a seasonal
over-advance feature that enables the Company to borrow up to an additional $20 million from July 1 through October 31, subject to satisfying
certain conditions, including a condition relating to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (�EBITDA�) on a trailing 12
month basis based upon the most recent financial statements furnished to Wells Fargo and the Company�s estimate of projected pro forma
EBITDA for the over-advance period. The term of the facility ends on November 1, 2010. If the Company terminates the 2007 Amended Loan
Agreement during the first year, there is termination fee of 0.5% of the $100 million facility maximum ($130 million if the accordion feature is
in use) plus any seasonal over-advance amounts in effect. Under the 2007 Amended Loan Agreement the LIBOR margin has been reduced to
1.00% to 1.50%, depending upon the Company�s average excess availability, and the unused line fee has been reduced to 0.25%.

Credit extended under the 2007 Amended Loan Agreement continues to be secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all of the
Company�s assets, other than assets in Canada and Puerto Rico and assets owned by Hoop. The amount that can be borrowed under the 2007
Amended Loan Agreement depends on levels of inventory and accounts receivable relating to The Children�s Place business. The 2007 Amended
Loan Agreement also contains covenants, which include limitations on annual capital expenditures, maintenance of certain levels of excess
collateral, and a prohibition on the payment of dividends. The 2007 Amended Loan Agreement also contains covenants limiting the amount of
funds the Company can invest in Hoop to $20 million, $55 million, $36 million and $52 million in fiscal years 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010,
respectively, not to exceed a maximum aggregate of $175 million over the term of the credit facility.

Under the Letter of Credit Agreement, the Company can issue letters of credit for inventory purposes for up to $60 million to support The
Children�s Place business. The Letter of Credit Agreement can be terminated at any time by either the Company or Wells Fargo. Interest is paid
at the rate of 0.75% on the aggregate undrawn amount of all letters of credit outstanding. The Company�s obligations under the Letter of Credit
Agreement are secured by a security interest in substantially all of the assets of The Children�s Place business, other than assets in Canada and
Puerto Rico, and assets of Hoop. Upon any termination of the Letter of Credit Agreement, the Company would be required to fully collateralize
all outstanding letters of credit issued thereunder and, if the Company failed to do so, its outstanding liability under the Letter of Credit
Agreement would reduce its borrowing capacity under the 2007 Amended Loan Agreement.

On November 2, 2007, the Company entered into an amendment of the 2007 Amended Loan Agreement (the �First Amendment�), extending the
period of the over-advance feature of the credit facility until November 30 for fiscal 2007. The Company paid a fee of $30,000 in connection
with this amendment.

As discussed above, the Company was not in compliance with the financial reporting covenants under the 2004 Amended Loan Agreement
when it executed the amendment and restatement. However, in the 2007 Amended Loan Agreement the Company received forbearance of these
reporting requirements through July 31, 2007 and was subsequently granted a waiver through August 30, 2007, which was extended through
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January 1, 2008. There were no fees associated with obtaining the waiver through August 30, 2007; however, the Company was required to pay
a fee of $102,000 to extend the waiver from August 30, 2007 through the date this Annual Report on Form 10-K was filed with the SEC.

Hoop Loan Agreement
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As of November 21, 2004, the domestic Hoop entity entered into a Loan and Security Agreement (the �Hoop Loan Agreement�) with Wells Fargo,
as senior lender and syndicated and administrative agent, and certain other lenders, establishing a senior secured credit facility for Hoop.
Through fiscal 2006, the Hoop Loan Agreement
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provided for borrowings up to $100 million (including a sublimit for letters of credit of $90 million). The term of the facility extended until
November 21, 2007. The amount that could be borrowed under the Hoop Loan Agreement depended on the domestic Hoop entity�s level of
inventory and accounts receivable.

Credit extended under the Hoop Loan Agreement is secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all the assets of Hoop as well as a
pledge of a portion of the equity interests in the Canada Hoop entity. Borrowings and letters of credit under the Hoop Loan Agreement are used
by Hoop for working capital purposes for the Disney Store business. Amounts outstanding under the Hoop Loan Agreement bear interest at a
floating rate equal to the prime rate plus a pre-determined margin or, at Hoop�s option, the LIBOR rate plus a pre-determined margin. During
fiscal 2006, the prime rate margin was 0.25% and the LIBOR margin was 2.00% or 2.25%, depending on the domestic Hoop entity�s level of
excess availability. The unused line fee was 0.30%.

There were no borrowings under the Hoop Loan Agreement as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively. During fiscal 2005 and
fiscal 2006, letters of credit were issued pursuant to the Hoop Loan Agreement, but there were no borrowings under the Hoop Loan Agreement
other than letters of credit that cleared after business hours. Letters of credit outstanding as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 were $16.6
million and $25.8 million, respectively. Availability as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 was $31.6 million and $16.3 million,
respectively. The interest rate charged under the Hoop Loan Agreement was 8.50% and 7.50% as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006,
respectively.

The Hoop Loan Agreement contained various covenants, including limitations on indebtedness, maintenance of certain levels of excess
collateral and restrictions on the payment of intercompany dividends and indebtedness. In addition, an event of default under the Disney License
Agreement would create a cross-default under the Hoop Loan Agreement. Non-compliance with these covenants could result in additional fees,
could affect Hoop�s ability to borrow or could require Hoop to repay the outstanding balance.

Primarily as a result of the delay in completion of the Company�s financial statements caused by the stock option investigation and its discussions
with Disney regarding breaches of the License Agreement, the Company was not in compliance as of February 3, 2007 or thereafter with the
financial reporting covenants under the Hoop Loan Agreement or the provision requiring Hoop to comply with the License Agreement.
However, the Company obtained waivers from its lenders for such noncompliance. There were no fees associated with obtaining these waivers
during fiscal 2006.

See below for information related to the Company�s June 2007 and August 2007 amendments and restatement of the Hoop Loan Agreement.

Borrowing activity under the Hoop Loan Agreement was as follows (in thousands, except percentages):

For the Fiscal Year Ended
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
Average balance outstanding $ 365 $ 435
Weighted average interest rate 8.45% 6.91%
Maximum balance outstanding $ 1,671 $ 4,848

Amendments to Hoop Loan Agreement
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In June 2007, concurrently with the execution of the 2007 Amended Loan Agreement, and in August 2007, the Company entered into Second
and Third Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement, both with Wells Fargo and the other lenders under the Hoop Loan Agreement
(collectively, the �Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement�). The Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement reduced the facility maximum to
$75 million for borrowings and provide for a $25 million accordion feature that enables the Company to increase the facility to an aggregate
amount of $100 million. The accordion feature is available at the Company�s option, subject to the amount of eligible inventory and accounts
receivable of the domestic Hoop entity. In addition, in the Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement the Company extended the termination
date of the facility from November 21, 2007 to November 21, 2010 and reduced the interest rates charged on the outstanding borrowings and
letters of credit. Amounts outstanding under the Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement bear interest at a floating rate equal to the prime rate
or, at Hoop�s option, the LIBOR rate plus a pre-determined margin. Depending on the domestic Hoop entity�s level of excess availability, the
LIBOR margin has been reduced to 1.50% or 1.75%, commercial letter of credit fees have been reduced to 0.75% or 1.00%, and standby letter
of credit fees have been reduced to 1.25% or 1.50%. The unused line fee has been reduced to 0.25%.

The Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement continue the covenants included in the Hoop Loan Agreement, including limitations on
indebtedness, maintenance of certain levels of excess collateral and restrictions on the payment of dividends and indebtedness. Credit extended
under the Amendments to the Hoop Loan Agreement continues to be secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all the assets of
the domestic Hoop entity as well as a pledge of a portion of the equity interests in Hoop Canada.

As discussed above, the Company obtained waivers for its non-compliance with its reporting requirements under the Hoop Loan Agreement.
There were no fees associated with obtaining these waivers through August 30, 2007. However, the Company was required to pay a fee of
$48,000 to extend the waiver from August 30, 2007 through the date this Annual Report on Form 10-K was filed with the SEC.

Toronto Dominion Credit Facility
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The Company had a credit facility with Toronto Dominion Bank (the �Toronto Dominion Credit Facility�) to support the Canadian subsidiary
which operates The Children�s Place stores in Canada. The Toronto Dominion Credit Facility expired in fiscal 2005 and the Company does not
plan to replace the facility. The Company did not borrow under the Toronto Dominion Credit Facility in fiscal 2005.

Letter of Credit Fees
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Letter of credit fees approximated $0.8 million, $0.9 million and $0.5 million in fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively. Letter of
credit fees are included in cost of sales.
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8.     INTEREST INCOME (EXPENSE), NET

The following table presents the components of the Company�s interest income (expense), net (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
January 29,

2005
Interest income $ 2,387 $ 1,035 $ 352
Tax-exempt income 2,944 1,728 496
Total interest income 5,331 2,763 848

Less:
Interest expense � credit facilities 97 1,002 399
Unused line fee 541 460 188
Amortization of deferred financing fees 349 370 109
Other fees 411 368 174
Interest income (expense), net $ 3,933 $ 563 $ (22)
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9.      PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
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Prepaid expenses and other current assets are comprised of the following (in thousands):

February 3,
2007

January 28,
2006

Prepaid property expense $ 21,512 $ 23,838
Prepaid income taxes 5,958 �
Disney dollars and theme park tickets 7,096 8,744
Prepaid insurance 1,538 918
Prepaid supplies 1,097 495
Prepaid maintenance contracts 2,861 1,872
Other prepaid expenses 2,755 2,683
Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 42,817 $ 38,550

Disney dollars are a form of corporate scrip purchased by Hoop and sold in the Disney Stores. The scrip is considered legal tender in the Disney
theme parks and Disney Stores. Disney theme park tickets are also purchased by Hoop and sold in the Disney Stores.

10.   ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
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Accrued expenses and other current liabilities are comprised of the following (in thousands):

February 3,
2007

January 28,
2006

Accrued salaries and benefits $ 37,053 $ 23,934
Accrued real estate expenses 7,420 7,362
Customer liabilities 18,292 13,154
Accrued professional fees 6,265 3,431
Accrued store expenses 8,157 8,884
Sales taxes and other taxes payable 16,355 10,469
Accrued marketing 3,155 5,555
Accrued construction-in-progress 23,719 6,966
Accrued freight 2,328 4,029
Accrued insurance 3,518 2,662
Other accrued expenses 12,508 9,235
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 138,770 $ 95,681

11.   COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
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Operating Lease Commitments

The Company leases all of its stores, offices and distribution facilities (except the Ft. Payne distribution center which the Company owns), and
certain office equipment, store fixtures and automobiles, under operating leases expiring through 2023. Certain leases include options to renew
and certain leases require additional rent once a sales threshold is reached. The leases require fixed minimum annual rental payments plus, under
the terms of certain leases, additional payments for taxes, other expenses and additional rent based upon sales.
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Store, office and distribution facilities minimum rent, contingent rent and sublease income are as follows (in thousands):

For the Fiscal Year Ended
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
January 29,

2005
Minimum rentals $ 175,609 $ 157,696 $ 108,585
Additional rent based upon sales 2,023 906 551
Sublease income (559) (543) (180)

Future minimum annual lease payments under the Company�s operating leases at February 3, 2007 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal year
Operating
Leases

2007 $ 183,272
2008 172,508
2009 162,329
2010 144,585
2011 126,779
Thereafter 357,309
Total minimum lease payments $ 1,146,782

Disney License Agreement Commitments

The Company�s acquisition of the DSNA Business was structured to create Hoop as separate legal entities to fund and operate the Disney Store
business. The domestic Hoop entity was capitalized with $50 million on the Closing Date. In addition, the Company has agreed to invest up to
an additional $50 million (which amount is subject to increase if certain distributions are made) to enable Hoop to comply with its respective
obligations under the License Agreement and otherwise to fund its operations. The Company also guaranteed royalty payments and other
obligations under the License Agreement up to a maximum of $25 million, plus expenses.

Beginning in fiscal 2007, under the License Agreement, as amended in April 2006, Hoop is also subject to minimum
royalties. The minimum royalty payment is computed as the greater of:

�  60% of the royalty that would have been payable under the terms of the License Agreement for acquired stores in the
base year, which was the year ended October 2, 2004, as if the License Agreement had been in effect in that year,
increased at the rate of the Consumer Price Index, or

�  80% of the average of the royalty amount payable in the previous two years.
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The Company estimates that the minimum royalty under the License Agreement will approximate $260 million over the remainder of the
15-year term of the License Agreement. This estimate does not include future increases or decreases in Disney Store sales and cost of living
adjustments since these are unknown contingencies. The actual minimum royalty may differ materially from the amount currently estimated.

During fiscal 2006, the Company suspended the Disney Store renovation program because of dissatisfaction with the �Mickey� store prototype. As
of February 3, 2007, the Company had remodeled 45 Disney Stores since acquisition. Pursuant to the License Agreement provisions, as
amended in 2006, related to required remodeling following lease renewals and required remodeling of stores at least once every 12 years, the
Company was required to remodel a total of approximately 145 stores as of February 3, 2007. As of February 3, 2007, the Company had
remodeled 32 of these required stores, with the result that 113 of the store remodels required by that date under the terms of the License
Agreement had not been completed by that date. The remaining 13 store remodels the Company had completed were not required pursuant to the
provisions of the License Agreement.
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The following table represents the Company�s estimated remodeling and maintenance obligations under the License Agreement as in effect as of
February 3, 2007:

Payments Due By Period

(dollars in thousands) Total
1 year or
less 1�3 years 3�5 years

More than
5 years

Disney Store remodel and maintenance
obligations(1) $ 237,206 $ 16,250 $ 35,750 $ 26,000 $ 159,206
Disney Store remodels in arrears(2) 73,450 73,450 � � �

(1)   Contractual amounts for Disney Store renovations are estimated based on License Agreement provisions as to the number of Disney Stores
required to be remodeled each year. The License Agreement, among other things, requires the Company to remodel stores within a specified
time period following a long-term lease renewal or at least once every 12 years.

(2)   Represents 113 store remodels required under the License Agreement to be completed by February 3, 2007 which had not been completed
by that date. Since this commitment relates to prior years, the Company assumed for purposes of this table that the full amount, estimated at
$650,000 per store, would be required in one year or less. However, as of February 3, 2007, the Company was in negotiations with Disney
regarding potential modifications to the License Agreement to address the Company�s remodeling commitment.

Refer to Note 5�License Agreement with Disney for additional information regarding the August 2007 Refurbishment Amendment entered into
by the Company and Disney which modified, supplemented and superseded certain provisions of the License Agreement, including the
Company�s remodeling commitments through fiscal 2011, and created additional obligations on the part of the Company.

The following table represents the Company�s store opening, remodeling and maintenance commitments for the Disney Store business for the
remainder of the initial term of the License Agreement (through fiscal 2019) taking into account the requirements of the Refurbishment
Amendment that apply through fiscal 2011 as if the Refurbishment Amendment had been in effect at February 3, 2007:

Payments Due By Period

(dollars in thousands) Total
1 year or
less 1�3 years 3�5 years

More than
5 years

Disney Store new store capital
expenditures, remodeling and
maintenance and refresh obligations(1) $ 341,296 $ 17,245 $ 88,965 $ 80,490 $ 154,596

(1)   The Company�s Disney Store obligation of approximately $341.3 million is comprised of $175 million in remodel, retrofit and maintenance
and refresh obligations through fiscal 2011 noted above, approximately $11.7 million in new store capital expenditures (18 stores estimated at
$650,000 each) as provided for in the Refurbishment Amendment, and the Company�s remaining estimated obligation of approximately $154.6
million as provided for by the terms of the original License Agreement.

New Store Capital Commitments
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As of February 3, 2007, the Company executed 40 leases for new stores (30 for The Children�s Place business and 10 for the Disney Store). The
Company estimates the capital expenditures required to open and begin operating these stores will be approximately $30.5 million. The
Company also expects to receive landlord lease incentives of approximately $12.5 million related to these stores.

Purchase Commitments

As of February 3, 2007, the Company has entered into various purchase commitments for merchandise for re-sale of approximately $388 million
and equipment and construction commitments of approximately $66 million, including commitments related to its Ft. Payne, Alabama
distribution center and its new administrative offices at 2 Emerson Lane in Secaucus, NJ.
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Employment Agreements

The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain of its executives which provide for the payment of severance up to three
times the executive�s salary and certain benefits following any termination without cause. These contracts commit the Company, in the aggregate,
to approximately $5.6 million of employment termination costs, of which approximately $5.0 million represents severance payments. In
addition, two executive officers have employment agreements that provide that Mr. Dabah�s departure constitutes �good reason� for such
executives to terminate their employment agreements with us.

12.  LEGAL AND REGULATORY MATTERS
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The Company is involved in various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of its business and reserves for litigation settlements and
contingencies when it can determine the probability of outcome and can estimate losses. Estimates are adjusted as facts and circumstances
require. In the opinion of management, any ultimate liability arising out of such proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company�s financial position or results of operations.

Matters Related to Stock Option Practices

SEC and U.S. Attorney Investigations

On September 29, 2006, the Division of Enforcement of the SEC informed the Company that it had initiated an informal investigation into the
Company�s stock option granting practices. In addition, the Office of the U.S. Attorney for the District of New Jersey has initiated an
investigation into the Company�s option granting practices. The Company has cooperated with these investigations and has briefed both
authorities on the results of the Special Committee�s investigation. There have been no developments in these matters since that time.

Nasdaq Proceedings

As the Company did not timely file its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended July 29, 2006 and October 28, 2006, its Annual
Report on Form 10-K for fiscal 2006, and its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended May 5, 2007 and August 4, 2007
(collectively, the �Required Reports�), the Company has been out of compliance with the reporting requirements of the SEC and the Nasdaq
Global Select Market (�Nasdaq�) for more than one year. Although the Company has now filed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal 2006
and its delinquent reports for the second and third quarters of fiscal 2006, it has not yet filed its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the first and
second quarters of fiscal 2007. Consequently, the Company continues to be in violation of the reporting requirements under the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934 (the �Exchange� Act) and the Nasdaq listing rules.

The Company has received various determination letters from the Staff of Nasdaq stating that because it was not in compliance with Nasdaq
listing requirements, its common stock is subject to delisting. Since September 2006 the Company has been in contact with the Nasdaq Listing
Qualifications Panel, Nasdaq�s Listing and Hearing Review Council, and the Board of Directors of the Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (the �Nasdaq
Board�) regarding the Company�s inability to comply with Nasdaq�s listing requirements and when the Company might be able to again become
compliant. The last communication the Company received from Nasdaq on this issue was from the Nasdaq Board on November 9, 2007 stating
that the Company had until January 9, 2008, to file all of the Required Reports in order to regain compliance with Nasdaq�s listing requirements.
If the Company has not regained compliance prior to that time, it will need to explain to the Nasdaq Staff the reasons for its inability to do so, in
order for the Nasdaq Board to consider whether any further extension is warranted. The Company still needs to file its Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q for the quarters ended May 5, 2007 and August 4, 2007 before it will have filed all of the Required Reports. There is no assurance
that the Company will be able to meet the January 9, 2008 deadline, and if it does not, there is no assurance that the Nasdaq Board will grant the
Company additional time to become compliant. If the Company fails to come into compliance by January 9, 2008 or any extended deadline that
may be approved by Nasdaq, it is anticipated that the Company�s shares will be delisted from Nasdaq.
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In addition, Nasdaq listing rules require that all issuers solicit proxies and hold an annual meeting of its shareholders within 12 months of the
end of the issuer�s fiscal year end. In order for the Company to comply with this rule, it must hold its annual meeting of shareholders for the
fiscal year ended February 3, 2007, no later than February 3, 2008. In addition, the Company must be current in its SEC filings before it can
solicit proxies for such annual meeting of its shareholders. Accordingly, if the Company is unable to become current in its SEC filings in
sufficient time for it to solicit proxies for an annual meeting of the Company�s shareholders by February 3, 2008, or if the Company otherwise
fails to hold such meeting by February 3, 2008, the Company�s shares could be delisted from Nasdaq.

Shareholder Derivative Litigation

On January 17, 2007, a stockholder derivative action was filed against certain current members of the Board and certain current and former
senior executives in the United States District Court, District of New Jersey. The Company has been named as a nominal defendant. The
complaint alleges, among other things, that certain of the Company�s current and former officers and directors (i) breached their fiduciary duties
to the Company and its stockholders and were unjustly enriched by improperly backdating certain grants of stock options to officers and
directors of the Company, (ii) caused the Company to file false and misleading reports with the SEC, (iii) violated the Exchange Act and
common law, (iv) caused the Company to issue false and misleading public statements, and (v) were negligent and abdicated their
responsibilities to the Company and its stockholders. The complaint seeks money damages, an accounting by the defendants for the proceeds of
sales of any allegedly backdated stock options, and the costs and disbursements of the lawsuit, as well as equitable relief. The defendants have
moved to dismiss the action and on or about June 15, 2007, the plaintiff filed an amended complaint adding, among other things, a claim for
securities fraud under SEC rule 10b-5. The outcome of this litigation is uncertain; while the Company believes there are valid defenses to the
claims and will defend itself vigorously, no assurance can be given as to the outcome of this litigation. The litigation could distract management
and directors from the Company�s affairs, the costs and expenses of the litigation could unfavorably affect the Company�s net earnings and an
unfavorable outcome could adversely affect the reputation of the Company.

Other Litigation

On or about February 15, 2005, Michael Scott Smith, a former co-sales manager for The Children�s Place in the San Diego district, filed a lawsuit
against the Company in the Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles. The lawsuit alleges violations of the California Labor Code
and California Business and Professions Code and seeks class action on behalf of Mr. Smith and other individuals similarly situated. On
October 19, 2007, the Company entered into a class action settlement with the plaintiff�s counsel and signed a
memorandum of understanding providing for, among other things, a maximum total payment of $2.1 million,
inclusive of attorneys� fees, costs, and expenses, service payments to the class representative, and administration costs,
in exchange for a full release of all claims and dismissal of the lawsuit. The court granted preliminary approval of the
settlement on November 29, 2007. The settlement was recorded in the thirteen weeks ended July 29, 2006.

On or about July 12, 2006, Joy Fong, a former Disney Store manager in the San Francisco district, filed a lawsuit against the Company in the
Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles. The lawsuit alleges violations of the California Labor Code and California Business and
Professions Code and seeks class action status on behalf of Ms. Fong and other individuals similarly situated. The Company filed its answer on
August 11, 2006 denying any and all liability, and on January 14, 2007, Ms. Fong filed an amended complaint, adding Disney as a defendant.
The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to the claims. The outcome of this litigation is uncertain; while the Company believes there
are valid defenses to the claims, the Company cannot reasonably estimate the amount of loss or range of loss that might be incurred as a result of
this matter.
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In addition, the Company is involved in various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business. Based on the claims asserted at this
time, it is management�s opinion that it is unlikely that any ultimate liability arising out of such proceedings will have a material adverse effect
on the Company�s business.

Refer to Note 18�Subsequent Events for further discussion of pending litigation.
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13.  INCOME TAXES

Components of the Company�s provision for income taxes consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
January 29,

2005
Current -
Federal $ 34,497 $ 47,902 $ 17,601
State 11,442 10,473 3,415
Foreign 20,000 15,003 3,416
Total current 65,939 73,378 24,432
Deferred -
Federal (23,878) (28,688) 53
State (4,345) (6,574) 834
Foreign (1,778) (1,858) 757
Total deferred (30,001) (37,120) 1,644
Total provision for income taxes 35,938 36,258 26,076
Taxes on the extraordinary gain � (1,109) (171)
Tax provision as shown on the consolidated statements of
income $ 35,938 $ 35,149 $ 25,905
Effective tax rate 29.1% 37.6% 39.1%

A reconciliation between the calculated tax provision on income based on the statutory rates in effect and the effective tax rate follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
January 29,

2005
Calculated income tax provision at Federal statutory rate $ 43,164 $ 33,679 $ 23,351
State income taxes, net of Federal benefit 4,613 2,534 2,764
Foreign tax rate differential (5,265) (4,195) (369)
Stock option related expenses (65) (348) 543
American Jobs Creation Act repatriation � 1,856 �
Nondeductible expenses 1,999 317
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